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·1· · · · · · · · · · ·BE IT REMEMBERED that on Wednesday,

·2· ·January 21, 2026, at 621 Woodland Square Loop

·3· ·Southeast, Lacey, Washington, at 1:31 p.m., the

·4· ·following monthly meeting of the Washington State

·5· ·Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was held, to

·6· ·wit:

·7

·8· · · · · · · · · · · ·<<<<<< >>>>>>

·9

10· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR BECKETT:· Good afternoon.

11· ·This is Kurt Beckett, chair of EFSEC, calling our

12· ·January 21st meeting to order at 1:31 p.m.

13· · · ·And, Ms. Grantham, if you could call the roll,

14· ·please.

15· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Certainly, Chair.

16· · · ·Department of Commerce.

17· · · ·Department of Ecology.

18· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. NELSON:· Councilman Nelson

19· ·here.

20· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Department of Fish

21· ·and Wildlife.

22· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. PAMPLIN:· Nate Pamplin,

23· ·present.

24· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Department of

25· ·Natural Resources.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYAN:· Maverick Ryan, present.

·2· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· And Utilities and

·3· ·Transportation Commission.

·4· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· Brian Rybarik,

·5· ·present.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· For local government

·7· ·and optional State agencies.· For the Hop Hill solar

·8· ·project, for Benton County, Paul Krupin.

·9· · · · For Carriger Solar, for Klickitat County, Matt

10· ·Chiles.

11· · · · For Wallula Gap, for Benton County, Adam Fyall.

12· · · · For Goldeneye BESS, Skagit County, Robby Eckroth.

13· · · · · · · · · · · MR. ECKROTH:· Robby Eckroth,

14· ·present.

15· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· Cascade Renewable

16· ·Transmission, for Skamania County, Asa Leckie.

17· · · · · · · · · · · MR. LECKIE:· Asa Leckie, present.

18· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· And City of

19· ·Stevenson, Jeff Breckel.

20· · · · · · · · · · · MR. BRECKEL:· Jeff Breckel, present.

21· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· Assistant attorney

22· ·generals.

23· · · · Jon Thompson.

24· · · · · · · · · · · MR. THOMPSON:· Present.

25· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· Zack Packer.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PACKER:· Present.

·2· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· And Talia Thuet.

·3· · · · Moving on to Council staff.

·4· · · · Sonia Bumpus.

·5· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BUMPUS:· Present.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· Ami Hafkemeyer.

·7· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HAFKEMEYER:· Present.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· Amy Moon.

·9· · · · · · · · · · · MS. MOON:· Present.

10· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· Sara Randolph.

11· · · · Sean Greene.

12· · · · · · · · · · · MR. GREENE:· Present.

13· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· John Barnes.

14· · · · · · · · · · · MR. BARNES:· Present.

15· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· Joanne Snarski.

16· · · · · · · · · · · MS. SNARSKI:· Present.

17· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· Maria Belkina.

18· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BELKINA:· Present.

19· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· Lisa McLean.

20· · · · · · · · · · · MS. McLEAN:· Present.

21· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· And Noel Sharp.

22· · · · · · · · · · · MS. SHARP:· Present.

23· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· Operational updates.

24· ·For Kittitas Valley wind project.

25· · · · Wild Horse Wind Power Project.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GALBRAITH:· Jennifer Galbraith,

·2· ·present.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· Grays Harbor Energy

·4· ·Center.

·5· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PACE:· Eric Pace, present.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· Chehalis Generation

·7· ·Facility.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · MR. SMITH:· Jeremy Smith, present.

·9· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· Columbia Generating

10· ·Station.

11· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HALL:· Katie Hall for Columbia,

12· ·present.

13· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· Columbia Solar.

14· · · · Goose Prairie Solar.

15· · · · · · · · · · · MR. JIA:· Yeah.· Nelson here.

16· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· And Ostrea Solar.

17· · · · · · · · · · · MR. VOLTZ:· John Voltz, present.

18· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· And do we have anyone

19· ·present for the counsel for the environment?

20· · · · · · · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· Yeah.

21· · · · · · · · · · · MR. KOROL:· Yuriy Korol.

22· · · · · · · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· Sarah Reyneveld and

23· ·Yuriy Korol are present.

24· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· Thank you.

25· · · · Chair, there is a quorum for all councils.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you very much.

·2· · · · Moving on.· Chair would entertain a motion to

·3· ·adopt today's meeting agenda.

·4· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· So moved.

·5· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Is there a second?

·6· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Second.

·7· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· The agenda's been

·8· ·moved and seconded.· Are there any additions or changes

·9· ·to the agenda?

10· · · · Hearing none.

11· · · · All in favor of moving the agenda forward, please

12· ·say "aye."

13· · · · · · · · · · · MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:· Aye.

14· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Opposed?· Abstain?

15· · · · Okay.· Agenda is adopted.

16· · · · Moving on to the minutes.· We have before us the

17· ·minutes from our December 17th meeting.· Chair would

18· ·entertain a motion to adopt the minutes.

19· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· So moved.

20· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Second?

21· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Second.

22· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· The minutes have

23· ·been moved and are on the table.· Are there any edits

24· ·to the minutes?· I know of none from my review.

25· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· I specifically



·1· ·reviewed for the spelling of "counsel" this time, but I

·2· ·did not notice any modifications needed.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you for

·4· ·bringing that forward, future review.

·5· · · · So all right.· Then, with that, I'll call for the

·6· ·vote to approve the minutes.

·7· · · · All in favor, say aye.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:· Aye.

·9· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Opposed?

10· · · · Okay.· Minutes are adopted.

11· · · · And a special privilege for all of us today.· We

12· ·have before us three resolutions, one each for former

13· ·Council members:· Lenny Young from the Department of

14· ·Natural Resources, Eli Levitt from the Department of

15· ·Ecology, and Stacey Brewster from the Utilities and

16· ·Transportation Commission.

17· · · · And so the chair would entertain a motion to adopt

18· ·Resolutions 358, 359, and 361.

19· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· So moved.

20· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Is there a second?

21· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· Second.

22· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you.

23· · · · The resolutions are now on the table.· And the

24· ·chair will do his best to try and appropriately

25· ·highlight a few specific items for each of our former



·1· ·Council members.· For the members of the public, you'll

·2· ·find a full description for each of their activities

·3· ·and service here on the EFSEC Council and a general

·4· ·consensus -- I will not read the full resolution or let

·5· ·alone all three, but will enable -- will endeavor to

·6· ·highlight a few special things for each of them and

·7· ·then would welcome other comments from Council members,

·8· ·and then ultimately we'll call the question and

·9· ·certainly would welcome hearing from our special guests

10· ·here today.

11· · · · So starting with Lenny Young.· And we'll go in

12· ·numeric order here.· For resolution 358, Lenny was

13· ·appointed on March 5th, 2021, served nearly five years,

14· ·and certainly brought a tremendous depth of knowledge

15· ·and background in many respects but especially given

16· ·his natural resources focus at the Department of

17· ·Natural Resources.

18· · · · Each of these former Council members participated

19· ·in six reviews -- or excuse me -- in six site

20· ·certificate agreements.· Those are Goose Prairie Solar,

21· ·High Top Solar, Ostrea Solar, Horse Heaven Wind,

22· ·Wautoma Solar, and Carriger Solar.· And certainly

23· ·several of those -- in particular, Horse Heaven --

24· ·stand out, even more extra work than I think any of us

25· ·can fully appreciate.· So I want to thank all of you



·1· ·for that.

·2· · · · The other thing that Lenny was certainly known for

·3· ·was characterized by challenging assumptions and

·4· ·examining multiple angles of an issue during Council

·5· ·deliberations.· And let me note that for each of you,

·6· ·the resolution on this is that the Energy Facility Site

·7· ·Evaluation Council recognizes your outstanding,

·8· ·unwavering, and faithful contribution to the Council's

·9· ·siting and regulatory activities and gratefully

10· ·expresses its sincere gratitude for the commitment,

11· ·dedication, and effort that each of you have shown

12· ·through your service.

13· · · · Moving on to Eli Levitt, who began his service

14· ·with EFSEC on January 10th, 2022.· And each of these

15· ·Council members certainly brought, you know, diligence

16· ·in their deliberation on how best to balance many of

17· ·the different impacts and mitigation measures that

18· ·every project deserves.

19· · · · And I'm sure we'll catch a "mute" there when we

20· ·can.

21· · · · Eli contributed, again, to the same six eventual

22· ·site certificate agreements in addition to his

23· ·thoughtful focus on the review, his attentiveness to

24· ·public comment, thoughtful questions, and continual

25· ·advocacy for continuous improvement and expansion of



·1· ·public outreach was certainly noted, and solicitation

·2· ·of public input from across Washington's diverse

·3· ·communities was an area of focus for Council Member

·4· ·Levitt.

·5· · · · And, lastly, and saving the distinction of the

·6· ·longest-serving Council member, at least that I'm aware

·7· ·of, for nearly seven years, Stacey Brewster on behalf

·8· ·of the Utilities and Transportation Commission, who

·9· ·started with the EFSEC Council on January 8th, 2019.

10· ·She also gets the high award for 73 regular Council

11· ·meetings and 31 special meetings.

12· · · · And I should have noted that Eli had 58, but Lenny

13· ·had a full 80.· So I think you're still on No. 2,

14· ·Lenny.· But each of you, you know, deserve praise for

15· ·even a handful of those.

16· · · · So let me also especially say here in the past

17· ·year that Stacey, Council Brewster, was ably and with

18· ·careful consideration guided Council discussion as

19· ·acting chair for Horse Heaven, including on the

20· ·Species-5 issue that is also before the Council today,

21· ·Wallula Gap, Goldeneye BESS, and Hop Hill.· And she has

22· ·participated -- and I had the honor of doing so

23· ·alongside her -- in a government-to-government

24· ·consultation for the Goldeneye BESS project.

25· · · · So, in particular, a closing comment was just



·1· ·particularly insightful questions in adjudicative

·2· ·processes and deliberations were noted as an area of

·3· ·extra expertise that Council Brewster brought to the --

·4· ·to the effort.

·5· · · · So, with that, certainly a closing just heartfelt

·6· ·"thank you" to each of you for all your service.  I

·7· ·learned a lot from you and appreciated just in the time

·8· ·in the past year that I was able to share with each of

·9· ·you.· I can't thank you enough, and especially Stacey

10· ·for grabbing that gavel on my behalf, which was always

11· ·going to be an extra ask of someone, and it came to be

12· ·you.· So thank you for that.

13· · · · And, with that, I would turn this to my fellow

14· ·Council members, and I would actually maybe start with

15· ·Council and Chair Rybarik, who has a member of the UTC

16· ·here being honored, so...

17· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· Thank you,

18· ·Mr. Chairman.· Do want to just thank everybody for

19· ·their -- for their service here.· And I think you've

20· ·paraphrased those very well in just the great work

21· ·that's gone on here.· I want to additionally appreciate

22· ·Stacey's work for the UTC here in the room with us,

23· ·with us today.· Want to just give a great shout out to

24· ·her.· The resolution outlines some of the projects, as

25· ·you mentioned, Mr. Chairman, some of the work very



·1· ·specifically in the chair's spot in the last -- last

·2· ·year or so.

·3· · · · But I think it cannot capture, even though it

·4· ·attempts to, just the thoughtfulness and the

·5· ·preparation that Stacey brings to her work and the

·6· ·perspectives she offers.· We're very thankful that

·7· ·she'll continue to be here at the UTC, continue to

·8· ·support the work that we're doing here with EFSEC and

·9· ·my participation here.· But just wanted to thank her

10· ·again, and just grateful for her perspectives and

11· ·knowledge.· And thank you, Stacey.

12· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Very well.

13· · · · Let me continue, then.· I guess, Council Ryan, did

14· ·you want to make a comment on behalf of your agency as

15· ·well.

16· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYAN:· Yeah.· Thank you, Chair.

17· · · · Lenny:· Big shoes, huge opportunity to follow in

18· ·the footsteps of someone like yourself and appreciate

19· ·all the insight leant to the Council over the years.

20· ·Everything that's been mentioned, your role in these

21· ·deliberations, it's really the model of public service,

22· ·both your record of service here as well as at the

23· ·agency.· So I appreciate the opportunity to step in

24· ·your footsteps and appreciate everything you've done.

25· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· And, Council Nelson,



·1· ·did you want to make a comment on behalf of the

·2· ·Department of Ecology?

·3· · · · · · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· Thank you, Chair

·4· ·Beckett.· I sure do.

·5· · · · Just want to thank all three Council members

·6· ·receiving a commendation here:· Young, Brewster, and

·7· ·Levitt.

·8· · · · Eli's dedication to public comment and open

·9· ·process and all that, that transcends his entire

10· ·career, not just his time on the EFSEC Council.· And

11· ·just wanted to publicly thank him for that.

12· · · · You know, I'd like to think that Eli walks so I

13· ·could run, but he's about a foot taller than me, so in

14· ·my analogy here, we're going at about the same rate of

15· ·speed.· Thank you, Eli.

16· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you.

17· · · · Council Pamplin or other Council members, any

18· ·other comments?

19· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Thank you, Mr. Chair.

20· ·Yeah, great appreciation for all three Council members.

21· ·And I'd just like to specifically mention Mr. Young.

22· · · · He's been an executive at DNR for a lot of years,

23· ·and our orbits have overlapped and intersected on a

24· ·variety of other forums outside of the EFSEC process.

25· ·Always found his style of engagement being curious,



·1· ·articulating very complex and difficult discussions in

·2· ·a way that brought further understanding across the

·3· ·meeting.

·4· · · · And I always thought he was very fair and just an

·5· ·active listener.· And I've always appreciated just

·6· ·working with you, Mr. Young.· So thank you for all of

·7· ·your years of service.· Thanks.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you.

·9· · · · And, Director Bumpus, I apologize for not giving

10· ·you a heads-up earlier.· I would turn this to you just

11· ·to see if there's any comment you want to make on

12· ·behalf of yourself and/or the staff and the agency,

13· ·so -- and it's okay if not, but...

14· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BUMPUS:· Thank you.· No.

15· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· I should have added

16· ·your name in that list earlier, so...

17· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BUMPUS:· Thank you, Chair

18· ·Beckett.· I appreciate the opportunity.

19· · · · No, I just wanted to say thank you for all of the

20· ·work and the dedicated time and attention to EFSEC over

21· ·those years that you served, and also to thank you --

22· ·each of you were always very respectful to staff and

23· ·worked very well and very collaboratively with the

24· ·EFSEC staff, and we really appreciate that.· So thank

25· ·you.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you for the

·2· ·good comments.

·3· · · · All right.· Members of the Council, with that, I

·4· ·will call the question.· Again, we have

·5· ·Resolutions 358, 359, and 361 on the table.· All in

·6· ·favor of passing those resolutions, please say "aye."

·7· · · · · · · · · · · MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:· Aye.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Opposed?

·9· ·Abstentions?

10· · · · Okay.· Unanimous of course.

11· · · · I don't know if there's any comments our guests

12· ·would like to make from the floor.· I would certainly

13· ·welcome that.· No obligation.· Otherwise, we do have

14· ·resolutions here that are actually framed, and we would

15· ·present those to you and probably grab a quick photo.

16· ·So if you wish.

17· · · · · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Just --

18· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Former Council

19· ·Young, please.

20· · · · · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· -- quick remarks from

21· ·me.

22· · · · I first would like to thank our outstanding

23· ·commissioners, Public Lands Commissioner Hilary Franz,

24· ·former commissioner, and Commissioner Dave Upthegrove,

25· ·our current commissioner, for having the confidence to



·1· ·give me the opportunity to represent them and the

·2· ·department, and thank both the former chair, Kathleen

·3· ·Drew, and the current chair, Kurt Beckett, Director

·4· ·Bumpus, and all the EFSEC staff, including our counsel

·5· ·from the attorney general's office, Jon Thompson, for

·6· ·the tremendous support that they've provided during the

·7· ·time that I served.

·8· · · · And not the least the incredible thoughtfulness

·9· ·and dedication of my fellow Council members when we

10· ·were dealing with very complex issues with competing

11· ·priorities.· I was always impressed by the dedication

12· ·and the thoughtfulness and the seriousness with which

13· ·they took these important issues and how they

14· ·discharged their duties.· So tremendous experience, and

15· ·I'm very thankful for the opportunity to have been on

16· ·the Council.

17· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you very much.

18· · · · Anyone else?· No obligation.

19· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BREWSTER:· Well --

20· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Stacey Brewster.

21· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BREWSTER:· -- Lenny said it very

22· ·well.· Thank you to all of you for leadership, to

23· ·staff.· You guys -- it wasn't easy, but it wasn't

24· ·impossible.· You did -- you prepared us well.· Always

25· ·had information for us.· I really appreciate your



·1· ·dedication, your integrity, all consummate

·2· ·professionals, leadership, Chair Beckett, Chair Drew.

·3· ·Learned so much during this opportunity, and I really

·4· ·appreciate the honor to serve.

·5· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Council Levitt.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · MR. LEVITT:· Yeah, I guess I feel

·7· ·obligated to also say something.

·8· · · · No, I just thank you very much for the opportunity

·9· ·to serve.· I believe very much in the mission of the

10· ·agency and the Council.· I have a child with asthma and

11· ·have friends and family with asthma.· I look forward to

12· ·a future where there is more solar, there's more

13· ·geothermal, there's more wind, there's more battery

14· ·storage, more smart grid, and hopefully our skies will

15· ·be clearer, we'll have less smog, and a new future to

16· ·look forward to.

17· · · · I certainly respect that all these decisions are

18· ·tough.· I strongly recommend the importance and the

19· ·value of doing site visits together, staff and Council

20· ·members and the public doing those site visits,

21· ·listening to each other, talking to each other.· Those

22· ·to me are extremely valuable, and I hope those continue

23· ·into the future.

24· · · · I was mentored briefly by Hedia Adelsman at

25· ·Ecology, and she always had so many stories and talked



·1· ·so much about the site visits to reinforce their --

·2· ·their importance.· So, yeah, good luck with the

·3· ·decisions ahead of you, and thank you to the staff and

·4· ·the Council members for continuing to work.

·5· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you very much,

·6· ·each of you, for your good and meaningful comments.

·7· · · · With that, I would ask that, Council Rybarik, if

·8· ·you would grab --

·9· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· Yeah.

10· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· -- the resolution

11· ·for Stacey.· And, Maverick, if you would grab Lenny's.

12· ·And I will -- Council Nelson, on your behalf from the

13· ·Department of Ecology, I will carry Eli's.· And so

14· ·we'll present these to you, and hopefully someone could

15· ·help with the photo from out there.· And then we'll

16· ·resume the rest of our meeting here in less than five

17· ·minutes.· The meeting is still going.· We haven't

18· ·adjourned, or recessed, I should say, so...

19· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Discussion off the record.)

20

21· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you.

22· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Applause.)

23

24· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· And as we pick back

25· ·up here, let me just note for our honored guests that



·1· ·you have more than earned the right to leave

·2· ·immediately.· You are welcome, of course, in this

·3· ·public meeting at any time.· But you have earned the

·4· ·right to walk out the door.· So I leave that to your

·5· ·good judgment.

·6· · · · All right.· With that, we will move to our project

·7· ·updates at 1:50.· And let me -- on behalf of my fellow

·8· ·Council members as well as our project participants and

·9· ·members of the public, I have kind of a broader

10· ·announcement to share and certainly welcome comments

11· ·from Council in particular as we go through this

12· ·portion of the meeting.

13· · · · I believe Director Bumpus or Ami Hafkemeyer will

14· ·add a further word here.· But basically there's a

15· ·proposed change that would be being implemented in

16· ·February which would evolve these project updates

17· ·essentially that, for the normal updates that have

18· ·nothing to report other than what's already in our

19· ·packet, that that in-meeting verbal, whether virtually

20· ·or rarely on occasion here in the meeting, that we

21· ·would suspend that in-meeting reporting-out process and

22· ·instead have those same written reports in our packet.

23· · · · And those -- that would be done to maintain our,

24· ·you know, continuing our compliance standards that are

25· ·associated with each of the site certificate



·1· ·agreements, but ultimately I think achieving a more

·2· ·easier, more efficient way of our work.

·3· · · · And so that's the underlying intent in changing

·4· ·from having to come down the roll with not always

·5· ·things to report.· Certainly the ability for any of our

·6· ·project participants to highlight something that they

·7· ·choose to highlight or something that we mutually

·8· ·believe needs more discussion in a meeting, that can

·9· ·always be done quickly just before the meeting, but

10· ·otherwise I think we would try to consistently note

11· ·these are the projects that are just going to have

12· ·written reports, and then obviously we would focus on

13· ·the balance that would receive the normal verbal

14· ·update, whether that was by a project participant or

15· ·staff.

16· · · · So, with that, let me turn to Director Bumpus and

17· ·Ami Hafkemeyer to see if there was any further

18· ·additional kind of context you wanted to provide on how

19· ·that new system will work and continue to maintain our

20· ·compliance, so...

21· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BUMPUS:· Thank you, Chair

22· ·Beckett.· And good afternoon, Council members.

23· · · · Yes, so just a couple of things.· In looking at

24· ·ways to have the Council meetings run a little bit more

25· ·efficiently and spending our time together focused on



·1· ·applications that are under review and on facilities

·2· ·that maybe have compliance issues that we need to

·3· ·address, we think that this is going to add some

·4· ·efficiency to the meetings.

·5· · · · We -- we being staff -- looked at the site

·6· ·certification agreements for our operating facilities

·7· ·to ensure that if making this change is still compliant

·8· ·with the terms and conditions of those SCAs -- and it

·9· ·is -- and so we did double-check that, and we think

10· ·that this is -- this is consistent with their

11· ·compliance requirements.

12· · · · As to how it will work, I'll punt over to Ami

13· ·Hafkemeyer to see if she wants to add any additional

14· ·details about how this would function.

15· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HAFKEMEYER:· Thank you.

16· · · · So in the background, very little will change.

17· ·Staff are in regular communication with our operational

18· ·facilities.· And so if there are compliance activities

19· ·pending or something arises unexpectedly, that will

20· ·continue to be communicated with staff and brought

21· ·forward to the Council as things arise.

22· · · · And staff will continue to review these monthly

23· ·updates and coordinate with the facilities on these

24· ·regular updates.· That will still be provided monthly

25· ·as they are now.· And so with that respect, compliance



·1· ·oversight is not diminishing in any way.· We are still

·2· ·verifying compliance with permits, with SCA

·3· ·requirements, and so on and so forth.

·4· · · · Really the only change will be on the -- in the

·5· ·meeting where, if there is nothing nonroutine to

·6· ·report, we will not continue to say that every meeting.

·7· ·Rather, indicate which facilities have nothing

·8· ·nonroutine to report, but their update will still be

·9· ·available in the Council packet for your review.· And

10· ·facilities that do have something nonroutine to report

11· ·or an upcoming permit renewal or mitigation activity

12· ·that they're providing a report on, those will still be

13· ·verbally provided at the Council meetings.

14· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Great.· Thank you

15· ·for that.

16· · · · And I should just also acknowledge a couple of

17· ·other folks in this.· One, Director Bumpus had

18· ·confirmed with me that the suggestion had certainly

19· ·pre-existed my arrival at the agency maybe some years

20· ·back certainly.· And a question I had in, you know,

21· ·kind of coming to EFSEC.

22· · · · I do reflect that ultimately these project updates

23· ·don't often take a lot of time, because I kind of

24· ·annotate, you know, how much time we're spending, but

25· ·ultimately I am mindful of, you know, the time it takes



·1· ·for the participants to log in and others and call the

·2· ·roll, and so hopefully we can, you know, again, do good

·3· ·work and maintain our compliance with high confidence

·4· ·here but still have that benefit of a little easier

·5· ·work.

·6· · · · Council Pamplin has certainly asked this question

·7· ·and suggestion, made a suggestion along these lines, so

·8· ·I just want to just recognize that shared intent and

·9· ·good suggestion.

10· · · · On a closing note -- well, let me say, one, let me

11· ·see if there's comments from our Council, and I would

12· ·also note for our project report-outs here coming up,

13· ·if you -- as you do each of your project up-to-dates,

14· ·as I call on you, if you have any question or comment

15· ·you want to make while we're all here kind of in this

16· ·transition, please do that today as I call through the

17· ·projects here momentarily.

18· · · · But with that heads-up to our project

19· ·participants, let me turn this first to the Council for

20· ·any quick comments they'd like to share.

21· · · · Council Pamplin.

22· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Yeah, thanks,

23· ·Mr. Chair.

24· · · · Just really appreciate you-all taking a look at

25· ·this and seeing if this change could be implemented.  I



·1· ·appreciate where we're landing and the direction we're

·2· ·headed.· So thank you.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Council Rybarik.

·4· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· Appreciate the focus

·5· ·on efficiency and looking at that efficiency for all

·6· ·parties involved and appreciate the change.· I support

·7· ·it.· Thank you.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Anyone else?

·9· · · · Oh.· Council Pa- -- Nelson.· Excuse me.

10· · · · · · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· Excellent.· Yeah, thank

11· ·you, Chair Beckett.

12· · · · Yes, I appreciate the efficiency, and, yeah, let's

13· ·let her rip.

14· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· On that note.· All

15· ·right.

16· · · · Moving on to project updates.· The Kittitas Valley

17· ·wind project.· Mr. Caseday.

18· · · · We will move on for now and can come back to

19· ·Kittitas Valley, if need be.

20· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HAFKEMEYER:· Council Beckett.

21· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Oh.

22· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HAFKEMEYER:· John Barnes is able

23· ·to --

24· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Oh.

25· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HAFKEMEYER:· -- speak to the



·1· ·facility updates.

·2· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you,

·3· ·Mr. Barnes.

·4· · · · · · · · · · · MR. BARNES:· Thank you, Chair

·5· ·Beckett and Council.· This is staff for the Kittitas

·6· ·Valley project.· I will be speaking on behalf of Sara

·7· ·Randolph.

·8· · · · There's no updates to -- or the facility update is

·9· ·provided in your packet.· There is no nonroutine

10· ·updates to report.

11· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Okay.· Thank you.

12· · · · Moving on to the Wild Horse Wind Power Project.

13· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GALBRAITH:· Yes.

14· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Ms. Galbraith.

15· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GALBRAITH:· Thank you.· Thank

16· ·you, Chair Beckett.· Can you hear me all right?

17· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Yes, we can.

18· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GALBRAITH:· Excellent.

19· · · · So thank you, EFSEC Council and staff.· This is

20· ·Jennifer Galbraith with Puget Sound Energy representing

21· ·the Wild Horse Wind Facility.

22· · · · For the month of December, we have nothing

23· ·nonroutine to report and no new updates regarding the

24· ·cleanup of the damaged turbine other than that winter

25· ·weather has stalled the removal of the remaining 15



·1· ·percent of turbine components.· But we anticipate

·2· ·cleanup to be completed before the end of this month as

·3· ·weather and site conditions allow.· Thank you.

·4· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you.

·5· · · · The Chehalis Generation Facility.· Mr. Smith.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · MR. SMITH:· Good afternoon, Chair

·7· ·Beckett, EFSEC Council, and staff.· This is Jeremy

·8· ·Smith, the operations manager for the Chehalis

·9· ·Generation Facility.

10· · · · I have no nonroutine items to report.

11· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you.

12· · · · Grays Harbor Energy Center.· Mr. Pace.

13· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PACE:· Good afternoon, Chair

14· ·Beckett, EFSEC Council, and staff.· This is Eric Pace

15· ·for Grays Harbor Energy.

16· · · · And Grays Harbor Energy has nothing nonroutine to

17· ·report.

18· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you.

19· · · · The Columbia Solar project.· I don't know if we

20· ·have a participant for that today or not.

21· · · · Nothing from staff on that?

22· · · · · · · · · · · MR. BARNES:· Yes, I will be

23· ·providing the update, I believe.

24· · · · So this is John Barnes, EFSEC staff for the

25· ·Columbia Solar project.



·1· · · · The facility update is provided in your packet.

·2· ·There are no nonroutine updates to report.· Thank you.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you.

·4· · · · Moving on to the Columbia Generating Station and

·5· ·WNP 1 and 4.· Kelly Elsethagen.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HALL:· Good afternoon.· Can you

·7· ·hear me all right?

·8· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Yes, we can.

·9· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HALL:· Okay.· Good afternoon,

10· ·Chair Beckett, Council members, and staff.· This is

11· ·Katie Hall for Columbia Generating Station and WNP 1

12· ·and 4.

13· · · · While the agenda shows no updates for these

14· ·facilities, previously discussed with EFSEC staff using

15· ·this opportunity to notify of our recent submittal to

16· ·EFSEC for the Columbia Generating Station.

17· · · · On January 15th, Energy Northwest submitted a SEPA

18· ·checklist to EFSEC for the construction of two

19· ·warehouses at the Column Generating Station.· This

20· ·submittal follows EFSEC's staff's recent decision on

21· ·January 6 to require SEPA review despite earlier

22· ·indications to the contrary.· Energy Northwest and

23· ·EFSEC have held conversations regarding the scope and

24· ·timeline of the project since September of last year.

25· · · · So Energy Northwest emphasizes this late change



·1· ·jeopardizes the compressed schedule for the upcoming

·2· ·refueling outage, which is critical for operational

·3· ·readiness and regional energy reliability.· So

·4· ·therefore Energy Northwest has requested EFSEC's

·5· ·determination on the SEPA checklist by February 2nd,

·6· ·and we've urged for expedited review, including waiving

·7· ·the public comment period if no significant

·8· ·environmental impacts are identified.· Thank you.

·9· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you.

10· · · · It's my understanding from staff that that recent

11· ·request came in on Friday, is under review, and we may

12· ·hear a little bit more on that in our February meeting.

13· ·But appreciate the added context of what's trying to be

14· ·accomplished there in the requested timeline.

15· · · · I don't know if there's any other comment from

16· ·staff that you'd like to share.· But it's great if you

17· ·do.· And otherwise I know we'll close out on this in

18· ·February, so...

19· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HAFKEMEYER:· Just a little bit

20· ·more context to add.

21· · · · We have received submissions, a SEPA checklist as

22· ·well as some plans that we're reviewing to ensure code

23· ·compliance.· And we are working with the facility and

24· ·reviewing what process milestones are appropriate for

25· ·the environmental review and compliance with their site



·1· ·certificate agreement.

·2· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you.

·3· · · · Any questions of what's been shared from other

·4· ·Council members?

·5· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· I just want to make

·6· ·sure I heard the dates right in the presentation.  I

·7· ·think it was Katie.· Did you say you've requested

·8· ·review of that by February 2nd?

·9· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· That was the date.

10· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HALL:· Yes, that is correct.

11· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· Okay.· So obviously

12· ·that's before the next EFSEC Council meeting.· So I'm

13· ·just -- how do we think about lining those -- the

14· ·request up in our next regularly scheduled meeting?

15· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· I think staff are

16· ·basically, especially on the SEPA review, trying to

17· ·make sure what's required there.· Generally all of what

18· ·we're talking about is within the director's delegated

19· ·authority and would fall more on that side of the -- of

20· ·the line.· But I think, you know, in general, of

21· ·course, as an abundance of just transparency and doing

22· ·work together, surfacing it here is part of that.· And

23· ·if there's further consideration from the director on

24· ·the EFSEC Council, any action required, then that would

25· ·come back --



·1· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· Oh.· Back to us.

·2· ·Okay.· Got it.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· I don't know if

·4· ·there's anything else on that?

·5· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BUMPUS:· Yes.· Thank you, Chair

·6· ·Beckett.· And we'll provide an update, a more -- I

·7· ·would say comprehensive update to the Council as to

·8· ·what we determine based off this review of the latest

·9· ·submitted material.· So we'll be providing a more

10· ·detailed update to the Council at that time.· So even

11· ·though this does fall -- the review is more related to

12· ·what's required of EFSEC per SEPA, we're still going to

13· ·be providing an update to the Council as to what we're

14· ·finding with respect to the SEPA review.

15· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· Very good.· Thank you.

16· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Appreciate that.

17· · · · And certainly I appreciate the added comment of

18· ·where the warehouses fit into the larger refueling

19· ·standard event that goes on with the Columbia

20· ·Generating Station, all of which is contained within

21· ·the current SCA that is on the books that's already

22· ·received the Council approval.· So those details are

23· ·what they're -- the staff are working through, and, you

24· ·know, we'll make sure we're all on the same page as

25· ·to --



·1· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BUMPUS:· Yes.

·2· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· -- what the Council,

·3· ·if anything, needs to be done, so okay.· Very well.

·4· · · · And thank you again, Ms. Elsethagen.· And I will

·5· ·still get that pronunciation more consistent over time.

·6· · · · So, with that, Goose Prairie Solar.· Nelson Jia.

·7· · · · · · · · · · · MR. JIA:· Hi.· Nelson here from

·8· ·Brookfield and Goose Prairie.

·9· · · · No nonroutine updates to report.· We did have some

10· ·curtailment due to BPA work on the Midway-Moxee line

11· ·for two weeks at the beginning of December, but that's

12· ·about it.· Thank you.

13· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you.

14· · · · Ostrea Solar.· Mr. Voltz.

15· · · · · · · · · · · MR. VOLTZ:· Good afternoon, Chair

16· ·Beckett, Council members, and staff.· This is John

17· ·Voltz with Cypress Creek Renewables representing Ostrea

18· ·solar facility.

19· · · · In the month of December, the O&M facility

20· ·continued construction.· We did achieve mechanical

21· ·completion of both the PV and HV facilities, made

22· ·preparations to receive backfeed energy from the

23· ·utility this month.· That did occur.· It will be in our

24· ·next report.· But major milestone accomplished there in

25· ·the construction of the facility.



·1· · · · I'd also like to draw attention to the charitable

·2· ·work.· Some of the site team donated some time to the

·3· ·Sunrise Outreach Food Bank, helped their storage

·4· ·cleanup, food organizing, and handing out the donated

·5· ·food for local area I believe that's in Yakima.· Other

·6· ·than that, there's nothing nonroutine to report for the

·7· ·period.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you very much,

·9· ·as well as for the additional detail.

10· · · · All right.· I believe that then brings the

11· ·Carriger Solar project update.· And Joanne Snarski is

12· ·here to provide that update.

13· · · · · · · · · · · MS. SNARSKI:· Thank you, Chair

14· ·Beckett and Council members.· This is Joanne Snarski,

15· ·the siting specialist for Carriger Solar facility in

16· ·Klickitat County.

17· · · · On December 2nd, 2025, the governor's office

18· ·notified Chair Beckett that the chair -- excuse me --

19· ·that the Carriger Solar site certification agreement

20· ·was approved by Governor Ferguson.· The agreement was

21· ·executed by both parties and became effective on

22· ·December 15th, 2025.

23· · · · On December 31st, 2025, the Confederated Tribes

24· ·and Bands of the Yakama Nation filed a petition for

25· ·judicial review of the Council and governor's approval



·1· ·for the site certification.

·2· · · · EFSEC staff are working with our assistant

·3· ·attorneys general to respond to this filing.· In the

·4· ·meantime, we are continuing to discuss Carriger's

·5· ·timing for submitting the plans required in the site

·6· ·certification agreement.

·7· · · · May I answer any questions?

·8· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Council members.

·9· ·Comments or questions.· Straightforward for today.

10· · · · Oh.· Council Chiles.· I didn't see you join.· Good

11· ·to -- good to have you here.· Please proceed.· But

12· ·we're not hearing you so far if you are speaking.

13· · · · Still not getting anything in the room, Council

14· ·Chiles.

15· · · · All right.· Well, I'll tell you what.· If Council

16· ·Chiles pops back in, we can hear you, then certainly we

17· ·will take those comments.· Otherwise, we'll move on to

18· ·the next project for now.

19· · · · Ms. Grantham, let me know if that technical issue

20· ·gets further clarified.

21· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· Yeah, I'm not sure if

22· ·there's much we can do on our end.· It's showing that

23· ·he's unmuted, but we're just not able to hear him --

24· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· It's probably --

25· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· -- for some reason,



·1· ·yeah.

·2· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Probably on his end.

·3· ·Okay.· So, Council Chiles, since we're going to move

·4· ·into Horse Heaven, let me see if -- one last chance for

·5· ·now.· I think he dropped off.· Okay.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· And log back in.

·7· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· So we'll keep an eye

·8· ·out for Council Chiles.· But in the meantime, let's

·9· ·proceed to the Horse Heaven project update.· And we

10· ·have the ferruginous hawk nest mitigation plan that Amy

11· ·Moon is going to make a presentation on.· I will first

12· ·though just note that, given my larger recusal on Horse

13· ·Heaven, I have the honor and appreciation of handing

14· ·the gavel on this particular item to Council Pamplin.

15· · · · And I would note just for the benefits of my

16· ·Council members and members of the public, even though

17· ·I have recused, I'm not participating as a Council

18· ·member on this particular action, I have read all the

19· ·materials.· I have read all the public comments.

20· ·They're important to me, including just these issues

21· ·mapped to other projects.· And so I'm certainly trying

22· ·to keep running alongside you so that I can be a better

23· ·chair when the next issue comes up for me directly.

24· · · · So, with that, Council Pamplin.· And soon we'll

25· ·turn this to Ms. Moon for the update to get started.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Great.· Thank you,

·2· ·Mr. Chair.

·3· · · · Ms. Moon, go ahead and proceed, please.· Thank

·4· ·you.

·5· · · · · · · · · · · MS. MOON:· All right.· Good

·6· ·afternoon.· Thank you, Acting Chair Pamplin, and to the

·7· ·EFSEC Council members.

·8· · · · As required in the Horse Heaven site certification

·9· ·agreement, or SCA, development and approval of a

10· ·mitigation and management plan is required under

11· ·Mitigation Measure Species-5, ferruginous hawk, when

12· ·project components are proposed for siting within the

13· ·two-mile core ferruginous hawk habitat.· The

14· ·certificate holder worked with the preoperational

15· ·technical advisory group, or PTAG -- P-T-A-G -- to

16· ·develop a project-specific ferruginous hawk mitigation

17· ·and management plan for approval by EFSEC.· This plan

18· ·received PTAG consensus prior to submitting the

19· ·mitigation plan to EFSEC.

20· · · · The ferruginous hawk nests mitigation plan

21· ·includes the four fundamental requirements stated in

22· ·Spec 5.· No. 1 is a description of efforts to site

23· ·project infrastructure to avoid core habitat,

24· ·identified as the area within two miles of nests

25· ·documented in the priority habitats and species



·1· ·database.· That's the PHS database.

·2· · · · No. 2, a description of when construction

·3· ·activities will be undertaken to avoid sensitive timing

·4· ·periods for ferruginous hawk.

·5· · · · No. 3, a description of pre- and post-monitoring

·6· ·programs that will be conducted to establish habitat

·7· ·use within the lease boundary, mapping of ground

·8· ·squirrel colonies and other prey, identification of

·9· ·potential flyways between nest sites and foraging

10· ·habitat and monitoring of potential flyways to inform

11· ·the final turbine siting and orientation, ongoing

12· ·monitoring of nest use, and territory success.

13· · · · And, No. 4, a description of restoration

14· ·activities that will be undertaken during project

15· ·decommissioning to enhance ferruginous hawk habitat in

16· ·disturbed areas.

17· · · · Staff reviewed the proposed plan and posted a copy

18· ·of the ferruginous hawk nest mitigation plan to the

19· ·EFSEC public website for a 14-day public comment period

20· ·from December 30th, 2025, through January 12 of 2026.

21· ·EFSEC received a total of 32 comments.

22· · · · EFSEC's State Environmental Policy Act specialist,

23· ·Sean Greene, is here to provide a summary of the

24· ·Species-5 ferruginous hawk nest mitigation plan and

25· ·information on the comments received during the recent



·1· ·public comment period on that plan.

·2· · · · Sean.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · MR. GREENE:· Thank you, Amy.· And

·4· ·thank you, Acting Chair Pamplin and Council members.

·5· ·This is Sean Greene, SEPA specialist for EFSEC.

·6· · · · I wanted to give you-all a brief or maybe

·7· ·not-so-brief rundown of what was included the Horse

·8· ·Heaven ferruginous hawk nest management plan and

·9· ·discuss some of the substantive comments we received

10· ·during the public comment period.

11· · · · The nest management plan adopts all of the

12· ·ferruginous hawk mitigation outlined in the Horse

13· ·Heaven wind farm draft habitat mitigation plan from the

14· ·application for site certification, including

15· ·compensatory habitat mitigation.· It furthermore

16· ·includes a commitment to protect an area that supports

17· ·sufficient ferruginous hawk habitat that will achieve

18· ·mitigation acreage targets defined by the mitigation

19· ·ratios set by EFSEC.

20· · · · It discusses the potential installation of

21· ·artificial nesting platforms in areas with specific

22· ·site conditions and where WDFW staff believe that there

23· ·is a high confidence that those platforms could be used

24· ·by ferruginous hawks.

25· · · · It formalizes the monitoring plan put forth in the



·1· ·final EIS to perform nest and mortality surveys for

·2· ·three of the first five years of project operation.

·3· ·And, finally, it commits to a curtailment of turbine

·4· ·operations during daylight hours within two miles of an

·5· ·active nest unless a qualified biologist with WDFW and

·6· ·EFSEC approval determines that the turbines are outside

·7· ·of the foraging areas for those nests or the

·8· ·certificate holder makes use of an automated

·9· ·curtailment technology that responds to ferruginous

10· ·hawk presence.

11· · · · As Amy mentioned, this plan was reviewed by the

12· ·pre-operational technical advisory group, or PTAG, and

13· ·approved by that group prior to being submitted for

14· ·public comment.

15· · · · During that comment period, 32 comments were

16· ·received, and substantive comments generally fell

17· ·within one of six arguments that I'd like to run you

18· ·through.

19· · · · First, there was an argument presented that EFSEC

20· ·should impose financial penalties for each incident of

21· ·injury or mortality to a ferruginous hawk.· Staff is

22· ·not recommending that this change be incorporated.

23· ·Apart from the questionable legality of EFSEC

24· ·establishing fines for wildlife take, EFSEC staff is

25· ·confident that the exclusion areas imposed around all



·1· ·historic nests, the management measures in this plan,

·2· ·and the mortality adaptive management strategies that

·3· ·are currently being developed by the certificate holder

·4· ·for future PTAG and EFSEC review are sufficient to

·5· ·address direct ferruginous hawk mortality.

·6· · · · The second argument that was -- was that the

·7· ·artificial nesting platforms discussed as a mitigation

·8· ·option in this plan should instead be made mandatory.

·9· ·Staff is not recommending that this change be

10· ·incorporated.· In our development of mitigation and

11· ·discussions with WDFW staff throughout the

12· ·environmental review of this project, artificial

13· ·nesting platforms have been seen as having a limited

14· ·and situation-specific mitigative effect.· The primary

15· ·factors responsible for declining ferruginous hawk

16· ·population numbers are habitat conversion and reduction

17· ·in prey species availability, neither of which are

18· ·necessarily addressed by installing artificial

19· ·platforms.

20· · · · Thirdly, several commenters argued that the annual

21· ·operation phase nesting surveys should continue

22· ·throughout the life of the project rather than for

23· ·the -- rather than for three of the first five years as

24· ·currently proposed.· EFSEC staff is not recommending

25· ·that this change be incorporated.· The nesting survey



·1· ·plan proposed in the EIS and included in this plan is

·2· ·functionally consistent with WDFW guidelines and was

·3· ·developed in concert with WDFW staff and technical

·4· ·experts on the PTAG.· As a result, staff believes that

·5· ·this plan, in combination with the exclusion areas and

·6· ·adaptive management strategies, is sufficient to

·7· ·address ferruginous hawk impacts.

·8· · · · The fourth argument that we received was one that

·9· ·claim that the habitat mitigation ratios that EFSEC

10· ·developed with WDFW for this project should be updated

11· ·to reflect the ratios presented in the WDFW wind and

12· ·solar guidelines that were published about four months

13· ·ago.· Staff is not recommending that this change be

14· ·incorporated.· The habitat mitigation ratios applied to

15· ·this project exceeded the standard WDFW guidelines at

16· ·the time of review and were developed to specifically

17· ·address habitat impacts to this project -- or from this

18· ·project by EFSEC staff, WDFW staff, and independent

19· ·consultants.

20· · · · Furthermore, the ratios presented in the recent

21· ·guidelines are explicitly identified as preliminary

22· ·recommendations, with the guidelines assuming some

23· ·level of collaboration between developers, permitting

24· ·authorities, and WDFW to arrive at project-specific

25· ·ratios that are appropriate, which is reflective of the



·1· ·process that EFSEC went through to devise the current

·2· ·ratios.· Changing the ratios at this time would also

·3· ·require an SCA amendment, which is not something that

·4· ·EFSEC can unilaterally impose.

·5· · · · No. 5 was an argument that the certificate holder

·6· ·should be required to use automated detection systems

·7· ·with turbine curtailment triggered by observations

·8· ·rather than it being considered an option as in the

·9· ·proposed plan.· Staff do not recommend incorporating

10· ·this change.· As discussed in the plan, these systems

11· ·lack the capability for species-specific identification

12· ·at this time.· Requiring the certificate holder to

13· ·install and use these systems at this time could result

14· ·in turbine curtailment at any -- any time any raptor

15· ·species of similar size and/or shape to a ferruginous

16· ·hawk is observed, which exceeds the intent of this

17· ·mitigation plan.· The plan discusses the potential use

18· ·of these systems in concert with observed ferruginous

19· ·hawk activity when practical and when further

20· ·developed, and EFSEC staff believes that the

21· ·consideration -- these considerations to be appropriate

22· ·in the proposed plan.

23· · · · The final substantial argument was for EFSEC to

24· ·require that one blade of each turbine be painted black

25· ·to reduce ferruginous hawk collisions.· Staff is not



·1· ·recommending that this change be incorporated.· While

·2· ·this novel mitigation technique has seen promising,

·3· ·though varied, results in recent studies, it is still

·4· ·too experimental at this time to be required as a

·5· ·mitigation measure.· There are still engineering

·6· ·questions related to the long-term effects of increased

·7· ·heat retention that the black-painted blades will

·8· ·experience and whether painting the blades with

·9· ·carbon-based paint affects their reaction to lightning

10· ·strikes.

11· · · · Furthermore, wind turbines are painted white, in

12· ·part, to make them blend in better with the sky when

13· ·viewed from the ground.· There is a risk that the

14· ·visual analysis and impact determinations made by EFSEC

15· ·for the all-white turbines may not be accurate to the

16· ·visual aesthetic impacts the viewers would experience

17· ·from turbines that are partially black.

18· · · · It is unclear whether the positive benefit of

19· ·potential reductions in ferruginous hawk collisions

20· ·would justify the increased adverse impacts to visual

21· ·aesthetics.· Also, as I mentioned before, EFSEC staff

22· ·is confident that the suite of mitigation developed for

23· ·this project sufficiently addresses the potential for

24· ·direct mortality impacts to the ferruginous hawk.

25· · · · And apart from these substantive comments, there



·1· ·were several editorial comments that staff will

·2· ·recommend for incorporation into the final plan.· These

·3· ·include edits such as adding a citation to WAC

·4· ·197-11-768, wherein "mitigation" is defined; replacing

·5· ·the word "flyways" with the phrase "flight pathways";

·6· ·including more detail on the length of the habitat

·7· ·monitoring programs; and adding clarification that nest

·8· ·surveys will be performed by qualified biologists.

·9· ·These modifications would not affect the substance of

10· ·the plan.

11· · · · Are there any questions from Council members

12· ·before I hand things back to Amy?

13· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Not seeing any.· No.

14· · · · Go ahead, Mr. Rybarik.

15· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· I think I've got a

16· ·few, so --

17· · · · · · · · · · · MR. GREENE:· Sure.

18· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· -- thanks, Sean and

19· ·Amy, for the -- for the updates there.· Appreciate

20· ·the -- one of my questions was on WAC 197-11-768.

21· ·Sounds like there will be references to that

22· ·specifically in there and the updates to some of the

23· ·terminology.· Good to see.

24· · · · On the artificial nesting platforms, I think

25· ·the -- the issue that was raised is should it be



·1· ·mandatory or not.· I just -- I wonder -- functionally,

·2· ·as I was reading through the comments and the

·3· ·materials, I got to, well, how do we get to a point

·4· ·where, looking at this in a very specific way, that a

·5· ·wildlife biologist from W -- from Fish and Wildlife

·6· ·would be able to say, "Actually it makes sense to do it

·7· ·in this circumstance.· Developer, please do that"?

·8· · · · How do we get to -- how do we assure that that is

·9· ·the way this is going to work?· Because that seems to

10· ·make logical sense in my mind.

11· · · · · · · · · · · MR. GREENE:· Sure.· I can look at

12· ·the exact language used in the plan.· But in the plan,

13· ·they do discuss the potential for use of artificial

14· ·nesting platforms in the areas that are meant to

15· ·represent compensatory habitat mitigation, the -- the

16· ·areas of conservation.

17· · · · And the criteria that the applicant had -- or I'm

18· ·sorry -- the certificate holder had proposed in the

19· ·plan included sufficient foraging habitat for the

20· ·species, the lack of nesting sites in that area, and

21· ·consultation with WDFW staff to ensure that there is a

22· ·high likelihood of the use of those platforms by the

23· ·ferruginous hawk.

24· · · · The -- the only concern with implementing, like, a

25· ·minimum number of artificial nesting platforms that



·1· ·must be put up is it's very much dependent on what is

·2· ·available in the area and whether there is a pressing

·3· ·need for those, and the costs associated with

·4· ·installing those could be better assigned to actually

·5· ·protecting more habitat.

·6· · · · But it's staff's opinion that the description in

·7· ·the current -- the proposed plan of those platforms

·8· ·being as an option for further mitigation is

·9· ·appropriate.· If -- if there's a Council desire to see

10· ·a minimum, though, we can...

11· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· Yeah, I guess the only

12· ·thought that I had for amendment is if WDFW staff says

13· ·here is a situation where that makes sense -- let's say

14· ·there's a tree that had a nest in it that is somehow

15· ·felled.· Who knows how, whatever.· To say here's a

16· ·example where it would make sense to put up an

17· ·artificial nest.· It's kind of a thou shall follow

18· ·WDFW's -- instead of a consultation with them, it's if

19· ·they come and say here is an example where thou shall

20· ·do that, that it gets included in this -- in this

21· ·mitigation plan, that that is an option that Fish and

22· ·Wildlife has.· I don't know if I'm sort of explaining

23· ·that circumstance well, but that --

24· · · · · · · · · · · MR. GREENE:· Yeah.

25· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· -- to me is -- there's



·1· ·this limited circumstance where I think a biologist

·2· ·would say, That makes sense.· Go do that.· And if --

·3· ·the way I read the mitigation plan right now, they

·4· ·could say, Thanks for the consultation; we don't think

·5· ·it's necessary.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HAFKEMEYER:· So if I might add

·7· ·some information here.

·8· · · · So part of the adaptive management is, because

·9· ·EFSEC is the enforcement agency rather than DFW, we

10· ·retain the authority to impose that, again with

11· ·consultation with DFW as, you know, having the in-house

12· ·species subject matter experts.· But if something is to

13· ·arise where DF -- WDFW indicates that it is appropriate

14· ·to go ahead and install an artificial nest platform,

15· ·that authority to propose that would reside with EFSEC.

16· · · · · · · · · · · MR. GREENE:· And I think we could

17· ·add language to the plan to make that -- that

18· ·relationship more clear.

19· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BUMPUS:· Mm-hmm.

20· · · · · · · · · · · MR. GREENE:· If that's a change we

21· ·wanted to make.

22· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BUMPUS:· Right.

23· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· And so I just want to

24· ·make sure I understand.· Ami, what you're saying is, if

25· ·that circumstance arise, WDFW would come to EFSEC and



·1· ·say, Here's the situation where an artificial nest

·2· ·makes sense.· EFSEC, please impose that requirement on

·3· ·the -- on the developer.

·4· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HAFKEMEYER:· Correct.

·5· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· This plan allows for

·6· ·that chain of events to happen and the artificial nest

·7· ·to get put in place.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HAFKEMEYER:· Correct.· Both the

·9· ·PTAG as the pre-operational as well as the --

10· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· TAC.

11· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HAFKEMEYER:· -- the TAC will

12· ·continue to be in coordination and monitoring these

13· ·activities.· So we anticipate continued communication

14· ·on these subjects throughout the life of the facility.

15· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· Okay.· I think I have

16· ·some comfort there, but just --

17· · · · · · · · · · · MR. GREENE:· Yeah.

18· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· Go ahead, Sean.

19· · · · · · · · · · · MR. GREENE:· Sorry.· I didn't mean

20· ·to interrupt.

21· · · · One additional point is the final plan for the

22· ·compensatory mitigation has yet to be fully developed,

23· ·and that will, as Amy mentioned, go through the PTAG or

24· ·the -- yeah, it will be the PTAG at that point and come

25· ·to EFSEC for approval, and that will include the



·1· ·applicant's formal proposal on whether or not they're

·2· ·going to install artificial nesting platforms and

·3· ·where.· So that would be a point where EFSEC can use

·4· ·our regulatory authority to determine whether there

·5· ·should or should not be some added.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· I have a couple other

·7· ·questions along -- I'm just going to go down the

·8· ·list in --

·9· · · · · · · · · · · MR. GREENE:· Sure.

10· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· -- order that you had

11· ·them.

12· · · · On the annual, I guess it's monitoring --

13· · · · · · · · · · · MR. GREENE:· Mm-hmm.

14· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· -- the way the plan

15· ·reads now, it's three of the first five years.

16· ·Intuitively, I thought of it seems like the first years

17· ·of operation are going to be the most critical.· And so

18· ·I just wondered if there's appetite to be a little bit

19· ·more, I guess, prescriptive in this one is -- is all of

20· ·those five years makes some sense to me that there

21· ·would be monitoring in each of the five years rather

22· ·than three of the five years.· Certainly the first

23· ·three years makes a little bit of intuitive sense to

24· ·me.

25· · · · I just wonder how it gets landed at three of the



·1· ·first five with -- I recognize the flexibility there,

·2· ·but I just wonder from a species mitigation perspective

·3· ·if we shouldn't think about that a little differently.

·4· · · · · · · · · · · MR. GREENE:· Yeah, so that was a

·5· ·proposal that we developed in our consultation with

·6· ·WDFW staff.· Their typical recommendation is for the

·7· ·first three years of operation.· In our discussions,

·8· ·we -- we considered whether it might be more helpful to

·9· ·add that wider range so to capture a larger period of

10· ·time but still not exceeding the three years of total

11· ·surveys.

12· · · · In the, I think, six years that the -- the

13· ·certificate holder has run nesting surveys in this area

14· ·to this point, there's been one active nest observed.

15· ·So given the -- the rarity of an active nest, going for

16· ·more years was -- was seen as a way to -- to

17· ·potentially capture an active nest with, you know, the

18· ·higher likelihood of either seeing an active nest or

19· ·evidence that the site had been -- that there had been

20· ·an active nest in one of the off years, so that was

21· ·the -- the justification.

22· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· Appreciate that.· And

23· ·I guess I just don't know what -- what's the -- is

24· ·there -- I don't know what the cost is of running an

25· ·annual program for five years versus three of five,



·1· ·what the significance of that is.· Maybe that's some

·2· ·context you could enlighten me with.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · MR. GREENE:· I don't have the cost

·4· ·numbers available, but we can look into that.

·5· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BUMPUS:· We can certainly follow

·6· ·up with some ideas for that.· You know, the

·7· ·applicant -- in this case, certificate holder -- is

·8· ·responsible for all of the expenses.· So as we're

·9· ·working with DFW and working with different subject

10· ·matter experts there, they're billed for the hours that

11· ·those experts are spending in meetings and calls with

12· ·EFSEC staff, and so the -- the cost is substantially

13· ·higher if you're adding additional years of monitoring.

14· ·But we can get you, you know, an estimate if that would

15· ·be helpful.

16· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· I look to the other

17· ·Council members if there's appetite in that, but I

18· ·think that is -- that's one area that had some focus

19· ·for me.· The other -- and maybe, Council Member

20· ·Pamplin, I don't want to put you on the spot, but

21· ·the -- the updated ratios or mitigation ratios,

22· ·obviously working through the WDFW process now, with

23· ·the goal of using the best available science and the

24· ·most updated information, I appreciate the explanation,

25· ·that it's also going through a process is, may not be



·1· ·the most updated.· I also recognize the need for

·2· ·certainty in these processes of this was the ratios

·3· ·that were at the time, but I wonder if WDFW has a

·4· ·position or a thought on -- on the ratios, because

·5· ·that's the expert agency on these ratios, so...

·6· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Yeah, thanks,

·7· ·Mr. Rybarik.· Why don't I first just turn to Ms. Moon

·8· ·and Mr. Greene to talk about WDFW's position within

·9· ·PTAG.· If that doesn't fully cover it, I can --

10· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· All right.

11· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· -- offer some remarks.

12· ·Thanks.

13· · · · · · · · · · · MR. GREENE:· Sure.· So there are --

14· ·there's one primary member of WDFW on the PTAG along

15· ·with two alternates.· They attend every meeting, and

16· ·they are one of the technical experts who are

17· ·responsible for reviewing all of the certificate

18· ·holder's proposals for pre-operational plans and

19· ·surveys.· So their staff did fully review this plan and

20· ·approved it as -- as it was drafted and submitted for

21· ·public comment.

22· · · · So their staff approved of the mitigation ratios

23· ·that were developed at the time we were doing the EIS

24· ·and approved of the ratios incorporated here.

25· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Thanks, Mr. Greene.



·1· · · · Yeah, I would just add that that's pretty

·2· ·consistent value as far as when we introduce new

·3· ·guidelines that projects that were kind of in the queue

·4· ·or operating under the -- the -- the guidance that was

·5· ·published at the time.· So appreciate the interest in

·6· ·moving forward, and if we saw something I thought was

·7· ·really substantial or the science, it really moved the

·8· ·needle, I think that was something that our

·9· ·representative in the PTAG would have advocated for.

10· ·But I'm comfortable with the work that the -- the WDFW

11· ·staff person did at PTAG to recommend those ratios.

12· ·Thanks.

13· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· Very good.· Thanks.

14· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Any other questions?

15· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· Just one last one.

16· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Please.

17· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· Sorry to keep

18· ·belaboring these points.· But the last one is on the

19· ·automated detection.· Having come from the tech sector,

20· ·I recognize the technology might not be there today.

21· ·But technology moves at the speed of technology.· And I

22· ·just wonder what -- what is the process if, a year from

23· ·now, it's very clear that that technology exists to be

24· ·very species-specific on curtailments?· What -- what

25· ·would EFSEC do relative to this mitigation plan at that



·1· ·point to say we'd like to see that technology

·2· ·implemented?

·3· · · · · · · · · · · MR. GREENE:· Yeah, so the way it's

·4· ·written in the plan currently is it's -- the use of

·5· ·that technology would be like an exception for the

·6· ·turbine curtailment in the event that there is

·7· ·ferruginous hawk activity observed.

·8· · · · As for whether we would want to require the use of

·9· ·that technology and whether there is ferruginous

10· ·activity observed or not, that's not something that I

11· ·think we've considered.· That might be something that

12· ·comes up in the adaptive management plan that the

13· ·certificate holder is currently developing, especially

14· ·in relation to one of the primary concerns of that plan

15· ·is adaptive management in the event of mortality

16· ·incidents.· Turbine strikes on ferruginous hawks are

17· ·very rare within the state, but given the limited

18· ·population numbers, each instance is -- is potentially

19· ·substantially of concern.

20· · · · So I guess my thought at this time would be to see

21· ·how that technology would be incorporated into the

22· ·adaptive management plan, especially since it is kind

23· ·of still hypothetical for the moment at least.

24· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· Sure.· That's helpful.

25· ·Thank you very much.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Thank you,

·2· ·Mr. Rybarik.· And much appreciation here to Ms. Moon

·3· ·and Mr. Greene for the overview thus far as well as the

·4· ·summary of the common themes that we heard and the

·5· ·proposed responses.

·6· · · · Ms. Moon, is there any anything further on your

·7· ·presentation?

·8· · · · · · · · · · · MS. MOON:· Yeah.· One final

·9· ·statement.

10· · · · The staff are requesting that the Council approve

11· ·the Horse Heaven wind farm ferruginous hawk nest

12· ·mitigation plan.

13· · · · But you wanted to follow up on --

14· · · · · · · · · · · MR. GREENE:· Yeah, I think --

15· · · · · · · · · · · MS. MOON:· -- a couple things.

16· · · · · · · · · · · MR. GREENE:· -- maybe since we're --

17· ·we're going to follow up on a few things and see

18· ·whether there need to be edits there, do we wait for

19· ·approval, or approve with the understanding that we'll

20· ·get that information?

21· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HAFKEMEYER:· So I think we

22· ·identified strengthening the language around

23· ·implementation of artificial nest platforms.· And I

24· ·think in -- the question, I think, is maybe to the

25· ·Council:· Do you want to wait to approve this plan



·1· ·until we have follow-up information on those items

·2· ·identified, or would the Council want to vote to make a

·3· ·decision on the plan pending the edits discussed?

·4· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BUMPUS:· I think you could

·5· ·approve it, you know, contingent on the amendments

·6· ·discussed that Ami just listed being made.· If you're

·7· ·comfortable with the substance of the plan today.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Thanks, Ms. Bumpus.

·9· · · · I see Mr. Nelson's hand is up.· Go ahead.

10· · · · · · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· Hello.· Yes, that

11· ·sounds like a good approach to me.· I'm not smart

12· ·enough to make that motion.· But I did have a question

13· ·if you do come back for more information.

14· · · · So on Section 5, the -- the mortality mitigation

15· ·chapter or section, it -- and this might get to the

16· ·nesting question as well -- it speaks of a qualified

17· ·biologist in coordination with Fish and Wildlife and

18· ·EFSEC.· And this could just be for my edification as a

19· ·relatively new Council member.· But is that a qualified

20· ·biologist employed by the certificate holder, or is it

21· ·third party, or is it Fish and Wildlife, or is it

22· ·EFSEC?· So I was just wondering what the employment

23· ·status of that biologist might be, I guess.

24· · · · · · · · · · · MR. GREENE:· It's my understanding

25· ·that it would be an independent biologist employed by



·1· ·the certificate holder with EFSEC's -- EFSEC and WDFW

·2· ·approval.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· Thank you.

·4· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Okay.· So before we

·5· ·kind of further discuss whether or not we want to adopt

·6· ·the plan pending amendments or not, I just want to

·7· ·check to see if there's any other questions from

·8· ·Ms. Moon or Mr. Greene from the Council.

·9· · · · Okay.· Council, is there any particular direction

10· ·you would like to proceed with in terms of doing an

11· ·early approval -- or not an early -- approving this

12· ·plan, noting that there's some additional work that's

13· ·going to be incorporated relative to the artificial

14· ·nest platform, or would folks like to delay and then

15· ·wait and see those edits made into the plan as well as

16· ·some of the other editorial edits and we'll have a

17· ·final plan hopefully brought forward in February?

18· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· The only reservation I

19· ·have, in general I think there's a lot of good stuff in

20· ·here.· I appreciate all the work that the PTAG and

21· ·staff have done to -- to get there.· I think the one

22· ·outstanding question is, to me, whether that initial --

23· ·whether we should do three of the first five years of

24· ·reporting back or observations, and just there's a cost

25· ·difference in those two, and what's what I don't --



·1· ·that's the information we don't have.

·2· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Yeah.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· And so in my mind, I

·4· ·think all of those five years could be one option.· The

·5· ·first three years, another option.· I guess that

·6· ·probably doesn't change the cost tremendously.· We're

·7· ·still doing three years.· But I wouldn't mind knowing

·8· ·that before making a decision and just seeing what --

·9· ·what the appetite is to maybe strengthen that a little

10· ·bit, just knowing that those are probably the most

11· ·important years of the plan.

12· · · · That said, I am also mindful of the fact that

13· ·there's timelines and associated movement for the

14· ·developer.· So I guess I'll turn to staff of whether or

15· ·not any holding off on this is detrimental to the

16· ·overall project.

17· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Thanks, Mr. Rybarik.

18· · · · Director Bumpus, is there any consequences or

19· ·concerns on your end if we were to delay adoption of

20· ·this plan?

21· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BUMPUS:· Well, thank you.· Thank

22· ·you for the opportunity.

23· · · · Yeah, I think I would just -- I'm just thinking

24· ·about Executive Order 25-11 where EFSEC along with many

25· ·other agencies are looking at how we can expedite and



·1· ·accelerate plan approvals for those facilities that are

·2· ·still in the position to take advantage of the federal

·3· ·tax incentives.

·4· · · · And so I would say that if there's general comfort

·5· ·with this plan, that we can -- you know, it would

·6· ·behoove us to -- to move forward with it if we can, but

·7· ·I also recognize that there may be some tweaks that we

·8· ·still want to make.· So that's the...

·9· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· Well, UTC being also

10· ·named in that executive order, I'm familiar with it and

11· ·recognize the -- the concern there.

12· · · · Ultimately -- and I appreciate staff's

13· ·recommenda- -- or further thoughts here, although I

14· ·think I'm comfortable with the way the mitigation plan

15· ·is -- is written, I just point out that these are areas

16· ·where I think we can continue to focus and just at

17· ·least bring some maybe options to -- to the table when

18· ·we get to this point.

19· · · · But, again, I don't want to belabor this other

20· ·what is a relatively minor point or piece of the

21· ·overall mitigation plan, but you've heard my thoughts

22· ·on this, and I'll leave it there.

23· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Thanks, Mr. Rybarik.

24· · · · Ms. Hafkemeyer.

25· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HAFKEMEYER:· I wanted to suggest



·1· ·that maybe there's an opportunity because the adaptive

·2· ·management plan is still in development, that if under

·3· ·the guidance of that plan it seems appropriate to add

·4· ·additional years of monitoring, that that might be

·5· ·another place to capture that based on guidance of the

·6· ·PTAG, DFW, and biologists as appropriate.· So there may

·7· ·be additional opportunity to increase monitoring

·8· ·particularly if the first year or first couple years

·9· ·the data suggests that more monitoring is appropriate.

10· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· That sounds like a

11· ·good suggestion.· And thank you for reminding me of the

12· ·word that I was not able to get out of my brain of

13· ·monitoring.· So thank you.

14· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Thanks,

15· ·Ms. Hafkemeyer.

16· · · · Mr. Nelson, I saw your hand come up earlier.· Did

17· ·you have a question or remark?

18· · · · · · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· Yeah.· Just wanted to

19· ·state -- you know, I just wanted to, again, yeah, or

20· ·thank the PTAG for all the work they put into this.

21· ·It's a very comprehensive plan that offers widespread

22· ·protection to the species.

23· · · · Is it -- can we -- I should know this, but can we

24· ·make a motion to adopt yet, or do you call for that?

25· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Yeah, Thanks,



·1· ·Mr. Nelson.· I've got some language that I will try to

·2· ·put on the table and ask for someone to move.

·3· · · · But what I'm looking for at this point is if the

·4· ·Council make a motion to approve the ferruginous hawk

·5· ·nest mitigation plan submitted by Horse Heaven Wind

·6· ·Farm, LLC, in compliance with Special Status Species

·7· ·Mitigation Measure 5, commonly referred to as Spec-5,

·8· ·of the site certification agreement for the Horse

·9· ·Heaven Wind Farm.· And in addition, that staff would be

10· ·incorporating the editorial comments as well as

11· ·strengthening the discussion around the artificial nest

12· ·platform and the consultation with WDFW.

13· · · · So, with that, is that -- if someone would please

14· ·signal that they would make that motion.

15· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· So moved.

16· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Thank you,

17· ·Mr. Rybarik.

18· · · · Is there a second?

19· · · · · · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· Second.

20· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Thank you, Mr. Nelson.

21· · · · Any further comments or questions before we move

22· ·to a vote?

23· · · · Hearing and seeing no hands.

24· · · · All those in favor of the motion, please say

25· ·"aye."



·1· · · · · · · · · · · MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:· Aye.

·2· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Any opposed?

·3· · · · We'll let the record note that Chair Beckett has

·4· ·recused himself from this -- this vote.· And with --

·5· ·oh.· Go ahead.· Mr. Ryan.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYAN:· Just also recused, to

·7· ·make note of that.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· Oh, that's right.

·9· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Okay.· Just want to

10· ·double-check that we have sufficient Council members

11· ·for a vote with two recusals.

12· · · · Okay.· Great.· So that motion passes.· Again,

13· ·Ms. Moon, Mr. Greene, thank you for your work, as well

14· ·as for PTAG's efforts here on preparing this mitigation

15· ·plan.· And I'll pass the gavel back to Chair Beckett.

16· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you, Council

17· ·Pamplin.· And I'll try to do a better job of following

18· ·Council Rybarik on putting my camera on some occasion.

19· · · · So, with that, we will actually go back to -- and

20· ·thank you for the extra effort as chair, Council

21· ·Pamplin.

22· · · · So do we have Council Chiles back still?· We would

23· ·take his question or comment on the Carriger Solar

24· ·project update.

25· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· We see that he's



·1· ·online and unmuted again.· I'm not sure if we can hear

·2· ·him.· If Council Chiles would like to try to speak up.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Council Chiles,

·4· ·we're ultimately not hearing you in the room.· So,

·5· ·sorry about the technical challenge today.

·6· · · · No, Council Chiles, we still can't hear you.· I do

·7· ·see your text in the chat, though.

·8· · · · Okay.· So let's move on, then, for a moment to the

·9· ·Hop Hill solar update.· John Barnes will provide the

10· ·update.

11· · · · · · · · · · · MR. BARNES:· Thank you, Chair

12· ·Beckett and Council members.· This is John Barnes,

13· ·EFSEC staff for the Hop Hill application.

14· · · · Staff are working with the applicant on the

15· ·submission of additional application materials for the

16· ·Hop Hill project.· EFSEC anticipates receipt of these

17· ·materials by spring of 2026.· Staff are also working

18· ·with the applicant to submit a comprehensive cultural

19· ·resource report for the application.

20· · · · Following receipt of the report, staff will

21· ·distribute to concerned tribes an offer to schedule a

22· ·government-to-government consultation to discuss

23· ·impacts and potential mitigations.

24· · · · Are there any questions?

25· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Council, comments or



·1· ·questions?· Hearing none.

·2· · · · Moving on to Wallula Gap since you're also

·3· ·providing that update, Mr. Barnes.· Please proceed.

·4· · · · · · · · · · · MR. BARNES:· Thank you, Chair

·5· ·Beckett and Council members.· This is John Barnes,

·6· ·EFSEC staff, for the Wallula Gap application.

·7· · · · Staff are continuing to work with the applicant,

·8· ·OneEnergy, and the Yakama Nation Cultural Resource

·9· ·Program staff regarding impacts identified in the

10· ·traditional cultural resource property studies and

11· ·report conducted by the Yakama Nation for this

12· ·application.· Identification of potential project

13· ·impacts and mitigations that can be resolved as part of

14· ·the SEPA determination process for this project.

15· · · · Are there any questions?

16· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Any questions,

17· ·Council?

18· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYAN:· None here.

19· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Okay.· Then we

20· ·will -- it looks like we're probably losing Council

21· ·Chiles.

22· · · · I'll just say, Council Chiles, we can always try

23· ·and catch you next month at last in the public forum,

24· ·and obviously you know how to reach --

25· · · · · · · · · · · MR. CHILES:· Can you hear me now?



·1· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Oh.· There we go.

·2· ·Yes, we can.· Please -- please proceed.· You're very --

·3· ·very clear as well.

·4· · · · · · · · · · · MR. CHILES:· Thank you very much,

·5· ·Chair Beckett.· I apologize for the problems on my end.

·6· · · · Going back to the Carriger issue and the Yakama

·7· ·tribe filing a petition for judicial review, wanted a

·8· ·little bit of clarification on that, if we could.

·9· · · · First of all, do we have any estimated timeline

10· ·for a decision on that petition for judicial review?

11· ·And, second, while we wait for that, what is the status

12· ·of the project?· Are they moving forward, or is there

13· ·some sort of injunction preventing that at this time?

14· ·Thank you.

15· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Counsel Thompson,

16· ·would you like to --

17· · · · · · · · · · · MR. THOMPSON:· Yeah.

18· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· -- jump in?

19· · · · · · · · · · · MR. THOMPSON:· So this is Jon

20· ·Thompson with the attorney general's office.· There --

21· ·there is provision in the -- in EFSLA, RCW 80.50, for

22· ·filing a petition for review of a governor's decision

23· ·in Thurston County Superior Court, and then the process

24· ·is for the -- it's a -- the way judicial review works

25· ·under the Administrative Procedure Act, if the court



·1· ·reviews the agency's record and sitting in an appellate

·2· ·capacity, and so what we need to do is compile the

·3· ·agency's decisional record and then provide it to the

·4· ·court.

·5· · · · Usually there's often a number of months where the

·6· ·completeness of the record is being determined, and

·7· ·then -- and then likely a motion to transfer the case

·8· ·up to the supreme court to be heard.· So it's typically

·9· ·a multi-month process.· There's nothing that -- that

10· ·prevents the certificate holder from proceeding with

11· ·implementation of the site certification agreement in

12· ·the -- while that's ongoing.

13· · · · I think that answers your questions, Council

14· ·Member Chiles?· Did that -- did I --

15· · · · · · · · · · · MR. CHILES:· Yes.

16· · · · · · · · · · · MR. THOMPSON:· Yeah.

17· · · · · · · · · · · MR. CHILES:· Thank you, Counsel.  I

18· ·appreciate that.

19· · · · So it sounds like things will be moving forward

20· ·while the litigation kind of continues in the

21· ·background to see if it will go before the state

22· ·supreme court.

23· · · · · · · · · · · MR. THOMPSON:· Correct.

24· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Director Bumpus, did

25· ·you wish to add another word, or...?



·1· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BUMPUS:· I think -- thank you,

·2· ·Chair Beckett.· I think Jon Thompson answered it.· It

·3· ·was just to address that other part of the question

·4· ·that Carriger is proceeding and that we're going to be

·5· ·in receipt of plans, we think, fairly soon to begin the

·6· ·review of those, so the work's continuing along with

·7· ·the litigation.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Great.· Thank you

·9· ·for the added emphasis there.· And I think, to your

10· ·earlier point too, that project is also on the

11· ·governor's executive order, and hence our focus is only

12· ·more so in moving those projects forward.

13· · · · Okay.· Council Chiles, was there any other

14· ·question or comment you wished to make on Carriger?

15· · · · · · · · · · · MR. CHILES:· No.· Thank you very

16· ·much, Chair Beckett.

17· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Okay.· Thank you.

18· · · · So, with that, we will move to the Goldeneye

19· ·battery storage project update.· Ms. Snarski.

20· · · · · · · · · · · MS. SNARSKI:· Yes.· Thank you, Chair

21· ·Beckett.· Again, this is Joanne Snarski, the siting

22· ·specialist for the proposed Goldeneye battery energy

23· ·storage facility in Skagit County.

24· · · · Last month, I reported that the applicant had

25· ·recently submitted a revised site plan for the



·1· ·facility.· However, I misspoke.· What they did submit

·2· ·was a revised conceptual site restoration plan.

·3· ·However, we anticipate that Goldeneye representatives

·4· ·will submit a more formal site plan in the coming

·5· ·weeks.

·6· · · · Last week, staff sent our fourth data request to

·7· ·the developers.· We anticipate their response to that

·8· ·by March 1st.

·9· · · · The need for submittal of information is required

10· ·to help us complete our State Environmental Policy Act

11· ·determination for the project.

12· · · · May I answer any questions?

13· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Council members?

14· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYBARIK:· No questions.

15· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Council Eckroth,

16· ·just to make sure in case you had any question or

17· ·comment.

18· · · · · · · · · · · MR. ECKROTH:· Council Member Eckroth

19· ·here.

20· · · · No questions.· Thank you very much.

21· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you.

22· · · · All right.· Then we will move on to the Cascade

23· ·Renewables Transmission project.· And Maria Belkina

24· ·will provide her occupy date.

25· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BELKINA:· Thank you.



·1· · · · Good afternoon, Chair Beckett and Council members.

·2· ·For the record, my name is Maria Belkina, siting

·3· ·specialist assigned to and reporting on the Cascade

·4· ·Renewable Transmission Project.

·5· · · · Staff continue to review the application for site

·6· ·certification for compliance with WAC 463-60 with the

·7· ·objective of determining of whether the application

·8· ·contains sufficient information to support the next

·9· ·step -- next phase of review.· In parallel, staff are

10· ·finalizing the first consolidated data request,

11· ·informed by application review and agency input.

12· · · · Staff expect to receive comments from contracted

13· ·agencies soon, which will help inform the next request

14· ·for additional information from the applicant.

15· · · · Staff continue to coordinate with key state and

16· ·federal agencies.· In January, staff conducted two

17· ·interagency coordination discussions with the

18· ·Washington Department of Natural Resources and the

19· ·Washington Department of Ecology to support alignment

20· ·on process, sequencing, and environmental review

21· ·considerations.

22· · · · EFSEC has received a formal invitation from the

23· ·U.S. Army Corps of Engineers to participate as

24· ·cooperating agency in the preparation of an

25· ·environmental impact statement, with the corps serving



·1· ·as NEPA lead agency.· Staff have prepared a response

·2· ·confirming EFSEC's willingness to participate and to

·3· ·coordinate NEPA and SEPA processes.

·4· · · · In addition, a meeting is being scheduled with the

·5· ·Columbia River Gorge Commission to initiate early

·6· ·coordination and communication regarding the project

·7· ·and applicable Gorge Act considerations.

·8· · · · With respect to water quality permitting, staff

·9· ·are intentionally sequencing the Section 401 water

10· ·quality certification process so that it follows a

11· ·sufficiently developed SEPA environmental record.

12· ·Importantly, key water quality issues will be addressed

13· ·through the SEPA review, which will then support the

14· ·Section 401 process.

15· · · · Staff continue to support tribal engagement

16· ·planning and coordination consistent with state

17· ·requirement -- state requirements.· Initial

18· ·government -- initial government-to-government

19· ·consultations are scheduled to begin in early February,

20· ·including the first consultation meeting with the

21· ·Cowlitz Indian Tribe.

22· · · · Following input received at the informational

23· ·meetings and the land-use hearings, staff reach out to

24· ·local jurisdiction along the project route to ensure

25· ·that they are aware of the need to appoint a Council



·1· ·member where the project falls within their

·2· ·jurisdiction.

·3· · · · We have since received an appointment of Council

·4· ·member from the City of Stevenson and have received

·5· ·indications of pending appointments from the Klickitat

·6· ·County and the City of Camas.· We expect to receive

·7· ·additional appointments in the coming weeks.· Our legal

·8· ·counsel, Jon Thompson, can provide further information

·9· ·of proceedings while local jurisdiction make decisions

10· ·in their appointments.

11· · · · That concludes my update.· I would be happy to

12· ·answer any questions.

13· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you.

14· · · · I'm sorry.· Was there a more proactive comment you

15· ·wanted to make first, Counsel Thompson, or...?

16· · · · · · · · · · · MR. THOMPSON:· Well, I do have

17· ·comments.· I wanted to address a few questions about

18· ·the question that Ms. Belkina mentioned last about

19· ·proceeding, you know, while we're awaiting other --

20· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Yeah.

21· · · · · · · · · · · MR. THOMPSON:· -- appointments for

22· ·Council members.

23· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Yeah, let's go ahead

24· ·and hear that.

25· · · · · · · · · · · MR. THOMPSON:· Okay.



·1· · · · Yeah, so a couple of questions if you recall at

·2· ·the public informational and land-use consistency

·3· ·hearings that were held in the three counties that are

·4· ·involved in this project were raised about whether the

·5· ·public informational meeting and the land-use

·6· ·consistency hearings should have been convened prior to

·7· ·all the, you know, the appointees that are eligible to

·8· ·be on the Council being seated.

·9· · · · Yeah, so I wanted to speak to that just briefly

10· ·and give you my thoughts on that topic and what might

11· ·lie ahead on those topics.

12· · · · So, first, regarding the public informational

13· ·meeting.· So RCW 80.50.090(1) is the -- is the law that

14· ·requires that to be held.· And it basically says the

15· ·Council shall conduct an informational public hearing

16· ·in the county of the proposed site as soon as

17· ·practicable but not less than 60 days after the receipt

18· ·of an application for certification.· So that's the

19· ·basic mandate.

20· · · · There are -- EFSEC has adopted rules about public

21· ·informational meetings and the land-use consistency

22· ·hearing.· And the only kind of requirement in this

23· ·regard is there's -- it states that before conducting

24· ·either the informational public hearing or the public

25· ·land-use hearing, the Council will notify local



·1· ·jurisdictions.

·2· · · · It doesn't -- it doesn't require, you know,

·3· ·waiting until appointments are made.· So neither the

·4· ·statute or the rules, you know, require that all

·5· ·jurisdictions that are eligible to appoint someone have

·6· ·done so prior to that meeting.· The mandate is really

·7· ·to hold it, hold the meeting, you know, within 60 days

·8· ·of receipt of the application.

·9· · · · And I'd also point out that the purpose of the

10· ·meeting is also described in the rules, and it's

11· ·basically for the applicant to make a presentation

12· ·about -- about the project, a general description of

13· ·the project, reasons why the site was selected, a

14· ·summary of anticipated impacts, and then for the

15· ·general public to be afforded an opportunity to present

16· ·written or oral comments.

17· · · · So the reason I mention that is because the

18· ·Council's role is -- is pretty passive.· It's -- you

19· ·know, at this point, it's just to receive information

20· ·from the applicant and the -- and the public.· And it's

21· ·a very early opportunity basically to get some -- some

22· ·reaction, some understanding and reaction to the

23· ·project.· And of course then there's -- over the course

24· ·of reviewing an application, there's a lot of other

25· ·hearing and public input opportunities on SEPA as well



·1· ·as the adjudicative process.

·2· · · · You know, with SEPA there's -- there may be a

·3· ·scoping hearing.· There may be a hearing for receipt of

·4· ·comments on a draft environmental impact statement.

·5· ·And then, as I mention, there's the -- there's the

·6· ·adjudication.· And then there's also an opportunity for

·7· ·the Council to provide additional hearings as -- as you

·8· ·see fit.

·9· · · · So -- so in my opinion, yeah, there's -- and I

10· ·would also add that these hearings are recorded on

11· ·video and audio and transcribed by a court reporter, so

12· ·there's the opportunity for Council members to review

13· ·that -- that information when they come on board too.

14· · · · So -- so in my opinion, there's nothing -- as I

15· ·said, the requirement is that this meeting be held

16· ·within 60 days.· You complied with that.· I don't think

17· ·there's any mandate to go back and redo it.· You can --

18· ·you can re-examine once the new Council members are on

19· ·board, you know, whether you feel a need for additional

20· ·process in that regard, but that's about I think what

21· ·we can say at this point.

22· · · · So regarding the land-use consistency hearing,

23· ·there's no requirement that be held within 60 days of

24· ·receipt of an application.· It just says that it should

25· ·be subsequent to the land-use consistency hearing.· So



·1· ·my opinion is that the record for that decision really

·2· ·hasn't been sufficiently developed.· And because of

·3· ·that, staff is in the process of developing a set of

·4· ·questions to -- to send to the applicant to further

·5· ·develop that information.· And then, I mean, I think I

·6· ·would recommend affording the parties who spoke to that

·7· ·issue, you know, any parties who want to speak to that

·8· ·to be -- to have another opportunity to respond to what

·9· ·the applicant has to say and really, you know, better

10· ·develop the record for that.

11· · · · And to the extent that you can, I would say that

12· ·you should probably wait to deliberate on that until --

13· ·until you do have the other Council members empanelled

14· ·so that they have an opportunity to speak to that.

15· · · · I would add that the Council members, by EFSEC

16· ·rule, are only to speak to the -- or to deliberate on

17· ·and vote on the segments of the project that are within

18· ·their appointing jurisdiction.· So that's another kind

19· ·of wrinkle for all of us to be aware of.

20· · · · So, yeah, I just wanted to add that context in

21· ·case you had questions about it.· I know there was a

22· ·lot of head scratching about that maybe at the initial

23· ·meeting.· So I'm just adding that to Ms. Belkina's

24· ·report for your -- for your background information.

25· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· No, thank you.  I



·1· ·think it's a very important update and certainly helps

·2· ·to have that clarified, knowing some of it is still in

·3· ·process of -- of getting further clarified.

·4· · · · And in that regard, I was going to acknowledge up

·5· ·front and ask if there's a comment from our two local

·6· ·representatives, Commissioner Leckie, who -- and

·7· ·Council Leckie, who's joined us previously, and now

·8· ·Council Jeff Breckel representing the City of

·9· ·Stevenson.· But let me just turn this open to all

10· ·Council members, knowing further Council who are here

11· ·with us in the room and Council Nelson.· Certainly

12· ·these questions have been, I think, on their mind as

13· ·well, Counsel Thompson.· So thanks for clarifying that.

14· · · · I'll turn it open for comments.

15· · · · Council Pamplin.

16· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Great.· Thank you,

17· ·Mr. Chair.· Thanks, Mr. Thompson, for the overview.

18· · · · So, you know, the statutory requirement for the

19· ·public information meeting, 60 days within receipt of

20· ·the application makes sense.· Have the project

21· ·applicant explain the project proposal, an opportunity

22· ·for public input, just a very early engagement and

23· ·public awareness of here's an extensive process that's

24· ·coming.· And so I appreciate that.

25· · · · I think the part that was -- that's of interest to



·1· ·me is the obligations for the land-use consistency

·2· ·hearings.· So I do think it would be beneficial to make

·3· ·sure we've got the full roster of Council members, but

·4· ·I look to you to kind of figure out what can be done,

·5· ·you know, while -- what work can be done while those

·6· ·are still being appointed.

·7· · · · But also I'd just like to make sure that, as

·8· ·EFSEC, we're reaching out not just to the project

·9· ·applicant but to those local governments and

10· ·municipalities for their understanding of how the

11· ·project is consistent or not with their own ordinances.

12· ·To me, asking the applicant to say, well, you know, you

13· ·could imagine the scenario where an applicant would

14· ·respond saying, yes, it's consistent and the County

15· ·saying, no, it's not.· And I guess I'd like to make

16· ·sure that we're hearing directly from the local

17· ·governments whether or not it's consistent rather than

18· ·an applicant's interpretation of what they've heard

19· ·from the local government, if that makes sense.

20· · · · · · · · · · · MR. THOMPSON:· Yeah, I think that's

21· ·an excellent point.· I mean, I think -- and I think it

22· ·is staff's practice to, if Ms. Hafkemeyer or Ms. Bumpus

23· ·want to speak to this too, to try to solicit that input

24· ·from local land-use authorities.

25· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BUMPUS:· Yes.· So we do have a



·1· ·data request that we're preparing to send out.· And

·2· ·there are questions in that data request that should,

·3· ·when we receive responses, supplement the application

·4· ·as to land use.· I think we need to look at that.

·5· · · · We also have discussed sending follow-up letters

·6· ·to some of the local governments who have indicated

·7· ·that they're going to appoint someone to the Council.

·8· ·They just haven't chosen who that person's going to be.

·9· ·And we've indicated to them that they'll need to get up

10· ·to speed, read the record, and be familiar with that.

11· · · · And as Mr. Thompson noted, you know -- and I agree

12· ·with this point -- that once you have the full

13· ·composition of the Council, I think that that might be

14· ·a time ripe for, okay, what do we have in the

15· ·application that helps inform us about land-use

16· ·consistency, and if it's still deficient at that point,

17· ·do we hold another hearing?· Is there some other

18· ·mechanism that we want to implement to gather more

19· ·information and supplement the record so that the

20· ·Council can make a decision with respect to land-use

21· ·consistency?

22· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Mr. Chair, just

23· ·another follow-up.

24· · · · I also recall looking into this, and there was a

25· ·statute indicating that the project applicant may work



·1· ·with the local government to get a local -- or a

·2· ·land-use consistency certificate and that that is

·3· ·brought forward at the actual hearing, which is also

·4· ·kind of -- I mean, that seems ideal, but I guess I

·5· ·would also give a lot of deference -- but tell me if

·6· ·I'm off base on this -- that if there was a land-use

·7· ·consistency certificate even after the hearing but

·8· ·before the Council's making a decision, that we'd

·9· ·welcome that.

10· · · · I mean, it's -- anyway, the statutes on this

11· ·particular process, I think, you kind of stumble

12· ·through it rather than, like, as far as really clear.

13· ·So I don't know if that's even something Director

14· ·Bumpus, on a future agency, request legislation to kind

15· ·of map some of these processes out, because I think

16· ·they kind of put you sometimes in a box that's --

17· ·that's kind of challenging to operate within.

18· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Director Bumpus.

19· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BUMPUS:· I would just -- I don't

20· ·know if Mr. Thompson has something to add, but I would

21· ·just note that, you know, I think it's a good point.

22· ·The Council does have broad discretion in terms of

23· ·holding additional hearings and taking other steps to

24· ·supplement the record as it's needed.· And every

25· ·project's different, as we all know.· And so we may



·1· ·find in this case that we want to do something like

·2· ·that in order to supplement it.

·3· · · · So I think that -- as I said, you know, I think

·4· ·it's a good point.· I think in the framework that we're

·5· ·operating in today, I think we've got a lot of options

·6· ·for the Council available to supplement that record.

·7· · · · And the other thing I was just going to mention

·8· ·too is that there is no time limit with respect to

·9· ·this -- this decision, right?· So we're not working as

10· ·tightly as we were, like, say in the scheduling of the

11· ·public informational hearing.

12· · · · Sorry.· I saw --

13· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HAFKEMEYER:· It's fine.

14· · · · I would just like --

15· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BUMPUS:· -- Ms. Hafkemeyer.

16· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HAFKEMEYER:· -- to add, in those

17· ·initial hearings, the applicant did indicate that they

18· ·were working with local jurisdictions to obtain

19· ·certificates of consistency, which is one of the items

20· ·requested in the data requests that we were preparing

21· ·to have those submitted to us to become part of the

22· ·record.

23· · · · We are also working, as you indicated, with some

24· ·of the local jurisdiction planning departments to get

25· ·some of that input that you indicated on their



·1· ·interpretation about whether or not this project is

·2· ·consistent.· So that part of the record is still under

·3· ·development.· We're still working with those entities

·4· ·to try and, you know, get all of that information in.

·5· ·And so once we have all of that, we will make it

·6· ·available to the Council and the public.

·7· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· So we'll take two

·8· ·comments here in order.· Council Ryan and then Council

·9· ·Leckie.

10· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYAN:· Thank you, chair.

11· · · · Want to take a moment to echo some of Council

12· ·Pamplin's comments and observations about some of those

13· ·procedural concerns.· I think I felt similarly and

14· ·happy to hear in the staff update about also agency

15· ·consultations with DNR and DFW that have been

16· ·scheduled.· I think that will be a key part of what I

17· ·look for in a future, you know, version of the record,

18· ·is especially talking to DNR's aquatic section about

19· ·land use in the river.

20· · · · So definitely woke me up to sort of the complexity

21· ·and the scale of the proposed project and looking

22· ·forward to hearing more information and continuing to

23· ·review the record.· So that's first.

24· · · · Secondly, I just had a quick question.· Was also

25· ·encouraged to hear about some of the updates around



·1· ·tribal engagement and would love to know if you could

·2· ·share a little bit of additional information about who

·3· ·else might be on the consultation schedule even if they

·4· ·haven't been officially contacted yet.· Would just love

·5· ·to know the staff's approach about who to consult with

·6· ·and gather with given the complexity and scale of the

·7· ·proposed project.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HAFKEMEYER:· Do you have a

·9· ·moment or --

10· · · · · · · · · · · MS. McLEAN:· Yeah.

11· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HAFKEMEYER:· -- at your

12· ·fingertips maybe some --

13· · · · · · · · · · · MS. McLEAN:· Yeah.

14· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HAFKEMEYER:· -- additional

15· ·information, Ms. McLean?

16· · · · · · · · · · · MS. McLEAN:· Yeah.· Sure.· Just let

17· ·me take one little note to -- okay.· Yeah.

18· · · · So thank you for that question.· Lisa McLean,

19· ·tribal liaison for EFSEC.

20· · · · We -- obviously we sent out a notification to all

21· ·32 tribes.· We've heard back from and been in close

22· ·contact with Yakama, CTUIR, Umatilla, Warm Springs,

23· ·Grand Ronde, and Cowlitz.· We haven't gotten a --

24· ·the -- only Cowlitz has asked for the formal

25· ·consultation.· Everybody else is aware they can ask for



·1· ·formal consultation, but in the meantime, we have an

·2· ·active dialogue going with them, and we're trying to --

·3· ·as I've assured them, it's to try to, you know, get

·4· ·some meetings together at some key milestones.

·5· · · · So just today this morning, we were talking about

·6· ·are there any milestones that are coming up.· We should

·7· ·call people together.· And as part of that also, we're

·8· ·in close contact with CRITFC, who is -- a lot of the

·9· ·tribes are -- those tribes that I mentioned are sort of

10· ·relying on CRITFC to stay on top of this thing.· So

11· ·we've been in touch with them, and we've been briefing

12· ·them since -- what was it? -- the summertime, even

13· ·before we got this application.· So they also know.

14· · · · So I guess my outreach has been:· We're here.

15· ·Don't go listen to rumors.· If you got a question, call

16· ·me, find out, and I'll get the answer.· You know what I

17· ·mean?· So if you're feeling like you don't have the

18· ·information you need on this, call me, and I will try

19· ·to track down the information for you.

20· · · · Because this is going to be a long process.· And I

21· ·think there are going to be periods where tribes are

22· ·going to be, like, What are they doing?· You know, so

23· ·we do have good contacts, you know, contacts that go

24· ·not just with the chair of tribal council but rather at

25· ·the staff level, which I feel good about, because then



·1· ·we know that they know who to talk to on our side and

·2· ·we know who to talk to on their side.· And when we need

·3· ·to -- when they want us to raise it to the tribal

·4· ·council level, I feel confident that we'll be ready to

·5· ·do that.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYAN:· Very much appreciate that

·7· ·answer.· And sort of addressed a follow-up that I had

·8· ·already, which, you know, I was curious about any

·9· ·interagency coordination we might have with Oregon

10· ·EFSEC regarding those tribes that are in Oregon but

11· ·have their reserve rights in this state.· But it sounds

12· ·like we're in touch, and there's not really a need to

13· ·coordinate through the agency if we're just going to be

14· ·directly in touch.· So really comprehensive, and

15· ·appreciate the answer.

16· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you for the

17· ·instant update.

18· · · · I'm sorry to our local Council representatives.  I

19· ·will turn to you next.· But let me just add one

20· ·comment.

21· · · · I had sent an e-mail earlier on this, but I'll

22· ·just out of transparency just go ahead and add it into

23· ·the discussion.· And this -- certainly my intent would

24· ·be to do any of the following in full coordination with

25· ·what Lisa, Ms. McLean, has just laid out.



·1· · · · I'm concerned always about the congestion at

·2· ·Council doors, tribal especially, but I don't think

·3· ·that's untrue for local government.· So we need to go

·4· ·proactively, but we need to go at the most efficient

·5· ·appropriate time.· And, hence, if we could have one

·6· ·conversation, not six, that's probably ultimately

·7· ·better for those -- those other local and tribal

·8· ·partners.

·9· · · · But in this case, something that I'd like to

10· ·explore both a little bit as my onboarding as new chair

11· ·but also as I have thought further about the CRT

12· ·project is just that we request consultation.· And we

13· ·can do that in coordination of which tribes have more

14· ·focus on this.· Cowlitz have contacted us.· We

15· ·appreciate that.· And am looking forward to that, that

16· ·upcoming conversation very soon.

17· · · · But to the degree that can be more slightly

18· ·proactively, you know, done now at the front end, it

19· ·would seem something that I'd like to explore further.

20· ·So just wanted to go ahead and share that in the moment

21· ·here.

22· · · · Go ahead, Council Ryan.· And then I promise,

23· ·Council Leckie, we'll come to you soon.

24· · · · · · · · · · · MR. RYAN:· Apologies.· Just -- I

25· ·appreciate that idea.· I think it's a good idea and is



·1· ·definitely in alignment with Executive Order 25-10

·2· ·about the language about being proactive.· I think

·3· ·that's a good thing to explore, and that's important.

·4· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Appreciate that.

·5· · · · Great.· Believe it or not, Council Leckie.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · MR. LECKIE:· Yeah, thank you.  I

·7· ·know that a comment was made about the land-use

·8· ·certificate, and that's one of the things I was going

·9· ·to comment on.

10· · · · You know, the question I would ask is:· Is the

11· ·land-use certificate required?· Does the County issue

12· ·it?· And should that have been done before the land-use

13· ·consistency hearing?

14· · · · I do know, talking to our planning staff, that

15· ·there was a request to meet with our prosecutor,

16· ·planning director, and planning staff about a land-use

17· ·certificate, but that meeting did not happen before the

18· ·hearing.· So those are some questions outstanding to

19· ·me.· So does EFSEC take that on for the land-use

20· ·certificate, or is it still the County's

21· ·responsibility?· Thank you.

22· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you.

23· · · · Counsel.

24· · · · · · · · · · · MR. THOMPSON:· Yeah, I can speak to

25· ·that.· The certificate is not required.· It's -- it's



·1· ·basically something that the applicant, at its option,

·2· ·can try to obtain from the local jurisdiction.· And if

·3· ·it does, that establishes a presumption that there is

·4· ·consistency, which can be rebutted by other people, you

·5· ·know, if they -- they feel that's inaccurate, but -- so

·6· ·it's just -- it's an optional thing that the applicant

·7· ·can obtain, not required.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · MR. LECKIE:· So local county

·9· ·planning does not have to issue anything regarding this

10· ·property.· This is all EFSEC, then.

11· · · · · · · · · · · MR. THOMPSON:· Correct.· There is no

12· ·requirement for local planning or the local

13· ·jurisdiction to even take a position or, yeah, or to

14· ·provide a certificate.· I mean, certainly we welcome

15· ·that and, you know, even hope that they do.· But that

16· ·there's no requirement, which partly may answer Council

17· ·Member Pamplin's question to a degree, because there's

18· ·no -- there's no way to compel the local jurisdiction

19· ·to do so.

20· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HAFKEMEYER:· Can I jump in?

21· · · · · · · · · · · MR. LECKIE:· Then there's no local

22· ·SEPA then either?

23· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BUMPUS:· No.· EFSEC is the SEPA

24· ·lead agency.

25· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HAFKEMEYER:· Can I jump in just



·1· ·to make sure that I'm interpreting Council Leckie's

·2· ·question?

·3· · · · The Council will at a future date make a land-use

·4· ·consistency determination for the project.· And if the

·5· ·local jurisdiction has issued a certificate of

·6· ·consistency, that would be part of the record for that

·7· ·decision.

·8· · · · However, EFSEC would not issue a certificate of

·9· ·consistency on the local jurisdiction's behalf.· If

10· ·that is provided for the project, that would come from

11· ·the local jurisdiction, not from EFSEC, but it would be

12· ·part of the record for the land-use consistency

13· ·determination made by the Council.

14· · · · · · · · · · · MR. LECKIE:· Then it's irrelevant if

15· ·the County issues that or not; is that correct?

16· · · · · · · · · · · MS. HAFKEMEYER:· I wouldn't call it

17· ·irrelevant.

18· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BUMPUS:· No, not irrelevant.  I

19· ·think that Mr. Thompson put it as there's -- if there's

20· ·a certificate provided, there's a presumption of

21· ·consistency.· And so that, I think, aids the Council's

22· ·decision-making.· Whereas, in the absence of that, you

23· ·don't have that presumption, and so you're looking at

24· ·the question, you're looking at the record:· Is this

25· ·project allowed here?· Is there anything that prohibits



·1· ·this project from being sited here with respect to land

·2· ·use?

·3· · · · So having that -- that piece of information as

·4· ·part of your record where the County is saying, "We

·5· ·think it is consistent," you have that presumption

·6· ·there.· But without it, you're relying on the other

·7· ·information that you have to answer the question to

·8· ·consistency.

·9· · · · · · · · · · · MR. LECKIE:· Okay.· I'm just trying

10· ·to understand the process, then.

11· · · · So if that presumption is made in the county

12· ·planning or there's no application or land-use

13· ·certificate, then EFSEC just takes on that role?· Is

14· ·that how this process works?

15· · · · · · · · · · · MR. THOMPSON:· Well, yeah, I guess

16· ·you can say that.· I mean, I think the Council would

17· ·look at -- first at whatever information the applicant

18· ·puts forward about what are -- you know, what are the

19· ·applicable zoning codes, what are the applicable

20· ·land-use plans, and makes whatever argument they want

21· ·to make about whether the project is -- would be

22· ·prohibited by those.

23· · · · Other parties can respond.· But it's -- it's --

24· ·yeah, it's the Council's -- is required to make a

25· ·determination as to whether the project, you know,



·1· ·under local permitting processes, say, would be --

·2· ·would be allowed or prohibited.· And it can do that.

·3· ·Yeah, it can do that by researching the County's

·4· ·relevant code provisions, itself, and looking at the

·5· ·arguments that have been made by the parties before the

·6· ·Council.

·7· · · · Does that help clarify?

·8· · · · · · · · · · · MR. LECKIE:· Yeah, it does.· So then

·9· ·there's -- then the County's not involved with the

10· ·permitting process, then, for a land-use certificate.

11· · · · · · · · · · · MR. THOMPSON:· Correct.· The --

12· · · · · · · · · · · MR. LECKIE:· Yeah.

13· · · · · · · · · · · MR. THOMPSON:· Yeah.

14· · · · · · · · · · · MR. LECKIE:· Okay.

15· · · · Okay.

16· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· But I would just --

17· · · · · · · · · · · MR. LECKIE:· No, thank you.

18· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· I would just

19· ·emphasize -- and, Council Breckel, I will come to you

20· ·next -- ultimately, no matter what form the input comes

21· ·from the local jurisdiction, it is most important to

22· ·EFSEC as an agency to have -- you know, whether it's to

23· ·say, yes, this is consistent, or, no, it's not,

24· ·ultimately EFSEC -- and it is one of the superpowers

25· ·that has its controversies -- that the Council, if it



·1· ·chooses, you know, to interpret that it's not

·2· ·consistent but a project needs to continue to go

·3· ·forward, that is one of the powers under statute that

·4· ·EFSEC has.

·5· · · · I don't think any of us -- I'll speak for

·6· ·myself -- would take lightly overriding a local view,

·7· ·but that is part of the role and authority of EFSEC.

·8· ·So the more that that information in whatever form it

·9· ·comes into EFSEC's record from each local jurisdiction

10· ·is of preeminent importance to and I believe to the

11· ·agency historically as well as on a more complicated

12· ·project like we're experiencing for the first time I

13· ·think in the history of the agency as far as a mult-

14· ·jurisdiction transmission project.· So that's part of

15· ·the dialogue that we're sitting here having today in

16· ·public.

17· · · · So unless I really misstated anything.

18· · · · · · · · · · · MR. LECKIE:· No.· Thank you.

19· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Okay.

20· · · · · · · · · · · MR. LECKIE:· I guess that's where

21· ·the confusion was, 'cause it seems like they engage to

22· ·get the certificate from the County, then the meetings

23· ·did take place, and it stopped.· That's what was kind

24· ·of confusing me, was did they have to fulfill and

25· ·finish that requirement at the County, or if EFSEC's



·1· ·taking it on, then maybe that was just -- you know,

·2· ·maybe it wasn't needed, so they moved on to EFSEC.

·3· · · · That clarifies that.· Thank you.

·4· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Okay.· It's good --

·5· ·good discussion from my perspective.· And I think as

·6· ·Council Pamplin noted earlier, there's opportunity to

·7· ·clarify and make this smoother where that could be done

·8· ·through a policy or process rather than a statutory

·9· ·change.· Count me in for the nonstatutory path.· But we

10· ·may bump into -- to those limits and need to seek more

11· ·authority.

12· · · · Council Breckel, welcome.· As a new member of the

13· ·Council, thank you both for enduring our onboarding

14· ·process, which we try to not to make too long.

15· · · · Council Breckel.

16· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL BRECKEL:· Thank you very

17· ·much, Mr. Chair.

18· · · · Yeah, you know, I -- I go back.· I attended the

19· ·initial public information meeting and land-use

20· ·consistency hearing here in Skamania County.· And I

21· ·think there was a fair amount of, I think, both

22· ·confusion and concern over the EFSEC process as it

23· ·applies to this project.· That there was a land-use

24· ·consistency hearing, and we didn't hear from any of the

25· ·local government within Skamania County in terms of



·1· ·land use on this particular thing.· And, quite frankly,

·2· ·that some of the local jurisdictions, certainly the

·3· ·City of Stevenson, didn't even realize that this

·4· ·hearing was ongoing at that time.

·5· · · · So I think as we're looking at this, at this

·6· ·process, I think you'll find, you know, particularly

·7· ·with some of these smaller jurisdictions, that there's

·8· ·not any formality, any basis in terms of understanding

·9· ·the process, the EFSEC process as it looks at these

10· ·types of projects or how it works or how they can

11· ·engage and participate in that process.

12· · · · So I would hope that, you know, particularly as

13· ·you're looking for representatives from some of the

14· ·other local governmental jurisdictions, that somehow

15· ·there's that good clarity I think we got on some of the

16· ·onboarding discussions at least as a Council member but

17· ·also some discussions I think with local governments in

18· ·terms of how they can effectively engage in this

19· ·process.· Because they are knowledgeable of it.· This

20· ·is something new, and it's something complex, and it's

21· ·something that affects their local jurisdiction.

22· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Appreciate that

23· ·comment.· And, again, I think there's learning in real

24· ·time as well as in earlier months coming out of the

25· ·hearings, but no doubt opportunities here to learn and



·1· ·grow from, I think.· So appreciate that.

·2· · · · Council Nelson.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· Thank you, Chair

·4· ·Beckett.

·5· · · · Yeah, I was at the Skamania land-use hearing, and

·6· ·I made a comment that, in retrospect, was largely

·7· ·process ignorance.· I think -- and it was about sort

·8· ·of, like, along the lines of, you know, if this was a

·9· ·Skamania County shoreline management plan, would it,

10· ·you know, pass muster or not.· And it just wasn't a

11· ·point of the project yet that that information was

12· ·really out there.· I think it will come out in SEPA.

13· · · · But the point of my ramble, Councilman Leckie and

14· ·Councilman Breckel, is that local engagement and if

15· ·there is a local certificate of, you know, compliance,

16· ·we would -- you know, that's a big part of the -- at

17· ·least I'd say it'd definitely be a part of my

18· ·deliberation.· And however that looks, I'm still not

19· ·edified enough to know, like, when that will come up.

20· · · · The -- I'm just trying to say that I hope the

21· ·public gets a real big bite at that apple, you know,

22· ·when that information is submitted and gets out there.

23· ·And if it's through a hearing process, if it's like a

24· ·comment period, I hope it's a good long one, a couple

25· ·weeks as EFSEC has been doing a good job giving.



·1· ·And -- or if it's another hearing, great.· You know,

·2· ·like, it's Skamania County, I think, specifically since

·3· ·the -- since it's going to run on land, is what I'm

·4· ·most curious about regarding the land-use consistency.

·5· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Thank you.

·6· · · · Other comments from Council?· Any closing comments

·7· ·from our good staff team that's been supporting this

·8· ·discussion?

·9· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BUMPUS:· Thank you, Chair

10· ·Beckett.· Just one comment.· It was talked about

11· ·earlier in Ms. Belkina's update that we've recently

12· ·learned that the corps is going to be doing an

13· ·environmental impact statement and that we are

14· ·coordinating with them, collaborating with them on

15· ·that.

16· · · · Staff do intend -- I don't know that it will be in

17· ·February.· It may be more in March.· We'll see.· But

18· ·we're in discussions with the corps and many other

19· ·agencies as well as tribes.· And we've discussed

20· ·internally doing a presentation for the Council about

21· ·how the SEPA process will work and how that

22· ·coordination will work.· So I don't know if it will be

23· ·in the form of a full-on PowerPoint presentation or

24· ·just a hefty verbal update, but we do intend to provide

25· ·the Council with information and the public with



·1· ·information about how we're going to do that work, the

·2· ·environmental review, given that there are multiple

·3· ·agencies involved.

·4· · · · But we're at the point now to be able to share all

·5· ·the behind-the-scenes details of how that will work.

·6· ·But it is on the radar, and we intend to update the

·7· ·Council.· I don't want to commit to February yet.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· I understand that.

·9· ·But thank you for the added foreshadowing of what's to

10· ·come.

11· · · · Okay.· Other comments?· Hearing none.

12· · · · We will wrap up our project updates.· And thank

13· ·you.· I know this meeting is going on, so we'll try and

14· ·move through our final three items quickly.· But I

15· ·think that conversation was important.· It's one that

16· ·we weren't able to really do in December, just having

17· ·gotten out of the hearings as well as our November

18· ·meeting in the middle of the hearings.· So appreciate

19· ·the extra time that we've ended up spending here today.

20· · · · With that, I will turn this to Director Bumpus for

21· ·both her cost allocation update and any other updates

22· ·that she wishes to give before perhaps if you would go

23· ·ahead and do me the favor of turning that to Lisa

24· ·McLean when you're done, and we'll just --

25· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BUMPUS:· Yes.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· -- wrap up that way.

·2· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BUMPUS:· Thank you, Chair

·3· ·Beckett.· And good afternoon, Council members.

·4· · · · For the cost allocation update, this is for the

·5· ·non-direct cost allocation for third quarter of Fiscal

·6· ·Year 2026.· This covers January 1 to March 31, 2026.

·7· · · · I will not read off the percentages.· They have

·8· ·not been changed since last quarter's update.· They're

·9· ·in your packet.· So if you have any questions about

10· ·those, do follow up with me.· But in the interest of

11· ·time, will not read all of those off.

12· · · · As far as director updates go, I did want to -- I

13· ·mentioned earlier Executive Order 25-11, which is the

14· ·acceleration in support for clean energy projects,

15· ·given the federal lack of energy tax credits.· So EFSEC

16· ·is participating in -- on the acceleration team.· We

17· ·actually have a number of staff that are involved in

18· ·tracking that work.

19· · · · There is a report that we need to prepare that's

20· ·due at the end of the month.· But before the executive

21· ·order was issued, we had been in discussions with other

22· ·agencies and preparing a list of projects that we

23· ·thought might be in a position to take advantage of the

24· ·federal tax incentives, and so I think that in some

25· ·respects that group is ahead of the work a little bit.



·1· · · · Do reach out if you have any questions about that

·2· ·report.· And Ms. McLean is engaged on that effort.· If

·3· ·you have detailed questions about what we're going to

·4· ·be putting in that report, please follow up with

·5· ·Ms. McLean.

·6· · · · As far as other director updates, we do intend to

·7· ·do an update with the Council on budget and on

·8· ·legislation.· Right now we're in the throes of

·9· ·legislation, so not a whole lot to share that has any

10· ·concrete, you know, to it, but we'll give you an update

11· ·in February on that.

12· · · · Any questions before I hand this to Ms. McLean?

13· · · · Thank you.

14· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Seeing none.

15· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Sorry, Mr. Chair.

16· ·Just to slip one in.· Thanks, Director Bumpus.· Just a

17· ·quick question.

18· · · · How did EFSEC -- how did EFSEC fare within the

19· ·governor's 2026 supplemental operating budget proposal?

20· ·Thank you.

21· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BUMPUS:· Ms. Gomes, do you want

22· ·to...?

23· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GOMES:· This is Nabila speaking.

24· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· You might need to

25· ·come forward, though.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GOMES:· I'll come closer.

·2· · · · Thank you, Lisa.· Excellent question.· This is

·3· ·Nabila speaking on behalf of EFSEC and EFSEC staff.

·4· · · · The AG -- well, EFSEC received a 15 percent

·5· ·proposed cut, so compared to other small agencies that

·6· ·received a 5 percent cut.· So that's a significant cut

·7· ·compared to other small agencies.

·8· · · · We met with OFM and the governor's staff just to

·9· ·determine what the impacts would be to the agency

10· ·especially on the operating end of things.· And this is

11· ·specific to the general fund.· And we anticipate that

12· ·we will have an update in February once we know exactly

13· ·how it's going to impact operating -- operating costs.

14· ·'Cause what essentially is going to have to happen is

15· ·we'll have to offset some of our general funds, which

16· ·include four staff members and legal fees and other

17· ·things like that, onto either overhead or onto project

18· ·costs, which is -- we don't know what that looks like,

19· ·and so we're just determining.

20· · · · But essentially it's about a $245,000 cut to our

21· ·budget, which we do have strategic actions in plan, and

22· ·so now we are pivoting with it.· So we anticipate

23· ·having a full-fledged update in February.

24· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BUMPUS:· Yeah, we will provide

25· ·an update.· And, you know, one of the things is that



·1· ·we're not surprised, right?· We knew.· So we had

·2· ·already been talking.· This was definitely on Nabila's

·3· ·radar, and we had been talking about what is the

·4· ·strategy.· Not if this happens but when it happens.· We

·5· ·were surprised about the -- sort of the, I guess --

·6· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GOMES:· How heavy-handed.

·7· · · · · · · · · · · MS. BUMPUS:· -- the heavy-handed --

·8· ·somewhat heavy-handedness given that we're a small

·9· ·agency compared to the impact on others.· But -- but I

10· ·think that we've got some good strategies for how we

11· ·can -- we can offset.

12· · · · · · · · · · · MR. PAMPLIN:· Yeah, thanks for the

13· ·updates.

14· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Okay.· I think that

15· ·takes us to Ms. McLean as you said.

16· · · · · · · · · · · MS. McLEAN:· Hi.· So now I'm here as

17· ·the leg policy manager, Lisa McLean, here to introduce

18· ·a new staff member, Noel Sharp, who has joined us as

19· ·the rules policy coordinator.· Very happy to welcome

20· ·her to the team.· She just started on Friday.· Her job

21· ·will be helping us work through these rules, work on

22· ·internal policies, and generally helping the policy

23· ·team.

24· · · · Noel comes to us with -- I'm really happy.· I just

25· ·said to Director Bumpus today when I was introducing



·1· ·Director Bumpus to Noel that she has a great deal of --

·2· ·I don't know -- checks all kinds of great boxes.

·3· ·Number one, she comes out of, recently -- most

·4· ·recently, private environmental consulting firm.

·5· ·Before that, she spent eight years at DNR.· And while

·6· ·she was at DNR, I'm not even going to try to remember

·7· ·to say exactly what rules projects she worked on, but

·8· ·it was a rules project that brought her in contact with

·9· ·tribes, heavy involvement with the tribes, and just a

10· ·kind of controversial rules project.

11· · · · So not that I expect any of our rules projects to

12· ·be controversial, but in the event that they are, I

13· ·know that she's going to be able to handle it.· So I

14· ·welcome her, and I think she's going to be a great

15· ·addition to the team.

16· · · · · · · · · · · MS. SHARP:· Thank you.· It's nice to

17· ·meet you-all.

18· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Welcome aboard for

19· ·sure.

20· · · · · · · · · · · MS. SHARP:· Thank you.

21· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· You're welcome to

22· ·say anything else you wish at the moment.· And

23· ·otherwise I won't put you on the spot further, so...

24· · · · · · · · · · · MS. SHARP:· I'm just getting

25· ·onboarded, so -- but I'm really happy to be here.· I've



·1· ·already learned a lot, so I'm excited.· Thank you.

·2· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR BECKETT:· Excellent.

·3· · · · Well, on that note, I will just also highlight for

·4· ·the public in general that the update to

·5· ·preapplication, adjudication, and site restoration

·6· ·rules are being considered.· That was in a public

·7· ·meeting on the 7th of January, which some people may

·8· ·have still been out or things like that.· So more to

·9· ·come.· And, Noel, knowing you're here to be a part of

10· ·all that is most welcome and important.

11· · · · But from my perspective, all ideas or, you know,

12· ·constructive feedback, criticism, whatever folks want

13· ·to send in to us, please send it.· And if it doesn't

14· ·fit exactly in one of those three buckets, I would

15· ·suggest we might still know what to do with it.· That

16· ·may not be immediately versus other higher priorities.

17· ·But now is the time to please, you know, let's

18· ·collectively bring our best ideas forward.

19· · · · Because as I said in December and I may just keep

20· ·saying it, like, especially in these times, we got to

21· ·stick together, and we got to work together.· And

22· ·that's just to me the bottom line, so -- and the

23· ·opportunity.

24· · · · So, with that, I'll also note a thanks again to

25· ·Council Pamplin and the Fish and Wildlife agency that



·1· ·provided our wind and solar guideline presentation last

·2· ·time.· And I meant to mention when we approved the

·3· ·minutes, having reread them, it was just, I think, a

·4· ·really good discussion and just helpful and the kind of

·5· ·work that we should be doing.

·6· · · · We may not always have time, you know, to do that

·7· ·in every meeting.· But as I reread those minutes, I was

·8· ·super appreciative of what I read there.· And I would

·9· ·encourage the public to go read it.· I think it starts

10· ·on Page 80.· And, unfortunately, it is in court

11· ·reporter speak, which is always especially ugly when

12· ·you're reviewing those minutes.

13· · · · So, with that, are there any other closing

14· ·comments?· Or we will wrap this up.

15· · · · Hearing none.· Then we are adjourned at 3:34.

16· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Meeting adjourned at

17· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 3:34 p.m.)
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 1                     BE IT REMEMBERED that on Wednesday,

 2   January 21, 2026, at 621 Woodland Square Loop

 3   Southeast, Lacey, Washington, at 1:31 p.m., the

 4   following monthly meeting of the Washington State

 5   Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was held, to

 6   wit:

 7

 8                       <<<<<< >>>>>>

 9

10                     CHAIR BECKETT:  Good afternoon.

11   This is Kurt Beckett, chair of EFSEC, calling our

12   January 21st meeting to order at 1:31 p.m.

13       And, Ms. Grantham, if you could call the roll,

14   please.

15                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Certainly, Chair.

16       Department of Commerce.

17       Department of Ecology.

18                     MR. NELSON:  Councilman Nelson

19   here.

20                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of Fish

21   and Wildlife.

22                     MR. PAMPLIN:  Nate Pamplin,

23   present.

24                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of

25   Natural Resources.
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 1                      MR. RYAN:  Maverick Ryan, present.

 2                      MS. GRANTHAM:  And Utilities and

 3   Transportation Commission.

 4                      MR. RYBARIK:  Brian Rybarik,

 5   present.

 6                      MS. GRANTHAM:  For local government

 7   and optional State agencies.  For the Hop Hill solar

 8   project, for Benton County, Paul Krupin.

 9        For Carriger Solar, for Klickitat County, Matt

10   Chiles.

11        For Wallula Gap, for Benton County, Adam Fyall.

12        For Goldeneye BESS, Skagit County, Robby Eckroth.

13                      MR. ECKROTH:  Robby Eckroth,

14   present.

15                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Cascade Renewable

16   Transmission, for Skamania County, Asa Leckie.

17                      MR. LECKIE:  Asa Leckie, present.

18                      MS. GRANTHAM:  And City of

19   Stevenson, Jeff Breckel.

20                      MR. BRECKEL:  Jeff Breckel, present.

21                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Assistant attorney

22   generals.

23        Jon Thompson.

24                      MR. THOMPSON:  Present.

25                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Zack Packer.

0009

 1                      MR. PACKER:  Present.

 2                      MS. GRANTHAM:  And Talia Thuet.

 3        Moving on to Council staff.

 4        Sonia Bumpus.

 5                      MS. BUMPUS:  Present.

 6                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Ami Hafkemeyer.

 7                      MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Present.

 8                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Amy Moon.

 9                      MS. MOON:  Present.

10                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Sara Randolph.

11        Sean Greene.

12                      MR. GREENE:  Present.

13                      MS. GRANTHAM:  John Barnes.

14                      MR. BARNES:  Present.

15                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Joanne Snarski.

16                      MS. SNARSKI:  Present.

17                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Maria Belkina.

18                      MS. BELKINA:  Present.

19                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Lisa McLean.

20                      MS. McLEAN:  Present.

21                      MS. GRANTHAM:  And Noel Sharp.

22                      MS. SHARP:  Present.

23                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Operational updates.

24   For Kittitas Valley wind project.

25        Wild Horse Wind Power Project.
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 1                      MS. GALBRAITH:  Jennifer Galbraith,

 2   present.

 3                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Grays Harbor Energy

 4   Center.

 5                      MR. PACE:  Eric Pace, present.

 6                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Chehalis Generation

 7   Facility.

 8                      MR. SMITH:  Jeremy Smith, present.

 9                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Columbia Generating

10   Station.

11                      MS. HALL:  Katie Hall for Columbia,

12   present.

13                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Columbia Solar.

14        Goose Prairie Solar.

15                      MR. JIA:  Yeah.  Nelson here.

16                      MS. GRANTHAM:  And Ostrea Solar.

17                      MR. VOLTZ:  John Voltz, present.

18                      MS. GRANTHAM:  And do we have anyone

19   present for the counsel for the environment?

20                      MS. REYNEVELD:  Yeah.

21                      MR. KOROL:  Yuriy Korol.

22                      MS. REYNEVELD:  Sarah Reyneveld and

23   Yuriy Korol are present.

24                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.

25        Chair, there is a quorum for all councils.

0011

 1                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very much.

 2        Moving on.  Chair would entertain a motion to

 3   adopt today's meeting agenda.

 4                      MR. RYBARIK:  So moved.

 5                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Is there a second?

 6                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Second.

 7                      CHAIR BECKETT:  The agenda's been

 8   moved and seconded.  Are there any additions or changes

 9   to the agenda?

10        Hearing none.

11        All in favor of moving the agenda forward, please

12   say "aye."

13                      MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.

14                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Opposed?  Abstain?

15        Okay.  Agenda is adopted.

16        Moving on to the minutes.  We have before us the

17   minutes from our December 17th meeting.  Chair would

18   entertain a motion to adopt the minutes.

19                      MR. RYBARIK:  So moved.

20                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Second?

21                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Second.

22                      CHAIR BECKETT:  The minutes have

23   been moved and are on the table.  Are there any edits

24   to the minutes?  I know of none from my review.

25                      MR. RYBARIK:  I specifically
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 1   reviewed for the spelling of "counsel" this time, but I

 2   did not notice any modifications needed.

 3                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for

 4   bringing that forward, future review.

 5        So all right.  Then, with that, I'll call for the

 6   vote to approve the minutes.

 7        All in favor, say aye.

 8                      MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.

 9                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Opposed?

10        Okay.  Minutes are adopted.

11        And a special privilege for all of us today.  We

12   have before us three resolutions, one each for former

13   Council members:  Lenny Young from the Department of

14   Natural Resources, Eli Levitt from the Department of

15   Ecology, and Stacey Brewster from the Utilities and

16   Transportation Commission.

17        And so the chair would entertain a motion to adopt

18   Resolutions 358, 359, and 361.

19                      MR. PAMPLIN:  So moved.

20                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Is there a second?

21                      MR. RYBARIK:  Second.

22                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

23        The resolutions are now on the table.  And the

24   chair will do his best to try and appropriately

25   highlight a few specific items for each of our former
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 1   Council members.  For the members of the public, you'll

 2   find a full description for each of their activities

 3   and service here on the EFSEC Council and a general

 4   consensus -- I will not read the full resolution or let

 5   alone all three, but will enable -- will endeavor to

 6   highlight a few special things for each of them and

 7   then would welcome other comments from Council members,

 8   and then ultimately we'll call the question and

 9   certainly would welcome hearing from our special guests

10   here today.

11        So starting with Lenny Young.  And we'll go in

12   numeric order here.  For resolution 358, Lenny was

13   appointed on March 5th, 2021, served nearly five years,

14   and certainly brought a tremendous depth of knowledge

15   and background in many respects but especially given

16   his natural resources focus at the Department of

17   Natural Resources.

18        Each of these former Council members participated

19   in six reviews -- or excuse me -- in six site

20   certificate agreements.  Those are Goose Prairie Solar,

21   High Top Solar, Ostrea Solar, Horse Heaven Wind,

22   Wautoma Solar, and Carriger Solar.  And certainly

23   several of those -- in particular, Horse Heaven --

24   stand out, even more extra work than I think any of us

25   can fully appreciate.  So I want to thank all of you
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 1   for that.

 2        The other thing that Lenny was certainly known for

 3   was characterized by challenging assumptions and

 4   examining multiple angles of an issue during Council

 5   deliberations.  And let me note that for each of you,

 6   the resolution on this is that the Energy Facility Site

 7   Evaluation Council recognizes your outstanding,

 8   unwavering, and faithful contribution to the Council's

 9   siting and regulatory activities and gratefully

10   expresses its sincere gratitude for the commitment,

11   dedication, and effort that each of you have shown

12   through your service.

13        Moving on to Eli Levitt, who began his service

14   with EFSEC on January 10th, 2022.  And each of these

15   Council members certainly brought, you know, diligence

16   in their deliberation on how best to balance many of

17   the different impacts and mitigation measures that

18   every project deserves.

19        And I'm sure we'll catch a "mute" there when we

20   can.

21        Eli contributed, again, to the same six eventual

22   site certificate agreements in addition to his

23   thoughtful focus on the review, his attentiveness to

24   public comment, thoughtful questions, and continual

25   advocacy for continuous improvement and expansion of
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 1   public outreach was certainly noted, and solicitation

 2   of public input from across Washington's diverse

 3   communities was an area of focus for Council Member

 4   Levitt.

 5        And, lastly, and saving the distinction of the

 6   longest-serving Council member, at least that I'm aware

 7   of, for nearly seven years, Stacey Brewster on behalf

 8   of the Utilities and Transportation Commission, who

 9   started with the EFSEC Council on January 8th, 2019.

10   She also gets the high award for 73 regular Council

11   meetings and 31 special meetings.

12        And I should have noted that Eli had 58, but Lenny

13   had a full 80.  So I think you're still on No. 2,

14   Lenny.  But each of you, you know, deserve praise for

15   even a handful of those.

16        So let me also especially say here in the past

17   year that Stacey, Council Brewster, was ably and with

18   careful consideration guided Council discussion as

19   acting chair for Horse Heaven, including on the

20   Species-5 issue that is also before the Council today,

21   Wallula Gap, Goldeneye BESS, and Hop Hill.  And she has

22   participated -- and I had the honor of doing so

23   alongside her -- in a government-to-government

24   consultation for the Goldeneye BESS project.

25        So, in particular, a closing comment was just
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 1   particularly insightful questions in adjudicative

 2   processes and deliberations were noted as an area of

 3   extra expertise that Council Brewster brought to the --

 4   to the effort.

 5        So, with that, certainly a closing just heartfelt

 6   "thank you" to each of you for all your service.  I

 7   learned a lot from you and appreciated just in the time

 8   in the past year that I was able to share with each of

 9   you.  I can't thank you enough, and especially Stacey

10   for grabbing that gavel on my behalf, which was always

11   going to be an extra ask of someone, and it came to be

12   you.  So thank you for that.

13        And, with that, I would turn this to my fellow

14   Council members, and I would actually maybe start with

15   Council and Chair Rybarik, who has a member of the UTC

16   here being honored, so...

17                      MR. RYBARIK:  Thank you,

18   Mr. Chairman.  Do want to just thank everybody for

19   their -- for their service here.  And I think you've

20   paraphrased those very well in just the great work

21   that's gone on here.  I want to additionally appreciate

22   Stacey's work for the UTC here in the room with us,

23   with us today.  Want to just give a great shout out to

24   her.  The resolution outlines some of the projects, as

25   you mentioned, Mr. Chairman, some of the work very
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 1   specifically in the chair's spot in the last -- last

 2   year or so.

 3        But I think it cannot capture, even though it

 4   attempts to, just the thoughtfulness and the

 5   preparation that Stacey brings to her work and the

 6   perspectives she offers.  We're very thankful that

 7   she'll continue to be here at the UTC, continue to

 8   support the work that we're doing here with EFSEC and

 9   my participation here.  But just wanted to thank her

10   again, and just grateful for her perspectives and

11   knowledge.  And thank you, Stacey.

12                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Very well.

13        Let me continue, then.  I guess, Council Ryan, did

14   you want to make a comment on behalf of your agency as

15   well.

16                      MR. RYAN:  Yeah.  Thank you, Chair.

17        Lenny:  Big shoes, huge opportunity to follow in

18   the footsteps of someone like yourself and appreciate

19   all the insight leant to the Council over the years.

20   Everything that's been mentioned, your role in these

21   deliberations, it's really the model of public service,

22   both your record of service here as well as at the

23   agency.  So I appreciate the opportunity to step in

24   your footsteps and appreciate everything you've done.

25                      CHAIR BECKETT:  And, Council Nelson,
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 1   did you want to make a comment on behalf of the

 2   Department of Ecology?

 3                      MR. NELSON:  Thank you, Chair

 4   Beckett.  I sure do.

 5        Just want to thank all three Council members

 6   receiving a commendation here:  Young, Brewster, and

 7   Levitt.

 8        Eli's dedication to public comment and open

 9   process and all that, that transcends his entire

10   career, not just his time on the EFSEC Council.  And

11   just wanted to publicly thank him for that.

12        You know, I'd like to think that Eli walks so I

13   could run, but he's about a foot taller than me, so in

14   my analogy here, we're going at about the same rate of

15   speed.  Thank you, Eli.

16                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

17        Council Pamplin or other Council members, any

18   other comments?

19                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

20   Yeah, great appreciation for all three Council members.

21   And I'd just like to specifically mention Mr. Young.

22        He's been an executive at DNR for a lot of years,

23   and our orbits have overlapped and intersected on a

24   variety of other forums outside of the EFSEC process.

25   Always found his style of engagement being curious,
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 1   articulating very complex and difficult discussions in

 2   a way that brought further understanding across the

 3   meeting.

 4        And I always thought he was very fair and just an

 5   active listener.  And I've always appreciated just

 6   working with you, Mr. Young.  So thank you for all of

 7   your years of service.  Thanks.

 8                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

 9        And, Director Bumpus, I apologize for not giving

10   you a heads-up earlier.  I would turn this to you just

11   to see if there's any comment you want to make on

12   behalf of yourself and/or the staff and the agency,

13   so -- and it's okay if not, but...

14                      MS. BUMPUS:  Thank you.  No.

15                      CHAIR BECKETT:  I should have added

16   your name in that list earlier, so...

17                      MS. BUMPUS:  Thank you, Chair

18   Beckett.  I appreciate the opportunity.

19        No, I just wanted to say thank you for all of the

20   work and the dedicated time and attention to EFSEC over

21   those years that you served, and also to thank you --

22   each of you were always very respectful to staff and

23   worked very well and very collaboratively with the

24   EFSEC staff, and we really appreciate that.  So thank

25   you.
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 1                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the

 2   good comments.

 3        All right.  Members of the Council, with that, I

 4   will call the question.  Again, we have

 5   Resolutions 358, 359, and 361 on the table.  All in

 6   favor of passing those resolutions, please say "aye."

 7                      MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.

 8                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Opposed?

 9   Abstentions?

10        Okay.  Unanimous of course.

11        I don't know if there's any comments our guests

12   would like to make from the floor.  I would certainly

13   welcome that.  No obligation.  Otherwise, we do have

14   resolutions here that are actually framed, and we would

15   present those to you and probably grab a quick photo.

16   So if you wish.

17                      MR. YOUNG:  Just --

18                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Former Council

19   Young, please.

20                      MR. YOUNG:  -- quick remarks from

21   me.

22        I first would like to thank our outstanding

23   commissioners, Public Lands Commissioner Hilary Franz,

24   former commissioner, and Commissioner Dave Upthegrove,

25   our current commissioner, for having the confidence to
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 1   give me the opportunity to represent them and the

 2   department, and thank both the former chair, Kathleen

 3   Drew, and the current chair, Kurt Beckett, Director

 4   Bumpus, and all the EFSEC staff, including our counsel

 5   from the attorney general's office, Jon Thompson, for

 6   the tremendous support that they've provided during the

 7   time that I served.

 8        And not the least the incredible thoughtfulness

 9   and dedication of my fellow Council members when we

10   were dealing with very complex issues with competing

11   priorities.  I was always impressed by the dedication

12   and the thoughtfulness and the seriousness with which

13   they took these important issues and how they

14   discharged their duties.  So tremendous experience, and

15   I'm very thankful for the opportunity to have been on

16   the Council.

17                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very much.

18        Anyone else?  No obligation.

19                      MS. BREWSTER:  Well --

20                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Stacey Brewster.

21                      MS. BREWSTER:  -- Lenny said it very

22   well.  Thank you to all of you for leadership, to

23   staff.  You guys -- it wasn't easy, but it wasn't

24   impossible.  You did -- you prepared us well.  Always

25   had information for us.  I really appreciate your
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 1   dedication, your integrity, all consummate

 2   professionals, leadership, Chair Beckett, Chair Drew.

 3   Learned so much during this opportunity, and I really

 4   appreciate the honor to serve.

 5                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Council Levitt.

 6                      MR. LEVITT:  Yeah, I guess I feel

 7   obligated to also say something.

 8        No, I just thank you very much for the opportunity

 9   to serve.  I believe very much in the mission of the

10   agency and the Council.  I have a child with asthma and

11   have friends and family with asthma.  I look forward to

12   a future where there is more solar, there's more

13   geothermal, there's more wind, there's more battery

14   storage, more smart grid, and hopefully our skies will

15   be clearer, we'll have less smog, and a new future to

16   look forward to.

17        I certainly respect that all these decisions are

18   tough.  I strongly recommend the importance and the

19   value of doing site visits together, staff and Council

20   members and the public doing those site visits,

21   listening to each other, talking to each other.  Those

22   to me are extremely valuable, and I hope those continue

23   into the future.

24        I was mentored briefly by Hedia Adelsman at

25   Ecology, and she always had so many stories and talked
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 1   so much about the site visits to reinforce their --

 2   their importance.  So, yeah, good luck with the

 3   decisions ahead of you, and thank you to the staff and

 4   the Council members for continuing to work.

 5                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very much,

 6   each of you, for your good and meaningful comments.

 7        With that, I would ask that, Council Rybarik, if

 8   you would grab --

 9                      MR. RYBARIK:  Yeah.

10                      CHAIR BECKETT:  -- the resolution

11   for Stacey.  And, Maverick, if you would grab Lenny's.

12   And I will -- Council Nelson, on your behalf from the

13   Department of Ecology, I will carry Eli's.  And so

14   we'll present these to you, and hopefully someone could

15   help with the photo from out there.  And then we'll

16   resume the rest of our meeting here in less than five

17   minutes.  The meeting is still going.  We haven't

18   adjourned, or recessed, I should say, so...

19                             (Discussion off the record.)

20

21                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

22                             (Applause.)

23

24                      CHAIR BECKETT:  And as we pick back

25   up here, let me just note for our honored guests that
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 1   you have more than earned the right to leave

 2   immediately.  You are welcome, of course, in this

 3   public meeting at any time.  But you have earned the

 4   right to walk out the door.  So I leave that to your

 5   good judgment.

 6        All right.  With that, we will move to our project

 7   updates at 1:50.  And let me -- on behalf of my fellow

 8   Council members as well as our project participants and

 9   members of the public, I have kind of a broader

10   announcement to share and certainly welcome comments

11   from Council in particular as we go through this

12   portion of the meeting.

13        I believe Director Bumpus or Ami Hafkemeyer will

14   add a further word here.  But basically there's a

15   proposed change that would be being implemented in

16   February which would evolve these project updates

17   essentially that, for the normal updates that have

18   nothing to report other than what's already in our

19   packet, that that in-meeting verbal, whether virtually

20   or rarely on occasion here in the meeting, that we

21   would suspend that in-meeting reporting-out process and

22   instead have those same written reports in our packet.

23        And those -- that would be done to maintain our,

24   you know, continuing our compliance standards that are

25   associated with each of the site certificate
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 1   agreements, but ultimately I think achieving a more

 2   easier, more efficient way of our work.

 3        And so that's the underlying intent in changing

 4   from having to come down the roll with not always

 5   things to report.  Certainly the ability for any of our

 6   project participants to highlight something that they

 7   choose to highlight or something that we mutually

 8   believe needs more discussion in a meeting, that can

 9   always be done quickly just before the meeting, but

10   otherwise I think we would try to consistently note

11   these are the projects that are just going to have

12   written reports, and then obviously we would focus on

13   the balance that would receive the normal verbal

14   update, whether that was by a project participant or

15   staff.

16        So, with that, let me turn to Director Bumpus and

17   Ami Hafkemeyer to see if there was any further

18   additional kind of context you wanted to provide on how

19   that new system will work and continue to maintain our

20   compliance, so...

21                      MS. BUMPUS:  Thank you, Chair

22   Beckett.  And good afternoon, Council members.

23        Yes, so just a couple of things.  In looking at

24   ways to have the Council meetings run a little bit more

25   efficiently and spending our time together focused on
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 1   applications that are under review and on facilities

 2   that maybe have compliance issues that we need to

 3   address, we think that this is going to add some

 4   efficiency to the meetings.

 5        We -- we being staff -- looked at the site

 6   certification agreements for our operating facilities

 7   to ensure that if making this change is still compliant

 8   with the terms and conditions of those SCAs -- and it

 9   is -- and so we did double-check that, and we think

10   that this is -- this is consistent with their

11   compliance requirements.

12        As to how it will work, I'll punt over to Ami

13   Hafkemeyer to see if she wants to add any additional

14   details about how this would function.

15                      MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you.

16        So in the background, very little will change.

17   Staff are in regular communication with our operational

18   facilities.  And so if there are compliance activities

19   pending or something arises unexpectedly, that will

20   continue to be communicated with staff and brought

21   forward to the Council as things arise.

22        And staff will continue to review these monthly

23   updates and coordinate with the facilities on these

24   regular updates.  That will still be provided monthly

25   as they are now.  And so with that respect, compliance
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 1   oversight is not diminishing in any way.  We are still

 2   verifying compliance with permits, with SCA

 3   requirements, and so on and so forth.

 4        Really the only change will be on the -- in the

 5   meeting where, if there is nothing nonroutine to

 6   report, we will not continue to say that every meeting.

 7   Rather, indicate which facilities have nothing

 8   nonroutine to report, but their update will still be

 9   available in the Council packet for your review.  And

10   facilities that do have something nonroutine to report

11   or an upcoming permit renewal or mitigation activity

12   that they're providing a report on, those will still be

13   verbally provided at the Council meetings.

14                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Great.  Thank you

15   for that.

16        And I should just also acknowledge a couple of

17   other folks in this.  One, Director Bumpus had

18   confirmed with me that the suggestion had certainly

19   pre-existed my arrival at the agency maybe some years

20   back certainly.  And a question I had in, you know,

21   kind of coming to EFSEC.

22        I do reflect that ultimately these project updates

23   don't often take a lot of time, because I kind of

24   annotate, you know, how much time we're spending, but

25   ultimately I am mindful of, you know, the time it takes
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 1   for the participants to log in and others and call the

 2   roll, and so hopefully we can, you know, again, do good

 3   work and maintain our compliance with high confidence

 4   here but still have that benefit of a little easier

 5   work.

 6        Council Pamplin has certainly asked this question

 7   and suggestion, made a suggestion along these lines, so

 8   I just want to just recognize that shared intent and

 9   good suggestion.

10        On a closing note -- well, let me say, one, let me

11   see if there's comments from our Council, and I would

12   also note for our project report-outs here coming up,

13   if you -- as you do each of your project up-to-dates,

14   as I call on you, if you have any question or comment

15   you want to make while we're all here kind of in this

16   transition, please do that today as I call through the

17   projects here momentarily.

18        But with that heads-up to our project

19   participants, let me turn this first to the Council for

20   any quick comments they'd like to share.

21        Council Pamplin.

22                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Yeah, thanks,

23   Mr. Chair.

24        Just really appreciate you-all taking a look at

25   this and seeing if this change could be implemented.  I
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 1   appreciate where we're landing and the direction we're

 2   headed.  So thank you.

 3                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Council Rybarik.

 4                      MR. RYBARIK:  Appreciate the focus

 5   on efficiency and looking at that efficiency for all

 6   parties involved and appreciate the change.  I support

 7   it.  Thank you.

 8                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Anyone else?

 9        Oh.  Council Pa- -- Nelson.  Excuse me.

10                      MR. NELSON:  Excellent.  Yeah, thank

11   you, Chair Beckett.

12        Yes, I appreciate the efficiency, and, yeah, let's

13   let her rip.

14                      CHAIR BECKETT:  On that note.  All

15   right.

16        Moving on to project updates.  The Kittitas Valley

17   wind project.  Mr. Caseday.

18        We will move on for now and can come back to

19   Kittitas Valley, if need be.

20                      MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Council Beckett.

21                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Oh.

22                      MS. HAFKEMEYER:  John Barnes is able

23   to --

24                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Oh.

25                      MS. HAFKEMEYER:  -- speak to the
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 1   facility updates.

 2                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you,

 3   Mr. Barnes.

 4                      MR. BARNES:  Thank you, Chair

 5   Beckett and Council.  This is staff for the Kittitas

 6   Valley project.  I will be speaking on behalf of Sara

 7   Randolph.

 8        There's no updates to -- or the facility update is

 9   provided in your packet.  There is no nonroutine

10   updates to report.

11                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  Thank you.

12        Moving on to the Wild Horse Wind Power Project.

13                      MS. GALBRAITH:  Yes.

14                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Ms. Galbraith.

15                      MS. GALBRAITH:  Thank you.  Thank

16   you, Chair Beckett.  Can you hear me all right?

17                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Yes, we can.

18                      MS. GALBRAITH:  Excellent.

19        So thank you, EFSEC Council and staff.  This is

20   Jennifer Galbraith with Puget Sound Energy representing

21   the Wild Horse Wind Facility.

22        For the month of December, we have nothing

23   nonroutine to report and no new updates regarding the

24   cleanup of the damaged turbine other than that winter

25   weather has stalled the removal of the remaining 15
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 1   percent of turbine components.  But we anticipate

 2   cleanup to be completed before the end of this month as

 3   weather and site conditions allow.  Thank you.

 4                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

 5        The Chehalis Generation Facility.  Mr. Smith.

 6                      MR. SMITH:  Good afternoon, Chair

 7   Beckett, EFSEC Council, and staff.  This is Jeremy

 8   Smith, the operations manager for the Chehalis

 9   Generation Facility.

10        I have no nonroutine items to report.

11                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

12        Grays Harbor Energy Center.  Mr. Pace.

13                      MR. PACE:  Good afternoon, Chair

14   Beckett, EFSEC Council, and staff.  This is Eric Pace

15   for Grays Harbor Energy.

16        And Grays Harbor Energy has nothing nonroutine to

17   report.

18                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

19        The Columbia Solar project.  I don't know if we

20   have a participant for that today or not.

21        Nothing from staff on that?

22                      MR. BARNES:  Yes, I will be

23   providing the update, I believe.

24        So this is John Barnes, EFSEC staff for the

25   Columbia Solar project.
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 1        The facility update is provided in your packet.

 2   There are no nonroutine updates to report.  Thank you.

 3                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

 4        Moving on to the Columbia Generating Station and

 5   WNP 1 and 4.  Kelly Elsethagen.

 6                      MS. HALL:  Good afternoon.  Can you

 7   hear me all right?

 8                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Yes, we can.

 9                      MS. HALL:  Okay.  Good afternoon,

10   Chair Beckett, Council members, and staff.  This is

11   Katie Hall for Columbia Generating Station and WNP 1

12   and 4.

13        While the agenda shows no updates for these

14   facilities, previously discussed with EFSEC staff using

15   this opportunity to notify of our recent submittal to

16   EFSEC for the Columbia Generating Station.

17        On January 15th, Energy Northwest submitted a SEPA

18   checklist to EFSEC for the construction of two

19   warehouses at the Column Generating Station.  This

20   submittal follows EFSEC's staff's recent decision on

21   January 6 to require SEPA review despite earlier

22   indications to the contrary.  Energy Northwest and

23   EFSEC have held conversations regarding the scope and

24   timeline of the project since September of last year.

25        So Energy Northwest emphasizes this late change
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 1   jeopardizes the compressed schedule for the upcoming

 2   refueling outage, which is critical for operational

 3   readiness and regional energy reliability.  So

 4   therefore Energy Northwest has requested EFSEC's

 5   determination on the SEPA checklist by February 2nd,

 6   and we've urged for expedited review, including waiving

 7   the public comment period if no significant

 8   environmental impacts are identified.  Thank you.

 9                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

10        It's my understanding from staff that that recent

11   request came in on Friday, is under review, and we may

12   hear a little bit more on that in our February meeting.

13   But appreciate the added context of what's trying to be

14   accomplished there in the requested timeline.

15        I don't know if there's any other comment from

16   staff that you'd like to share.  But it's great if you

17   do.  And otherwise I know we'll close out on this in

18   February, so...

19                      MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Just a little bit

20   more context to add.

21        We have received submissions, a SEPA checklist as

22   well as some plans that we're reviewing to ensure code

23   compliance.  And we are working with the facility and

24   reviewing what process milestones are appropriate for

25   the environmental review and compliance with their site
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 1   certificate agreement.

 2                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

 3        Any questions of what's been shared from other

 4   Council members?

 5                      MR. RYBARIK:  I just want to make

 6   sure I heard the dates right in the presentation.  I

 7   think it was Katie.  Did you say you've requested

 8   review of that by February 2nd?

 9                      CHAIR BECKETT:  That was the date.

10                      MS. HALL:  Yes, that is correct.

11                      MR. RYBARIK:  Okay.  So obviously

12   that's before the next EFSEC Council meeting.  So I'm

13   just -- how do we think about lining those -- the

14   request up in our next regularly scheduled meeting?

15                      CHAIR BECKETT:  I think staff are

16   basically, especially on the SEPA review, trying to

17   make sure what's required there.  Generally all of what

18   we're talking about is within the director's delegated

19   authority and would fall more on that side of the -- of

20   the line.  But I think, you know, in general, of

21   course, as an abundance of just transparency and doing

22   work together, surfacing it here is part of that.  And

23   if there's further consideration from the director on

24   the EFSEC Council, any action required, then that would

25   come back --
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 1                      MR. RYBARIK:  Oh.  Back to us.

 2   Okay.  Got it.

 3                      CHAIR BECKETT:  I don't know if

 4   there's anything else on that?

 5                      MS. BUMPUS:  Yes.  Thank you, Chair

 6   Beckett.  And we'll provide an update, a more -- I

 7   would say comprehensive update to the Council as to

 8   what we determine based off this review of the latest

 9   submitted material.  So we'll be providing a more

10   detailed update to the Council at that time.  So even

11   though this does fall -- the review is more related to

12   what's required of EFSEC per SEPA, we're still going to

13   be providing an update to the Council as to what we're

14   finding with respect to the SEPA review.

15                      MR. RYBARIK:  Very good.  Thank you.

16                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Appreciate that.

17        And certainly I appreciate the added comment of

18   where the warehouses fit into the larger refueling

19   standard event that goes on with the Columbia

20   Generating Station, all of which is contained within

21   the current SCA that is on the books that's already

22   received the Council approval.  So those details are

23   what they're -- the staff are working through, and, you

24   know, we'll make sure we're all on the same page as

25   to --
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 1                      MS. BUMPUS:  Yes.

 2                      CHAIR BECKETT:  -- what the Council,

 3   if anything, needs to be done, so okay.  Very well.

 4        And thank you again, Ms. Elsethagen.  And I will

 5   still get that pronunciation more consistent over time.

 6        So, with that, Goose Prairie Solar.  Nelson Jia.

 7                      MR. JIA:  Hi.  Nelson here from

 8   Brookfield and Goose Prairie.

 9        No nonroutine updates to report.  We did have some

10   curtailment due to BPA work on the Midway-Moxee line

11   for two weeks at the beginning of December, but that's

12   about it.  Thank you.

13                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

14        Ostrea Solar.  Mr. Voltz.

15                      MR. VOLTZ:  Good afternoon, Chair

16   Beckett, Council members, and staff.  This is John

17   Voltz with Cypress Creek Renewables representing Ostrea

18   solar facility.

19        In the month of December, the O&M facility

20   continued construction.  We did achieve mechanical

21   completion of both the PV and HV facilities, made

22   preparations to receive backfeed energy from the

23   utility this month.  That did occur.  It will be in our

24   next report.  But major milestone accomplished there in

25   the construction of the facility.
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 1        I'd also like to draw attention to the charitable

 2   work.  Some of the site team donated some time to the

 3   Sunrise Outreach Food Bank, helped their storage

 4   cleanup, food organizing, and handing out the donated

 5   food for local area I believe that's in Yakima.  Other

 6   than that, there's nothing nonroutine to report for the

 7   period.

 8                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very much,

 9   as well as for the additional detail.

10        All right.  I believe that then brings the

11   Carriger Solar project update.  And Joanne Snarski is

12   here to provide that update.

13                      MS. SNARSKI:  Thank you, Chair

14   Beckett and Council members.  This is Joanne Snarski,

15   the siting specialist for Carriger Solar facility in

16   Klickitat County.

17        On December 2nd, 2025, the governor's office

18   notified Chair Beckett that the chair -- excuse me --

19   that the Carriger Solar site certification agreement

20   was approved by Governor Ferguson.  The agreement was

21   executed by both parties and became effective on

22   December 15th, 2025.

23        On December 31st, 2025, the Confederated Tribes

24   and Bands of the Yakama Nation filed a petition for

25   judicial review of the Council and governor's approval
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 1   for the site certification.

 2        EFSEC staff are working with our assistant

 3   attorneys general to respond to this filing.  In the

 4   meantime, we are continuing to discuss Carriger's

 5   timing for submitting the plans required in the site

 6   certification agreement.

 7        May I answer any questions?

 8                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Council members.

 9   Comments or questions.  Straightforward for today.

10        Oh.  Council Chiles.  I didn't see you join.  Good

11   to -- good to have you here.  Please proceed.  But

12   we're not hearing you so far if you are speaking.

13        Still not getting anything in the room, Council

14   Chiles.

15        All right.  Well, I'll tell you what.  If Council

16   Chiles pops back in, we can hear you, then certainly we

17   will take those comments.  Otherwise, we'll move on to

18   the next project for now.

19        Ms. Grantham, let me know if that technical issue

20   gets further clarified.

21                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Yeah, I'm not sure if

22   there's much we can do on our end.  It's showing that

23   he's unmuted, but we're just not able to hear him --

24                      CHAIR BECKETT:  It's probably --

25                      MS. GRANTHAM:  -- for some reason,
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 1   yeah.

 2                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Probably on his end.

 3   Okay.  So, Council Chiles, since we're going to move

 4   into Horse Heaven, let me see if -- one last chance for

 5   now.  I think he dropped off.  Okay.

 6                      MR. RYBARIK:  And log back in.

 7                      CHAIR BECKETT:  So we'll keep an eye

 8   out for Council Chiles.  But in the meantime, let's

 9   proceed to the Horse Heaven project update.  And we

10   have the ferruginous hawk nest mitigation plan that Amy

11   Moon is going to make a presentation on.  I will first

12   though just note that, given my larger recusal on Horse

13   Heaven, I have the honor and appreciation of handing

14   the gavel on this particular item to Council Pamplin.

15        And I would note just for the benefits of my

16   Council members and members of the public, even though

17   I have recused, I'm not participating as a Council

18   member on this particular action, I have read all the

19   materials.  I have read all the public comments.

20   They're important to me, including just these issues

21   mapped to other projects.  And so I'm certainly trying

22   to keep running alongside you so that I can be a better

23   chair when the next issue comes up for me directly.

24        So, with that, Council Pamplin.  And soon we'll

25   turn this to Ms. Moon for the update to get started.
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 1                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Great.  Thank you,

 2   Mr. Chair.

 3        Ms. Moon, go ahead and proceed, please.  Thank

 4   you.

 5                      MS. MOON:  All right.  Good

 6   afternoon.  Thank you, Acting Chair Pamplin, and to the

 7   EFSEC Council members.

 8        As required in the Horse Heaven site certification

 9   agreement, or SCA, development and approval of a

10   mitigation and management plan is required under

11   Mitigation Measure Species-5, ferruginous hawk, when

12   project components are proposed for siting within the

13   two-mile core ferruginous hawk habitat.  The

14   certificate holder worked with the preoperational

15   technical advisory group, or PTAG -- P-T-A-G -- to

16   develop a project-specific ferruginous hawk mitigation

17   and management plan for approval by EFSEC.  This plan

18   received PTAG consensus prior to submitting the

19   mitigation plan to EFSEC.

20        The ferruginous hawk nests mitigation plan

21   includes the four fundamental requirements stated in

22   Spec 5.  No. 1 is a description of efforts to site

23   project infrastructure to avoid core habitat,

24   identified as the area within two miles of nests

25   documented in the priority habitats and species
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 1   database.  That's the PHS database.

 2        No. 2, a description of when construction

 3   activities will be undertaken to avoid sensitive timing

 4   periods for ferruginous hawk.

 5        No. 3, a description of pre- and post-monitoring

 6   programs that will be conducted to establish habitat

 7   use within the lease boundary, mapping of ground

 8   squirrel colonies and other prey, identification of

 9   potential flyways between nest sites and foraging

10   habitat and monitoring of potential flyways to inform

11   the final turbine siting and orientation, ongoing

12   monitoring of nest use, and territory success.

13        And, No. 4, a description of restoration

14   activities that will be undertaken during project

15   decommissioning to enhance ferruginous hawk habitat in

16   disturbed areas.

17        Staff reviewed the proposed plan and posted a copy

18   of the ferruginous hawk nest mitigation plan to the

19   EFSEC public website for a 14-day public comment period

20   from December 30th, 2025, through January 12 of 2026.

21   EFSEC received a total of 32 comments.

22        EFSEC's State Environmental Policy Act specialist,

23   Sean Greene, is here to provide a summary of the

24   Species-5 ferruginous hawk nest mitigation plan and

25   information on the comments received during the recent
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 1   public comment period on that plan.

 2        Sean.

 3                      MR. GREENE:  Thank you, Amy.  And

 4   thank you, Acting Chair Pamplin and Council members.

 5   This is Sean Greene, SEPA specialist for EFSEC.

 6        I wanted to give you-all a brief or maybe

 7   not-so-brief rundown of what was included the Horse

 8   Heaven ferruginous hawk nest management plan and

 9   discuss some of the substantive comments we received

10   during the public comment period.

11        The nest management plan adopts all of the

12   ferruginous hawk mitigation outlined in the Horse

13   Heaven wind farm draft habitat mitigation plan from the

14   application for site certification, including

15   compensatory habitat mitigation.  It furthermore

16   includes a commitment to protect an area that supports

17   sufficient ferruginous hawk habitat that will achieve

18   mitigation acreage targets defined by the mitigation

19   ratios set by EFSEC.

20        It discusses the potential installation of

21   artificial nesting platforms in areas with specific

22   site conditions and where WDFW staff believe that there

23   is a high confidence that those platforms could be used

24   by ferruginous hawks.

25        It formalizes the monitoring plan put forth in the
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 1   final EIS to perform nest and mortality surveys for

 2   three of the first five years of project operation.

 3   And, finally, it commits to a curtailment of turbine

 4   operations during daylight hours within two miles of an

 5   active nest unless a qualified biologist with WDFW and

 6   EFSEC approval determines that the turbines are outside

 7   of the foraging areas for those nests or the

 8   certificate holder makes use of an automated

 9   curtailment technology that responds to ferruginous

10   hawk presence.

11        As Amy mentioned, this plan was reviewed by the

12   pre-operational technical advisory group, or PTAG, and

13   approved by that group prior to being submitted for

14   public comment.

15        During that comment period, 32 comments were

16   received, and substantive comments generally fell

17   within one of six arguments that I'd like to run you

18   through.

19        First, there was an argument presented that EFSEC

20   should impose financial penalties for each incident of

21   injury or mortality to a ferruginous hawk.  Staff is

22   not recommending that this change be incorporated.

23   Apart from the questionable legality of EFSEC

24   establishing fines for wildlife take, EFSEC staff is

25   confident that the exclusion areas imposed around all
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 1   historic nests, the management measures in this plan,

 2   and the mortality adaptive management strategies that

 3   are currently being developed by the certificate holder

 4   for future PTAG and EFSEC review are sufficient to

 5   address direct ferruginous hawk mortality.

 6        The second argument that was -- was that the

 7   artificial nesting platforms discussed as a mitigation

 8   option in this plan should instead be made mandatory.

 9   Staff is not recommending that this change be

10   incorporated.  In our development of mitigation and

11   discussions with WDFW staff throughout the

12   environmental review of this project, artificial

13   nesting platforms have been seen as having a limited

14   and situation-specific mitigative effect.  The primary

15   factors responsible for declining ferruginous hawk

16   population numbers are habitat conversion and reduction

17   in prey species availability, neither of which are

18   necessarily addressed by installing artificial

19   platforms.

20        Thirdly, several commenters argued that the annual

21   operation phase nesting surveys should continue

22   throughout the life of the project rather than for

23   the -- rather than for three of the first five years as

24   currently proposed.  EFSEC staff is not recommending

25   that this change be incorporated.  The nesting survey
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 1   plan proposed in the EIS and included in this plan is

 2   functionally consistent with WDFW guidelines and was

 3   developed in concert with WDFW staff and technical

 4   experts on the PTAG.  As a result, staff believes that

 5   this plan, in combination with the exclusion areas and

 6   adaptive management strategies, is sufficient to

 7   address ferruginous hawk impacts.

 8        The fourth argument that we received was one that

 9   claim that the habitat mitigation ratios that EFSEC

10   developed with WDFW for this project should be updated

11   to reflect the ratios presented in the WDFW wind and

12   solar guidelines that were published about four months

13   ago.  Staff is not recommending that this change be

14   incorporated.  The habitat mitigation ratios applied to

15   this project exceeded the standard WDFW guidelines at

16   the time of review and were developed to specifically

17   address habitat impacts to this project -- or from this

18   project by EFSEC staff, WDFW staff, and independent

19   consultants.

20        Furthermore, the ratios presented in the recent

21   guidelines are explicitly identified as preliminary

22   recommendations, with the guidelines assuming some

23   level of collaboration between developers, permitting

24   authorities, and WDFW to arrive at project-specific

25   ratios that are appropriate, which is reflective of the
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 1   process that EFSEC went through to devise the current

 2   ratios.  Changing the ratios at this time would also

 3   require an SCA amendment, which is not something that

 4   EFSEC can unilaterally impose.

 5        No. 5 was an argument that the certificate holder

 6   should be required to use automated detection systems

 7   with turbine curtailment triggered by observations

 8   rather than it being considered an option as in the

 9   proposed plan.  Staff do not recommend incorporating

10   this change.  As discussed in the plan, these systems

11   lack the capability for species-specific identification

12   at this time.  Requiring the certificate holder to

13   install and use these systems at this time could result

14   in turbine curtailment at any -- any time any raptor

15   species of similar size and/or shape to a ferruginous

16   hawk is observed, which exceeds the intent of this

17   mitigation plan.  The plan discusses the potential use

18   of these systems in concert with observed ferruginous

19   hawk activity when practical and when further

20   developed, and EFSEC staff believes that the

21   consideration -- these considerations to be appropriate

22   in the proposed plan.

23        The final substantial argument was for EFSEC to

24   require that one blade of each turbine be painted black

25   to reduce ferruginous hawk collisions.  Staff is not

0047

 1   recommending that this change be incorporated.  While

 2   this novel mitigation technique has seen promising,

 3   though varied, results in recent studies, it is still

 4   too experimental at this time to be required as a

 5   mitigation measure.  There are still engineering

 6   questions related to the long-term effects of increased

 7   heat retention that the black-painted blades will

 8   experience and whether painting the blades with

 9   carbon-based paint affects their reaction to lightning

10   strikes.

11        Furthermore, wind turbines are painted white, in

12   part, to make them blend in better with the sky when

13   viewed from the ground.  There is a risk that the

14   visual analysis and impact determinations made by EFSEC

15   for the all-white turbines may not be accurate to the

16   visual aesthetic impacts the viewers would experience

17   from turbines that are partially black.

18        It is unclear whether the positive benefit of

19   potential reductions in ferruginous hawk collisions

20   would justify the increased adverse impacts to visual

21   aesthetics.  Also, as I mentioned before, EFSEC staff

22   is confident that the suite of mitigation developed for

23   this project sufficiently addresses the potential for

24   direct mortality impacts to the ferruginous hawk.

25        And apart from these substantive comments, there
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 1   were several editorial comments that staff will

 2   recommend for incorporation into the final plan.  These

 3   include edits such as adding a citation to WAC

 4   197-11-768, wherein "mitigation" is defined; replacing

 5   the word "flyways" with the phrase "flight pathways";

 6   including more detail on the length of the habitat

 7   monitoring programs; and adding clarification that nest

 8   surveys will be performed by qualified biologists.

 9   These modifications would not affect the substance of

10   the plan.

11        Are there any questions from Council members

12   before I hand things back to Amy?

13                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Not seeing any.  No.

14        Go ahead, Mr. Rybarik.

15                      MR. RYBARIK:  I think I've got a

16   few, so --

17                      MR. GREENE:  Sure.

18                      MR. RYBARIK:  -- thanks, Sean and

19   Amy, for the -- for the updates there.  Appreciate

20   the -- one of my questions was on WAC 197-11-768.

21   Sounds like there will be references to that

22   specifically in there and the updates to some of the

23   terminology.  Good to see.

24        On the artificial nesting platforms, I think

25   the -- the issue that was raised is should it be
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 1   mandatory or not.  I just -- I wonder -- functionally,

 2   as I was reading through the comments and the

 3   materials, I got to, well, how do we get to a point

 4   where, looking at this in a very specific way, that a

 5   wildlife biologist from W -- from Fish and Wildlife

 6   would be able to say, "Actually it makes sense to do it

 7   in this circumstance.  Developer, please do that"?

 8        How do we get to -- how do we assure that that is

 9   the way this is going to work?  Because that seems to

10   make logical sense in my mind.

11                      MR. GREENE:  Sure.  I can look at

12   the exact language used in the plan.  But in the plan,

13   they do discuss the potential for use of artificial

14   nesting platforms in the areas that are meant to

15   represent compensatory habitat mitigation, the -- the

16   areas of conservation.

17        And the criteria that the applicant had -- or I'm

18   sorry -- the certificate holder had proposed in the

19   plan included sufficient foraging habitat for the

20   species, the lack of nesting sites in that area, and

21   consultation with WDFW staff to ensure that there is a

22   high likelihood of the use of those platforms by the

23   ferruginous hawk.

24        The -- the only concern with implementing, like, a

25   minimum number of artificial nesting platforms that
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 1   must be put up is it's very much dependent on what is

 2   available in the area and whether there is a pressing

 3   need for those, and the costs associated with

 4   installing those could be better assigned to actually

 5   protecting more habitat.

 6        But it's staff's opinion that the description in

 7   the current -- the proposed plan of those platforms

 8   being as an option for further mitigation is

 9   appropriate.  If -- if there's a Council desire to see

10   a minimum, though, we can...

11                      MR. RYBARIK:  Yeah, I guess the only

12   thought that I had for amendment is if WDFW staff says

13   here is a situation where that makes sense -- let's say

14   there's a tree that had a nest in it that is somehow

15   felled.  Who knows how, whatever.  To say here's a

16   example where it would make sense to put up an

17   artificial nest.  It's kind of a thou shall follow

18   WDFW's -- instead of a consultation with them, it's if

19   they come and say here is an example where thou shall

20   do that, that it gets included in this -- in this

21   mitigation plan, that that is an option that Fish and

22   Wildlife has.  I don't know if I'm sort of explaining

23   that circumstance well, but that --

24                      MR. GREENE:  Yeah.

25                      MR. RYBARIK:  -- to me is -- there's
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 1   this limited circumstance where I think a biologist

 2   would say, That makes sense.  Go do that.  And if --

 3   the way I read the mitigation plan right now, they

 4   could say, Thanks for the consultation; we don't think

 5   it's necessary.

 6                      MS. HAFKEMEYER:  So if I might add

 7   some information here.

 8        So part of the adaptive management is, because

 9   EFSEC is the enforcement agency rather than DFW, we

10   retain the authority to impose that, again with

11   consultation with DFW as, you know, having the in-house

12   species subject matter experts.  But if something is to

13   arise where DF -- WDFW indicates that it is appropriate

14   to go ahead and install an artificial nest platform,

15   that authority to propose that would reside with EFSEC.

16                      MR. GREENE:  And I think we could

17   add language to the plan to make that -- that

18   relationship more clear.

19                      MS. BUMPUS:  Mm-hmm.

20                      MR. GREENE:  If that's a change we

21   wanted to make.

22                      MS. BUMPUS:  Right.

23                      MR. RYBARIK:  And so I just want to

24   make sure I understand.  Ami, what you're saying is, if

25   that circumstance arise, WDFW would come to EFSEC and
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 1   say, Here's the situation where an artificial nest

 2   makes sense.  EFSEC, please impose that requirement on

 3   the -- on the developer.

 4                      MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Correct.

 5                      MR. RYBARIK:  This plan allows for

 6   that chain of events to happen and the artificial nest

 7   to get put in place.

 8                      MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Correct.  Both the

 9   PTAG as the pre-operational as well as the --

10                      MR. RYBARIK:  TAC.

11                      MS. HAFKEMEYER:  -- the TAC will

12   continue to be in coordination and monitoring these

13   activities.  So we anticipate continued communication

14   on these subjects throughout the life of the facility.

15                      MR. RYBARIK:  Okay.  I think I have

16   some comfort there, but just --

17                      MR. GREENE:  Yeah.

18                      MR. RYBARIK:  Go ahead, Sean.

19                      MR. GREENE:  Sorry.  I didn't mean

20   to interrupt.

21        One additional point is the final plan for the

22   compensatory mitigation has yet to be fully developed,

23   and that will, as Amy mentioned, go through the PTAG or

24   the -- yeah, it will be the PTAG at that point and come

25   to EFSEC for approval, and that will include the
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 1   applicant's formal proposal on whether or not they're

 2   going to install artificial nesting platforms and

 3   where.  So that would be a point where EFSEC can use

 4   our regulatory authority to determine whether there

 5   should or should not be some added.

 6                      MR. RYBARIK:  I have a couple other

 7   questions along -- I'm just going to go down the

 8   list in --

 9                      MR. GREENE:  Sure.

10                      MR. RYBARIK:  -- order that you had

11   them.

12        On the annual, I guess it's monitoring --

13                      MR. GREENE:  Mm-hmm.

14                      MR. RYBARIK:  -- the way the plan

15   reads now, it's three of the first five years.

16   Intuitively, I thought of it seems like the first years

17   of operation are going to be the most critical.  And so

18   I just wondered if there's appetite to be a little bit

19   more, I guess, prescriptive in this one is -- is all of

20   those five years makes some sense to me that there

21   would be monitoring in each of the five years rather

22   than three of the five years.  Certainly the first

23   three years makes a little bit of intuitive sense to

24   me.

25        I just wonder how it gets landed at three of the
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 1   first five with -- I recognize the flexibility there,

 2   but I just wonder from a species mitigation perspective

 3   if we shouldn't think about that a little differently.

 4                      MR. GREENE:  Yeah, so that was a

 5   proposal that we developed in our consultation with

 6   WDFW staff.  Their typical recommendation is for the

 7   first three years of operation.  In our discussions,

 8   we -- we considered whether it might be more helpful to

 9   add that wider range so to capture a larger period of

10   time but still not exceeding the three years of total

11   surveys.

12        In the, I think, six years that the -- the

13   certificate holder has run nesting surveys in this area

14   to this point, there's been one active nest observed.

15   So given the -- the rarity of an active nest, going for

16   more years was -- was seen as a way to -- to

17   potentially capture an active nest with, you know, the

18   higher likelihood of either seeing an active nest or

19   evidence that the site had been -- that there had been

20   an active nest in one of the off years, so that was

21   the -- the justification.

22                      MR. RYBARIK:  Appreciate that.  And

23   I guess I just don't know what -- what's the -- is

24   there -- I don't know what the cost is of running an

25   annual program for five years versus three of five,
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 1   what the significance of that is.  Maybe that's some

 2   context you could enlighten me with.

 3                      MR. GREENE:  I don't have the cost

 4   numbers available, but we can look into that.

 5                      MS. BUMPUS:  We can certainly follow

 6   up with some ideas for that.  You know, the

 7   applicant -- in this case, certificate holder -- is

 8   responsible for all of the expenses.  So as we're

 9   working with DFW and working with different subject

10   matter experts there, they're billed for the hours that

11   those experts are spending in meetings and calls with

12   EFSEC staff, and so the -- the cost is substantially

13   higher if you're adding additional years of monitoring.

14   But we can get you, you know, an estimate if that would

15   be helpful.

16                      MR. RYBARIK:  I look to the other

17   Council members if there's appetite in that, but I

18   think that is -- that's one area that had some focus

19   for me.  The other -- and maybe, Council Member

20   Pamplin, I don't want to put you on the spot, but

21   the -- the updated ratios or mitigation ratios,

22   obviously working through the WDFW process now, with

23   the goal of using the best available science and the

24   most updated information, I appreciate the explanation,

25   that it's also going through a process is, may not be
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 1   the most updated.  I also recognize the need for

 2   certainty in these processes of this was the ratios

 3   that were at the time, but I wonder if WDFW has a

 4   position or a thought on -- on the ratios, because

 5   that's the expert agency on these ratios, so...

 6                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Yeah, thanks,

 7   Mr. Rybarik.  Why don't I first just turn to Ms. Moon

 8   and Mr. Greene to talk about WDFW's position within

 9   PTAG.  If that doesn't fully cover it, I can --

10                      MR. RYBARIK:  All right.

11                      MR. PAMPLIN:  -- offer some remarks.

12   Thanks.

13                      MR. GREENE:  Sure.  So there are --

14   there's one primary member of WDFW on the PTAG along

15   with two alternates.  They attend every meeting, and

16   they are one of the technical experts who are

17   responsible for reviewing all of the certificate

18   holder's proposals for pre-operational plans and

19   surveys.  So their staff did fully review this plan and

20   approved it as -- as it was drafted and submitted for

21   public comment.

22        So their staff approved of the mitigation ratios

23   that were developed at the time we were doing the EIS

24   and approved of the ratios incorporated here.

25                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Thanks, Mr. Greene.
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 1        Yeah, I would just add that that's pretty

 2   consistent value as far as when we introduce new

 3   guidelines that projects that were kind of in the queue

 4   or operating under the -- the -- the guidance that was

 5   published at the time.  So appreciate the interest in

 6   moving forward, and if we saw something I thought was

 7   really substantial or the science, it really moved the

 8   needle, I think that was something that our

 9   representative in the PTAG would have advocated for.

10   But I'm comfortable with the work that the -- the WDFW

11   staff person did at PTAG to recommend those ratios.

12   Thanks.

13                      MR. RYBARIK:  Very good.  Thanks.

14                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Any other questions?

15                      MR. RYBARIK:  Just one last one.

16                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Please.

17                      MR. RYBARIK:  Sorry to keep

18   belaboring these points.  But the last one is on the

19   automated detection.  Having come from the tech sector,

20   I recognize the technology might not be there today.

21   But technology moves at the speed of technology.  And I

22   just wonder what -- what is the process if, a year from

23   now, it's very clear that that technology exists to be

24   very species-specific on curtailments?  What -- what

25   would EFSEC do relative to this mitigation plan at that
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 1   point to say we'd like to see that technology

 2   implemented?

 3                      MR. GREENE:  Yeah, so the way it's

 4   written in the plan currently is it's -- the use of

 5   that technology would be like an exception for the

 6   turbine curtailment in the event that there is

 7   ferruginous hawk activity observed.

 8        As for whether we would want to require the use of

 9   that technology and whether there is ferruginous

10   activity observed or not, that's not something that I

11   think we've considered.  That might be something that

12   comes up in the adaptive management plan that the

13   certificate holder is currently developing, especially

14   in relation to one of the primary concerns of that plan

15   is adaptive management in the event of mortality

16   incidents.  Turbine strikes on ferruginous hawks are

17   very rare within the state, but given the limited

18   population numbers, each instance is -- is potentially

19   substantially of concern.

20        So I guess my thought at this time would be to see

21   how that technology would be incorporated into the

22   adaptive management plan, especially since it is kind

23   of still hypothetical for the moment at least.

24                      MR. RYBARIK:  Sure.  That's helpful.

25   Thank you very much.
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 1                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Thank you,

 2   Mr. Rybarik.  And much appreciation here to Ms. Moon

 3   and Mr. Greene for the overview thus far as well as the

 4   summary of the common themes that we heard and the

 5   proposed responses.

 6        Ms. Moon, is there any anything further on your

 7   presentation?

 8                      MS. MOON:  Yeah.  One final

 9   statement.

10        The staff are requesting that the Council approve

11   the Horse Heaven wind farm ferruginous hawk nest

12   mitigation plan.

13        But you wanted to follow up on --

14                      MR. GREENE:  Yeah, I think --

15                      MS. MOON:  -- a couple things.

16                      MR. GREENE:  -- maybe since we're --

17   we're going to follow up on a few things and see

18   whether there need to be edits there, do we wait for

19   approval, or approve with the understanding that we'll

20   get that information?

21                      MS. HAFKEMEYER:  So I think we

22   identified strengthening the language around

23   implementation of artificial nest platforms.  And I

24   think in -- the question, I think, is maybe to the

25   Council:  Do you want to wait to approve this plan
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 1   until we have follow-up information on those items

 2   identified, or would the Council want to vote to make a

 3   decision on the plan pending the edits discussed?

 4                      MS. BUMPUS:  I think you could

 5   approve it, you know, contingent on the amendments

 6   discussed that Ami just listed being made.  If you're

 7   comfortable with the substance of the plan today.

 8                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Thanks, Ms. Bumpus.

 9        I see Mr. Nelson's hand is up.  Go ahead.

10                      MR. NELSON:  Hello.  Yes, that

11   sounds like a good approach to me.  I'm not smart

12   enough to make that motion.  But I did have a question

13   if you do come back for more information.

14        So on Section 5, the -- the mortality mitigation

15   chapter or section, it -- and this might get to the

16   nesting question as well -- it speaks of a qualified

17   biologist in coordination with Fish and Wildlife and

18   EFSEC.  And this could just be for my edification as a

19   relatively new Council member.  But is that a qualified

20   biologist employed by the certificate holder, or is it

21   third party, or is it Fish and Wildlife, or is it

22   EFSEC?  So I was just wondering what the employment

23   status of that biologist might be, I guess.

24                      MR. GREENE:  It's my understanding

25   that it would be an independent biologist employed by
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 1   the certificate holder with EFSEC's -- EFSEC and WDFW

 2   approval.

 3                      MR. NELSON:  Thank you.

 4                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Okay.  So before we

 5   kind of further discuss whether or not we want to adopt

 6   the plan pending amendments or not, I just want to

 7   check to see if there's any other questions from

 8   Ms. Moon or Mr. Greene from the Council.

 9        Okay.  Council, is there any particular direction

10   you would like to proceed with in terms of doing an

11   early approval -- or not an early -- approving this

12   plan, noting that there's some additional work that's

13   going to be incorporated relative to the artificial

14   nest platform, or would folks like to delay and then

15   wait and see those edits made into the plan as well as

16   some of the other editorial edits and we'll have a

17   final plan hopefully brought forward in February?

18                      MR. RYBARIK:  The only reservation I

19   have, in general I think there's a lot of good stuff in

20   here.  I appreciate all the work that the PTAG and

21   staff have done to -- to get there.  I think the one

22   outstanding question is, to me, whether that initial --

23   whether we should do three of the first five years of

24   reporting back or observations, and just there's a cost

25   difference in those two, and what's what I don't --
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 1   that's the information we don't have.

 2                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Yeah.

 3                      MR. RYBARIK:  And so in my mind, I

 4   think all of those five years could be one option.  The

 5   first three years, another option.  I guess that

 6   probably doesn't change the cost tremendously.  We're

 7   still doing three years.  But I wouldn't mind knowing

 8   that before making a decision and just seeing what --

 9   what the appetite is to maybe strengthen that a little

10   bit, just knowing that those are probably the most

11   important years of the plan.

12        That said, I am also mindful of the fact that

13   there's timelines and associated movement for the

14   developer.  So I guess I'll turn to staff of whether or

15   not any holding off on this is detrimental to the

16   overall project.

17                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Thanks, Mr. Rybarik.

18        Director Bumpus, is there any consequences or

19   concerns on your end if we were to delay adoption of

20   this plan?

21                      MS. BUMPUS:  Well, thank you.  Thank

22   you for the opportunity.

23        Yeah, I think I would just -- I'm just thinking

24   about Executive Order 25-11 where EFSEC along with many

25   other agencies are looking at how we can expedite and

0063

 1   accelerate plan approvals for those facilities that are

 2   still in the position to take advantage of the federal

 3   tax incentives.

 4        And so I would say that if there's general comfort

 5   with this plan, that we can -- you know, it would

 6   behoove us to -- to move forward with it if we can, but

 7   I also recognize that there may be some tweaks that we

 8   still want to make.  So that's the...

 9                      MR. RYBARIK:  Well, UTC being also

10   named in that executive order, I'm familiar with it and

11   recognize the -- the concern there.

12        Ultimately -- and I appreciate staff's

13   recommenda- -- or further thoughts here, although I

14   think I'm comfortable with the way the mitigation plan

15   is -- is written, I just point out that these are areas

16   where I think we can continue to focus and just at

17   least bring some maybe options to -- to the table when

18   we get to this point.

19        But, again, I don't want to belabor this other

20   what is a relatively minor point or piece of the

21   overall mitigation plan, but you've heard my thoughts

22   on this, and I'll leave it there.

23                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Thanks, Mr. Rybarik.

24        Ms. Hafkemeyer.

25                      MS. HAFKEMEYER:  I wanted to suggest

0064

 1   that maybe there's an opportunity because the adaptive

 2   management plan is still in development, that if under

 3   the guidance of that plan it seems appropriate to add

 4   additional years of monitoring, that that might be

 5   another place to capture that based on guidance of the

 6   PTAG, DFW, and biologists as appropriate.  So there may

 7   be additional opportunity to increase monitoring

 8   particularly if the first year or first couple years

 9   the data suggests that more monitoring is appropriate.

10                      MR. RYBARIK:  That sounds like a

11   good suggestion.  And thank you for reminding me of the

12   word that I was not able to get out of my brain of

13   monitoring.  So thank you.

14                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Thanks,

15   Ms. Hafkemeyer.

16        Mr. Nelson, I saw your hand come up earlier.  Did

17   you have a question or remark?

18                      MR. NELSON:  Yeah.  Just wanted to

19   state -- you know, I just wanted to, again, yeah, or

20   thank the PTAG for all the work they put into this.

21   It's a very comprehensive plan that offers widespread

22   protection to the species.

23        Is it -- can we -- I should know this, but can we

24   make a motion to adopt yet, or do you call for that?

25                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Yeah, Thanks,

0065

 1   Mr. Nelson.  I've got some language that I will try to

 2   put on the table and ask for someone to move.

 3        But what I'm looking for at this point is if the

 4   Council make a motion to approve the ferruginous hawk

 5   nest mitigation plan submitted by Horse Heaven Wind

 6   Farm, LLC, in compliance with Special Status Species

 7   Mitigation Measure 5, commonly referred to as Spec-5,

 8   of the site certification agreement for the Horse

 9   Heaven Wind Farm.  And in addition, that staff would be

10   incorporating the editorial comments as well as

11   strengthening the discussion around the artificial nest

12   platform and the consultation with WDFW.

13        So, with that, is that -- if someone would please

14   signal that they would make that motion.

15                      MR. RYBARIK:  So moved.

16                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Thank you,

17   Mr. Rybarik.

18        Is there a second?

19                      MR. NELSON:  Second.

20                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Thank you, Mr. Nelson.

21        Any further comments or questions before we move

22   to a vote?

23        Hearing and seeing no hands.

24        All those in favor of the motion, please say

25   "aye."
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 1                      MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.

 2                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Any opposed?

 3        We'll let the record note that Chair Beckett has

 4   recused himself from this -- this vote.  And with --

 5   oh.  Go ahead.  Mr. Ryan.

 6                      MR. RYAN:  Just also recused, to

 7   make note of that.

 8                      MR. RYBARIK:  Oh, that's right.

 9                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Okay.  Just want to

10   double-check that we have sufficient Council members

11   for a vote with two recusals.

12        Okay.  Great.  So that motion passes.  Again,

13   Ms. Moon, Mr. Greene, thank you for your work, as well

14   as for PTAG's efforts here on preparing this mitigation

15   plan.  And I'll pass the gavel back to Chair Beckett.

16                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you, Council

17   Pamplin.  And I'll try to do a better job of following

18   Council Rybarik on putting my camera on some occasion.

19        So, with that, we will actually go back to -- and

20   thank you for the extra effort as chair, Council

21   Pamplin.

22        So do we have Council Chiles back still?  We would

23   take his question or comment on the Carriger Solar

24   project update.

25                      MS. GRANTHAM:  We see that he's
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 1   online and unmuted again.  I'm not sure if we can hear

 2   him.  If Council Chiles would like to try to speak up.

 3                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Council Chiles,

 4   we're ultimately not hearing you in the room.  So,

 5   sorry about the technical challenge today.

 6        No, Council Chiles, we still can't hear you.  I do

 7   see your text in the chat, though.

 8        Okay.  So let's move on, then, for a moment to the

 9   Hop Hill solar update.  John Barnes will provide the

10   update.

11                      MR. BARNES:  Thank you, Chair

12   Beckett and Council members.  This is John Barnes,

13   EFSEC staff for the Hop Hill application.

14        Staff are working with the applicant on the

15   submission of additional application materials for the

16   Hop Hill project.  EFSEC anticipates receipt of these

17   materials by spring of 2026.  Staff are also working

18   with the applicant to submit a comprehensive cultural

19   resource report for the application.

20        Following receipt of the report, staff will

21   distribute to concerned tribes an offer to schedule a

22   government-to-government consultation to discuss

23   impacts and potential mitigations.

24        Are there any questions?

25                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Council, comments or
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 1   questions?  Hearing none.

 2        Moving on to Wallula Gap since you're also

 3   providing that update, Mr. Barnes.  Please proceed.

 4                      MR. BARNES:  Thank you, Chair

 5   Beckett and Council members.  This is John Barnes,

 6   EFSEC staff, for the Wallula Gap application.

 7        Staff are continuing to work with the applicant,

 8   OneEnergy, and the Yakama Nation Cultural Resource

 9   Program staff regarding impacts identified in the

10   traditional cultural resource property studies and

11   report conducted by the Yakama Nation for this

12   application.  Identification of potential project

13   impacts and mitigations that can be resolved as part of

14   the SEPA determination process for this project.

15        Are there any questions?

16                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Any questions,

17   Council?

18                      MR. RYAN:  None here.

19                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  Then we

20   will -- it looks like we're probably losing Council

21   Chiles.

22        I'll just say, Council Chiles, we can always try

23   and catch you next month at last in the public forum,

24   and obviously you know how to reach --

25                      MR. CHILES:  Can you hear me now?
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 1                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Oh.  There we go.

 2   Yes, we can.  Please -- please proceed.  You're very --

 3   very clear as well.

 4                      MR. CHILES:  Thank you very much,

 5   Chair Beckett.  I apologize for the problems on my end.

 6        Going back to the Carriger issue and the Yakama

 7   tribe filing a petition for judicial review, wanted a

 8   little bit of clarification on that, if we could.

 9        First of all, do we have any estimated timeline

10   for a decision on that petition for judicial review?

11   And, second, while we wait for that, what is the status

12   of the project?  Are they moving forward, or is there

13   some sort of injunction preventing that at this time?

14   Thank you.

15                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Counsel Thompson,

16   would you like to --

17                      MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah.

18                      CHAIR BECKETT:  -- jump in?

19                      MR. THOMPSON:  So this is Jon

20   Thompson with the attorney general's office.  There --

21   there is provision in the -- in EFSLA, RCW 80.50, for

22   filing a petition for review of a governor's decision

23   in Thurston County Superior Court, and then the process

24   is for the -- it's a -- the way judicial review works

25   under the Administrative Procedure Act, if the court
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 1   reviews the agency's record and sitting in an appellate

 2   capacity, and so what we need to do is compile the

 3   agency's decisional record and then provide it to the

 4   court.

 5        Usually there's often a number of months where the

 6   completeness of the record is being determined, and

 7   then -- and then likely a motion to transfer the case

 8   up to the supreme court to be heard.  So it's typically

 9   a multi-month process.  There's nothing that -- that

10   prevents the certificate holder from proceeding with

11   implementation of the site certification agreement in

12   the -- while that's ongoing.

13        I think that answers your questions, Council

14   Member Chiles?  Did that -- did I --

15                      MR. CHILES:  Yes.

16                      MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah.

17                      MR. CHILES:  Thank you, Counsel.  I

18   appreciate that.

19        So it sounds like things will be moving forward

20   while the litigation kind of continues in the

21   background to see if it will go before the state

22   supreme court.

23                      MR. THOMPSON:  Correct.

24                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Director Bumpus, did

25   you wish to add another word, or...?
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 1                      MS. BUMPUS:  I think -- thank you,

 2   Chair Beckett.  I think Jon Thompson answered it.  It

 3   was just to address that other part of the question

 4   that Carriger is proceeding and that we're going to be

 5   in receipt of plans, we think, fairly soon to begin the

 6   review of those, so the work's continuing along with

 7   the litigation.

 8                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Great.  Thank you

 9   for the added emphasis there.  And I think, to your

10   earlier point too, that project is also on the

11   governor's executive order, and hence our focus is only

12   more so in moving those projects forward.

13        Okay.  Council Chiles, was there any other

14   question or comment you wished to make on Carriger?

15                      MR. CHILES:  No.  Thank you very

16   much, Chair Beckett.

17                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  Thank you.

18        So, with that, we will move to the Goldeneye

19   battery storage project update.  Ms. Snarski.

20                      MS. SNARSKI:  Yes.  Thank you, Chair

21   Beckett.  Again, this is Joanne Snarski, the siting

22   specialist for the proposed Goldeneye battery energy

23   storage facility in Skagit County.

24        Last month, I reported that the applicant had

25   recently submitted a revised site plan for the
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 1   facility.  However, I misspoke.  What they did submit

 2   was a revised conceptual site restoration plan.

 3   However, we anticipate that Goldeneye representatives

 4   will submit a more formal site plan in the coming

 5   weeks.

 6        Last week, staff sent our fourth data request to

 7   the developers.  We anticipate their response to that

 8   by March 1st.

 9        The need for submittal of information is required

10   to help us complete our State Environmental Policy Act

11   determination for the project.

12        May I answer any questions?

13                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Council members?

14                      MR. RYBARIK:  No questions.

15                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Council Eckroth,

16   just to make sure in case you had any question or

17   comment.

18                      MR. ECKROTH:  Council Member Eckroth

19   here.

20        No questions.  Thank you very much.

21                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

22        All right.  Then we will move on to the Cascade

23   Renewables Transmission project.  And Maria Belkina

24   will provide her occupy date.

25                      MS. BELKINA:  Thank you.
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 1        Good afternoon, Chair Beckett and Council members.

 2   For the record, my name is Maria Belkina, siting

 3   specialist assigned to and reporting on the Cascade

 4   Renewable Transmission Project.

 5        Staff continue to review the application for site

 6   certification for compliance with WAC 463-60 with the

 7   objective of determining of whether the application

 8   contains sufficient information to support the next

 9   step -- next phase of review.  In parallel, staff are

10   finalizing the first consolidated data request,

11   informed by application review and agency input.

12        Staff expect to receive comments from contracted

13   agencies soon, which will help inform the next request

14   for additional information from the applicant.

15        Staff continue to coordinate with key state and

16   federal agencies.  In January, staff conducted two

17   interagency coordination discussions with the

18   Washington Department of Natural Resources and the

19   Washington Department of Ecology to support alignment

20   on process, sequencing, and environmental review

21   considerations.

22        EFSEC has received a formal invitation from the

23   U.S. Army Corps of Engineers to participate as

24   cooperating agency in the preparation of an

25   environmental impact statement, with the corps serving
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 1   as NEPA lead agency.  Staff have prepared a response

 2   confirming EFSEC's willingness to participate and to

 3   coordinate NEPA and SEPA processes.

 4        In addition, a meeting is being scheduled with the

 5   Columbia River Gorge Commission to initiate early

 6   coordination and communication regarding the project

 7   and applicable Gorge Act considerations.

 8        With respect to water quality permitting, staff

 9   are intentionally sequencing the Section 401 water

10   quality certification process so that it follows a

11   sufficiently developed SEPA environmental record.

12   Importantly, key water quality issues will be addressed

13   through the SEPA review, which will then support the

14   Section 401 process.

15        Staff continue to support tribal engagement

16   planning and coordination consistent with state

17   requirement -- state requirements.  Initial

18   government -- initial government-to-government

19   consultations are scheduled to begin in early February,

20   including the first consultation meeting with the

21   Cowlitz Indian Tribe.

22        Following input received at the informational

23   meetings and the land-use hearings, staff reach out to

24   local jurisdiction along the project route to ensure

25   that they are aware of the need to appoint a Council
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 1   member where the project falls within their

 2   jurisdiction.

 3        We have since received an appointment of Council

 4   member from the City of Stevenson and have received

 5   indications of pending appointments from the Klickitat

 6   County and the City of Camas.  We expect to receive

 7   additional appointments in the coming weeks.  Our legal

 8   counsel, Jon Thompson, can provide further information

 9   of proceedings while local jurisdiction make decisions

10   in their appointments.

11        That concludes my update.  I would be happy to

12   answer any questions.

13                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

14        I'm sorry.  Was there a more proactive comment you

15   wanted to make first, Counsel Thompson, or...?

16                      MR. THOMPSON:  Well, I do have

17   comments.  I wanted to address a few questions about

18   the question that Ms. Belkina mentioned last about

19   proceeding, you know, while we're awaiting other --

20                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Yeah.

21                      MR. THOMPSON:  -- appointments for

22   Council members.

23                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Yeah, let's go ahead

24   and hear that.

25                      MR. THOMPSON:  Okay.
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 1        Yeah, so a couple of questions if you recall at

 2   the public informational and land-use consistency

 3   hearings that were held in the three counties that are

 4   involved in this project were raised about whether the

 5   public informational meeting and the land-use

 6   consistency hearings should have been convened prior to

 7   all the, you know, the appointees that are eligible to

 8   be on the Council being seated.

 9        Yeah, so I wanted to speak to that just briefly

10   and give you my thoughts on that topic and what might

11   lie ahead on those topics.

12        So, first, regarding the public informational

13   meeting.  So RCW 80.50.090(1) is the -- is the law that

14   requires that to be held.  And it basically says the

15   Council shall conduct an informational public hearing

16   in the county of the proposed site as soon as

17   practicable but not less than 60 days after the receipt

18   of an application for certification.  So that's the

19   basic mandate.

20        There are -- EFSEC has adopted rules about public

21   informational meetings and the land-use consistency

22   hearing.  And the only kind of requirement in this

23   regard is there's -- it states that before conducting

24   either the informational public hearing or the public

25   land-use hearing, the Council will notify local
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 1   jurisdictions.

 2        It doesn't -- it doesn't require, you know,

 3   waiting until appointments are made.  So neither the

 4   statute or the rules, you know, require that all

 5   jurisdictions that are eligible to appoint someone have

 6   done so prior to that meeting.  The mandate is really

 7   to hold it, hold the meeting, you know, within 60 days

 8   of receipt of the application.

 9        And I'd also point out that the purpose of the

10   meeting is also described in the rules, and it's

11   basically for the applicant to make a presentation

12   about -- about the project, a general description of

13   the project, reasons why the site was selected, a

14   summary of anticipated impacts, and then for the

15   general public to be afforded an opportunity to present

16   written or oral comments.

17        So the reason I mention that is because the

18   Council's role is -- is pretty passive.  It's -- you

19   know, at this point, it's just to receive information

20   from the applicant and the -- and the public.  And it's

21   a very early opportunity basically to get some -- some

22   reaction, some understanding and reaction to the

23   project.  And of course then there's -- over the course

24   of reviewing an application, there's a lot of other

25   hearing and public input opportunities on SEPA as well
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 1   as the adjudicative process.

 2        You know, with SEPA there's -- there may be a

 3   scoping hearing.  There may be a hearing for receipt of

 4   comments on a draft environmental impact statement.

 5   And then, as I mention, there's the -- there's the

 6   adjudication.  And then there's also an opportunity for

 7   the Council to provide additional hearings as -- as you

 8   see fit.

 9        So -- so in my opinion, yeah, there's -- and I

10   would also add that these hearings are recorded on

11   video and audio and transcribed by a court reporter, so

12   there's the opportunity for Council members to review

13   that -- that information when they come on board too.

14        So -- so in my opinion, there's nothing -- as I

15   said, the requirement is that this meeting be held

16   within 60 days.  You complied with that.  I don't think

17   there's any mandate to go back and redo it.  You can --

18   you can re-examine once the new Council members are on

19   board, you know, whether you feel a need for additional

20   process in that regard, but that's about I think what

21   we can say at this point.

22        So regarding the land-use consistency hearing,

23   there's no requirement that be held within 60 days of

24   receipt of an application.  It just says that it should

25   be subsequent to the land-use consistency hearing.  So
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 1   my opinion is that the record for that decision really

 2   hasn't been sufficiently developed.  And because of

 3   that, staff is in the process of developing a set of

 4   questions to -- to send to the applicant to further

 5   develop that information.  And then, I mean, I think I

 6   would recommend affording the parties who spoke to that

 7   issue, you know, any parties who want to speak to that

 8   to be -- to have another opportunity to respond to what

 9   the applicant has to say and really, you know, better

10   develop the record for that.

11        And to the extent that you can, I would say that

12   you should probably wait to deliberate on that until --

13   until you do have the other Council members empanelled

14   so that they have an opportunity to speak to that.

15        I would add that the Council members, by EFSEC

16   rule, are only to speak to the -- or to deliberate on

17   and vote on the segments of the project that are within

18   their appointing jurisdiction.  So that's another kind

19   of wrinkle for all of us to be aware of.

20        So, yeah, I just wanted to add that context in

21   case you had questions about it.  I know there was a

22   lot of head scratching about that maybe at the initial

23   meeting.  So I'm just adding that to Ms. Belkina's

24   report for your -- for your background information.

25                      CHAIR BECKETT:  No, thank you.  I
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 1   think it's a very important update and certainly helps

 2   to have that clarified, knowing some of it is still in

 3   process of -- of getting further clarified.

 4        And in that regard, I was going to acknowledge up

 5   front and ask if there's a comment from our two local

 6   representatives, Commissioner Leckie, who -- and

 7   Council Leckie, who's joined us previously, and now

 8   Council Jeff Breckel representing the City of

 9   Stevenson.  But let me just turn this open to all

10   Council members, knowing further Council who are here

11   with us in the room and Council Nelson.  Certainly

12   these questions have been, I think, on their mind as

13   well, Counsel Thompson.  So thanks for clarifying that.

14        I'll turn it open for comments.

15        Council Pamplin.

16                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Great.  Thank you,

17   Mr. Chair.  Thanks, Mr. Thompson, for the overview.

18        So, you know, the statutory requirement for the

19   public information meeting, 60 days within receipt of

20   the application makes sense.  Have the project

21   applicant explain the project proposal, an opportunity

22   for public input, just a very early engagement and

23   public awareness of here's an extensive process that's

24   coming.  And so I appreciate that.

25        I think the part that was -- that's of interest to
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 1   me is the obligations for the land-use consistency

 2   hearings.  So I do think it would be beneficial to make

 3   sure we've got the full roster of Council members, but

 4   I look to you to kind of figure out what can be done,

 5   you know, while -- what work can be done while those

 6   are still being appointed.

 7        But also I'd just like to make sure that, as

 8   EFSEC, we're reaching out not just to the project

 9   applicant but to those local governments and

10   municipalities for their understanding of how the

11   project is consistent or not with their own ordinances.

12   To me, asking the applicant to say, well, you know, you

13   could imagine the scenario where an applicant would

14   respond saying, yes, it's consistent and the County

15   saying, no, it's not.  And I guess I'd like to make

16   sure that we're hearing directly from the local

17   governments whether or not it's consistent rather than

18   an applicant's interpretation of what they've heard

19   from the local government, if that makes sense.

20                      MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah, I think that's

21   an excellent point.  I mean, I think -- and I think it

22   is staff's practice to, if Ms. Hafkemeyer or Ms. Bumpus

23   want to speak to this too, to try to solicit that input

24   from local land-use authorities.

25                      MS. BUMPUS:  Yes.  So we do have a

0082

 1   data request that we're preparing to send out.  And

 2   there are questions in that data request that should,

 3   when we receive responses, supplement the application

 4   as to land use.  I think we need to look at that.

 5        We also have discussed sending follow-up letters

 6   to some of the local governments who have indicated

 7   that they're going to appoint someone to the Council.

 8   They just haven't chosen who that person's going to be.

 9   And we've indicated to them that they'll need to get up

10   to speed, read the record, and be familiar with that.

11        And as Mr. Thompson noted, you know -- and I agree

12   with this point -- that once you have the full

13   composition of the Council, I think that that might be

14   a time ripe for, okay, what do we have in the

15   application that helps inform us about land-use

16   consistency, and if it's still deficient at that point,

17   do we hold another hearing?  Is there some other

18   mechanism that we want to implement to gather more

19   information and supplement the record so that the

20   Council can make a decision with respect to land-use

21   consistency?

22                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Mr. Chair, just

23   another follow-up.

24        I also recall looking into this, and there was a

25   statute indicating that the project applicant may work
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 1   with the local government to get a local -- or a

 2   land-use consistency certificate and that that is

 3   brought forward at the actual hearing, which is also

 4   kind of -- I mean, that seems ideal, but I guess I

 5   would also give a lot of deference -- but tell me if

 6   I'm off base on this -- that if there was a land-use

 7   consistency certificate even after the hearing but

 8   before the Council's making a decision, that we'd

 9   welcome that.

10        I mean, it's -- anyway, the statutes on this

11   particular process, I think, you kind of stumble

12   through it rather than, like, as far as really clear.

13   So I don't know if that's even something Director

14   Bumpus, on a future agency, request legislation to kind

15   of map some of these processes out, because I think

16   they kind of put you sometimes in a box that's --

17   that's kind of challenging to operate within.

18                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Director Bumpus.

19                      MS. BUMPUS:  I would just -- I don't

20   know if Mr. Thompson has something to add, but I would

21   just note that, you know, I think it's a good point.

22   The Council does have broad discretion in terms of

23   holding additional hearings and taking other steps to

24   supplement the record as it's needed.  And every

25   project's different, as we all know.  And so we may
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 1   find in this case that we want to do something like

 2   that in order to supplement it.

 3        So I think that -- as I said, you know, I think

 4   it's a good point.  I think in the framework that we're

 5   operating in today, I think we've got a lot of options

 6   for the Council available to supplement that record.

 7        And the other thing I was just going to mention

 8   too is that there is no time limit with respect to

 9   this -- this decision, right?  So we're not working as

10   tightly as we were, like, say in the scheduling of the

11   public informational hearing.

12        Sorry.  I saw --

13                      MS. HAFKEMEYER:  It's fine.

14        I would just like --

15                      MS. BUMPUS:  -- Ms. Hafkemeyer.

16                      MS. HAFKEMEYER:  -- to add, in those

17   initial hearings, the applicant did indicate that they

18   were working with local jurisdictions to obtain

19   certificates of consistency, which is one of the items

20   requested in the data requests that we were preparing

21   to have those submitted to us to become part of the

22   record.

23        We are also working, as you indicated, with some

24   of the local jurisdiction planning departments to get

25   some of that input that you indicated on their
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 1   interpretation about whether or not this project is

 2   consistent.  So that part of the record is still under

 3   development.  We're still working with those entities

 4   to try and, you know, get all of that information in.

 5   And so once we have all of that, we will make it

 6   available to the Council and the public.

 7                      CHAIR BECKETT:  So we'll take two

 8   comments here in order.  Council Ryan and then Council

 9   Leckie.

10                      MR. RYAN:  Thank you, chair.

11        Want to take a moment to echo some of Council

12   Pamplin's comments and observations about some of those

13   procedural concerns.  I think I felt similarly and

14   happy to hear in the staff update about also agency

15   consultations with DNR and DFW that have been

16   scheduled.  I think that will be a key part of what I

17   look for in a future, you know, version of the record,

18   is especially talking to DNR's aquatic section about

19   land use in the river.

20        So definitely woke me up to sort of the complexity

21   and the scale of the proposed project and looking

22   forward to hearing more information and continuing to

23   review the record.  So that's first.

24        Secondly, I just had a quick question.  Was also

25   encouraged to hear about some of the updates around
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 1   tribal engagement and would love to know if you could

 2   share a little bit of additional information about who

 3   else might be on the consultation schedule even if they

 4   haven't been officially contacted yet.  Would just love

 5   to know the staff's approach about who to consult with

 6   and gather with given the complexity and scale of the

 7   proposed project.

 8                      MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Do you have a

 9   moment or --

10                      MS. McLEAN:  Yeah.

11                      MS. HAFKEMEYER:  -- at your

12   fingertips maybe some --

13                      MS. McLEAN:  Yeah.

14                      MS. HAFKEMEYER:  -- additional

15   information, Ms. McLean?

16                      MS. McLEAN:  Yeah.  Sure.  Just let

17   me take one little note to -- okay.  Yeah.

18        So thank you for that question.  Lisa McLean,

19   tribal liaison for EFSEC.

20        We -- obviously we sent out a notification to all

21   32 tribes.  We've heard back from and been in close

22   contact with Yakama, CTUIR, Umatilla, Warm Springs,

23   Grand Ronde, and Cowlitz.  We haven't gotten a --

24   the -- only Cowlitz has asked for the formal

25   consultation.  Everybody else is aware they can ask for
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 1   formal consultation, but in the meantime, we have an

 2   active dialogue going with them, and we're trying to --

 3   as I've assured them, it's to try to, you know, get

 4   some meetings together at some key milestones.

 5        So just today this morning, we were talking about

 6   are there any milestones that are coming up.  We should

 7   call people together.  And as part of that also, we're

 8   in close contact with CRITFC, who is -- a lot of the

 9   tribes are -- those tribes that I mentioned are sort of

10   relying on CRITFC to stay on top of this thing.  So

11   we've been in touch with them, and we've been briefing

12   them since -- what was it? -- the summertime, even

13   before we got this application.  So they also know.

14        So I guess my outreach has been:  We're here.

15   Don't go listen to rumors.  If you got a question, call

16   me, find out, and I'll get the answer.  You know what I

17   mean?  So if you're feeling like you don't have the

18   information you need on this, call me, and I will try

19   to track down the information for you.

20        Because this is going to be a long process.  And I

21   think there are going to be periods where tribes are

22   going to be, like, What are they doing?  You know, so

23   we do have good contacts, you know, contacts that go

24   not just with the chair of tribal council but rather at

25   the staff level, which I feel good about, because then
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 1   we know that they know who to talk to on our side and

 2   we know who to talk to on their side.  And when we need

 3   to -- when they want us to raise it to the tribal

 4   council level, I feel confident that we'll be ready to

 5   do that.

 6                      MR. RYAN:  Very much appreciate that

 7   answer.  And sort of addressed a follow-up that I had

 8   already, which, you know, I was curious about any

 9   interagency coordination we might have with Oregon

10   EFSEC regarding those tribes that are in Oregon but

11   have their reserve rights in this state.  But it sounds

12   like we're in touch, and there's not really a need to

13   coordinate through the agency if we're just going to be

14   directly in touch.  So really comprehensive, and

15   appreciate the answer.

16                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the

17   instant update.

18        I'm sorry to our local Council representatives.  I

19   will turn to you next.  But let me just add one

20   comment.

21        I had sent an e-mail earlier on this, but I'll

22   just out of transparency just go ahead and add it into

23   the discussion.  And this -- certainly my intent would

24   be to do any of the following in full coordination with

25   what Lisa, Ms. McLean, has just laid out.
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 1        I'm concerned always about the congestion at

 2   Council doors, tribal especially, but I don't think

 3   that's untrue for local government.  So we need to go

 4   proactively, but we need to go at the most efficient

 5   appropriate time.  And, hence, if we could have one

 6   conversation, not six, that's probably ultimately

 7   better for those -- those other local and tribal

 8   partners.

 9        But in this case, something that I'd like to

10   explore both a little bit as my onboarding as new chair

11   but also as I have thought further about the CRT

12   project is just that we request consultation.  And we

13   can do that in coordination of which tribes have more

14   focus on this.  Cowlitz have contacted us.  We

15   appreciate that.  And am looking forward to that, that

16   upcoming conversation very soon.

17        But to the degree that can be more slightly

18   proactively, you know, done now at the front end, it

19   would seem something that I'd like to explore further.

20   So just wanted to go ahead and share that in the moment

21   here.

22        Go ahead, Council Ryan.  And then I promise,

23   Council Leckie, we'll come to you soon.

24                      MR. RYAN:  Apologies.  Just -- I

25   appreciate that idea.  I think it's a good idea and is
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 1   definitely in alignment with Executive Order 25-10

 2   about the language about being proactive.  I think

 3   that's a good thing to explore, and that's important.

 4                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Appreciate that.

 5        Great.  Believe it or not, Council Leckie.

 6                      MR. LECKIE:  Yeah, thank you.  I

 7   know that a comment was made about the land-use

 8   certificate, and that's one of the things I was going

 9   to comment on.

10        You know, the question I would ask is:  Is the

11   land-use certificate required?  Does the County issue

12   it?  And should that have been done before the land-use

13   consistency hearing?

14        I do know, talking to our planning staff, that

15   there was a request to meet with our prosecutor,

16   planning director, and planning staff about a land-use

17   certificate, but that meeting did not happen before the

18   hearing.  So those are some questions outstanding to

19   me.  So does EFSEC take that on for the land-use

20   certificate, or is it still the County's

21   responsibility?  Thank you.

22                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

23        Counsel.

24                      MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah, I can speak to

25   that.  The certificate is not required.  It's -- it's
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 1   basically something that the applicant, at its option,

 2   can try to obtain from the local jurisdiction.  And if

 3   it does, that establishes a presumption that there is

 4   consistency, which can be rebutted by other people, you

 5   know, if they -- they feel that's inaccurate, but -- so

 6   it's just -- it's an optional thing that the applicant

 7   can obtain, not required.

 8                      MR. LECKIE:  So local county

 9   planning does not have to issue anything regarding this

10   property.  This is all EFSEC, then.

11                      MR. THOMPSON:  Correct.  There is no

12   requirement for local planning or the local

13   jurisdiction to even take a position or, yeah, or to

14   provide a certificate.  I mean, certainly we welcome

15   that and, you know, even hope that they do.  But that

16   there's no requirement, which partly may answer Council

17   Member Pamplin's question to a degree, because there's

18   no -- there's no way to compel the local jurisdiction

19   to do so.

20                      MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Can I jump in?

21                      MR. LECKIE:  Then there's no local

22   SEPA then either?

23                      MS. BUMPUS:  No.  EFSEC is the SEPA

24   lead agency.

25                      MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Can I jump in just
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 1   to make sure that I'm interpreting Council Leckie's

 2   question?

 3        The Council will at a future date make a land-use

 4   consistency determination for the project.  And if the

 5   local jurisdiction has issued a certificate of

 6   consistency, that would be part of the record for that

 7   decision.

 8        However, EFSEC would not issue a certificate of

 9   consistency on the local jurisdiction's behalf.  If

10   that is provided for the project, that would come from

11   the local jurisdiction, not from EFSEC, but it would be

12   part of the record for the land-use consistency

13   determination made by the Council.

14                      MR. LECKIE:  Then it's irrelevant if

15   the County issues that or not; is that correct?

16                      MS. HAFKEMEYER:  I wouldn't call it

17   irrelevant.

18                      MS. BUMPUS:  No, not irrelevant.  I

19   think that Mr. Thompson put it as there's -- if there's

20   a certificate provided, there's a presumption of

21   consistency.  And so that, I think, aids the Council's

22   decision-making.  Whereas, in the absence of that, you

23   don't have that presumption, and so you're looking at

24   the question, you're looking at the record:  Is this

25   project allowed here?  Is there anything that prohibits
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 1   this project from being sited here with respect to land

 2   use?

 3        So having that -- that piece of information as

 4   part of your record where the County is saying, "We

 5   think it is consistent," you have that presumption

 6   there.  But without it, you're relying on the other

 7   information that you have to answer the question to

 8   consistency.

 9                      MR. LECKIE:  Okay.  I'm just trying

10   to understand the process, then.

11        So if that presumption is made in the county

12   planning or there's no application or land-use

13   certificate, then EFSEC just takes on that role?  Is

14   that how this process works?

15                      MR. THOMPSON:  Well, yeah, I guess

16   you can say that.  I mean, I think the Council would

17   look at -- first at whatever information the applicant

18   puts forward about what are -- you know, what are the

19   applicable zoning codes, what are the applicable

20   land-use plans, and makes whatever argument they want

21   to make about whether the project is -- would be

22   prohibited by those.

23        Other parties can respond.  But it's -- it's --

24   yeah, it's the Council's -- is required to make a

25   determination as to whether the project, you know,
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 1   under local permitting processes, say, would be --

 2   would be allowed or prohibited.  And it can do that.

 3   Yeah, it can do that by researching the County's

 4   relevant code provisions, itself, and looking at the

 5   arguments that have been made by the parties before the

 6   Council.

 7        Does that help clarify?

 8                      MR. LECKIE:  Yeah, it does.  So then

 9   there's -- then the County's not involved with the

10   permitting process, then, for a land-use certificate.

11                      MR. THOMPSON:  Correct.  The --

12                      MR. LECKIE:  Yeah.

13                      MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah.

14                      MR. LECKIE:  Okay.

15        Okay.

16                      CHAIR BECKETT:  But I would just --

17                      MR. LECKIE:  No, thank you.

18                      CHAIR BECKETT:  I would just

19   emphasize -- and, Council Breckel, I will come to you

20   next -- ultimately, no matter what form the input comes

21   from the local jurisdiction, it is most important to

22   EFSEC as an agency to have -- you know, whether it's to

23   say, yes, this is consistent, or, no, it's not,

24   ultimately EFSEC -- and it is one of the superpowers

25   that has its controversies -- that the Council, if it

0095

 1   chooses, you know, to interpret that it's not

 2   consistent but a project needs to continue to go

 3   forward, that is one of the powers under statute that

 4   EFSEC has.

 5        I don't think any of us -- I'll speak for

 6   myself -- would take lightly overriding a local view,

 7   but that is part of the role and authority of EFSEC.

 8   So the more that that information in whatever form it

 9   comes into EFSEC's record from each local jurisdiction

10   is of preeminent importance to and I believe to the

11   agency historically as well as on a more complicated

12   project like we're experiencing for the first time I

13   think in the history of the agency as far as a mult-

14   jurisdiction transmission project.  So that's part of

15   the dialogue that we're sitting here having today in

16   public.

17        So unless I really misstated anything.

18                      MR. LECKIE:  No.  Thank you.

19                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.

20                      MR. LECKIE:  I guess that's where

21   the confusion was, 'cause it seems like they engage to

22   get the certificate from the County, then the meetings

23   did take place, and it stopped.  That's what was kind

24   of confusing me, was did they have to fulfill and

25   finish that requirement at the County, or if EFSEC's
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 1   taking it on, then maybe that was just -- you know,

 2   maybe it wasn't needed, so they moved on to EFSEC.

 3        That clarifies that.  Thank you.

 4                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  It's good --

 5   good discussion from my perspective.  And I think as

 6   Council Pamplin noted earlier, there's opportunity to

 7   clarify and make this smoother where that could be done

 8   through a policy or process rather than a statutory

 9   change.  Count me in for the nonstatutory path.  But we

10   may bump into -- to those limits and need to seek more

11   authority.

12        Council Breckel, welcome.  As a new member of the

13   Council, thank you both for enduring our onboarding

14   process, which we try to not to make too long.

15        Council Breckel.

16                      COUNCIL BRECKEL:  Thank you very

17   much, Mr. Chair.

18        Yeah, you know, I -- I go back.  I attended the

19   initial public information meeting and land-use

20   consistency hearing here in Skamania County.  And I

21   think there was a fair amount of, I think, both

22   confusion and concern over the EFSEC process as it

23   applies to this project.  That there was a land-use

24   consistency hearing, and we didn't hear from any of the

25   local government within Skamania County in terms of
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 1   land use on this particular thing.  And, quite frankly,

 2   that some of the local jurisdictions, certainly the

 3   City of Stevenson, didn't even realize that this

 4   hearing was ongoing at that time.

 5        So I think as we're looking at this, at this

 6   process, I think you'll find, you know, particularly

 7   with some of these smaller jurisdictions, that there's

 8   not any formality, any basis in terms of understanding

 9   the process, the EFSEC process as it looks at these

10   types of projects or how it works or how they can

11   engage and participate in that process.

12        So I would hope that, you know, particularly as

13   you're looking for representatives from some of the

14   other local governmental jurisdictions, that somehow

15   there's that good clarity I think we got on some of the

16   onboarding discussions at least as a Council member but

17   also some discussions I think with local governments in

18   terms of how they can effectively engage in this

19   process.  Because they are knowledgeable of it.  This

20   is something new, and it's something complex, and it's

21   something that affects their local jurisdiction.

22                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Appreciate that

23   comment.  And, again, I think there's learning in real

24   time as well as in earlier months coming out of the

25   hearings, but no doubt opportunities here to learn and
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 1   grow from, I think.  So appreciate that.

 2        Council Nelson.

 3                      MR. NELSON:  Thank you, Chair

 4   Beckett.

 5        Yeah, I was at the Skamania land-use hearing, and

 6   I made a comment that, in retrospect, was largely

 7   process ignorance.  I think -- and it was about sort

 8   of, like, along the lines of, you know, if this was a

 9   Skamania County shoreline management plan, would it,

10   you know, pass muster or not.  And it just wasn't a

11   point of the project yet that that information was

12   really out there.  I think it will come out in SEPA.

13        But the point of my ramble, Councilman Leckie and

14   Councilman Breckel, is that local engagement and if

15   there is a local certificate of, you know, compliance,

16   we would -- you know, that's a big part of the -- at

17   least I'd say it'd definitely be a part of my

18   deliberation.  And however that looks, I'm still not

19   edified enough to know, like, when that will come up.

20        The -- I'm just trying to say that I hope the

21   public gets a real big bite at that apple, you know,

22   when that information is submitted and gets out there.

23   And if it's through a hearing process, if it's like a

24   comment period, I hope it's a good long one, a couple

25   weeks as EFSEC has been doing a good job giving.
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 1   And -- or if it's another hearing, great.  You know,

 2   like, it's Skamania County, I think, specifically since

 3   the -- since it's going to run on land, is what I'm

 4   most curious about regarding the land-use consistency.

 5                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.

 6        Other comments from Council?  Any closing comments

 7   from our good staff team that's been supporting this

 8   discussion?

 9                      MS. BUMPUS:  Thank you, Chair

10   Beckett.  Just one comment.  It was talked about

11   earlier in Ms. Belkina's update that we've recently

12   learned that the corps is going to be doing an

13   environmental impact statement and that we are

14   coordinating with them, collaborating with them on

15   that.

16        Staff do intend -- I don't know that it will be in

17   February.  It may be more in March.  We'll see.  But

18   we're in discussions with the corps and many other

19   agencies as well as tribes.  And we've discussed

20   internally doing a presentation for the Council about

21   how the SEPA process will work and how that

22   coordination will work.  So I don't know if it will be

23   in the form of a full-on PowerPoint presentation or

24   just a hefty verbal update, but we do intend to provide

25   the Council with information and the public with
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 1   information about how we're going to do that work, the

 2   environmental review, given that there are multiple

 3   agencies involved.

 4        But we're at the point now to be able to share all

 5   the behind-the-scenes details of how that will work.

 6   But it is on the radar, and we intend to update the

 7   Council.  I don't want to commit to February yet.

 8                      CHAIR BECKETT:  I understand that.

 9   But thank you for the added foreshadowing of what's to

10   come.

11        Okay.  Other comments?  Hearing none.

12        We will wrap up our project updates.  And thank

13   you.  I know this meeting is going on, so we'll try and

14   move through our final three items quickly.  But I

15   think that conversation was important.  It's one that

16   we weren't able to really do in December, just having

17   gotten out of the hearings as well as our November

18   meeting in the middle of the hearings.  So appreciate

19   the extra time that we've ended up spending here today.

20        With that, I will turn this to Director Bumpus for

21   both her cost allocation update and any other updates

22   that she wishes to give before perhaps if you would go

23   ahead and do me the favor of turning that to Lisa

24   McLean when you're done, and we'll just --

25                      MS. BUMPUS:  Yes.
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 1                      CHAIR BECKETT:  -- wrap up that way.

 2                      MS. BUMPUS:  Thank you, Chair

 3   Beckett.  And good afternoon, Council members.

 4        For the cost allocation update, this is for the

 5   non-direct cost allocation for third quarter of Fiscal

 6   Year 2026.  This covers January 1 to March 31, 2026.

 7        I will not read off the percentages.  They have

 8   not been changed since last quarter's update.  They're

 9   in your packet.  So if you have any questions about

10   those, do follow up with me.  But in the interest of

11   time, will not read all of those off.

12        As far as director updates go, I did want to -- I

13   mentioned earlier Executive Order 25-11, which is the

14   acceleration in support for clean energy projects,

15   given the federal lack of energy tax credits.  So EFSEC

16   is participating in -- on the acceleration team.  We

17   actually have a number of staff that are involved in

18   tracking that work.

19        There is a report that we need to prepare that's

20   due at the end of the month.  But before the executive

21   order was issued, we had been in discussions with other

22   agencies and preparing a list of projects that we

23   thought might be in a position to take advantage of the

24   federal tax incentives, and so I think that in some

25   respects that group is ahead of the work a little bit.
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 1        Do reach out if you have any questions about that

 2   report.  And Ms. McLean is engaged on that effort.  If

 3   you have detailed questions about what we're going to

 4   be putting in that report, please follow up with

 5   Ms. McLean.

 6        As far as other director updates, we do intend to

 7   do an update with the Council on budget and on

 8   legislation.  Right now we're in the throes of

 9   legislation, so not a whole lot to share that has any

10   concrete, you know, to it, but we'll give you an update

11   in February on that.

12        Any questions before I hand this to Ms. McLean?

13        Thank you.

14                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Seeing none.

15                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Sorry, Mr. Chair.

16   Just to slip one in.  Thanks, Director Bumpus.  Just a

17   quick question.

18        How did EFSEC -- how did EFSEC fare within the

19   governor's 2026 supplemental operating budget proposal?

20   Thank you.

21                      MS. BUMPUS:  Ms. Gomes, do you want

22   to...?

23                      MS. GOMES:  This is Nabila speaking.

24                      CHAIR BECKETT:  You might need to

25   come forward, though.
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 1                      MS. GOMES:  I'll come closer.

 2        Thank you, Lisa.  Excellent question.  This is

 3   Nabila speaking on behalf of EFSEC and EFSEC staff.

 4        The AG -- well, EFSEC received a 15 percent

 5   proposed cut, so compared to other small agencies that

 6   received a 5 percent cut.  So that's a significant cut

 7   compared to other small agencies.

 8        We met with OFM and the governor's staff just to

 9   determine what the impacts would be to the agency

10   especially on the operating end of things.  And this is

11   specific to the general fund.  And we anticipate that

12   we will have an update in February once we know exactly

13   how it's going to impact operating -- operating costs.

14   'Cause what essentially is going to have to happen is

15   we'll have to offset some of our general funds, which

16   include four staff members and legal fees and other

17   things like that, onto either overhead or onto project

18   costs, which is -- we don't know what that looks like,

19   and so we're just determining.

20        But essentially it's about a $245,000 cut to our

21   budget, which we do have strategic actions in plan, and

22   so now we are pivoting with it.  So we anticipate

23   having a full-fledged update in February.

24                      MS. BUMPUS:  Yeah, we will provide

25   an update.  And, you know, one of the things is that
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 1   we're not surprised, right?  We knew.  So we had

 2   already been talking.  This was definitely on Nabila's

 3   radar, and we had been talking about what is the

 4   strategy.  Not if this happens but when it happens.  We

 5   were surprised about the -- sort of the, I guess --

 6                      MS. GOMES:  How heavy-handed.

 7                      MS. BUMPUS:  -- the heavy-handed --

 8   somewhat heavy-handedness given that we're a small

 9   agency compared to the impact on others.  But -- but I

10   think that we've got some good strategies for how we

11   can -- we can offset.

12                      MR. PAMPLIN:  Yeah, thanks for the

13   updates.

14                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  I think that

15   takes us to Ms. McLean as you said.

16                      MS. McLEAN:  Hi.  So now I'm here as

17   the leg policy manager, Lisa McLean, here to introduce

18   a new staff member, Noel Sharp, who has joined us as

19   the rules policy coordinator.  Very happy to welcome

20   her to the team.  She just started on Friday.  Her job

21   will be helping us work through these rules, work on

22   internal policies, and generally helping the policy

23   team.

24        Noel comes to us with -- I'm really happy.  I just

25   said to Director Bumpus today when I was introducing
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 1   Director Bumpus to Noel that she has a great deal of --

 2   I don't know -- checks all kinds of great boxes.

 3   Number one, she comes out of, recently -- most

 4   recently, private environmental consulting firm.

 5   Before that, she spent eight years at DNR.  And while

 6   she was at DNR, I'm not even going to try to remember

 7   to say exactly what rules projects she worked on, but

 8   it was a rules project that brought her in contact with

 9   tribes, heavy involvement with the tribes, and just a

10   kind of controversial rules project.

11        So not that I expect any of our rules projects to

12   be controversial, but in the event that they are, I

13   know that she's going to be able to handle it.  So I

14   welcome her, and I think she's going to be a great

15   addition to the team.

16                      MS. SHARP:  Thank you.  It's nice to

17   meet you-all.

18                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Welcome aboard for

19   sure.

20                      MS. SHARP:  Thank you.

21                      CHAIR BECKETT:  You're welcome to

22   say anything else you wish at the moment.  And

23   otherwise I won't put you on the spot further, so...

24                      MS. SHARP:  I'm just getting

25   onboarded, so -- but I'm really happy to be here.  I've
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 1   already learned a lot, so I'm excited.  Thank you.

 2                      CHAIR BECKETT:  Excellent.

 3        Well, on that note, I will just also highlight for

 4   the public in general that the update to

 5   preapplication, adjudication, and site restoration

 6   rules are being considered.  That was in a public

 7   meeting on the 7th of January, which some people may

 8   have still been out or things like that.  So more to

 9   come.  And, Noel, knowing you're here to be a part of

10   all that is most welcome and important.

11        But from my perspective, all ideas or, you know,

12   constructive feedback, criticism, whatever folks want

13   to send in to us, please send it.  And if it doesn't

14   fit exactly in one of those three buckets, I would

15   suggest we might still know what to do with it.  That

16   may not be immediately versus other higher priorities.

17   But now is the time to please, you know, let's

18   collectively bring our best ideas forward.

19        Because as I said in December and I may just keep

20   saying it, like, especially in these times, we got to

21   stick together, and we got to work together.  And

22   that's just to me the bottom line, so -- and the

23   opportunity.

24        So, with that, I'll also note a thanks again to

25   Council Pamplin and the Fish and Wildlife agency that
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 1   provided our wind and solar guideline presentation last

 2   time.  And I meant to mention when we approved the

 3   minutes, having reread them, it was just, I think, a

 4   really good discussion and just helpful and the kind of

 5   work that we should be doing.

 6        We may not always have time, you know, to do that

 7   in every meeting.  But as I reread those minutes, I was

 8   super appreciative of what I read there.  And I would

 9   encourage the public to go read it.  I think it starts

10   on Page 80.  And, unfortunately, it is in court

11   reporter speak, which is always especially ugly when

12   you're reviewing those minutes.

13        So, with that, are there any other closing

14   comments?  Or we will wrap this up.

15        Hearing none.  Then we are adjourned at 3:34.

16                             (Meeting adjourned at

17                              3:34 p.m.)
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 1   STATE OF WASHINGTON )     I, John M.S. Botelho, CCR, RPR,

                         ) ss  a certified court reporter

 2   County of Pierce    )     in the State of Washington, do

                               hereby certify:

 3

 4

          That the foregoing monthly meeting of the Washington

 5   State Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was conducted

     in my presence and adjourned on January 21, 2026, and

 6   thereafter was transcribed under my direction; that the

     transcript is a full, true and complete transcript of the

 7   said meeting, transcribed to the best of my ability;

 8        That I am not a relative, employee, attorney or counsel

     of any party to this matter or relative or employee of any

 9   such attorney or counsel and that I am not financially

     interested in the said matter or the outcome thereof;

10

          IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand

11   this 4th day of February, 2026.

12

13

14

15                             _________________________________

                               /s/John M.S. Botelho, CCR, RPR

16                             Certified Court Reporter No. 2976

                               (Certification expires 5/26/2026.)
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		473						LN		17		14		false		           14     you want to make a comment on behalf of your agency as				false

		474						LN		17		15		false		           15     well.				false

		475						LN		17		16		false		           16                        MR. RYAN:  Yeah.  Thank you, Chair.				false

		476						LN		17		17		false		           17          Lenny:  Big shoes, huge opportunity to follow in				false

		477						LN		17		18		false		           18     the footsteps of someone like yourself and appreciate				false

		478						LN		17		19		false		           19     all the insight leant to the Council over the years.				false

		479						LN		17		20		false		           20     Everything that's been mentioned, your role in these				false

		480						LN		17		21		false		           21     deliberations, it's really the model of public service,				false

		481						LN		17		22		false		           22     both your record of service here as well as at the				false

		482						LN		17		23		false		           23     agency.  So I appreciate the opportunity to step in				false

		483						LN		17		24		false		           24     your footsteps and appreciate everything you've done.				false

		484						LN		17		25		false		           25                        CHAIR BECKETT:  And, Council Nelson,				false

		485						PG		18		0		false		page 18				false

		486						LN		18		1		false		            1     did you want to make a comment on behalf of the				false

		487						LN		18		2		false		            2     Department of Ecology?				false

		488						LN		18		3		false		            3                        MR. NELSON:  Thank you, Chair				false

		489						LN		18		4		false		            4     Beckett.  I sure do.				false

		490						LN		18		5		false		            5          Just want to thank all three Council members				false

		491						LN		18		6		false		            6     receiving a commendation here:  Young, Brewster, and				false

		492						LN		18		7		false		            7     Levitt.				false

		493						LN		18		8		false		            8          Eli's dedication to public comment and open				false

		494						LN		18		9		false		            9     process and all that, that transcends his entire				false

		495						LN		18		10		false		           10     career, not just his time on the EFSEC Council.  And				false

		496						LN		18		11		false		           11     just wanted to publicly thank him for that.				false

		497						LN		18		12		false		           12          You know, I'd like to think that Eli walks so I				false

		498						LN		18		13		false		           13     could run, but he's about a foot taller than me, so in				false

		499						LN		18		14		false		           14     my analogy here, we're going at about the same rate of				false

		500						LN		18		15		false		           15     speed.  Thank you, Eli.				false

		501						LN		18		16		false		           16                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.				false

		502						LN		18		17		false		           17          Council Pamplin or other Council members, any				false

		503						LN		18		18		false		           18     other comments?				false

		504						LN		18		19		false		           19                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.				false

		505						LN		18		20		false		           20     Yeah, great appreciation for all three Council members.				false

		506						LN		18		21		false		           21     And I'd just like to specifically mention Mr. Young.				false

		507						LN		18		22		false		           22          He's been an executive at DNR for a lot of years,				false

		508						LN		18		23		false		           23     and our orbits have overlapped and intersected on a				false

		509						LN		18		24		false		           24     variety of other forums outside of the EFSEC process.				false

		510						LN		18		25		false		           25     Always found his style of engagement being curious,				false
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		512						LN		19		1		false		            1     articulating very complex and difficult discussions in				false

		513						LN		19		2		false		            2     a way that brought further understanding across the				false

		514						LN		19		3		false		            3     meeting.				false

		515						LN		19		4		false		            4          And I always thought he was very fair and just an				false

		516						LN		19		5		false		            5     active listener.  And I've always appreciated just				false

		517						LN		19		6		false		            6     working with you, Mr. Young.  So thank you for all of				false

		518						LN		19		7		false		            7     your years of service.  Thanks.				false

		519						LN		19		8		false		            8                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.				false

		520						LN		19		9		false		            9          And, Director Bumpus, I apologize for not giving				false

		521						LN		19		10		false		           10     you a heads-up earlier.  I would turn this to you just				false

		522						LN		19		11		false		           11     to see if there's any comment you want to make on				false

		523						LN		19		12		false		           12     behalf of yourself and/or the staff and the agency,				false

		524						LN		19		13		false		           13     so -- and it's okay if not, but...				false

		525						LN		19		14		false		           14                        MS. BUMPUS:  Thank you.  No.				false

		526						LN		19		15		false		           15                        CHAIR BECKETT:  I should have added				false

		527						LN		19		16		false		           16     your name in that list earlier, so...				false

		528						LN		19		17		false		           17                        MS. BUMPUS:  Thank you, Chair				false

		529						LN		19		18		false		           18     Beckett.  I appreciate the opportunity.				false

		530						LN		19		19		false		           19          No, I just wanted to say thank you for all of the				false

		531						LN		19		20		false		           20     work and the dedicated time and attention to EFSEC over				false

		532						LN		19		21		false		           21     those years that you served, and also to thank you --				false

		533						LN		19		22		false		           22     each of you were always very respectful to staff and				false

		534						LN		19		23		false		           23     worked very well and very collaboratively with the				false

		535						LN		19		24		false		           24     EFSEC staff, and we really appreciate that.  So thank				false

		536						LN		19		25		false		           25     you.				false
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		538						LN		20		1		false		            1                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the				false

		539						LN		20		2		false		            2     good comments.				false

		540						LN		20		3		false		            3          All right.  Members of the Council, with that, I				false

		541						LN		20		4		false		            4     will call the question.  Again, we have				false

		542						LN		20		5		false		            5     Resolutions 358, 359, and 361 on the table.  All in				false

		543						LN		20		6		false		            6     favor of passing those resolutions, please say "aye."				false

		544						LN		20		7		false		            7                        MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.				false

		545						LN		20		8		false		            8                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Opposed?				false

		546						LN		20		9		false		            9     Abstentions?				false

		547						LN		20		10		false		           10          Okay.  Unanimous of course.				false

		548						LN		20		11		false		           11          I don't know if there's any comments our guests				false

		549						LN		20		12		false		           12     would like to make from the floor.  I would certainly				false

		550						LN		20		13		false		           13     welcome that.  No obligation.  Otherwise, we do have				false

		551						LN		20		14		false		           14     resolutions here that are actually framed, and we would				false

		552						LN		20		15		false		           15     present those to you and probably grab a quick photo.				false

		553						LN		20		16		false		           16     So if you wish.				false

		554						LN		20		17		false		           17                        MR. YOUNG:  Just --				false

		555						LN		20		18		false		           18                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Former Council				false

		556						LN		20		19		false		           19     Young, please.				false

		557						LN		20		20		false		           20                        MR. YOUNG:  -- quick remarks from				false

		558						LN		20		21		false		           21     me.				false

		559						LN		20		22		false		           22          I first would like to thank our outstanding				false

		560						LN		20		23		false		           23     commissioners, Public Lands Commissioner Hilary Franz,				false

		561						LN		20		24		false		           24     former commissioner, and Commissioner Dave Upthegrove,				false

		562						LN		20		25		false		           25     our current commissioner, for having the confidence to				false
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		564						LN		21		1		false		            1     give me the opportunity to represent them and the				false

		565						LN		21		2		false		            2     department, and thank both the former chair, Kathleen				false

		566						LN		21		3		false		            3     Drew, and the current chair, Kurt Beckett, Director				false

		567						LN		21		4		false		            4     Bumpus, and all the EFSEC staff, including our counsel				false

		568						LN		21		5		false		            5     from the attorney general's office, Jon Thompson, for				false

		569						LN		21		6		false		            6     the tremendous support that they've provided during the				false

		570						LN		21		7		false		            7     time that I served.				false

		571						LN		21		8		false		            8          And not the least the incredible thoughtfulness				false

		572						LN		21		9		false		            9     and dedication of my fellow Council members when we				false

		573						LN		21		10		false		           10     were dealing with very complex issues with competing				false

		574						LN		21		11		false		           11     priorities.  I was always impressed by the dedication				false

		575						LN		21		12		false		           12     and the thoughtfulness and the seriousness with which				false

		576						LN		21		13		false		           13     they took these important issues and how they				false

		577						LN		21		14		false		           14     discharged their duties.  So tremendous experience, and				false

		578						LN		21		15		false		           15     I'm very thankful for the opportunity to have been on				false

		579						LN		21		16		false		           16     the Council.				false

		580						LN		21		17		false		           17                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very much.				false

		581						LN		21		18		false		           18          Anyone else?  No obligation.				false

		582						LN		21		19		false		           19                        MS. BREWSTER:  Well --				false

		583						LN		21		20		false		           20                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Stacey Brewster.				false

		584						LN		21		21		false		           21                        MS. BREWSTER:  -- Lenny said it very				false

		585						LN		21		22		false		           22     well.  Thank you to all of you for leadership, to				false

		586						LN		21		23		false		           23     staff.  You guys -- it wasn't easy, but it wasn't				false

		587						LN		21		24		false		           24     impossible.  You did -- you prepared us well.  Always				false

		588						LN		21		25		false		           25     had information for us.  I really appreciate your				false
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		590						LN		22		1		false		            1     dedication, your integrity, all consummate				false

		591						LN		22		2		false		            2     professionals, leadership, Chair Beckett, Chair Drew.				false

		592						LN		22		3		false		            3     Learned so much during this opportunity, and I really				false

		593						LN		22		4		false		            4     appreciate the honor to serve.				false

		594						LN		22		5		false		            5                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council Levitt.				false

		595						LN		22		6		false		            6                        MR. LEVITT:  Yeah, I guess I feel				false

		596						LN		22		7		false		            7     obligated to also say something.				false

		597						LN		22		8		false		            8          No, I just thank you very much for the opportunity				false

		598						LN		22		9		false		            9     to serve.  I believe very much in the mission of the				false

		599						LN		22		10		false		           10     agency and the Council.  I have a child with asthma and				false

		600						LN		22		11		false		           11     have friends and family with asthma.  I look forward to				false

		601						LN		22		12		false		           12     a future where there is more solar, there's more				false

		602						LN		22		13		false		           13     geothermal, there's more wind, there's more battery				false

		603						LN		22		14		false		           14     storage, more smart grid, and hopefully our skies will				false

		604						LN		22		15		false		           15     be clearer, we'll have less smog, and a new future to				false

		605						LN		22		16		false		           16     look forward to.				false

		606						LN		22		17		false		           17          I certainly respect that all these decisions are				false

		607						LN		22		18		false		           18     tough.  I strongly recommend the importance and the				false

		608						LN		22		19		false		           19     value of doing site visits together, staff and Council				false

		609						LN		22		20		false		           20     members and the public doing those site visits,				false

		610						LN		22		21		false		           21     listening to each other, talking to each other.  Those				false

		611						LN		22		22		false		           22     to me are extremely valuable, and I hope those continue				false

		612						LN		22		23		false		           23     into the future.				false

		613						LN		22		24		false		           24          I was mentored briefly by Hedia Adelsman at				false

		614						LN		22		25		false		           25     Ecology, and she always had so many stories and talked				false

		615						PG		23		0		false		page 23				false

		616						LN		23		1		false		            1     so much about the site visits to reinforce their --				false

		617						LN		23		2		false		            2     their importance.  So, yeah, good luck with the				false

		618						LN		23		3		false		            3     decisions ahead of you, and thank you to the staff and				false

		619						LN		23		4		false		            4     the Council members for continuing to work.				false

		620						LN		23		5		false		            5                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very much,				false

		621						LN		23		6		false		            6     each of you, for your good and meaningful comments.				false

		622						LN		23		7		false		            7          With that, I would ask that, Council Rybarik, if				false

		623						LN		23		8		false		            8     you would grab --				false

		624						LN		23		9		false		            9                        MR. RYBARIK:  Yeah.				false

		625						LN		23		10		false		           10                        CHAIR BECKETT:  -- the resolution				false

		626						LN		23		11		false		           11     for Stacey.  And, Maverick, if you would grab Lenny's.				false

		627						LN		23		12		false		           12     And I will -- Council Nelson, on your behalf from the				false

		628						LN		23		13		false		           13     Department of Ecology, I will carry Eli's.  And so				false

		629						LN		23		14		false		           14     we'll present these to you, and hopefully someone could				false

		630						LN		23		15		false		           15     help with the photo from out there.  And then we'll				false

		631						LN		23		16		false		           16     resume the rest of our meeting here in less than five				false

		632						LN		23		17		false		           17     minutes.  The meeting is still going.  We haven't				false

		633						LN		23		18		false		           18     adjourned, or recessed, I should say, so...				false

		634						LN		23		19		false		           19                               (Discussion off the record.)				false

		635						LN		23		20		false		           20				false

		636						LN		23		21		false		           21                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.				false

		637						LN		23		22		false		           22                               (Applause.)				false

		638						LN		23		23		false		           23				false

		639						LN		23		24		false		           24                        CHAIR BECKETT:  And as we pick back				false

		640						LN		23		25		false		           25     up here, let me just note for our honored guests that				false
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		642						LN		24		1		false		            1     you have more than earned the right to leave				false

		643						LN		24		2		false		            2     immediately.  You are welcome, of course, in this				false

		644						LN		24		3		false		            3     public meeting at any time.  But you have earned the				false

		645						LN		24		4		false		            4     right to walk out the door.  So I leave that to your				false

		646						LN		24		5		false		            5     good judgment.				false

		647						LN		24		6		false		            6          All right.  With that, we will move to our project				false

		648						LN		24		7		false		            7     updates at 1:50.  And let me -- on behalf of my fellow				false

		649						LN		24		8		false		            8     Council members as well as our project participants and				false

		650						LN		24		9		false		            9     members of the public, I have kind of a broader				false

		651						LN		24		10		false		           10     announcement to share and certainly welcome comments				false

		652						LN		24		11		false		           11     from Council in particular as we go through this				false

		653						LN		24		12		false		           12     portion of the meeting.				false

		654						LN		24		13		false		           13          I believe Director Bumpus or Ami Hafkemeyer will				false

		655						LN		24		14		false		           14     add a further word here.  But basically there's a				false

		656						LN		24		15		false		           15     proposed change that would be being implemented in				false

		657						LN		24		16		false		           16     February which would evolve these project updates				false

		658						LN		24		17		false		           17     essentially that, for the normal updates that have				false

		659						LN		24		18		false		           18     nothing to report other than what's already in our				false

		660						LN		24		19		false		           19     packet, that that in-meeting verbal, whether virtually				false

		661						LN		24		20		false		           20     or rarely on occasion here in the meeting, that we				false

		662						LN		24		21		false		           21     would suspend that in-meeting reporting-out process and				false

		663						LN		24		22		false		           22     instead have those same written reports in our packet.				false

		664						LN		24		23		false		           23          And those -- that would be done to maintain our,				false

		665						LN		24		24		false		           24     you know, continuing our compliance standards that are				false

		666						LN		24		25		false		           25     associated with each of the site certificate				false
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		668						LN		25		1		false		            1     agreements, but ultimately I think achieving a more				false

		669						LN		25		2		false		            2     easier, more efficient way of our work.				false

		670						LN		25		3		false		            3          And so that's the underlying intent in changing				false

		671						LN		25		4		false		            4     from having to come down the roll with not always				false

		672						LN		25		5		false		            5     things to report.  Certainly the ability for any of our				false

		673						LN		25		6		false		            6     project participants to highlight something that they				false

		674						LN		25		7		false		            7     choose to highlight or something that we mutually				false

		675						LN		25		8		false		            8     believe needs more discussion in a meeting, that can				false

		676						LN		25		9		false		            9     always be done quickly just before the meeting, but				false

		677						LN		25		10		false		           10     otherwise I think we would try to consistently note				false

		678						LN		25		11		false		           11     these are the projects that are just going to have				false

		679						LN		25		12		false		           12     written reports, and then obviously we would focus on				false

		680						LN		25		13		false		           13     the balance that would receive the normal verbal				false

		681						LN		25		14		false		           14     update, whether that was by a project participant or				false

		682						LN		25		15		false		           15     staff.				false

		683						LN		25		16		false		           16          So, with that, let me turn to Director Bumpus and				false

		684						LN		25		17		false		           17     Ami Hafkemeyer to see if there was any further				false

		685						LN		25		18		false		           18     additional kind of context you wanted to provide on how				false

		686						LN		25		19		false		           19     that new system will work and continue to maintain our				false

		687						LN		25		20		false		           20     compliance, so...				false

		688						LN		25		21		false		           21                        MS. BUMPUS:  Thank you, Chair				false

		689						LN		25		22		false		           22     Beckett.  And good afternoon, Council members.				false

		690						LN		25		23		false		           23          Yes, so just a couple of things.  In looking at				false

		691						LN		25		24		false		           24     ways to have the Council meetings run a little bit more				false

		692						LN		25		25		false		           25     efficiently and spending our time together focused on				false
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		694						LN		26		1		false		            1     applications that are under review and on facilities				false

		695						LN		26		2		false		            2     that maybe have compliance issues that we need to				false

		696						LN		26		3		false		            3     address, we think that this is going to add some				false

		697						LN		26		4		false		            4     efficiency to the meetings.				false

		698						LN		26		5		false		            5          We -- we being staff -- looked at the site				false

		699						LN		26		6		false		            6     certification agreements for our operating facilities				false

		700						LN		26		7		false		            7     to ensure that if making this change is still compliant				false

		701						LN		26		8		false		            8     with the terms and conditions of those SCAs -- and it				false

		702						LN		26		9		false		            9     is -- and so we did double-check that, and we think				false

		703						LN		26		10		false		           10     that this is -- this is consistent with their				false

		704						LN		26		11		false		           11     compliance requirements.				false

		705						LN		26		12		false		           12          As to how it will work, I'll punt over to Ami				false

		706						LN		26		13		false		           13     Hafkemeyer to see if she wants to add any additional				false

		707						LN		26		14		false		           14     details about how this would function.				false

		708						LN		26		15		false		           15                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you.				false

		709						LN		26		16		false		           16          So in the background, very little will change.				false

		710						LN		26		17		false		           17     Staff are in regular communication with our operational				false

		711						LN		26		18		false		           18     facilities.  And so if there are compliance activities				false

		712						LN		26		19		false		           19     pending or something arises unexpectedly, that will				false

		713						LN		26		20		false		           20     continue to be communicated with staff and brought				false

		714						LN		26		21		false		           21     forward to the Council as things arise.				false

		715						LN		26		22		false		           22          And staff will continue to review these monthly				false

		716						LN		26		23		false		           23     updates and coordinate with the facilities on these				false

		717						LN		26		24		false		           24     regular updates.  That will still be provided monthly				false

		718						LN		26		25		false		           25     as they are now.  And so with that respect, compliance				false
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		720						LN		27		1		false		            1     oversight is not diminishing in any way.  We are still				false

		721						LN		27		2		false		            2     verifying compliance with permits, with SCA				false

		722						LN		27		3		false		            3     requirements, and so on and so forth.				false

		723						LN		27		4		false		            4          Really the only change will be on the -- in the				false

		724						LN		27		5		false		            5     meeting where, if there is nothing nonroutine to				false

		725						LN		27		6		false		            6     report, we will not continue to say that every meeting.				false

		726						LN		27		7		false		            7     Rather, indicate which facilities have nothing				false

		727						LN		27		8		false		            8     nonroutine to report, but their update will still be				false

		728						LN		27		9		false		            9     available in the Council packet for your review.  And				false

		729						LN		27		10		false		           10     facilities that do have something nonroutine to report				false

		730						LN		27		11		false		           11     or an upcoming permit renewal or mitigation activity				false

		731						LN		27		12		false		           12     that they're providing a report on, those will still be				false

		732						LN		27		13		false		           13     verbally provided at the Council meetings.				false

		733						LN		27		14		false		           14                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Great.  Thank you				false

		734						LN		27		15		false		           15     for that.				false

		735						LN		27		16		false		           16          And I should just also acknowledge a couple of				false

		736						LN		27		17		false		           17     other folks in this.  One, Director Bumpus had				false

		737						LN		27		18		false		           18     confirmed with me that the suggestion had certainly				false

		738						LN		27		19		false		           19     pre-existed my arrival at the agency maybe some years				false

		739						LN		27		20		false		           20     back certainly.  And a question I had in, you know,				false

		740						LN		27		21		false		           21     kind of coming to EFSEC.				false

		741						LN		27		22		false		           22          I do reflect that ultimately these project updates				false

		742						LN		27		23		false		           23     don't often take a lot of time, because I kind of				false

		743						LN		27		24		false		           24     annotate, you know, how much time we're spending, but				false

		744						LN		27		25		false		           25     ultimately I am mindful of, you know, the time it takes				false

		745						PG		28		0		false		page 28				false

		746						LN		28		1		false		            1     for the participants to log in and others and call the				false

		747						LN		28		2		false		            2     roll, and so hopefully we can, you know, again, do good				false

		748						LN		28		3		false		            3     work and maintain our compliance with high confidence				false

		749						LN		28		4		false		            4     here but still have that benefit of a little easier				false

		750						LN		28		5		false		            5     work.				false

		751						LN		28		6		false		            6          Council Pamplin has certainly asked this question				false

		752						LN		28		7		false		            7     and suggestion, made a suggestion along these lines, so				false

		753						LN		28		8		false		            8     I just want to just recognize that shared intent and				false

		754						LN		28		9		false		            9     good suggestion.				false

		755						LN		28		10		false		           10          On a closing note -- well, let me say, one, let me				false

		756						LN		28		11		false		           11     see if there's comments from our Council, and I would				false

		757						LN		28		12		false		           12     also note for our project report-outs here coming up,				false

		758						LN		28		13		false		           13     if you -- as you do each of your project up-to-dates,				false

		759						LN		28		14		false		           14     as I call on you, if you have any question or comment				false

		760						LN		28		15		false		           15     you want to make while we're all here kind of in this				false

		761						LN		28		16		false		           16     transition, please do that today as I call through the				false

		762						LN		28		17		false		           17     projects here momentarily.				false

		763						LN		28		18		false		           18          But with that heads-up to our project				false

		764						LN		28		19		false		           19     participants, let me turn this first to the Council for				false

		765						LN		28		20		false		           20     any quick comments they'd like to share.				false

		766						LN		28		21		false		           21          Council Pamplin.				false

		767						LN		28		22		false		           22                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Yeah, thanks,				false

		768						LN		28		23		false		           23     Mr. Chair.				false

		769						LN		28		24		false		           24          Just really appreciate you-all taking a look at				false

		770						LN		28		25		false		           25     this and seeing if this change could be implemented.  I				false

		771						PG		29		0		false		page 29				false

		772						LN		29		1		false		            1     appreciate where we're landing and the direction we're				false

		773						LN		29		2		false		            2     headed.  So thank you.				false

		774						LN		29		3		false		            3                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council Rybarik.				false

		775						LN		29		4		false		            4                        MR. RYBARIK:  Appreciate the focus				false

		776						LN		29		5		false		            5     on efficiency and looking at that efficiency for all				false

		777						LN		29		6		false		            6     parties involved and appreciate the change.  I support				false

		778						LN		29		7		false		            7     it.  Thank you.				false

		779						LN		29		8		false		            8                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Anyone else?				false

		780						LN		29		9		false		            9          Oh.  Council Pa- -- Nelson.  Excuse me.				false

		781						LN		29		10		false		           10                        MR. NELSON:  Excellent.  Yeah, thank				false

		782						LN		29		11		false		           11     you, Chair Beckett.				false

		783						LN		29		12		false		           12          Yes, I appreciate the efficiency, and, yeah, let's				false

		784						LN		29		13		false		           13     let her rip.				false

		785						LN		29		14		false		           14                        CHAIR BECKETT:  On that note.  All				false

		786						LN		29		15		false		           15     right.				false

		787						LN		29		16		false		           16          Moving on to project updates.  The Kittitas Valley				false

		788						LN		29		17		false		           17     wind project.  Mr. Caseday.				false

		789						LN		29		18		false		           18          We will move on for now and can come back to				false

		790						LN		29		19		false		           19     Kittitas Valley, if need be.				false

		791						LN		29		20		false		           20                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Council Beckett.				false

		792						LN		29		21		false		           21                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Oh.				false

		793						LN		29		22		false		           22                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  John Barnes is able				false

		794						LN		29		23		false		           23     to --				false

		795						LN		29		24		false		           24                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Oh.				false

		796						LN		29		25		false		           25                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  -- speak to the				false

		797						PG		30		0		false		page 30				false

		798						LN		30		1		false		            1     facility updates.				false

		799						LN		30		2		false		            2                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you,				false

		800						LN		30		3		false		            3     Mr. Barnes.				false

		801						LN		30		4		false		            4                        MR. BARNES:  Thank you, Chair				false

		802						LN		30		5		false		            5     Beckett and Council.  This is staff for the Kittitas				false

		803						LN		30		6		false		            6     Valley project.  I will be speaking on behalf of Sara				false

		804						LN		30		7		false		            7     Randolph.				false

		805						LN		30		8		false		            8          There's no updates to -- or the facility update is				false

		806						LN		30		9		false		            9     provided in your packet.  There is no nonroutine				false

		807						LN		30		10		false		           10     updates to report.				false

		808						LN		30		11		false		           11                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		809						LN		30		12		false		           12          Moving on to the Wild Horse Wind Power Project.				false

		810						LN		30		13		false		           13                        MS. GALBRAITH:  Yes.				false

		811						LN		30		14		false		           14                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Ms. Galbraith.				false

		812						LN		30		15		false		           15                        MS. GALBRAITH:  Thank you.  Thank				false

		813						LN		30		16		false		           16     you, Chair Beckett.  Can you hear me all right?				false

		814						LN		30		17		false		           17                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Yes, we can.				false

		815						LN		30		18		false		           18                        MS. GALBRAITH:  Excellent.				false

		816						LN		30		19		false		           19          So thank you, EFSEC Council and staff.  This is				false

		817						LN		30		20		false		           20     Jennifer Galbraith with Puget Sound Energy representing				false

		818						LN		30		21		false		           21     the Wild Horse Wind Facility.				false

		819						LN		30		22		false		           22          For the month of December, we have nothing				false

		820						LN		30		23		false		           23     nonroutine to report and no new updates regarding the				false

		821						LN		30		24		false		           24     cleanup of the damaged turbine other than that winter				false

		822						LN		30		25		false		           25     weather has stalled the removal of the remaining 15				false

		823						PG		31		0		false		page 31				false

		824						LN		31		1		false		            1     percent of turbine components.  But we anticipate				false

		825						LN		31		2		false		            2     cleanup to be completed before the end of this month as				false

		826						LN		31		3		false		            3     weather and site conditions allow.  Thank you.				false

		827						LN		31		4		false		            4                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.				false

		828						LN		31		5		false		            5          The Chehalis Generation Facility.  Mr. Smith.				false

		829						LN		31		6		false		            6                        MR. SMITH:  Good afternoon, Chair				false

		830						LN		31		7		false		            7     Beckett, EFSEC Council, and staff.  This is Jeremy				false

		831						LN		31		8		false		            8     Smith, the operations manager for the Chehalis				false

		832						LN		31		9		false		            9     Generation Facility.				false

		833						LN		31		10		false		           10          I have no nonroutine items to report.				false

		834						LN		31		11		false		           11                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.				false

		835						LN		31		12		false		           12          Grays Harbor Energy Center.  Mr. Pace.				false

		836						LN		31		13		false		           13                        MR. PACE:  Good afternoon, Chair				false

		837						LN		31		14		false		           14     Beckett, EFSEC Council, and staff.  This is Eric Pace				false

		838						LN		31		15		false		           15     for Grays Harbor Energy.				false

		839						LN		31		16		false		           16          And Grays Harbor Energy has nothing nonroutine to				false

		840						LN		31		17		false		           17     report.				false

		841						LN		31		18		false		           18                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.				false

		842						LN		31		19		false		           19          The Columbia Solar project.  I don't know if we				false

		843						LN		31		20		false		           20     have a participant for that today or not.				false

		844						LN		31		21		false		           21          Nothing from staff on that?				false

		845						LN		31		22		false		           22                        MR. BARNES:  Yes, I will be				false

		846						LN		31		23		false		           23     providing the update, I believe.				false

		847						LN		31		24		false		           24          So this is John Barnes, EFSEC staff for the				false

		848						LN		31		25		false		           25     Columbia Solar project.				false

		849						PG		32		0		false		page 32				false

		850						LN		32		1		false		            1          The facility update is provided in your packet.				false

		851						LN		32		2		false		            2     There are no nonroutine updates to report.  Thank you.				false

		852						LN		32		3		false		            3                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.				false

		853						LN		32		4		false		            4          Moving on to the Columbia Generating Station and				false

		854						LN		32		5		false		            5     WNP 1 and 4.  Kelly Elsethagen.				false

		855						LN		32		6		false		            6                        MS. HALL:  Good afternoon.  Can you				false

		856						LN		32		7		false		            7     hear me all right?				false

		857						LN		32		8		false		            8                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Yes, we can.				false

		858						LN		32		9		false		            9                        MS. HALL:  Okay.  Good afternoon,				false

		859						LN		32		10		false		           10     Chair Beckett, Council members, and staff.  This is				false

		860						LN		32		11		false		           11     Katie Hall for Columbia Generating Station and WNP 1				false

		861						LN		32		12		false		           12     and 4.				false

		862						LN		32		13		false		           13          While the agenda shows no updates for these				false

		863						LN		32		14		false		           14     facilities, previously discussed with EFSEC staff using				false

		864						LN		32		15		false		           15     this opportunity to notify of our recent submittal to				false

		865						LN		32		16		false		           16     EFSEC for the Columbia Generating Station.				false

		866						LN		32		17		false		           17          On January 15th, Energy Northwest submitted a SEPA				false

		867						LN		32		18		false		           18     checklist to EFSEC for the construction of two				false

		868						LN		32		19		false		           19     warehouses at the Column Generating Station.  This				false

		869						LN		32		20		false		           20     submittal follows EFSEC's staff's recent decision on				false

		870						LN		32		21		false		           21     January 6 to require SEPA review despite earlier				false

		871						LN		32		22		false		           22     indications to the contrary.  Energy Northwest and				false

		872						LN		32		23		false		           23     EFSEC have held conversations regarding the scope and				false

		873						LN		32		24		false		           24     timeline of the project since September of last year.				false

		874						LN		32		25		false		           25          So Energy Northwest emphasizes this late change				false

		875						PG		33		0		false		page 33				false

		876						LN		33		1		false		            1     jeopardizes the compressed schedule for the upcoming				false

		877						LN		33		2		false		            2     refueling outage, which is critical for operational				false

		878						LN		33		3		false		            3     readiness and regional energy reliability.  So				false

		879						LN		33		4		false		            4     therefore Energy Northwest has requested EFSEC's				false

		880						LN		33		5		false		            5     determination on the SEPA checklist by February 2nd,				false

		881						LN		33		6		false		            6     and we've urged for expedited review, including waiving				false

		882						LN		33		7		false		            7     the public comment period if no significant				false

		883						LN		33		8		false		            8     environmental impacts are identified.  Thank you.				false

		884						LN		33		9		false		            9                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.				false

		885						LN		33		10		false		           10          It's my understanding from staff that that recent				false

		886						LN		33		11		false		           11     request came in on Friday, is under review, and we may				false

		887						LN		33		12		false		           12     hear a little bit more on that in our February meeting.				false

		888						LN		33		13		false		           13     But appreciate the added context of what's trying to be				false

		889						LN		33		14		false		           14     accomplished there in the requested timeline.				false

		890						LN		33		15		false		           15          I don't know if there's any other comment from				false

		891						LN		33		16		false		           16     staff that you'd like to share.  But it's great if you				false

		892						LN		33		17		false		           17     do.  And otherwise I know we'll close out on this in				false

		893						LN		33		18		false		           18     February, so...				false

		894						LN		33		19		false		           19                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Just a little bit				false

		895						LN		33		20		false		           20     more context to add.				false

		896						LN		33		21		false		           21          We have received submissions, a SEPA checklist as				false

		897						LN		33		22		false		           22     well as some plans that we're reviewing to ensure code				false

		898						LN		33		23		false		           23     compliance.  And we are working with the facility and				false

		899						LN		33		24		false		           24     reviewing what process milestones are appropriate for				false

		900						LN		33		25		false		           25     the environmental review and compliance with their site				false

		901						PG		34		0		false		page 34				false

		902						LN		34		1		false		            1     certificate agreement.				false

		903						LN		34		2		false		            2                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.				false

		904						LN		34		3		false		            3          Any questions of what's been shared from other				false

		905						LN		34		4		false		            4     Council members?				false

		906						LN		34		5		false		            5                        MR. RYBARIK:  I just want to make				false

		907						LN		34		6		false		            6     sure I heard the dates right in the presentation.  I				false

		908						LN		34		7		false		            7     think it was Katie.  Did you say you've requested				false

		909						LN		34		8		false		            8     review of that by February 2nd?				false

		910						LN		34		9		false		            9                        CHAIR BECKETT:  That was the date.				false

		911						LN		34		10		false		           10                        MS. HALL:  Yes, that is correct.				false

		912						LN		34		11		false		           11                        MR. RYBARIK:  Okay.  So obviously				false

		913						LN		34		12		false		           12     that's before the next EFSEC Council meeting.  So I'm				false

		914						LN		34		13		false		           13     just -- how do we think about lining those -- the				false

		915						LN		34		14		false		           14     request up in our next regularly scheduled meeting?				false

		916						LN		34		15		false		           15                        CHAIR BECKETT:  I think staff are				false

		917						LN		34		16		false		           16     basically, especially on the SEPA review, trying to				false

		918						LN		34		17		false		           17     make sure what's required there.  Generally all of what				false

		919						LN		34		18		false		           18     we're talking about is within the director's delegated				false

		920						LN		34		19		false		           19     authority and would fall more on that side of the -- of				false

		921						LN		34		20		false		           20     the line.  But I think, you know, in general, of				false

		922						LN		34		21		false		           21     course, as an abundance of just transparency and doing				false

		923						LN		34		22		false		           22     work together, surfacing it here is part of that.  And				false

		924						LN		34		23		false		           23     if there's further consideration from the director on				false

		925						LN		34		24		false		           24     the EFSEC Council, any action required, then that would				false

		926						LN		34		25		false		           25     come back --				false

		927						PG		35		0		false		page 35				false

		928						LN		35		1		false		            1                        MR. RYBARIK:  Oh.  Back to us.				false

		929						LN		35		2		false		            2     Okay.  Got it.				false

		930						LN		35		3		false		            3                        CHAIR BECKETT:  I don't know if				false

		931						LN		35		4		false		            4     there's anything else on that?				false

		932						LN		35		5		false		            5                        MS. BUMPUS:  Yes.  Thank you, Chair				false

		933						LN		35		6		false		            6     Beckett.  And we'll provide an update, a more -- I				false

		934						LN		35		7		false		            7     would say comprehensive update to the Council as to				false

		935						LN		35		8		false		            8     what we determine based off this review of the latest				false

		936						LN		35		9		false		            9     submitted material.  So we'll be providing a more				false

		937						LN		35		10		false		           10     detailed update to the Council at that time.  So even				false

		938						LN		35		11		false		           11     though this does fall -- the review is more related to				false

		939						LN		35		12		false		           12     what's required of EFSEC per SEPA, we're still going to				false

		940						LN		35		13		false		           13     be providing an update to the Council as to what we're				false

		941						LN		35		14		false		           14     finding with respect to the SEPA review.				false

		942						LN		35		15		false		           15                        MR. RYBARIK:  Very good.  Thank you.				false

		943						LN		35		16		false		           16                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Appreciate that.				false

		944						LN		35		17		false		           17          And certainly I appreciate the added comment of				false

		945						LN		35		18		false		           18     where the warehouses fit into the larger refueling				false

		946						LN		35		19		false		           19     standard event that goes on with the Columbia				false

		947						LN		35		20		false		           20     Generating Station, all of which is contained within				false

		948						LN		35		21		false		           21     the current SCA that is on the books that's already				false

		949						LN		35		22		false		           22     received the Council approval.  So those details are				false

		950						LN		35		23		false		           23     what they're -- the staff are working through, and, you				false

		951						LN		35		24		false		           24     know, we'll make sure we're all on the same page as				false

		952						LN		35		25		false		           25     to --				false

		953						PG		36		0		false		page 36				false

		954						LN		36		1		false		            1                        MS. BUMPUS:  Yes.				false

		955						LN		36		2		false		            2                        CHAIR BECKETT:  -- what the Council,				false

		956						LN		36		3		false		            3     if anything, needs to be done, so okay.  Very well.				false

		957						LN		36		4		false		            4          And thank you again, Ms. Elsethagen.  And I will				false

		958						LN		36		5		false		            5     still get that pronunciation more consistent over time.				false

		959						LN		36		6		false		            6          So, with that, Goose Prairie Solar.  Nelson Jia.				false

		960						LN		36		7		false		            7                        MR. JIA:  Hi.  Nelson here from				false

		961						LN		36		8		false		            8     Brookfield and Goose Prairie.				false

		962						LN		36		9		false		            9          No nonroutine updates to report.  We did have some				false

		963						LN		36		10		false		           10     curtailment due to BPA work on the Midway-Moxee line				false

		964						LN		36		11		false		           11     for two weeks at the beginning of December, but that's				false

		965						LN		36		12		false		           12     about it.  Thank you.				false

		966						LN		36		13		false		           13                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.				false

		967						LN		36		14		false		           14          Ostrea Solar.  Mr. Voltz.				false

		968						LN		36		15		false		           15                        MR. VOLTZ:  Good afternoon, Chair				false

		969						LN		36		16		false		           16     Beckett, Council members, and staff.  This is John				false

		970						LN		36		17		false		           17     Voltz with Cypress Creek Renewables representing Ostrea				false

		971						LN		36		18		false		           18     solar facility.				false

		972						LN		36		19		false		           19          In the month of December, the O&M facility				false

		973						LN		36		20		false		           20     continued construction.  We did achieve mechanical				false

		974						LN		36		21		false		           21     completion of both the PV and HV facilities, made				false

		975						LN		36		22		false		           22     preparations to receive backfeed energy from the				false

		976						LN		36		23		false		           23     utility this month.  That did occur.  It will be in our				false

		977						LN		36		24		false		           24     next report.  But major milestone accomplished there in				false

		978						LN		36		25		false		           25     the construction of the facility.				false

		979						PG		37		0		false		page 37				false

		980						LN		37		1		false		            1          I'd also like to draw attention to the charitable				false

		981						LN		37		2		false		            2     work.  Some of the site team donated some time to the				false

		982						LN		37		3		false		            3     Sunrise Outreach Food Bank, helped their storage				false

		983						LN		37		4		false		            4     cleanup, food organizing, and handing out the donated				false

		984						LN		37		5		false		            5     food for local area I believe that's in Yakima.  Other				false

		985						LN		37		6		false		            6     than that, there's nothing nonroutine to report for the				false

		986						LN		37		7		false		            7     period.				false

		987						LN		37		8		false		            8                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very much,				false

		988						LN		37		9		false		            9     as well as for the additional detail.				false

		989						LN		37		10		false		           10          All right.  I believe that then brings the				false

		990						LN		37		11		false		           11     Carriger Solar project update.  And Joanne Snarski is				false

		991						LN		37		12		false		           12     here to provide that update.				false

		992						LN		37		13		false		           13                        MS. SNARSKI:  Thank you, Chair				false

		993						LN		37		14		false		           14     Beckett and Council members.  This is Joanne Snarski,				false

		994						LN		37		15		false		           15     the siting specialist for Carriger Solar facility in				false

		995						LN		37		16		false		           16     Klickitat County.				false

		996						LN		37		17		false		           17          On December 2nd, 2025, the governor's office				false

		997						LN		37		18		false		           18     notified Chair Beckett that the chair -- excuse me --				false

		998						LN		37		19		false		           19     that the Carriger Solar site certification agreement				false

		999						LN		37		20		false		           20     was approved by Governor Ferguson.  The agreement was				false

		1000						LN		37		21		false		           21     executed by both parties and became effective on				false

		1001						LN		37		22		false		           22     December 15th, 2025.				false

		1002						LN		37		23		false		           23          On December 31st, 2025, the Confederated Tribes				false

		1003						LN		37		24		false		           24     and Bands of the Yakama Nation filed a petition for				false

		1004						LN		37		25		false		           25     judicial review of the Council and governor's approval				false

		1005						PG		38		0		false		page 38				false

		1006						LN		38		1		false		            1     for the site certification.				false

		1007						LN		38		2		false		            2          EFSEC staff are working with our assistant				false

		1008						LN		38		3		false		            3     attorneys general to respond to this filing.  In the				false

		1009						LN		38		4		false		            4     meantime, we are continuing to discuss Carriger's				false

		1010						LN		38		5		false		            5     timing for submitting the plans required in the site				false

		1011						LN		38		6		false		            6     certification agreement.				false

		1012						LN		38		7		false		            7          May I answer any questions?				false

		1013						LN		38		8		false		            8                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council members.				false

		1014						LN		38		9		false		            9     Comments or questions.  Straightforward for today.				false

		1015						LN		38		10		false		           10          Oh.  Council Chiles.  I didn't see you join.  Good				false

		1016						LN		38		11		false		           11     to -- good to have you here.  Please proceed.  But				false

		1017						LN		38		12		false		           12     we're not hearing you so far if you are speaking.				false

		1018						LN		38		13		false		           13          Still not getting anything in the room, Council				false

		1019						LN		38		14		false		           14     Chiles.				false

		1020						LN		38		15		false		           15          All right.  Well, I'll tell you what.  If Council				false

		1021						LN		38		16		false		           16     Chiles pops back in, we can hear you, then certainly we				false

		1022						LN		38		17		false		           17     will take those comments.  Otherwise, we'll move on to				false

		1023						LN		38		18		false		           18     the next project for now.				false

		1024						LN		38		19		false		           19          Ms. Grantham, let me know if that technical issue				false

		1025						LN		38		20		false		           20     gets further clarified.				false

		1026						LN		38		21		false		           21                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Yeah, I'm not sure if				false

		1027						LN		38		22		false		           22     there's much we can do on our end.  It's showing that				false

		1028						LN		38		23		false		           23     he's unmuted, but we're just not able to hear him --				false

		1029						LN		38		24		false		           24                        CHAIR BECKETT:  It's probably --				false

		1030						LN		38		25		false		           25                        MS. GRANTHAM:  -- for some reason,				false

		1031						PG		39		0		false		page 39				false

		1032						LN		39		1		false		            1     yeah.				false

		1033						LN		39		2		false		            2                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Probably on his end.				false

		1034						LN		39		3		false		            3     Okay.  So, Council Chiles, since we're going to move				false

		1035						LN		39		4		false		            4     into Horse Heaven, let me see if -- one last chance for				false

		1036						LN		39		5		false		            5     now.  I think he dropped off.  Okay.				false

		1037						LN		39		6		false		            6                        MR. RYBARIK:  And log back in.				false

		1038						LN		39		7		false		            7                        CHAIR BECKETT:  So we'll keep an eye				false

		1039						LN		39		8		false		            8     out for Council Chiles.  But in the meantime, let's				false

		1040						LN		39		9		false		            9     proceed to the Horse Heaven project update.  And we				false

		1041						LN		39		10		false		           10     have the ferruginous hawk nest mitigation plan that Amy				false

		1042						LN		39		11		false		           11     Moon is going to make a presentation on.  I will first				false

		1043						LN		39		12		false		           12     though just note that, given my larger recusal on Horse				false

		1044						LN		39		13		false		           13     Heaven, I have the honor and appreciation of handing				false

		1045						LN		39		14		false		           14     the gavel on this particular item to Council Pamplin.				false

		1046						LN		39		15		false		           15          And I would note just for the benefits of my				false

		1047						LN		39		16		false		           16     Council members and members of the public, even though				false

		1048						LN		39		17		false		           17     I have recused, I'm not participating as a Council				false

		1049						LN		39		18		false		           18     member on this particular action, I have read all the				false

		1050						LN		39		19		false		           19     materials.  I have read all the public comments.				false

		1051						LN		39		20		false		           20     They're important to me, including just these issues				false

		1052						LN		39		21		false		           21     mapped to other projects.  And so I'm certainly trying				false

		1053						LN		39		22		false		           22     to keep running alongside you so that I can be a better				false

		1054						LN		39		23		false		           23     chair when the next issue comes up for me directly.				false

		1055						LN		39		24		false		           24          So, with that, Council Pamplin.  And soon we'll				false

		1056						LN		39		25		false		           25     turn this to Ms. Moon for the update to get started.				false

		1057						PG		40		0		false		page 40				false

		1058						LN		40		1		false		            1                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Great.  Thank you,				false

		1059						LN		40		2		false		            2     Mr. Chair.				false

		1060						LN		40		3		false		            3          Ms. Moon, go ahead and proceed, please.  Thank				false

		1061						LN		40		4		false		            4     you.				false

		1062						LN		40		5		false		            5                        MS. MOON:  All right.  Good				false

		1063						LN		40		6		false		            6     afternoon.  Thank you, Acting Chair Pamplin, and to the				false

		1064						LN		40		7		false		            7     EFSEC Council members.				false

		1065						LN		40		8		false		            8          As required in the Horse Heaven site certification				false

		1066						LN		40		9		false		            9     agreement, or SCA, development and approval of a				false

		1067						LN		40		10		false		           10     mitigation and management plan is required under				false

		1068						LN		40		11		false		           11     Mitigation Measure Species-5, ferruginous hawk, when				false

		1069						LN		40		12		false		           12     project components are proposed for siting within the				false

		1070						LN		40		13		false		           13     two-mile core ferruginous hawk habitat.  The				false

		1071						LN		40		14		false		           14     certificate holder worked with the preoperational				false

		1072						LN		40		15		false		           15     technical advisory group, or PTAG -- P-T-A-G -- to				false

		1073						LN		40		16		false		           16     develop a project-specific ferruginous hawk mitigation				false

		1074						LN		40		17		false		           17     and management plan for approval by EFSEC.  This plan				false

		1075						LN		40		18		false		           18     received PTAG consensus prior to submitting the				false

		1076						LN		40		19		false		           19     mitigation plan to EFSEC.				false

		1077						LN		40		20		false		           20          The ferruginous hawk nests mitigation plan				false

		1078						LN		40		21		false		           21     includes the four fundamental requirements stated in				false

		1079						LN		40		22		false		           22     Spec 5.  No. 1 is a description of efforts to site				false

		1080						LN		40		23		false		           23     project infrastructure to avoid core habitat,				false

		1081						LN		40		24		false		           24     identified as the area within two miles of nests				false

		1082						LN		40		25		false		           25     documented in the priority habitats and species				false

		1083						PG		41		0		false		page 41				false

		1084						LN		41		1		false		            1     database.  That's the PHS database.				false

		1085						LN		41		2		false		            2          No. 2, a description of when construction				false

		1086						LN		41		3		false		            3     activities will be undertaken to avoid sensitive timing				false

		1087						LN		41		4		false		            4     periods for ferruginous hawk.				false

		1088						LN		41		5		false		            5          No. 3, a description of pre- and post-monitoring				false

		1089						LN		41		6		false		            6     programs that will be conducted to establish habitat				false

		1090						LN		41		7		false		            7     use within the lease boundary, mapping of ground				false

		1091						LN		41		8		false		            8     squirrel colonies and other prey, identification of				false

		1092						LN		41		9		false		            9     potential flyways between nest sites and foraging				false

		1093						LN		41		10		false		           10     habitat and monitoring of potential flyways to inform				false

		1094						LN		41		11		false		           11     the final turbine siting and orientation, ongoing				false

		1095						LN		41		12		false		           12     monitoring of nest use, and territory success.				false

		1096						LN		41		13		false		           13          And, No. 4, a description of restoration				false

		1097						LN		41		14		false		           14     activities that will be undertaken during project				false

		1098						LN		41		15		false		           15     decommissioning to enhance ferruginous hawk habitat in				false

		1099						LN		41		16		false		           16     disturbed areas.				false

		1100						LN		41		17		false		           17          Staff reviewed the proposed plan and posted a copy				false

		1101						LN		41		18		false		           18     of the ferruginous hawk nest mitigation plan to the				false

		1102						LN		41		19		false		           19     EFSEC public website for a 14-day public comment period				false

		1103						LN		41		20		false		           20     from December 30th, 2025, through January 12 of 2026.				false

		1104						LN		41		21		false		           21     EFSEC received a total of 32 comments.				false

		1105						LN		41		22		false		           22          EFSEC's State Environmental Policy Act specialist,				false

		1106						LN		41		23		false		           23     Sean Greene, is here to provide a summary of the				false

		1107						LN		41		24		false		           24     Species-5 ferruginous hawk nest mitigation plan and				false

		1108						LN		41		25		false		           25     information on the comments received during the recent				false

		1109						PG		42		0		false		page 42				false

		1110						LN		42		1		false		            1     public comment period on that plan.				false

		1111						LN		42		2		false		            2          Sean.				false

		1112						LN		42		3		false		            3                        MR. GREENE:  Thank you, Amy.  And				false

		1113						LN		42		4		false		            4     thank you, Acting Chair Pamplin and Council members.				false

		1114						LN		42		5		false		            5     This is Sean Greene, SEPA specialist for EFSEC.				false

		1115						LN		42		6		false		            6          I wanted to give you-all a brief or maybe				false

		1116						LN		42		7		false		            7     not-so-brief rundown of what was included the Horse				false

		1117						LN		42		8		false		            8     Heaven ferruginous hawk nest management plan and				false

		1118						LN		42		9		false		            9     discuss some of the substantive comments we received				false

		1119						LN		42		10		false		           10     during the public comment period.				false

		1120						LN		42		11		false		           11          The nest management plan adopts all of the				false

		1121						LN		42		12		false		           12     ferruginous hawk mitigation outlined in the Horse				false

		1122						LN		42		13		false		           13     Heaven wind farm draft habitat mitigation plan from the				false

		1123						LN		42		14		false		           14     application for site certification, including				false

		1124						LN		42		15		false		           15     compensatory habitat mitigation.  It furthermore				false

		1125						LN		42		16		false		           16     includes a commitment to protect an area that supports				false

		1126						LN		42		17		false		           17     sufficient ferruginous hawk habitat that will achieve				false

		1127						LN		42		18		false		           18     mitigation acreage targets defined by the mitigation				false

		1128						LN		42		19		false		           19     ratios set by EFSEC.				false

		1129						LN		42		20		false		           20          It discusses the potential installation of				false

		1130						LN		42		21		false		           21     artificial nesting platforms in areas with specific				false

		1131						LN		42		22		false		           22     site conditions and where WDFW staff believe that there				false

		1132						LN		42		23		false		           23     is a high confidence that those platforms could be used				false

		1133						LN		42		24		false		           24     by ferruginous hawks.				false

		1134						LN		42		25		false		           25          It formalizes the monitoring plan put forth in the				false

		1135						PG		43		0		false		page 43				false

		1136						LN		43		1		false		            1     final EIS to perform nest and mortality surveys for				false

		1137						LN		43		2		false		            2     three of the first five years of project operation.				false

		1138						LN		43		3		false		            3     And, finally, it commits to a curtailment of turbine				false

		1139						LN		43		4		false		            4     operations during daylight hours within two miles of an				false

		1140						LN		43		5		false		            5     active nest unless a qualified biologist with WDFW and				false

		1141						LN		43		6		false		            6     EFSEC approval determines that the turbines are outside				false

		1142						LN		43		7		false		            7     of the foraging areas for those nests or the				false

		1143						LN		43		8		false		            8     certificate holder makes use of an automated				false

		1144						LN		43		9		false		            9     curtailment technology that responds to ferruginous				false

		1145						LN		43		10		false		           10     hawk presence.				false

		1146						LN		43		11		false		           11          As Amy mentioned, this plan was reviewed by the				false

		1147						LN		43		12		false		           12     pre-operational technical advisory group, or PTAG, and				false

		1148						LN		43		13		false		           13     approved by that group prior to being submitted for				false

		1149						LN		43		14		false		           14     public comment.				false

		1150						LN		43		15		false		           15          During that comment period, 32 comments were				false

		1151						LN		43		16		false		           16     received, and substantive comments generally fell				false

		1152						LN		43		17		false		           17     within one of six arguments that I'd like to run you				false

		1153						LN		43		18		false		           18     through.				false

		1154						LN		43		19		false		           19          First, there was an argument presented that EFSEC				false

		1155						LN		43		20		false		           20     should impose financial penalties for each incident of				false

		1156						LN		43		21		false		           21     injury or mortality to a ferruginous hawk.  Staff is				false

		1157						LN		43		22		false		           22     not recommending that this change be incorporated.				false

		1158						LN		43		23		false		           23     Apart from the questionable legality of EFSEC				false

		1159						LN		43		24		false		           24     establishing fines for wildlife take, EFSEC staff is				false

		1160						LN		43		25		false		           25     confident that the exclusion areas imposed around all				false

		1161						PG		44		0		false		page 44				false

		1162						LN		44		1		false		            1     historic nests, the management measures in this plan,				false

		1163						LN		44		2		false		            2     and the mortality adaptive management strategies that				false

		1164						LN		44		3		false		            3     are currently being developed by the certificate holder				false

		1165						LN		44		4		false		            4     for future PTAG and EFSEC review are sufficient to				false

		1166						LN		44		5		false		            5     address direct ferruginous hawk mortality.				false

		1167						LN		44		6		false		            6          The second argument that was -- was that the				false

		1168						LN		44		7		false		            7     artificial nesting platforms discussed as a mitigation				false

		1169						LN		44		8		false		            8     option in this plan should instead be made mandatory.				false

		1170						LN		44		9		false		            9     Staff is not recommending that this change be				false

		1171						LN		44		10		false		           10     incorporated.  In our development of mitigation and				false

		1172						LN		44		11		false		           11     discussions with WDFW staff throughout the				false

		1173						LN		44		12		false		           12     environmental review of this project, artificial				false

		1174						LN		44		13		false		           13     nesting platforms have been seen as having a limited				false

		1175						LN		44		14		false		           14     and situation-specific mitigative effect.  The primary				false

		1176						LN		44		15		false		           15     factors responsible for declining ferruginous hawk				false

		1177						LN		44		16		false		           16     population numbers are habitat conversion and reduction				false

		1178						LN		44		17		false		           17     in prey species availability, neither of which are				false

		1179						LN		44		18		false		           18     necessarily addressed by installing artificial				false

		1180						LN		44		19		false		           19     platforms.				false

		1181						LN		44		20		false		           20          Thirdly, several commenters argued that the annual				false

		1182						LN		44		21		false		           21     operation phase nesting surveys should continue				false

		1183						LN		44		22		false		           22     throughout the life of the project rather than for				false

		1184						LN		44		23		false		           23     the -- rather than for three of the first five years as				false

		1185						LN		44		24		false		           24     currently proposed.  EFSEC staff is not recommending				false

		1186						LN		44		25		false		           25     that this change be incorporated.  The nesting survey				false

		1187						PG		45		0		false		page 45				false

		1188						LN		45		1		false		            1     plan proposed in the EIS and included in this plan is				false

		1189						LN		45		2		false		            2     functionally consistent with WDFW guidelines and was				false

		1190						LN		45		3		false		            3     developed in concert with WDFW staff and technical				false

		1191						LN		45		4		false		            4     experts on the PTAG.  As a result, staff believes that				false

		1192						LN		45		5		false		            5     this plan, in combination with the exclusion areas and				false

		1193						LN		45		6		false		            6     adaptive management strategies, is sufficient to				false

		1194						LN		45		7		false		            7     address ferruginous hawk impacts.				false

		1195						LN		45		8		false		            8          The fourth argument that we received was one that				false

		1196						LN		45		9		false		            9     claim that the habitat mitigation ratios that EFSEC				false

		1197						LN		45		10		false		           10     developed with WDFW for this project should be updated				false

		1198						LN		45		11		false		           11     to reflect the ratios presented in the WDFW wind and				false

		1199						LN		45		12		false		           12     solar guidelines that were published about four months				false

		1200						LN		45		13		false		           13     ago.  Staff is not recommending that this change be				false

		1201						LN		45		14		false		           14     incorporated.  The habitat mitigation ratios applied to				false

		1202						LN		45		15		false		           15     this project exceeded the standard WDFW guidelines at				false

		1203						LN		45		16		false		           16     the time of review and were developed to specifically				false

		1204						LN		45		17		false		           17     address habitat impacts to this project -- or from this				false

		1205						LN		45		18		false		           18     project by EFSEC staff, WDFW staff, and independent				false

		1206						LN		45		19		false		           19     consultants.				false

		1207						LN		45		20		false		           20          Furthermore, the ratios presented in the recent				false

		1208						LN		45		21		false		           21     guidelines are explicitly identified as preliminary				false

		1209						LN		45		22		false		           22     recommendations, with the guidelines assuming some				false

		1210						LN		45		23		false		           23     level of collaboration between developers, permitting				false

		1211						LN		45		24		false		           24     authorities, and WDFW to arrive at project-specific				false

		1212						LN		45		25		false		           25     ratios that are appropriate, which is reflective of the				false

		1213						PG		46		0		false		page 46				false

		1214						LN		46		1		false		            1     process that EFSEC went through to devise the current				false

		1215						LN		46		2		false		            2     ratios.  Changing the ratios at this time would also				false

		1216						LN		46		3		false		            3     require an SCA amendment, which is not something that				false

		1217						LN		46		4		false		            4     EFSEC can unilaterally impose.				false

		1218						LN		46		5		false		            5          No. 5 was an argument that the certificate holder				false

		1219						LN		46		6		false		            6     should be required to use automated detection systems				false

		1220						LN		46		7		false		            7     with turbine curtailment triggered by observations				false

		1221						LN		46		8		false		            8     rather than it being considered an option as in the				false

		1222						LN		46		9		false		            9     proposed plan.  Staff do not recommend incorporating				false

		1223						LN		46		10		false		           10     this change.  As discussed in the plan, these systems				false

		1224						LN		46		11		false		           11     lack the capability for species-specific identification				false

		1225						LN		46		12		false		           12     at this time.  Requiring the certificate holder to				false

		1226						LN		46		13		false		           13     install and use these systems at this time could result				false

		1227						LN		46		14		false		           14     in turbine curtailment at any -- any time any raptor				false

		1228						LN		46		15		false		           15     species of similar size and/or shape to a ferruginous				false

		1229						LN		46		16		false		           16     hawk is observed, which exceeds the intent of this				false

		1230						LN		46		17		false		           17     mitigation plan.  The plan discusses the potential use				false

		1231						LN		46		18		false		           18     of these systems in concert with observed ferruginous				false

		1232						LN		46		19		false		           19     hawk activity when practical and when further				false

		1233						LN		46		20		false		           20     developed, and EFSEC staff believes that the				false

		1234						LN		46		21		false		           21     consideration -- these considerations to be appropriate				false

		1235						LN		46		22		false		           22     in the proposed plan.				false

		1236						LN		46		23		false		           23          The final substantial argument was for EFSEC to				false

		1237						LN		46		24		false		           24     require that one blade of each turbine be painted black				false

		1238						LN		46		25		false		           25     to reduce ferruginous hawk collisions.  Staff is not				false

		1239						PG		47		0		false		page 47				false

		1240						LN		47		1		false		            1     recommending that this change be incorporated.  While				false

		1241						LN		47		2		false		            2     this novel mitigation technique has seen promising,				false

		1242						LN		47		3		false		            3     though varied, results in recent studies, it is still				false

		1243						LN		47		4		false		            4     too experimental at this time to be required as a				false

		1244						LN		47		5		false		            5     mitigation measure.  There are still engineering				false

		1245						LN		47		6		false		            6     questions related to the long-term effects of increased				false

		1246						LN		47		7		false		            7     heat retention that the black-painted blades will				false

		1247						LN		47		8		false		            8     experience and whether painting the blades with				false

		1248						LN		47		9		false		            9     carbon-based paint affects their reaction to lightning				false

		1249						LN		47		10		false		           10     strikes.				false

		1250						LN		47		11		false		           11          Furthermore, wind turbines are painted white, in				false

		1251						LN		47		12		false		           12     part, to make them blend in better with the sky when				false

		1252						LN		47		13		false		           13     viewed from the ground.  There is a risk that the				false

		1253						LN		47		14		false		           14     visual analysis and impact determinations made by EFSEC				false

		1254						LN		47		15		false		           15     for the all-white turbines may not be accurate to the				false

		1255						LN		47		16		false		           16     visual aesthetic impacts the viewers would experience				false

		1256						LN		47		17		false		           17     from turbines that are partially black.				false

		1257						LN		47		18		false		           18          It is unclear whether the positive benefit of				false

		1258						LN		47		19		false		           19     potential reductions in ferruginous hawk collisions				false

		1259						LN		47		20		false		           20     would justify the increased adverse impacts to visual				false

		1260						LN		47		21		false		           21     aesthetics.  Also, as I mentioned before, EFSEC staff				false

		1261						LN		47		22		false		           22     is confident that the suite of mitigation developed for				false

		1262						LN		47		23		false		           23     this project sufficiently addresses the potential for				false

		1263						LN		47		24		false		           24     direct mortality impacts to the ferruginous hawk.				false

		1264						LN		47		25		false		           25          And apart from these substantive comments, there				false

		1265						PG		48		0		false		page 48				false

		1266						LN		48		1		false		            1     were several editorial comments that staff will				false

		1267						LN		48		2		false		            2     recommend for incorporation into the final plan.  These				false

		1268						LN		48		3		false		            3     include edits such as adding a citation to WAC				false

		1269						LN		48		4		false		            4     197-11-768, wherein "mitigation" is defined; replacing				false

		1270						LN		48		5		false		            5     the word "flyways" with the phrase "flight pathways";				false

		1271						LN		48		6		false		            6     including more detail on the length of the habitat				false

		1272						LN		48		7		false		            7     monitoring programs; and adding clarification that nest				false

		1273						LN		48		8		false		            8     surveys will be performed by qualified biologists.				false

		1274						LN		48		9		false		            9     These modifications would not affect the substance of				false

		1275						LN		48		10		false		           10     the plan.				false

		1276						LN		48		11		false		           11          Are there any questions from Council members				false

		1277						LN		48		12		false		           12     before I hand things back to Amy?				false

		1278						LN		48		13		false		           13                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Not seeing any.  No.				false

		1279						LN		48		14		false		           14          Go ahead, Mr. Rybarik.				false

		1280						LN		48		15		false		           15                        MR. RYBARIK:  I think I've got a				false

		1281						LN		48		16		false		           16     few, so --				false

		1282						LN		48		17		false		           17                        MR. GREENE:  Sure.				false

		1283						LN		48		18		false		           18                        MR. RYBARIK:  -- thanks, Sean and				false

		1284						LN		48		19		false		           19     Amy, for the -- for the updates there.  Appreciate				false

		1285						LN		48		20		false		           20     the -- one of my questions was on WAC 197-11-768.				false

		1286						LN		48		21		false		           21     Sounds like there will be references to that				false

		1287						LN		48		22		false		           22     specifically in there and the updates to some of the				false

		1288						LN		48		23		false		           23     terminology.  Good to see.				false

		1289						LN		48		24		false		           24          On the artificial nesting platforms, I think				false

		1290						LN		48		25		false		           25     the -- the issue that was raised is should it be				false

		1291						PG		49		0		false		page 49				false

		1292						LN		49		1		false		            1     mandatory or not.  I just -- I wonder -- functionally,				false

		1293						LN		49		2		false		            2     as I was reading through the comments and the				false

		1294						LN		49		3		false		            3     materials, I got to, well, how do we get to a point				false

		1295						LN		49		4		false		            4     where, looking at this in a very specific way, that a				false

		1296						LN		49		5		false		            5     wildlife biologist from W -- from Fish and Wildlife				false

		1297						LN		49		6		false		            6     would be able to say, "Actually it makes sense to do it				false

		1298						LN		49		7		false		            7     in this circumstance.  Developer, please do that"?				false

		1299						LN		49		8		false		            8          How do we get to -- how do we assure that that is				false

		1300						LN		49		9		false		            9     the way this is going to work?  Because that seems to				false

		1301						LN		49		10		false		           10     make logical sense in my mind.				false

		1302						LN		49		11		false		           11                        MR. GREENE:  Sure.  I can look at				false

		1303						LN		49		12		false		           12     the exact language used in the plan.  But in the plan,				false

		1304						LN		49		13		false		           13     they do discuss the potential for use of artificial				false

		1305						LN		49		14		false		           14     nesting platforms in the areas that are meant to				false

		1306						LN		49		15		false		           15     represent compensatory habitat mitigation, the -- the				false

		1307						LN		49		16		false		           16     areas of conservation.				false

		1308						LN		49		17		false		           17          And the criteria that the applicant had -- or I'm				false

		1309						LN		49		18		false		           18     sorry -- the certificate holder had proposed in the				false

		1310						LN		49		19		false		           19     plan included sufficient foraging habitat for the				false

		1311						LN		49		20		false		           20     species, the lack of nesting sites in that area, and				false

		1312						LN		49		21		false		           21     consultation with WDFW staff to ensure that there is a				false

		1313						LN		49		22		false		           22     high likelihood of the use of those platforms by the				false

		1314						LN		49		23		false		           23     ferruginous hawk.				false

		1315						LN		49		24		false		           24          The -- the only concern with implementing, like, a				false

		1316						LN		49		25		false		           25     minimum number of artificial nesting platforms that				false

		1317						PG		50		0		false		page 50				false

		1318						LN		50		1		false		            1     must be put up is it's very much dependent on what is				false

		1319						LN		50		2		false		            2     available in the area and whether there is a pressing				false

		1320						LN		50		3		false		            3     need for those, and the costs associated with				false

		1321						LN		50		4		false		            4     installing those could be better assigned to actually				false

		1322						LN		50		5		false		            5     protecting more habitat.				false

		1323						LN		50		6		false		            6          But it's staff's opinion that the description in				false

		1324						LN		50		7		false		            7     the current -- the proposed plan of those platforms				false

		1325						LN		50		8		false		            8     being as an option for further mitigation is				false

		1326						LN		50		9		false		            9     appropriate.  If -- if there's a Council desire to see				false

		1327						LN		50		10		false		           10     a minimum, though, we can...				false

		1328						LN		50		11		false		           11                        MR. RYBARIK:  Yeah, I guess the only				false

		1329						LN		50		12		false		           12     thought that I had for amendment is if WDFW staff says				false

		1330						LN		50		13		false		           13     here is a situation where that makes sense -- let's say				false

		1331						LN		50		14		false		           14     there's a tree that had a nest in it that is somehow				false

		1332						LN		50		15		false		           15     felled.  Who knows how, whatever.  To say here's a				false

		1333						LN		50		16		false		           16     example where it would make sense to put up an				false

		1334						LN		50		17		false		           17     artificial nest.  It's kind of a thou shall follow				false

		1335						LN		50		18		false		           18     WDFW's -- instead of a consultation with them, it's if				false

		1336						LN		50		19		false		           19     they come and say here is an example where thou shall				false

		1337						LN		50		20		false		           20     do that, that it gets included in this -- in this				false

		1338						LN		50		21		false		           21     mitigation plan, that that is an option that Fish and				false

		1339						LN		50		22		false		           22     Wildlife has.  I don't know if I'm sort of explaining				false

		1340						LN		50		23		false		           23     that circumstance well, but that --				false

		1341						LN		50		24		false		           24                        MR. GREENE:  Yeah.				false

		1342						LN		50		25		false		           25                        MR. RYBARIK:  -- to me is -- there's				false

		1343						PG		51		0		false		page 51				false

		1344						LN		51		1		false		            1     this limited circumstance where I think a biologist				false

		1345						LN		51		2		false		            2     would say, That makes sense.  Go do that.  And if --				false

		1346						LN		51		3		false		            3     the way I read the mitigation plan right now, they				false

		1347						LN		51		4		false		            4     could say, Thanks for the consultation; we don't think				false

		1348						LN		51		5		false		            5     it's necessary.				false

		1349						LN		51		6		false		            6                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  So if I might add				false

		1350						LN		51		7		false		            7     some information here.				false

		1351						LN		51		8		false		            8          So part of the adaptive management is, because				false

		1352						LN		51		9		false		            9     EFSEC is the enforcement agency rather than DFW, we				false

		1353						LN		51		10		false		           10     retain the authority to impose that, again with				false

		1354						LN		51		11		false		           11     consultation with DFW as, you know, having the in-house				false

		1355						LN		51		12		false		           12     species subject matter experts.  But if something is to				false

		1356						LN		51		13		false		           13     arise where DF -- WDFW indicates that it is appropriate				false

		1357						LN		51		14		false		           14     to go ahead and install an artificial nest platform,				false

		1358						LN		51		15		false		           15     that authority to propose that would reside with EFSEC.				false

		1359						LN		51		16		false		           16                        MR. GREENE:  And I think we could				false

		1360						LN		51		17		false		           17     add language to the plan to make that -- that				false

		1361						LN		51		18		false		           18     relationship more clear.				false

		1362						LN		51		19		false		           19                        MS. BUMPUS:  Mm-hmm.				false

		1363						LN		51		20		false		           20                        MR. GREENE:  If that's a change we				false

		1364						LN		51		21		false		           21     wanted to make.				false

		1365						LN		51		22		false		           22                        MS. BUMPUS:  Right.				false

		1366						LN		51		23		false		           23                        MR. RYBARIK:  And so I just want to				false

		1367						LN		51		24		false		           24     make sure I understand.  Ami, what you're saying is, if				false

		1368						LN		51		25		false		           25     that circumstance arise, WDFW would come to EFSEC and				false

		1369						PG		52		0		false		page 52				false

		1370						LN		52		1		false		            1     say, Here's the situation where an artificial nest				false

		1371						LN		52		2		false		            2     makes sense.  EFSEC, please impose that requirement on				false

		1372						LN		52		3		false		            3     the -- on the developer.				false

		1373						LN		52		4		false		            4                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Correct.				false

		1374						LN		52		5		false		            5                        MR. RYBARIK:  This plan allows for				false

		1375						LN		52		6		false		            6     that chain of events to happen and the artificial nest				false

		1376						LN		52		7		false		            7     to get put in place.				false

		1377						LN		52		8		false		            8                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Correct.  Both the				false

		1378						LN		52		9		false		            9     PTAG as the pre-operational as well as the --				false

		1379						LN		52		10		false		           10                        MR. RYBARIK:  TAC.				false

		1380						LN		52		11		false		           11                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  -- the TAC will				false

		1381						LN		52		12		false		           12     continue to be in coordination and monitoring these				false

		1382						LN		52		13		false		           13     activities.  So we anticipate continued communication				false

		1383						LN		52		14		false		           14     on these subjects throughout the life of the facility.				false

		1384						LN		52		15		false		           15                        MR. RYBARIK:  Okay.  I think I have				false

		1385						LN		52		16		false		           16     some comfort there, but just --				false

		1386						LN		52		17		false		           17                        MR. GREENE:  Yeah.				false

		1387						LN		52		18		false		           18                        MR. RYBARIK:  Go ahead, Sean.				false

		1388						LN		52		19		false		           19                        MR. GREENE:  Sorry.  I didn't mean				false

		1389						LN		52		20		false		           20     to interrupt.				false

		1390						LN		52		21		false		           21          One additional point is the final plan for the				false

		1391						LN		52		22		false		           22     compensatory mitigation has yet to be fully developed,				false

		1392						LN		52		23		false		           23     and that will, as Amy mentioned, go through the PTAG or				false

		1393						LN		52		24		false		           24     the -- yeah, it will be the PTAG at that point and come				false

		1394						LN		52		25		false		           25     to EFSEC for approval, and that will include the				false

		1395						PG		53		0		false		page 53				false

		1396						LN		53		1		false		            1     applicant's formal proposal on whether or not they're				false

		1397						LN		53		2		false		            2     going to install artificial nesting platforms and				false

		1398						LN		53		3		false		            3     where.  So that would be a point where EFSEC can use				false

		1399						LN		53		4		false		            4     our regulatory authority to determine whether there				false

		1400						LN		53		5		false		            5     should or should not be some added.				false

		1401						LN		53		6		false		            6                        MR. RYBARIK:  I have a couple other				false

		1402						LN		53		7		false		            7     questions along -- I'm just going to go down the				false

		1403						LN		53		8		false		            8     list in --				false

		1404						LN		53		9		false		            9                        MR. GREENE:  Sure.				false

		1405						LN		53		10		false		           10                        MR. RYBARIK:  -- order that you had				false

		1406						LN		53		11		false		           11     them.				false

		1407						LN		53		12		false		           12          On the annual, I guess it's monitoring --				false

		1408						LN		53		13		false		           13                        MR. GREENE:  Mm-hmm.				false

		1409						LN		53		14		false		           14                        MR. RYBARIK:  -- the way the plan				false

		1410						LN		53		15		false		           15     reads now, it's three of the first five years.				false

		1411						LN		53		16		false		           16     Intuitively, I thought of it seems like the first years				false

		1412						LN		53		17		false		           17     of operation are going to be the most critical.  And so				false

		1413						LN		53		18		false		           18     I just wondered if there's appetite to be a little bit				false

		1414						LN		53		19		false		           19     more, I guess, prescriptive in this one is -- is all of				false

		1415						LN		53		20		false		           20     those five years makes some sense to me that there				false

		1416						LN		53		21		false		           21     would be monitoring in each of the five years rather				false

		1417						LN		53		22		false		           22     than three of the five years.  Certainly the first				false

		1418						LN		53		23		false		           23     three years makes a little bit of intuitive sense to				false

		1419						LN		53		24		false		           24     me.				false

		1420						LN		53		25		false		           25          I just wonder how it gets landed at three of the				false

		1421						PG		54		0		false		page 54				false

		1422						LN		54		1		false		            1     first five with -- I recognize the flexibility there,				false

		1423						LN		54		2		false		            2     but I just wonder from a species mitigation perspective				false

		1424						LN		54		3		false		            3     if we shouldn't think about that a little differently.				false

		1425						LN		54		4		false		            4                        MR. GREENE:  Yeah, so that was a				false

		1426						LN		54		5		false		            5     proposal that we developed in our consultation with				false

		1427						LN		54		6		false		            6     WDFW staff.  Their typical recommendation is for the				false

		1428						LN		54		7		false		            7     first three years of operation.  In our discussions,				false

		1429						LN		54		8		false		            8     we -- we considered whether it might be more helpful to				false

		1430						LN		54		9		false		            9     add that wider range so to capture a larger period of				false

		1431						LN		54		10		false		           10     time but still not exceeding the three years of total				false

		1432						LN		54		11		false		           11     surveys.				false

		1433						LN		54		12		false		           12          In the, I think, six years that the -- the				false

		1434						LN		54		13		false		           13     certificate holder has run nesting surveys in this area				false

		1435						LN		54		14		false		           14     to this point, there's been one active nest observed.				false

		1436						LN		54		15		false		           15     So given the -- the rarity of an active nest, going for				false

		1437						LN		54		16		false		           16     more years was -- was seen as a way to -- to				false

		1438						LN		54		17		false		           17     potentially capture an active nest with, you know, the				false

		1439						LN		54		18		false		           18     higher likelihood of either seeing an active nest or				false

		1440						LN		54		19		false		           19     evidence that the site had been -- that there had been				false

		1441						LN		54		20		false		           20     an active nest in one of the off years, so that was				false

		1442						LN		54		21		false		           21     the -- the justification.				false

		1443						LN		54		22		false		           22                        MR. RYBARIK:  Appreciate that.  And				false

		1444						LN		54		23		false		           23     I guess I just don't know what -- what's the -- is				false

		1445						LN		54		24		false		           24     there -- I don't know what the cost is of running an				false

		1446						LN		54		25		false		           25     annual program for five years versus three of five,				false

		1447						PG		55		0		false		page 55				false

		1448						LN		55		1		false		            1     what the significance of that is.  Maybe that's some				false

		1449						LN		55		2		false		            2     context you could enlighten me with.				false

		1450						LN		55		3		false		            3                        MR. GREENE:  I don't have the cost				false

		1451						LN		55		4		false		            4     numbers available, but we can look into that.				false

		1452						LN		55		5		false		            5                        MS. BUMPUS:  We can certainly follow				false

		1453						LN		55		6		false		            6     up with some ideas for that.  You know, the				false

		1454						LN		55		7		false		            7     applicant -- in this case, certificate holder -- is				false

		1455						LN		55		8		false		            8     responsible for all of the expenses.  So as we're				false

		1456						LN		55		9		false		            9     working with DFW and working with different subject				false

		1457						LN		55		10		false		           10     matter experts there, they're billed for the hours that				false

		1458						LN		55		11		false		           11     those experts are spending in meetings and calls with				false

		1459						LN		55		12		false		           12     EFSEC staff, and so the -- the cost is substantially				false

		1460						LN		55		13		false		           13     higher if you're adding additional years of monitoring.				false

		1461						LN		55		14		false		           14     But we can get you, you know, an estimate if that would				false

		1462						LN		55		15		false		           15     be helpful.				false

		1463						LN		55		16		false		           16                        MR. RYBARIK:  I look to the other				false

		1464						LN		55		17		false		           17     Council members if there's appetite in that, but I				false

		1465						LN		55		18		false		           18     think that is -- that's one area that had some focus				false

		1466						LN		55		19		false		           19     for me.  The other -- and maybe, Council Member				false

		1467						LN		55		20		false		           20     Pamplin, I don't want to put you on the spot, but				false

		1468						LN		55		21		false		           21     the -- the updated ratios or mitigation ratios,				false

		1469						LN		55		22		false		           22     obviously working through the WDFW process now, with				false

		1470						LN		55		23		false		           23     the goal of using the best available science and the				false

		1471						LN		55		24		false		           24     most updated information, I appreciate the explanation,				false

		1472						LN		55		25		false		           25     that it's also going through a process is, may not be				false

		1473						PG		56		0		false		page 56				false

		1474						LN		56		1		false		            1     the most updated.  I also recognize the need for				false

		1475						LN		56		2		false		            2     certainty in these processes of this was the ratios				false

		1476						LN		56		3		false		            3     that were at the time, but I wonder if WDFW has a				false

		1477						LN		56		4		false		            4     position or a thought on -- on the ratios, because				false

		1478						LN		56		5		false		            5     that's the expert agency on these ratios, so...				false

		1479						LN		56		6		false		            6                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Yeah, thanks,				false

		1480						LN		56		7		false		            7     Mr. Rybarik.  Why don't I first just turn to Ms. Moon				false

		1481						LN		56		8		false		            8     and Mr. Greene to talk about WDFW's position within				false

		1482						LN		56		9		false		            9     PTAG.  If that doesn't fully cover it, I can --				false

		1483						LN		56		10		false		           10                        MR. RYBARIK:  All right.				false

		1484						LN		56		11		false		           11                        MR. PAMPLIN:  -- offer some remarks.				false

		1485						LN		56		12		false		           12     Thanks.				false

		1486						LN		56		13		false		           13                        MR. GREENE:  Sure.  So there are --				false

		1487						LN		56		14		false		           14     there's one primary member of WDFW on the PTAG along				false

		1488						LN		56		15		false		           15     with two alternates.  They attend every meeting, and				false

		1489						LN		56		16		false		           16     they are one of the technical experts who are				false

		1490						LN		56		17		false		           17     responsible for reviewing all of the certificate				false

		1491						LN		56		18		false		           18     holder's proposals for pre-operational plans and				false

		1492						LN		56		19		false		           19     surveys.  So their staff did fully review this plan and				false

		1493						LN		56		20		false		           20     approved it as -- as it was drafted and submitted for				false

		1494						LN		56		21		false		           21     public comment.				false

		1495						LN		56		22		false		           22          So their staff approved of the mitigation ratios				false

		1496						LN		56		23		false		           23     that were developed at the time we were doing the EIS				false

		1497						LN		56		24		false		           24     and approved of the ratios incorporated here.				false

		1498						LN		56		25		false		           25                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thanks, Mr. Greene.				false

		1499						PG		57		0		false		page 57				false

		1500						LN		57		1		false		            1          Yeah, I would just add that that's pretty				false

		1501						LN		57		2		false		            2     consistent value as far as when we introduce new				false

		1502						LN		57		3		false		            3     guidelines that projects that were kind of in the queue				false

		1503						LN		57		4		false		            4     or operating under the -- the -- the guidance that was				false

		1504						LN		57		5		false		            5     published at the time.  So appreciate the interest in				false

		1505						LN		57		6		false		            6     moving forward, and if we saw something I thought was				false

		1506						LN		57		7		false		            7     really substantial or the science, it really moved the				false

		1507						LN		57		8		false		            8     needle, I think that was something that our				false

		1508						LN		57		9		false		            9     representative in the PTAG would have advocated for.				false

		1509						LN		57		10		false		           10     But I'm comfortable with the work that the -- the WDFW				false

		1510						LN		57		11		false		           11     staff person did at PTAG to recommend those ratios.				false

		1511						LN		57		12		false		           12     Thanks.				false

		1512						LN		57		13		false		           13                        MR. RYBARIK:  Very good.  Thanks.				false

		1513						LN		57		14		false		           14                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Any other questions?				false

		1514						LN		57		15		false		           15                        MR. RYBARIK:  Just one last one.				false

		1515						LN		57		16		false		           16                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Please.				false

		1516						LN		57		17		false		           17                        MR. RYBARIK:  Sorry to keep				false

		1517						LN		57		18		false		           18     belaboring these points.  But the last one is on the				false

		1518						LN		57		19		false		           19     automated detection.  Having come from the tech sector,				false

		1519						LN		57		20		false		           20     I recognize the technology might not be there today.				false

		1520						LN		57		21		false		           21     But technology moves at the speed of technology.  And I				false

		1521						LN		57		22		false		           22     just wonder what -- what is the process if, a year from				false

		1522						LN		57		23		false		           23     now, it's very clear that that technology exists to be				false

		1523						LN		57		24		false		           24     very species-specific on curtailments?  What -- what				false

		1524						LN		57		25		false		           25     would EFSEC do relative to this mitigation plan at that				false

		1525						PG		58		0		false		page 58				false

		1526						LN		58		1		false		            1     point to say we'd like to see that technology				false

		1527						LN		58		2		false		            2     implemented?				false

		1528						LN		58		3		false		            3                        MR. GREENE:  Yeah, so the way it's				false

		1529						LN		58		4		false		            4     written in the plan currently is it's -- the use of				false

		1530						LN		58		5		false		            5     that technology would be like an exception for the				false

		1531						LN		58		6		false		            6     turbine curtailment in the event that there is				false

		1532						LN		58		7		false		            7     ferruginous hawk activity observed.				false

		1533						LN		58		8		false		            8          As for whether we would want to require the use of				false

		1534						LN		58		9		false		            9     that technology and whether there is ferruginous				false

		1535						LN		58		10		false		           10     activity observed or not, that's not something that I				false

		1536						LN		58		11		false		           11     think we've considered.  That might be something that				false

		1537						LN		58		12		false		           12     comes up in the adaptive management plan that the				false

		1538						LN		58		13		false		           13     certificate holder is currently developing, especially				false

		1539						LN		58		14		false		           14     in relation to one of the primary concerns of that plan				false

		1540						LN		58		15		false		           15     is adaptive management in the event of mortality				false

		1541						LN		58		16		false		           16     incidents.  Turbine strikes on ferruginous hawks are				false

		1542						LN		58		17		false		           17     very rare within the state, but given the limited				false

		1543						LN		58		18		false		           18     population numbers, each instance is -- is potentially				false

		1544						LN		58		19		false		           19     substantially of concern.				false

		1545						LN		58		20		false		           20          So I guess my thought at this time would be to see				false

		1546						LN		58		21		false		           21     how that technology would be incorporated into the				false

		1547						LN		58		22		false		           22     adaptive management plan, especially since it is kind				false

		1548						LN		58		23		false		           23     of still hypothetical for the moment at least.				false

		1549						LN		58		24		false		           24                        MR. RYBARIK:  Sure.  That's helpful.				false

		1550						LN		58		25		false		           25     Thank you very much.				false

		1551						PG		59		0		false		page 59				false

		1552						LN		59		1		false		            1                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thank you,				false

		1553						LN		59		2		false		            2     Mr. Rybarik.  And much appreciation here to Ms. Moon				false

		1554						LN		59		3		false		            3     and Mr. Greene for the overview thus far as well as the				false

		1555						LN		59		4		false		            4     summary of the common themes that we heard and the				false

		1556						LN		59		5		false		            5     proposed responses.				false

		1557						LN		59		6		false		            6          Ms. Moon, is there any anything further on your				false

		1558						LN		59		7		false		            7     presentation?				false

		1559						LN		59		8		false		            8                        MS. MOON:  Yeah.  One final				false

		1560						LN		59		9		false		            9     statement.				false

		1561						LN		59		10		false		           10          The staff are requesting that the Council approve				false

		1562						LN		59		11		false		           11     the Horse Heaven wind farm ferruginous hawk nest				false

		1563						LN		59		12		false		           12     mitigation plan.				false

		1564						LN		59		13		false		           13          But you wanted to follow up on --				false

		1565						LN		59		14		false		           14                        MR. GREENE:  Yeah, I think --				false

		1566						LN		59		15		false		           15                        MS. MOON:  -- a couple things.				false

		1567						LN		59		16		false		           16                        MR. GREENE:  -- maybe since we're --				false

		1568						LN		59		17		false		           17     we're going to follow up on a few things and see				false

		1569						LN		59		18		false		           18     whether there need to be edits there, do we wait for				false

		1570						LN		59		19		false		           19     approval, or approve with the understanding that we'll				false

		1571						LN		59		20		false		           20     get that information?				false

		1572						LN		59		21		false		           21                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  So I think we				false

		1573						LN		59		22		false		           22     identified strengthening the language around				false

		1574						LN		59		23		false		           23     implementation of artificial nest platforms.  And I				false

		1575						LN		59		24		false		           24     think in -- the question, I think, is maybe to the				false

		1576						LN		59		25		false		           25     Council:  Do you want to wait to approve this plan				false
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		1578						LN		60		1		false		            1     until we have follow-up information on those items				false

		1579						LN		60		2		false		            2     identified, or would the Council want to vote to make a				false

		1580						LN		60		3		false		            3     decision on the plan pending the edits discussed?				false

		1581						LN		60		4		false		            4                        MS. BUMPUS:  I think you could				false

		1582						LN		60		5		false		            5     approve it, you know, contingent on the amendments				false

		1583						LN		60		6		false		            6     discussed that Ami just listed being made.  If you're				false

		1584						LN		60		7		false		            7     comfortable with the substance of the plan today.				false

		1585						LN		60		8		false		            8                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thanks, Ms. Bumpus.				false

		1586						LN		60		9		false		            9          I see Mr. Nelson's hand is up.  Go ahead.				false

		1587						LN		60		10		false		           10                        MR. NELSON:  Hello.  Yes, that				false

		1588						LN		60		11		false		           11     sounds like a good approach to me.  I'm not smart				false

		1589						LN		60		12		false		           12     enough to make that motion.  But I did have a question				false

		1590						LN		60		13		false		           13     if you do come back for more information.				false

		1591						LN		60		14		false		           14          So on Section 5, the -- the mortality mitigation				false

		1592						LN		60		15		false		           15     chapter or section, it -- and this might get to the				false

		1593						LN		60		16		false		           16     nesting question as well -- it speaks of a qualified				false

		1594						LN		60		17		false		           17     biologist in coordination with Fish and Wildlife and				false

		1595						LN		60		18		false		           18     EFSEC.  And this could just be for my edification as a				false

		1596						LN		60		19		false		           19     relatively new Council member.  But is that a qualified				false

		1597						LN		60		20		false		           20     biologist employed by the certificate holder, or is it				false

		1598						LN		60		21		false		           21     third party, or is it Fish and Wildlife, or is it				false

		1599						LN		60		22		false		           22     EFSEC?  So I was just wondering what the employment				false

		1600						LN		60		23		false		           23     status of that biologist might be, I guess.				false

		1601						LN		60		24		false		           24                        MR. GREENE:  It's my understanding				false

		1602						LN		60		25		false		           25     that it would be an independent biologist employed by				false
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		1604						LN		61		1		false		            1     the certificate holder with EFSEC's -- EFSEC and WDFW				false

		1605						LN		61		2		false		            2     approval.				false

		1606						LN		61		3		false		            3                        MR. NELSON:  Thank you.				false

		1607						LN		61		4		false		            4                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Okay.  So before we				false

		1608						LN		61		5		false		            5     kind of further discuss whether or not we want to adopt				false

		1609						LN		61		6		false		            6     the plan pending amendments or not, I just want to				false

		1610						LN		61		7		false		            7     check to see if there's any other questions from				false

		1611						LN		61		8		false		            8     Ms. Moon or Mr. Greene from the Council.				false

		1612						LN		61		9		false		            9          Okay.  Council, is there any particular direction				false

		1613						LN		61		10		false		           10     you would like to proceed with in terms of doing an				false

		1614						LN		61		11		false		           11     early approval -- or not an early -- approving this				false

		1615						LN		61		12		false		           12     plan, noting that there's some additional work that's				false

		1616						LN		61		13		false		           13     going to be incorporated relative to the artificial				false

		1617						LN		61		14		false		           14     nest platform, or would folks like to delay and then				false

		1618						LN		61		15		false		           15     wait and see those edits made into the plan as well as				false

		1619						LN		61		16		false		           16     some of the other editorial edits and we'll have a				false

		1620						LN		61		17		false		           17     final plan hopefully brought forward in February?				false

		1621						LN		61		18		false		           18                        MR. RYBARIK:  The only reservation I				false

		1622						LN		61		19		false		           19     have, in general I think there's a lot of good stuff in				false

		1623						LN		61		20		false		           20     here.  I appreciate all the work that the PTAG and				false

		1624						LN		61		21		false		           21     staff have done to -- to get there.  I think the one				false

		1625						LN		61		22		false		           22     outstanding question is, to me, whether that initial --				false

		1626						LN		61		23		false		           23     whether we should do three of the first five years of				false

		1627						LN		61		24		false		           24     reporting back or observations, and just there's a cost				false

		1628						LN		61		25		false		           25     difference in those two, and what's what I don't --				false

		1629						PG		62		0		false		page 62				false

		1630						LN		62		1		false		            1     that's the information we don't have.				false

		1631						LN		62		2		false		            2                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Yeah.				false

		1632						LN		62		3		false		            3                        MR. RYBARIK:  And so in my mind, I				false

		1633						LN		62		4		false		            4     think all of those five years could be one option.  The				false

		1634						LN		62		5		false		            5     first three years, another option.  I guess that				false

		1635						LN		62		6		false		            6     probably doesn't change the cost tremendously.  We're				false

		1636						LN		62		7		false		            7     still doing three years.  But I wouldn't mind knowing				false

		1637						LN		62		8		false		            8     that before making a decision and just seeing what --				false

		1638						LN		62		9		false		            9     what the appetite is to maybe strengthen that a little				false

		1639						LN		62		10		false		           10     bit, just knowing that those are probably the most				false

		1640						LN		62		11		false		           11     important years of the plan.				false

		1641						LN		62		12		false		           12          That said, I am also mindful of the fact that				false

		1642						LN		62		13		false		           13     there's timelines and associated movement for the				false

		1643						LN		62		14		false		           14     developer.  So I guess I'll turn to staff of whether or				false

		1644						LN		62		15		false		           15     not any holding off on this is detrimental to the				false

		1645						LN		62		16		false		           16     overall project.				false

		1646						LN		62		17		false		           17                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thanks, Mr. Rybarik.				false

		1647						LN		62		18		false		           18          Director Bumpus, is there any consequences or				false

		1648						LN		62		19		false		           19     concerns on your end if we were to delay adoption of				false

		1649						LN		62		20		false		           20     this plan?				false

		1650						LN		62		21		false		           21                        MS. BUMPUS:  Well, thank you.  Thank				false

		1651						LN		62		22		false		           22     you for the opportunity.				false

		1652						LN		62		23		false		           23          Yeah, I think I would just -- I'm just thinking				false

		1653						LN		62		24		false		           24     about Executive Order 25-11 where EFSEC along with many				false

		1654						LN		62		25		false		           25     other agencies are looking at how we can expedite and				false

		1655						PG		63		0		false		page 63				false

		1656						LN		63		1		false		            1     accelerate plan approvals for those facilities that are				false

		1657						LN		63		2		false		            2     still in the position to take advantage of the federal				false

		1658						LN		63		3		false		            3     tax incentives.				false

		1659						LN		63		4		false		            4          And so I would say that if there's general comfort				false

		1660						LN		63		5		false		            5     with this plan, that we can -- you know, it would				false

		1661						LN		63		6		false		            6     behoove us to -- to move forward with it if we can, but				false

		1662						LN		63		7		false		            7     I also recognize that there may be some tweaks that we				false

		1663						LN		63		8		false		            8     still want to make.  So that's the...				false

		1664						LN		63		9		false		            9                        MR. RYBARIK:  Well, UTC being also				false

		1665						LN		63		10		false		           10     named in that executive order, I'm familiar with it and				false

		1666						LN		63		11		false		           11     recognize the -- the concern there.				false

		1667						LN		63		12		false		           12          Ultimately -- and I appreciate staff's				false

		1668						LN		63		13		false		           13     recommenda- -- or further thoughts here, although I				false

		1669						LN		63		14		false		           14     think I'm comfortable with the way the mitigation plan				false

		1670						LN		63		15		false		           15     is -- is written, I just point out that these are areas				false

		1671						LN		63		16		false		           16     where I think we can continue to focus and just at				false

		1672						LN		63		17		false		           17     least bring some maybe options to -- to the table when				false

		1673						LN		63		18		false		           18     we get to this point.				false

		1674						LN		63		19		false		           19          But, again, I don't want to belabor this other				false

		1675						LN		63		20		false		           20     what is a relatively minor point or piece of the				false

		1676						LN		63		21		false		           21     overall mitigation plan, but you've heard my thoughts				false

		1677						LN		63		22		false		           22     on this, and I'll leave it there.				false

		1678						LN		63		23		false		           23                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thanks, Mr. Rybarik.				false

		1679						LN		63		24		false		           24          Ms. Hafkemeyer.				false

		1680						LN		63		25		false		           25                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  I wanted to suggest				false
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		1682						LN		64		1		false		            1     that maybe there's an opportunity because the adaptive				false

		1683						LN		64		2		false		            2     management plan is still in development, that if under				false

		1684						LN		64		3		false		            3     the guidance of that plan it seems appropriate to add				false

		1685						LN		64		4		false		            4     additional years of monitoring, that that might be				false

		1686						LN		64		5		false		            5     another place to capture that based on guidance of the				false

		1687						LN		64		6		false		            6     PTAG, DFW, and biologists as appropriate.  So there may				false

		1688						LN		64		7		false		            7     be additional opportunity to increase monitoring				false

		1689						LN		64		8		false		            8     particularly if the first year or first couple years				false

		1690						LN		64		9		false		            9     the data suggests that more monitoring is appropriate.				false

		1691						LN		64		10		false		           10                        MR. RYBARIK:  That sounds like a				false

		1692						LN		64		11		false		           11     good suggestion.  And thank you for reminding me of the				false

		1693						LN		64		12		false		           12     word that I was not able to get out of my brain of				false

		1694						LN		64		13		false		           13     monitoring.  So thank you.				false

		1695						LN		64		14		false		           14                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thanks,				false

		1696						LN		64		15		false		           15     Ms. Hafkemeyer.				false

		1697						LN		64		16		false		           16          Mr. Nelson, I saw your hand come up earlier.  Did				false

		1698						LN		64		17		false		           17     you have a question or remark?				false

		1699						LN		64		18		false		           18                        MR. NELSON:  Yeah.  Just wanted to				false

		1700						LN		64		19		false		           19     state -- you know, I just wanted to, again, yeah, or				false

		1701						LN		64		20		false		           20     thank the PTAG for all the work they put into this.				false

		1702						LN		64		21		false		           21     It's a very comprehensive plan that offers widespread				false

		1703						LN		64		22		false		           22     protection to the species.				false

		1704						LN		64		23		false		           23          Is it -- can we -- I should know this, but can we				false

		1705						LN		64		24		false		           24     make a motion to adopt yet, or do you call for that?				false

		1706						LN		64		25		false		           25                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Yeah, Thanks,				false

		1707						PG		65		0		false		page 65				false

		1708						LN		65		1		false		            1     Mr. Nelson.  I've got some language that I will try to				false

		1709						LN		65		2		false		            2     put on the table and ask for someone to move.				false

		1710						LN		65		3		false		            3          But what I'm looking for at this point is if the				false

		1711						LN		65		4		false		            4     Council make a motion to approve the ferruginous hawk				false

		1712						LN		65		5		false		            5     nest mitigation plan submitted by Horse Heaven Wind				false

		1713						LN		65		6		false		            6     Farm, LLC, in compliance with Special Status Species				false

		1714						LN		65		7		false		            7     Mitigation Measure 5, commonly referred to as Spec-5,				false

		1715						LN		65		8		false		            8     of the site certification agreement for the Horse				false

		1716						LN		65		9		false		            9     Heaven Wind Farm.  And in addition, that staff would be				false

		1717						LN		65		10		false		           10     incorporating the editorial comments as well as				false

		1718						LN		65		11		false		           11     strengthening the discussion around the artificial nest				false

		1719						LN		65		12		false		           12     platform and the consultation with WDFW.				false

		1720						LN		65		13		false		           13          So, with that, is that -- if someone would please				false

		1721						LN		65		14		false		           14     signal that they would make that motion.				false

		1722						LN		65		15		false		           15                        MR. RYBARIK:  So moved.				false

		1723						LN		65		16		false		           16                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thank you,				false

		1724						LN		65		17		false		           17     Mr. Rybarik.				false

		1725						LN		65		18		false		           18          Is there a second?				false

		1726						LN		65		19		false		           19                        MR. NELSON:  Second.				false

		1727						LN		65		20		false		           20                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thank you, Mr. Nelson.				false

		1728						LN		65		21		false		           21          Any further comments or questions before we move				false

		1729						LN		65		22		false		           22     to a vote?				false

		1730						LN		65		23		false		           23          Hearing and seeing no hands.				false

		1731						LN		65		24		false		           24          All those in favor of the motion, please say				false

		1732						LN		65		25		false		           25     "aye."				false

		1733						PG		66		0		false		page 66				false

		1734						LN		66		1		false		            1                        MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.				false

		1735						LN		66		2		false		            2                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Any opposed?				false

		1736						LN		66		3		false		            3          We'll let the record note that Chair Beckett has				false

		1737						LN		66		4		false		            4     recused himself from this -- this vote.  And with --				false

		1738						LN		66		5		false		            5     oh.  Go ahead.  Mr. Ryan.				false

		1739						LN		66		6		false		            6                        MR. RYAN:  Just also recused, to				false

		1740						LN		66		7		false		            7     make note of that.				false

		1741						LN		66		8		false		            8                        MR. RYBARIK:  Oh, that's right.				false

		1742						LN		66		9		false		            9                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Okay.  Just want to				false

		1743						LN		66		10		false		           10     double-check that we have sufficient Council members				false

		1744						LN		66		11		false		           11     for a vote with two recusals.				false

		1745						LN		66		12		false		           12          Okay.  Great.  So that motion passes.  Again,				false

		1746						LN		66		13		false		           13     Ms. Moon, Mr. Greene, thank you for your work, as well				false

		1747						LN		66		14		false		           14     as for PTAG's efforts here on preparing this mitigation				false

		1748						LN		66		15		false		           15     plan.  And I'll pass the gavel back to Chair Beckett.				false

		1749						LN		66		16		false		           16                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you, Council				false

		1750						LN		66		17		false		           17     Pamplin.  And I'll try to do a better job of following				false

		1751						LN		66		18		false		           18     Council Rybarik on putting my camera on some occasion.				false

		1752						LN		66		19		false		           19          So, with that, we will actually go back to -- and				false

		1753						LN		66		20		false		           20     thank you for the extra effort as chair, Council				false

		1754						LN		66		21		false		           21     Pamplin.				false

		1755						LN		66		22		false		           22          So do we have Council Chiles back still?  We would				false

		1756						LN		66		23		false		           23     take his question or comment on the Carriger Solar				false

		1757						LN		66		24		false		           24     project update.				false

		1758						LN		66		25		false		           25                        MS. GRANTHAM:  We see that he's				false

		1759						PG		67		0		false		page 67				false

		1760						LN		67		1		false		            1     online and unmuted again.  I'm not sure if we can hear				false

		1761						LN		67		2		false		            2     him.  If Council Chiles would like to try to speak up.				false

		1762						LN		67		3		false		            3                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council Chiles,				false

		1763						LN		67		4		false		            4     we're ultimately not hearing you in the room.  So,				false

		1764						LN		67		5		false		            5     sorry about the technical challenge today.				false

		1765						LN		67		6		false		            6          No, Council Chiles, we still can't hear you.  I do				false

		1766						LN		67		7		false		            7     see your text in the chat, though.				false

		1767						LN		67		8		false		            8          Okay.  So let's move on, then, for a moment to the				false

		1768						LN		67		9		false		            9     Hop Hill solar update.  John Barnes will provide the				false

		1769						LN		67		10		false		           10     update.				false

		1770						LN		67		11		false		           11                        MR. BARNES:  Thank you, Chair				false

		1771						LN		67		12		false		           12     Beckett and Council members.  This is John Barnes,				false

		1772						LN		67		13		false		           13     EFSEC staff for the Hop Hill application.				false

		1773						LN		67		14		false		           14          Staff are working with the applicant on the				false

		1774						LN		67		15		false		           15     submission of additional application materials for the				false

		1775						LN		67		16		false		           16     Hop Hill project.  EFSEC anticipates receipt of these				false

		1776						LN		67		17		false		           17     materials by spring of 2026.  Staff are also working				false

		1777						LN		67		18		false		           18     with the applicant to submit a comprehensive cultural				false

		1778						LN		67		19		false		           19     resource report for the application.				false

		1779						LN		67		20		false		           20          Following receipt of the report, staff will				false

		1780						LN		67		21		false		           21     distribute to concerned tribes an offer to schedule a				false

		1781						LN		67		22		false		           22     government-to-government consultation to discuss				false

		1782						LN		67		23		false		           23     impacts and potential mitigations.				false

		1783						LN		67		24		false		           24          Are there any questions?				false

		1784						LN		67		25		false		           25                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council, comments or				false

		1785						PG		68		0		false		page 68				false

		1786						LN		68		1		false		            1     questions?  Hearing none.				false

		1787						LN		68		2		false		            2          Moving on to Wallula Gap since you're also				false

		1788						LN		68		3		false		            3     providing that update, Mr. Barnes.  Please proceed.				false

		1789						LN		68		4		false		            4                        MR. BARNES:  Thank you, Chair				false

		1790						LN		68		5		false		            5     Beckett and Council members.  This is John Barnes,				false

		1791						LN		68		6		false		            6     EFSEC staff, for the Wallula Gap application.				false

		1792						LN		68		7		false		            7          Staff are continuing to work with the applicant,				false

		1793						LN		68		8		false		            8     OneEnergy, and the Yakama Nation Cultural Resource				false

		1794						LN		68		9		false		            9     Program staff regarding impacts identified in the				false

		1795						LN		68		10		false		           10     traditional cultural resource property studies and				false

		1796						LN		68		11		false		           11     report conducted by the Yakama Nation for this				false

		1797						LN		68		12		false		           12     application.  Identification of potential project				false

		1798						LN		68		13		false		           13     impacts and mitigations that can be resolved as part of				false

		1799						LN		68		14		false		           14     the SEPA determination process for this project.				false

		1800						LN		68		15		false		           15          Are there any questions?				false

		1801						LN		68		16		false		           16                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Any questions,				false

		1802						LN		68		17		false		           17     Council?				false

		1803						LN		68		18		false		           18                        MR. RYAN:  None here.				false

		1804						LN		68		19		false		           19                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  Then we				false

		1805						LN		68		20		false		           20     will -- it looks like we're probably losing Council				false

		1806						LN		68		21		false		           21     Chiles.				false

		1807						LN		68		22		false		           22          I'll just say, Council Chiles, we can always try				false

		1808						LN		68		23		false		           23     and catch you next month at last in the public forum,				false

		1809						LN		68		24		false		           24     and obviously you know how to reach --				false

		1810						LN		68		25		false		           25                        MR. CHILES:  Can you hear me now?				false

		1811						PG		69		0		false		page 69				false

		1812						LN		69		1		false		            1                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Oh.  There we go.				false

		1813						LN		69		2		false		            2     Yes, we can.  Please -- please proceed.  You're very --				false

		1814						LN		69		3		false		            3     very clear as well.				false

		1815						LN		69		4		false		            4                        MR. CHILES:  Thank you very much,				false

		1816						LN		69		5		false		            5     Chair Beckett.  I apologize for the problems on my end.				false

		1817						LN		69		6		false		            6          Going back to the Carriger issue and the Yakama				false

		1818						LN		69		7		false		            7     tribe filing a petition for judicial review, wanted a				false

		1819						LN		69		8		false		            8     little bit of clarification on that, if we could.				false

		1820						LN		69		9		false		            9          First of all, do we have any estimated timeline				false

		1821						LN		69		10		false		           10     for a decision on that petition for judicial review?				false

		1822						LN		69		11		false		           11     And, second, while we wait for that, what is the status				false

		1823						LN		69		12		false		           12     of the project?  Are they moving forward, or is there				false

		1824						LN		69		13		false		           13     some sort of injunction preventing that at this time?				false

		1825						LN		69		14		false		           14     Thank you.				false

		1826						LN		69		15		false		           15                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Counsel Thompson,				false

		1827						LN		69		16		false		           16     would you like to --				false

		1828						LN		69		17		false		           17                        MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah.				false

		1829						LN		69		18		false		           18                        CHAIR BECKETT:  -- jump in?				false

		1830						LN		69		19		false		           19                        MR. THOMPSON:  So this is Jon				false

		1831						LN		69		20		false		           20     Thompson with the attorney general's office.  There --				false

		1832						LN		69		21		false		           21     there is provision in the -- in EFSLA, RCW 80.50, for				false

		1833						LN		69		22		false		           22     filing a petition for review of a governor's decision				false

		1834						LN		69		23		false		           23     in Thurston County Superior Court, and then the process				false

		1835						LN		69		24		false		           24     is for the -- it's a -- the way judicial review works				false

		1836						LN		69		25		false		           25     under the Administrative Procedure Act, if the court				false

		1837						PG		70		0		false		page 70				false

		1838						LN		70		1		false		            1     reviews the agency's record and sitting in an appellate				false

		1839						LN		70		2		false		            2     capacity, and so what we need to do is compile the				false

		1840						LN		70		3		false		            3     agency's decisional record and then provide it to the				false

		1841						LN		70		4		false		            4     court.				false

		1842						LN		70		5		false		            5          Usually there's often a number of months where the				false

		1843						LN		70		6		false		            6     completeness of the record is being determined, and				false

		1844						LN		70		7		false		            7     then -- and then likely a motion to transfer the case				false

		1845						LN		70		8		false		            8     up to the supreme court to be heard.  So it's typically				false

		1846						LN		70		9		false		            9     a multi-month process.  There's nothing that -- that				false

		1847						LN		70		10		false		           10     prevents the certificate holder from proceeding with				false

		1848						LN		70		11		false		           11     implementation of the site certification agreement in				false

		1849						LN		70		12		false		           12     the -- while that's ongoing.				false

		1850						LN		70		13		false		           13          I think that answers your questions, Council				false

		1851						LN		70		14		false		           14     Member Chiles?  Did that -- did I --				false

		1852						LN		70		15		false		           15                        MR. CHILES:  Yes.				false

		1853						LN		70		16		false		           16                        MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah.				false

		1854						LN		70		17		false		           17                        MR. CHILES:  Thank you, Counsel.  I				false

		1855						LN		70		18		false		           18     appreciate that.				false

		1856						LN		70		19		false		           19          So it sounds like things will be moving forward				false

		1857						LN		70		20		false		           20     while the litigation kind of continues in the				false

		1858						LN		70		21		false		           21     background to see if it will go before the state				false

		1859						LN		70		22		false		           22     supreme court.				false

		1860						LN		70		23		false		           23                        MR. THOMPSON:  Correct.				false

		1861						LN		70		24		false		           24                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Director Bumpus, did				false

		1862						LN		70		25		false		           25     you wish to add another word, or...?				false

		1863						PG		71		0		false		page 71				false

		1864						LN		71		1		false		            1                        MS. BUMPUS:  I think -- thank you,				false

		1865						LN		71		2		false		            2     Chair Beckett.  I think Jon Thompson answered it.  It				false

		1866						LN		71		3		false		            3     was just to address that other part of the question				false

		1867						LN		71		4		false		            4     that Carriger is proceeding and that we're going to be				false

		1868						LN		71		5		false		            5     in receipt of plans, we think, fairly soon to begin the				false

		1869						LN		71		6		false		            6     review of those, so the work's continuing along with				false

		1870						LN		71		7		false		            7     the litigation.				false

		1871						LN		71		8		false		            8                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Great.  Thank you				false

		1872						LN		71		9		false		            9     for the added emphasis there.  And I think, to your				false

		1873						LN		71		10		false		           10     earlier point too, that project is also on the				false

		1874						LN		71		11		false		           11     governor's executive order, and hence our focus is only				false

		1875						LN		71		12		false		           12     more so in moving those projects forward.				false

		1876						LN		71		13		false		           13          Okay.  Council Chiles, was there any other				false

		1877						LN		71		14		false		           14     question or comment you wished to make on Carriger?				false

		1878						LN		71		15		false		           15                        MR. CHILES:  No.  Thank you very				false

		1879						LN		71		16		false		           16     much, Chair Beckett.				false

		1880						LN		71		17		false		           17                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		1881						LN		71		18		false		           18          So, with that, we will move to the Goldeneye				false

		1882						LN		71		19		false		           19     battery storage project update.  Ms. Snarski.				false

		1883						LN		71		20		false		           20                        MS. SNARSKI:  Yes.  Thank you, Chair				false

		1884						LN		71		21		false		           21     Beckett.  Again, this is Joanne Snarski, the siting				false

		1885						LN		71		22		false		           22     specialist for the proposed Goldeneye battery energy				false

		1886						LN		71		23		false		           23     storage facility in Skagit County.				false

		1887						LN		71		24		false		           24          Last month, I reported that the applicant had				false

		1888						LN		71		25		false		           25     recently submitted a revised site plan for the				false

		1889						PG		72		0		false		page 72				false

		1890						LN		72		1		false		            1     facility.  However, I misspoke.  What they did submit				false

		1891						LN		72		2		false		            2     was a revised conceptual site restoration plan.				false

		1892						LN		72		3		false		            3     However, we anticipate that Goldeneye representatives				false

		1893						LN		72		4		false		            4     will submit a more formal site plan in the coming				false

		1894						LN		72		5		false		            5     weeks.				false

		1895						LN		72		6		false		            6          Last week, staff sent our fourth data request to				false

		1896						LN		72		7		false		            7     the developers.  We anticipate their response to that				false

		1897						LN		72		8		false		            8     by March 1st.				false

		1898						LN		72		9		false		            9          The need for submittal of information is required				false

		1899						LN		72		10		false		           10     to help us complete our State Environmental Policy Act				false

		1900						LN		72		11		false		           11     determination for the project.				false

		1901						LN		72		12		false		           12          May I answer any questions?				false

		1902						LN		72		13		false		           13                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council members?				false

		1903						LN		72		14		false		           14                        MR. RYBARIK:  No questions.				false

		1904						LN		72		15		false		           15                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council Eckroth,				false

		1905						LN		72		16		false		           16     just to make sure in case you had any question or				false

		1906						LN		72		17		false		           17     comment.				false

		1907						LN		72		18		false		           18                        MR. ECKROTH:  Council Member Eckroth				false

		1908						LN		72		19		false		           19     here.				false

		1909						LN		72		20		false		           20          No questions.  Thank you very much.				false

		1910						LN		72		21		false		           21                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.				false

		1911						LN		72		22		false		           22          All right.  Then we will move on to the Cascade				false

		1912						LN		72		23		false		           23     Renewables Transmission project.  And Maria Belkina				false

		1913						LN		72		24		false		           24     will provide her occupy date.				false

		1914						LN		72		25		false		           25                        MS. BELKINA:  Thank you.				false

		1915						PG		73		0		false		page 73				false

		1916						LN		73		1		false		            1          Good afternoon, Chair Beckett and Council members.				false

		1917						LN		73		2		false		            2     For the record, my name is Maria Belkina, siting				false

		1918						LN		73		3		false		            3     specialist assigned to and reporting on the Cascade				false

		1919						LN		73		4		false		            4     Renewable Transmission Project.				false

		1920						LN		73		5		false		            5          Staff continue to review the application for site				false

		1921						LN		73		6		false		            6     certification for compliance with WAC 463-60 with the				false

		1922						LN		73		7		false		            7     objective of determining of whether the application				false

		1923						LN		73		8		false		            8     contains sufficient information to support the next				false

		1924						LN		73		9		false		            9     step -- next phase of review.  In parallel, staff are				false

		1925						LN		73		10		false		           10     finalizing the first consolidated data request,				false

		1926						LN		73		11		false		           11     informed by application review and agency input.				false

		1927						LN		73		12		false		           12          Staff expect to receive comments from contracted				false

		1928						LN		73		13		false		           13     agencies soon, which will help inform the next request				false

		1929						LN		73		14		false		           14     for additional information from the applicant.				false

		1930						LN		73		15		false		           15          Staff continue to coordinate with key state and				false

		1931						LN		73		16		false		           16     federal agencies.  In January, staff conducted two				false

		1932						LN		73		17		false		           17     interagency coordination discussions with the				false

		1933						LN		73		18		false		           18     Washington Department of Natural Resources and the				false

		1934						LN		73		19		false		           19     Washington Department of Ecology to support alignment				false

		1935						LN		73		20		false		           20     on process, sequencing, and environmental review				false

		1936						LN		73		21		false		           21     considerations.				false

		1937						LN		73		22		false		           22          EFSEC has received a formal invitation from the				false

		1938						LN		73		23		false		           23     U.S. Army Corps of Engineers to participate as				false

		1939						LN		73		24		false		           24     cooperating agency in the preparation of an				false

		1940						LN		73		25		false		           25     environmental impact statement, with the corps serving				false

		1941						PG		74		0		false		page 74				false

		1942						LN		74		1		false		            1     as NEPA lead agency.  Staff have prepared a response				false

		1943						LN		74		2		false		            2     confirming EFSEC's willingness to participate and to				false

		1944						LN		74		3		false		            3     coordinate NEPA and SEPA processes.				false

		1945						LN		74		4		false		            4          In addition, a meeting is being scheduled with the				false

		1946						LN		74		5		false		            5     Columbia River Gorge Commission to initiate early				false

		1947						LN		74		6		false		            6     coordination and communication regarding the project				false

		1948						LN		74		7		false		            7     and applicable Gorge Act considerations.				false

		1949						LN		74		8		false		            8          With respect to water quality permitting, staff				false

		1950						LN		74		9		false		            9     are intentionally sequencing the Section 401 water				false

		1951						LN		74		10		false		           10     quality certification process so that it follows a				false

		1952						LN		74		11		false		           11     sufficiently developed SEPA environmental record.				false

		1953						LN		74		12		false		           12     Importantly, key water quality issues will be addressed				false

		1954						LN		74		13		false		           13     through the SEPA review, which will then support the				false

		1955						LN		74		14		false		           14     Section 401 process.				false

		1956						LN		74		15		false		           15          Staff continue to support tribal engagement				false

		1957						LN		74		16		false		           16     planning and coordination consistent with state				false

		1958						LN		74		17		false		           17     requirement -- state requirements.  Initial				false

		1959						LN		74		18		false		           18     government -- initial government-to-government				false

		1960						LN		74		19		false		           19     consultations are scheduled to begin in early February,				false

		1961						LN		74		20		false		           20     including the first consultation meeting with the				false

		1962						LN		74		21		false		           21     Cowlitz Indian Tribe.				false

		1963						LN		74		22		false		           22          Following input received at the informational				false

		1964						LN		74		23		false		           23     meetings and the land-use hearings, staff reach out to				false

		1965						LN		74		24		false		           24     local jurisdiction along the project route to ensure				false

		1966						LN		74		25		false		           25     that they are aware of the need to appoint a Council				false

		1967						PG		75		0		false		page 75				false

		1968						LN		75		1		false		            1     member where the project falls within their				false

		1969						LN		75		2		false		            2     jurisdiction.				false

		1970						LN		75		3		false		            3          We have since received an appointment of Council				false

		1971						LN		75		4		false		            4     member from the City of Stevenson and have received				false

		1972						LN		75		5		false		            5     indications of pending appointments from the Klickitat				false

		1973						LN		75		6		false		            6     County and the City of Camas.  We expect to receive				false

		1974						LN		75		7		false		            7     additional appointments in the coming weeks.  Our legal				false

		1975						LN		75		8		false		            8     counsel, Jon Thompson, can provide further information				false

		1976						LN		75		9		false		            9     of proceedings while local jurisdiction make decisions				false

		1977						LN		75		10		false		           10     in their appointments.				false

		1978						LN		75		11		false		           11          That concludes my update.  I would be happy to				false

		1979						LN		75		12		false		           12     answer any questions.				false

		1980						LN		75		13		false		           13                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.				false

		1981						LN		75		14		false		           14          I'm sorry.  Was there a more proactive comment you				false

		1982						LN		75		15		false		           15     wanted to make first, Counsel Thompson, or...?				false

		1983						LN		75		16		false		           16                        MR. THOMPSON:  Well, I do have				false

		1984						LN		75		17		false		           17     comments.  I wanted to address a few questions about				false

		1985						LN		75		18		false		           18     the question that Ms. Belkina mentioned last about				false

		1986						LN		75		19		false		           19     proceeding, you know, while we're awaiting other --				false

		1987						LN		75		20		false		           20                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Yeah.				false

		1988						LN		75		21		false		           21                        MR. THOMPSON:  -- appointments for				false

		1989						LN		75		22		false		           22     Council members.				false

		1990						LN		75		23		false		           23                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Yeah, let's go ahead				false

		1991						LN		75		24		false		           24     and hear that.				false

		1992						LN		75		25		false		           25                        MR. THOMPSON:  Okay.				false

		1993						PG		76		0		false		page 76				false

		1994						LN		76		1		false		            1          Yeah, so a couple of questions if you recall at				false

		1995						LN		76		2		false		            2     the public informational and land-use consistency				false

		1996						LN		76		3		false		            3     hearings that were held in the three counties that are				false

		1997						LN		76		4		false		            4     involved in this project were raised about whether the				false

		1998						LN		76		5		false		            5     public informational meeting and the land-use				false

		1999						LN		76		6		false		            6     consistency hearings should have been convened prior to				false

		2000						LN		76		7		false		            7     all the, you know, the appointees that are eligible to				false

		2001						LN		76		8		false		            8     be on the Council being seated.				false

		2002						LN		76		9		false		            9          Yeah, so I wanted to speak to that just briefly				false

		2003						LN		76		10		false		           10     and give you my thoughts on that topic and what might				false

		2004						LN		76		11		false		           11     lie ahead on those topics.				false

		2005						LN		76		12		false		           12          So, first, regarding the public informational				false

		2006						LN		76		13		false		           13     meeting.  So RCW 80.50.090(1) is the -- is the law that				false

		2007						LN		76		14		false		           14     requires that to be held.  And it basically says the				false

		2008						LN		76		15		false		           15     Council shall conduct an informational public hearing				false

		2009						LN		76		16		false		           16     in the county of the proposed site as soon as				false

		2010						LN		76		17		false		           17     practicable but not less than 60 days after the receipt				false

		2011						LN		76		18		false		           18     of an application for certification.  So that's the				false

		2012						LN		76		19		false		           19     basic mandate.				false

		2013						LN		76		20		false		           20          There are -- EFSEC has adopted rules about public				false

		2014						LN		76		21		false		           21     informational meetings and the land-use consistency				false

		2015						LN		76		22		false		           22     hearing.  And the only kind of requirement in this				false

		2016						LN		76		23		false		           23     regard is there's -- it states that before conducting				false

		2017						LN		76		24		false		           24     either the informational public hearing or the public				false

		2018						LN		76		25		false		           25     land-use hearing, the Council will notify local				false

		2019						PG		77		0		false		page 77				false

		2020						LN		77		1		false		            1     jurisdictions.				false

		2021						LN		77		2		false		            2          It doesn't -- it doesn't require, you know,				false

		2022						LN		77		3		false		            3     waiting until appointments are made.  So neither the				false

		2023						LN		77		4		false		            4     statute or the rules, you know, require that all				false

		2024						LN		77		5		false		            5     jurisdictions that are eligible to appoint someone have				false

		2025						LN		77		6		false		            6     done so prior to that meeting.  The mandate is really				false

		2026						LN		77		7		false		            7     to hold it, hold the meeting, you know, within 60 days				false

		2027						LN		77		8		false		            8     of receipt of the application.				false

		2028						LN		77		9		false		            9          And I'd also point out that the purpose of the				false

		2029						LN		77		10		false		           10     meeting is also described in the rules, and it's				false

		2030						LN		77		11		false		           11     basically for the applicant to make a presentation				false

		2031						LN		77		12		false		           12     about -- about the project, a general description of				false

		2032						LN		77		13		false		           13     the project, reasons why the site was selected, a				false

		2033						LN		77		14		false		           14     summary of anticipated impacts, and then for the				false

		2034						LN		77		15		false		           15     general public to be afforded an opportunity to present				false

		2035						LN		77		16		false		           16     written or oral comments.				false

		2036						LN		77		17		false		           17          So the reason I mention that is because the				false

		2037						LN		77		18		false		           18     Council's role is -- is pretty passive.  It's -- you				false

		2038						LN		77		19		false		           19     know, at this point, it's just to receive information				false

		2039						LN		77		20		false		           20     from the applicant and the -- and the public.  And it's				false

		2040						LN		77		21		false		           21     a very early opportunity basically to get some -- some				false

		2041						LN		77		22		false		           22     reaction, some understanding and reaction to the				false

		2042						LN		77		23		false		           23     project.  And of course then there's -- over the course				false

		2043						LN		77		24		false		           24     of reviewing an application, there's a lot of other				false

		2044						LN		77		25		false		           25     hearing and public input opportunities on SEPA as well				false

		2045						PG		78		0		false		page 78				false

		2046						LN		78		1		false		            1     as the adjudicative process.				false

		2047						LN		78		2		false		            2          You know, with SEPA there's -- there may be a				false

		2048						LN		78		3		false		            3     scoping hearing.  There may be a hearing for receipt of				false

		2049						LN		78		4		false		            4     comments on a draft environmental impact statement.				false

		2050						LN		78		5		false		            5     And then, as I mention, there's the -- there's the				false

		2051						LN		78		6		false		            6     adjudication.  And then there's also an opportunity for				false

		2052						LN		78		7		false		            7     the Council to provide additional hearings as -- as you				false

		2053						LN		78		8		false		            8     see fit.				false

		2054						LN		78		9		false		            9          So -- so in my opinion, yeah, there's -- and I				false

		2055						LN		78		10		false		           10     would also add that these hearings are recorded on				false

		2056						LN		78		11		false		           11     video and audio and transcribed by a court reporter, so				false

		2057						LN		78		12		false		           12     there's the opportunity for Council members to review				false

		2058						LN		78		13		false		           13     that -- that information when they come on board too.				false

		2059						LN		78		14		false		           14          So -- so in my opinion, there's nothing -- as I				false

		2060						LN		78		15		false		           15     said, the requirement is that this meeting be held				false

		2061						LN		78		16		false		           16     within 60 days.  You complied with that.  I don't think				false

		2062						LN		78		17		false		           17     there's any mandate to go back and redo it.  You can --				false

		2063						LN		78		18		false		           18     you can re-examine once the new Council members are on				false

		2064						LN		78		19		false		           19     board, you know, whether you feel a need for additional				false

		2065						LN		78		20		false		           20     process in that regard, but that's about I think what				false

		2066						LN		78		21		false		           21     we can say at this point.				false

		2067						LN		78		22		false		           22          So regarding the land-use consistency hearing,				false

		2068						LN		78		23		false		           23     there's no requirement that be held within 60 days of				false

		2069						LN		78		24		false		           24     receipt of an application.  It just says that it should				false

		2070						LN		78		25		false		           25     be subsequent to the land-use consistency hearing.  So				false

		2071						PG		79		0		false		page 79				false

		2072						LN		79		1		false		            1     my opinion is that the record for that decision really				false

		2073						LN		79		2		false		            2     hasn't been sufficiently developed.  And because of				false

		2074						LN		79		3		false		            3     that, staff is in the process of developing a set of				false

		2075						LN		79		4		false		            4     questions to -- to send to the applicant to further				false

		2076						LN		79		5		false		            5     develop that information.  And then, I mean, I think I				false

		2077						LN		79		6		false		            6     would recommend affording the parties who spoke to that				false

		2078						LN		79		7		false		            7     issue, you know, any parties who want to speak to that				false

		2079						LN		79		8		false		            8     to be -- to have another opportunity to respond to what				false

		2080						LN		79		9		false		            9     the applicant has to say and really, you know, better				false

		2081						LN		79		10		false		           10     develop the record for that.				false

		2082						LN		79		11		false		           11          And to the extent that you can, I would say that				false

		2083						LN		79		12		false		           12     you should probably wait to deliberate on that until --				false

		2084						LN		79		13		false		           13     until you do have the other Council members empanelled				false

		2085						LN		79		14		false		           14     so that they have an opportunity to speak to that.				false

		2086						LN		79		15		false		           15          I would add that the Council members, by EFSEC				false

		2087						LN		79		16		false		           16     rule, are only to speak to the -- or to deliberate on				false

		2088						LN		79		17		false		           17     and vote on the segments of the project that are within				false

		2089						LN		79		18		false		           18     their appointing jurisdiction.  So that's another kind				false

		2090						LN		79		19		false		           19     of wrinkle for all of us to be aware of.				false

		2091						LN		79		20		false		           20          So, yeah, I just wanted to add that context in				false

		2092						LN		79		21		false		           21     case you had questions about it.  I know there was a				false

		2093						LN		79		22		false		           22     lot of head scratching about that maybe at the initial				false

		2094						LN		79		23		false		           23     meeting.  So I'm just adding that to Ms. Belkina's				false

		2095						LN		79		24		false		           24     report for your -- for your background information.				false

		2096						LN		79		25		false		           25                        CHAIR BECKETT:  No, thank you.  I				false

		2097						PG		80		0		false		page 80				false

		2098						LN		80		1		false		            1     think it's a very important update and certainly helps				false

		2099						LN		80		2		false		            2     to have that clarified, knowing some of it is still in				false

		2100						LN		80		3		false		            3     process of -- of getting further clarified.				false

		2101						LN		80		4		false		            4          And in that regard, I was going to acknowledge up				false

		2102						LN		80		5		false		            5     front and ask if there's a comment from our two local				false

		2103						LN		80		6		false		            6     representatives, Commissioner Leckie, who -- and				false

		2104						LN		80		7		false		            7     Council Leckie, who's joined us previously, and now				false

		2105						LN		80		8		false		            8     Council Jeff Breckel representing the City of				false

		2106						LN		80		9		false		            9     Stevenson.  But let me just turn this open to all				false

		2107						LN		80		10		false		           10     Council members, knowing further Council who are here				false

		2108						LN		80		11		false		           11     with us in the room and Council Nelson.  Certainly				false

		2109						LN		80		12		false		           12     these questions have been, I think, on their mind as				false

		2110						LN		80		13		false		           13     well, Counsel Thompson.  So thanks for clarifying that.				false

		2111						LN		80		14		false		           14          I'll turn it open for comments.				false

		2112						LN		80		15		false		           15          Council Pamplin.				false

		2113						LN		80		16		false		           16                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Great.  Thank you,				false

		2114						LN		80		17		false		           17     Mr. Chair.  Thanks, Mr. Thompson, for the overview.				false

		2115						LN		80		18		false		           18          So, you know, the statutory requirement for the				false

		2116						LN		80		19		false		           19     public information meeting, 60 days within receipt of				false

		2117						LN		80		20		false		           20     the application makes sense.  Have the project				false

		2118						LN		80		21		false		           21     applicant explain the project proposal, an opportunity				false

		2119						LN		80		22		false		           22     for public input, just a very early engagement and				false

		2120						LN		80		23		false		           23     public awareness of here's an extensive process that's				false

		2121						LN		80		24		false		           24     coming.  And so I appreciate that.				false

		2122						LN		80		25		false		           25          I think the part that was -- that's of interest to				false

		2123						PG		81		0		false		page 81				false

		2124						LN		81		1		false		            1     me is the obligations for the land-use consistency				false

		2125						LN		81		2		false		            2     hearings.  So I do think it would be beneficial to make				false

		2126						LN		81		3		false		            3     sure we've got the full roster of Council members, but				false

		2127						LN		81		4		false		            4     I look to you to kind of figure out what can be done,				false

		2128						LN		81		5		false		            5     you know, while -- what work can be done while those				false

		2129						LN		81		6		false		            6     are still being appointed.				false

		2130						LN		81		7		false		            7          But also I'd just like to make sure that, as				false

		2131						LN		81		8		false		            8     EFSEC, we're reaching out not just to the project				false

		2132						LN		81		9		false		            9     applicant but to those local governments and				false

		2133						LN		81		10		false		           10     municipalities for their understanding of how the				false

		2134						LN		81		11		false		           11     project is consistent or not with their own ordinances.				false

		2135						LN		81		12		false		           12     To me, asking the applicant to say, well, you know, you				false

		2136						LN		81		13		false		           13     could imagine the scenario where an applicant would				false

		2137						LN		81		14		false		           14     respond saying, yes, it's consistent and the County				false

		2138						LN		81		15		false		           15     saying, no, it's not.  And I guess I'd like to make				false

		2139						LN		81		16		false		           16     sure that we're hearing directly from the local				false

		2140						LN		81		17		false		           17     governments whether or not it's consistent rather than				false

		2141						LN		81		18		false		           18     an applicant's interpretation of what they've heard				false

		2142						LN		81		19		false		           19     from the local government, if that makes sense.				false

		2143						LN		81		20		false		           20                        MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah, I think that's				false

		2144						LN		81		21		false		           21     an excellent point.  I mean, I think -- and I think it				false

		2145						LN		81		22		false		           22     is staff's practice to, if Ms. Hafkemeyer or Ms. Bumpus				false

		2146						LN		81		23		false		           23     want to speak to this too, to try to solicit that input				false

		2147						LN		81		24		false		           24     from local land-use authorities.				false

		2148						LN		81		25		false		           25                        MS. BUMPUS:  Yes.  So we do have a				false

		2149						PG		82		0		false		page 82				false

		2150						LN		82		1		false		            1     data request that we're preparing to send out.  And				false

		2151						LN		82		2		false		            2     there are questions in that data request that should,				false

		2152						LN		82		3		false		            3     when we receive responses, supplement the application				false

		2153						LN		82		4		false		            4     as to land use.  I think we need to look at that.				false

		2154						LN		82		5		false		            5          We also have discussed sending follow-up letters				false

		2155						LN		82		6		false		            6     to some of the local governments who have indicated				false

		2156						LN		82		7		false		            7     that they're going to appoint someone to the Council.				false

		2157						LN		82		8		false		            8     They just haven't chosen who that person's going to be.				false

		2158						LN		82		9		false		            9     And we've indicated to them that they'll need to get up				false

		2159						LN		82		10		false		           10     to speed, read the record, and be familiar with that.				false

		2160						LN		82		11		false		           11          And as Mr. Thompson noted, you know -- and I agree				false

		2161						LN		82		12		false		           12     with this point -- that once you have the full				false

		2162						LN		82		13		false		           13     composition of the Council, I think that that might be				false

		2163						LN		82		14		false		           14     a time ripe for, okay, what do we have in the				false

		2164						LN		82		15		false		           15     application that helps inform us about land-use				false

		2165						LN		82		16		false		           16     consistency, and if it's still deficient at that point,				false

		2166						LN		82		17		false		           17     do we hold another hearing?  Is there some other				false

		2167						LN		82		18		false		           18     mechanism that we want to implement to gather more				false

		2168						LN		82		19		false		           19     information and supplement the record so that the				false

		2169						LN		82		20		false		           20     Council can make a decision with respect to land-use				false

		2170						LN		82		21		false		           21     consistency?				false

		2171						LN		82		22		false		           22                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Mr. Chair, just				false

		2172						LN		82		23		false		           23     another follow-up.				false

		2173						LN		82		24		false		           24          I also recall looking into this, and there was a				false

		2174						LN		82		25		false		           25     statute indicating that the project applicant may work				false
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		2176						LN		83		1		false		            1     with the local government to get a local -- or a				false

		2177						LN		83		2		false		            2     land-use consistency certificate and that that is				false

		2178						LN		83		3		false		            3     brought forward at the actual hearing, which is also				false

		2179						LN		83		4		false		            4     kind of -- I mean, that seems ideal, but I guess I				false

		2180						LN		83		5		false		            5     would also give a lot of deference -- but tell me if				false

		2181						LN		83		6		false		            6     I'm off base on this -- that if there was a land-use				false

		2182						LN		83		7		false		            7     consistency certificate even after the hearing but				false

		2183						LN		83		8		false		            8     before the Council's making a decision, that we'd				false

		2184						LN		83		9		false		            9     welcome that.				false

		2185						LN		83		10		false		           10          I mean, it's -- anyway, the statutes on this				false

		2186						LN		83		11		false		           11     particular process, I think, you kind of stumble				false

		2187						LN		83		12		false		           12     through it rather than, like, as far as really clear.				false

		2188						LN		83		13		false		           13     So I don't know if that's even something Director				false

		2189						LN		83		14		false		           14     Bumpus, on a future agency, request legislation to kind				false

		2190						LN		83		15		false		           15     of map some of these processes out, because I think				false

		2191						LN		83		16		false		           16     they kind of put you sometimes in a box that's --				false

		2192						LN		83		17		false		           17     that's kind of challenging to operate within.				false

		2193						LN		83		18		false		           18                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Director Bumpus.				false

		2194						LN		83		19		false		           19                        MS. BUMPUS:  I would just -- I don't				false

		2195						LN		83		20		false		           20     know if Mr. Thompson has something to add, but I would				false

		2196						LN		83		21		false		           21     just note that, you know, I think it's a good point.				false

		2197						LN		83		22		false		           22     The Council does have broad discretion in terms of				false

		2198						LN		83		23		false		           23     holding additional hearings and taking other steps to				false

		2199						LN		83		24		false		           24     supplement the record as it's needed.  And every				false
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		2203						LN		84		2		false		            2     that in order to supplement it.				false

		2204						LN		84		3		false		            3          So I think that -- as I said, you know, I think				false

		2205						LN		84		4		false		            4     it's a good point.  I think in the framework that we're				false

		2206						LN		84		5		false		            5     operating in today, I think we've got a lot of options				false

		2207						LN		84		6		false		            6     for the Council available to supplement that record.				false

		2208						LN		84		7		false		            7          And the other thing I was just going to mention				false

		2209						LN		84		8		false		            8     too is that there is no time limit with respect to				false

		2210						LN		84		9		false		            9     this -- this decision, right?  So we're not working as				false

		2211						LN		84		10		false		           10     tightly as we were, like, say in the scheduling of the				false

		2212						LN		84		11		false		           11     public informational hearing.				false

		2213						LN		84		12		false		           12          Sorry.  I saw --				false

		2214						LN		84		13		false		           13                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  It's fine.				false

		2215						LN		84		14		false		           14          I would just like --				false

		2216						LN		84		15		false		           15                        MS. BUMPUS:  -- Ms. Hafkemeyer.				false

		2217						LN		84		16		false		           16                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  -- to add, in those				false

		2218						LN		84		17		false		           17     initial hearings, the applicant did indicate that they				false

		2219						LN		84		18		false		           18     were working with local jurisdictions to obtain				false

		2220						LN		84		19		false		           19     certificates of consistency, which is one of the items				false

		2221						LN		84		20		false		           20     requested in the data requests that we were preparing				false

		2222						LN		84		21		false		           21     to have those submitted to us to become part of the				false

		2223						LN		84		22		false		           22     record.				false

		2224						LN		84		23		false		           23          We are also working, as you indicated, with some				false

		2225						LN		84		24		false		           24     of the local jurisdiction planning departments to get				false

		2226						LN		84		25		false		           25     some of that input that you indicated on their				false
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		2228						LN		85		1		false		            1     interpretation about whether or not this project is				false

		2229						LN		85		2		false		            2     consistent.  So that part of the record is still under				false

		2230						LN		85		3		false		            3     development.  We're still working with those entities				false

		2231						LN		85		4		false		            4     to try and, you know, get all of that information in.				false

		2232						LN		85		5		false		            5     And so once we have all of that, we will make it				false

		2233						LN		85		6		false		            6     available to the Council and the public.				false

		2234						LN		85		7		false		            7                        CHAIR BECKETT:  So we'll take two				false

		2235						LN		85		8		false		            8     comments here in order.  Council Ryan and then Council				false

		2236						LN		85		9		false		            9     Leckie.				false

		2237						LN		85		10		false		           10                        MR. RYAN:  Thank you, chair.				false

		2238						LN		85		11		false		           11          Want to take a moment to echo some of Council				false

		2239						LN		85		12		false		           12     Pamplin's comments and observations about some of those				false

		2240						LN		85		13		false		           13     procedural concerns.  I think I felt similarly and				false

		2241						LN		85		14		false		           14     happy to hear in the staff update about also agency				false

		2242						LN		85		15		false		           15     consultations with DNR and DFW that have been				false

		2243						LN		85		16		false		           16     scheduled.  I think that will be a key part of what I				false

		2244						LN		85		17		false		           17     look for in a future, you know, version of the record,				false

		2245						LN		85		18		false		           18     is especially talking to DNR's aquatic section about				false

		2246						LN		85		19		false		           19     land use in the river.				false

		2247						LN		85		20		false		           20          So definitely woke me up to sort of the complexity				false

		2248						LN		85		21		false		           21     and the scale of the proposed project and looking				false

		2249						LN		85		22		false		           22     forward to hearing more information and continuing to				false

		2250						LN		85		23		false		           23     review the record.  So that's first.				false

		2251						LN		85		24		false		           24          Secondly, I just had a quick question.  Was also				false
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		2254						LN		86		1		false		            1     tribal engagement and would love to know if you could				false

		2255						LN		86		2		false		            2     share a little bit of additional information about who				false

		2256						LN		86		3		false		            3     else might be on the consultation schedule even if they				false

		2257						LN		86		4		false		            4     haven't been officially contacted yet.  Would just love				false

		2258						LN		86		5		false		            5     to know the staff's approach about who to consult with				false

		2259						LN		86		6		false		            6     and gather with given the complexity and scale of the				false
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		2261						LN		86		8		false		            8                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Do you have a				false
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		2263						LN		86		10		false		           10                        MS. McLEAN:  Yeah.				false
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		2266						LN		86		13		false		           13                        MS. McLEAN:  Yeah.				false

		2267						LN		86		14		false		           14                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  -- additional				false
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		2269						LN		86		16		false		           16                        MS. McLEAN:  Yeah.  Sure.  Just let				false

		2270						LN		86		17		false		           17     me take one little note to -- okay.  Yeah.				false

		2271						LN		86		18		false		           18          So thank you for that question.  Lisa McLean,				false

		2272						LN		86		19		false		           19     tribal liaison for EFSEC.				false

		2273						LN		86		20		false		           20          We -- obviously we sent out a notification to all				false

		2274						LN		86		21		false		           21     32 tribes.  We've heard back from and been in close				false

		2275						LN		86		22		false		           22     contact with Yakama, CTUIR, Umatilla, Warm Springs,				false

		2276						LN		86		23		false		           23     Grand Ronde, and Cowlitz.  We haven't gotten a --				false

		2277						LN		86		24		false		           24     the -- only Cowlitz has asked for the formal				false

		2278						LN		86		25		false		           25     consultation.  Everybody else is aware they can ask for				false
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		2280						LN		87		1		false		            1     formal consultation, but in the meantime, we have an				false

		2281						LN		87		2		false		            2     active dialogue going with them, and we're trying to --				false

		2282						LN		87		3		false		            3     as I've assured them, it's to try to, you know, get				false

		2283						LN		87		4		false		            4     some meetings together at some key milestones.				false

		2284						LN		87		5		false		            5          So just today this morning, we were talking about				false

		2285						LN		87		6		false		            6     are there any milestones that are coming up.  We should				false

		2286						LN		87		7		false		            7     call people together.  And as part of that also, we're				false

		2287						LN		87		8		false		            8     in close contact with CRITFC, who is -- a lot of the				false

		2288						LN		87		9		false		            9     tribes are -- those tribes that I mentioned are sort of				false

		2289						LN		87		10		false		           10     relying on CRITFC to stay on top of this thing.  So				false

		2290						LN		87		11		false		           11     we've been in touch with them, and we've been briefing				false

		2291						LN		87		12		false		           12     them since -- what was it? -- the summertime, even				false

		2292						LN		87		13		false		           13     before we got this application.  So they also know.				false

		2293						LN		87		14		false		           14          So I guess my outreach has been:  We're here.				false

		2294						LN		87		15		false		           15     Don't go listen to rumors.  If you got a question, call				false

		2295						LN		87		16		false		           16     me, find out, and I'll get the answer.  You know what I				false

		2296						LN		87		17		false		           17     mean?  So if you're feeling like you don't have the				false

		2297						LN		87		18		false		           18     information you need on this, call me, and I will try				false

		2298						LN		87		19		false		           19     to track down the information for you.				false
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		2307						LN		88		2		false		            2     we know who to talk to on their side.  And when we need				false

		2308						LN		88		3		false		            3     to -- when they want us to raise it to the tribal				false

		2309						LN		88		4		false		            4     council level, I feel confident that we'll be ready to				false

		2310						LN		88		5		false		            5     do that.				false

		2311						LN		88		6		false		            6                        MR. RYAN:  Very much appreciate that				false
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		2314						LN		88		9		false		            9     interagency coordination we might have with Oregon				false

		2315						LN		88		10		false		           10     EFSEC regarding those tribes that are in Oregon but				false

		2316						LN		88		11		false		           11     have their reserve rights in this state.  But it sounds				false

		2317						LN		88		12		false		           12     like we're in touch, and there's not really a need to				false

		2318						LN		88		13		false		           13     coordinate through the agency if we're just going to be				false

		2319						LN		88		14		false		           14     directly in touch.  So really comprehensive, and				false

		2320						LN		88		15		false		           15     appreciate the answer.				false

		2321						LN		88		16		false		           16                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the				false

		2322						LN		88		17		false		           17     instant update.				false

		2323						LN		88		18		false		           18          I'm sorry to our local Council representatives.  I				false

		2324						LN		88		19		false		           19     will turn to you next.  But let me just add one				false

		2325						LN		88		20		false		           20     comment.				false

		2326						LN		88		21		false		           21          I had sent an e-mail earlier on this, but I'll				false

		2327						LN		88		22		false		           22     just out of transparency just go ahead and add it into				false

		2328						LN		88		23		false		           23     the discussion.  And this -- certainly my intent would				false

		2329						LN		88		24		false		           24     be to do any of the following in full coordination with				false

		2330						LN		88		25		false		           25     what Lisa, Ms. McLean, has just laid out.				false
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		2333						LN		89		2		false		            2     Council doors, tribal especially, but I don't think				false

		2334						LN		89		3		false		            3     that's untrue for local government.  So we need to go				false

		2335						LN		89		4		false		            4     proactively, but we need to go at the most efficient				false

		2336						LN		89		5		false		            5     appropriate time.  And, hence, if we could have one				false

		2337						LN		89		6		false		            6     conversation, not six, that's probably ultimately				false

		2338						LN		89		7		false		            7     better for those -- those other local and tribal				false
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		2340						LN		89		9		false		            9          But in this case, something that I'd like to				false

		2341						LN		89		10		false		           10     explore both a little bit as my onboarding as new chair				false

		2342						LN		89		11		false		           11     but also as I have thought further about the CRT				false

		2343						LN		89		12		false		           12     project is just that we request consultation.  And we				false

		2344						LN		89		13		false		           13     can do that in coordination of which tribes have more				false

		2345						LN		89		14		false		           14     focus on this.  Cowlitz have contacted us.  We				false

		2346						LN		89		15		false		           15     appreciate that.  And am looking forward to that, that				false

		2347						LN		89		16		false		           16     upcoming conversation very soon.				false

		2348						LN		89		17		false		           17          But to the degree that can be more slightly				false

		2349						LN		89		18		false		           18     proactively, you know, done now at the front end, it				false

		2350						LN		89		19		false		           19     would seem something that I'd like to explore further.				false

		2351						LN		89		20		false		           20     So just wanted to go ahead and share that in the moment				false

		2352						LN		89		21		false		           21     here.				false

		2353						LN		89		22		false		           22          Go ahead, Council Ryan.  And then I promise,				false

		2354						LN		89		23		false		           23     Council Leckie, we'll come to you soon.				false

		2355						LN		89		24		false		           24                        MR. RYAN:  Apologies.  Just -- I				false
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		2358						LN		90		1		false		            1     definitely in alignment with Executive Order 25-10				false

		2359						LN		90		2		false		            2     about the language about being proactive.  I think				false

		2360						LN		90		3		false		            3     that's a good thing to explore, and that's important.				false

		2361						LN		90		4		false		            4                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Appreciate that.				false

		2362						LN		90		5		false		            5          Great.  Believe it or not, Council Leckie.				false

		2363						LN		90		6		false		            6                        MR. LECKIE:  Yeah, thank you.  I				false

		2364						LN		90		7		false		            7     know that a comment was made about the land-use				false

		2365						LN		90		8		false		            8     certificate, and that's one of the things I was going				false

		2366						LN		90		9		false		            9     to comment on.				false

		2367						LN		90		10		false		           10          You know, the question I would ask is:  Is the				false

		2368						LN		90		11		false		           11     land-use certificate required?  Does the County issue				false

		2369						LN		90		12		false		           12     it?  And should that have been done before the land-use				false

		2370						LN		90		13		false		           13     consistency hearing?				false

		2371						LN		90		14		false		           14          I do know, talking to our planning staff, that				false

		2372						LN		90		15		false		           15     there was a request to meet with our prosecutor,				false

		2373						LN		90		16		false		           16     planning director, and planning staff about a land-use				false

		2374						LN		90		17		false		           17     certificate, but that meeting did not happen before the				false

		2375						LN		90		18		false		           18     hearing.  So those are some questions outstanding to				false

		2376						LN		90		19		false		           19     me.  So does EFSEC take that on for the land-use				false

		2377						LN		90		20		false		           20     certificate, or is it still the County's				false

		2378						LN		90		21		false		           21     responsibility?  Thank you.				false

		2379						LN		90		22		false		           22                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.				false

		2380						LN		90		23		false		           23          Counsel.				false

		2381						LN		90		24		false		           24                        MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah, I can speak to				false

		2382						LN		90		25		false		           25     that.  The certificate is not required.  It's -- it's				false
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		2384						LN		91		1		false		            1     basically something that the applicant, at its option,				false

		2385						LN		91		2		false		            2     can try to obtain from the local jurisdiction.  And if				false

		2386						LN		91		3		false		            3     it does, that establishes a presumption that there is				false

		2387						LN		91		4		false		            4     consistency, which can be rebutted by other people, you				false

		2388						LN		91		5		false		            5     know, if they -- they feel that's inaccurate, but -- so				false

		2389						LN		91		6		false		            6     it's just -- it's an optional thing that the applicant				false

		2390						LN		91		7		false		            7     can obtain, not required.				false

		2391						LN		91		8		false		            8                        MR. LECKIE:  So local county				false

		2392						LN		91		9		false		            9     planning does not have to issue anything regarding this				false

		2393						LN		91		10		false		           10     property.  This is all EFSEC, then.				false

		2394						LN		91		11		false		           11                        MR. THOMPSON:  Correct.  There is no				false

		2395						LN		91		12		false		           12     requirement for local planning or the local				false

		2396						LN		91		13		false		           13     jurisdiction to even take a position or, yeah, or to				false

		2397						LN		91		14		false		           14     provide a certificate.  I mean, certainly we welcome				false

		2398						LN		91		15		false		           15     that and, you know, even hope that they do.  But that				false

		2399						LN		91		16		false		           16     there's no requirement, which partly may answer Council				false

		2400						LN		91		17		false		           17     Member Pamplin's question to a degree, because there's				false

		2401						LN		91		18		false		           18     no -- there's no way to compel the local jurisdiction				false
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		2403						LN		91		20		false		           20                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Can I jump in?				false
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		2406						LN		91		23		false		           23                        MS. BUMPUS:  No.  EFSEC is the SEPA				false
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           1                        BE IT REMEMBERED that on Wednesday,



           2      January 21, 2026, at 621 Woodland Square Loop



           3      Southeast, Lacey, Washington, at 1:31 p.m., the



           4      following monthly meeting of the Washington State



           5      Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was held, to



           6      wit:



           7



           8                          <<<<<< >>>>>>



           9



          10                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Good afternoon.



          11      This is Kurt Beckett, chair of EFSEC, calling our



          12      January 21st meeting to order at 1:31 p.m.



          13          And, Ms. Grantham, if you could call the roll,



          14      please.



          15                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Certainly, Chair.



          16          Department of Commerce.



          17          Department of Ecology.



          18                        MR. NELSON:  Councilman Nelson



          19      here.



          20                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of Fish



          21      and Wildlife.



          22                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Nate Pamplin,



          23      present.



          24                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of



          25      Natural Resources.
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            1                        MR. RYAN:  Maverick Ryan, present.



            2                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And Utilities and



            3     Transportation Commission.



            4                        MR. RYBARIK:  Brian Rybarik,



            5     present.



            6                        MS. GRANTHAM:  For local government



            7     and optional State agencies.  For the Hop Hill solar



            8     project, for Benton County, Paul Krupin.



            9          For Carriger Solar, for Klickitat County, Matt



           10     Chiles.



           11          For Wallula Gap, for Benton County, Adam Fyall.



           12          For Goldeneye BESS, Skagit County, Robby Eckroth.



           13                        MR. ECKROTH:  Robby Eckroth,



           14     present.



           15                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Cascade Renewable



           16     Transmission, for Skamania County, Asa Leckie.



           17                        MR. LECKIE:  Asa Leckie, present.



           18                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And City of



           19     Stevenson, Jeff Breckel.



           20                        MR. BRECKEL:  Jeff Breckel, present.



           21                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Assistant attorney



           22     generals.



           23          Jon Thompson.



           24                        MR. THOMPSON:  Present.



           25                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Zack Packer.
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            1                        MR. PACKER:  Present.



            2                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And Talia Thuet.



            3          Moving on to Council staff.



            4          Sonia Bumpus.



            5                        MS. BUMPUS:  Present.



            6                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Ami Hafkemeyer.



            7                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Present.



            8                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Amy Moon.



            9                        MS. MOON:  Present.



           10                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Sara Randolph.



           11          Sean Greene.



           12                        MR. GREENE:  Present.



           13                        MS. GRANTHAM:  John Barnes.



           14                        MR. BARNES:  Present.



           15                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Joanne Snarski.



           16                        MS. SNARSKI:  Present.



           17                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Maria Belkina.



           18                        MS. BELKINA:  Present.



           19                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Lisa McLean.



           20                        MS. McLEAN:  Present.



           21                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And Noel Sharp.



           22                        MS. SHARP:  Present.



           23                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Operational updates.



           24     For Kittitas Valley wind project.



           25          Wild Horse Wind Power Project.
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            1                        MS. GALBRAITH:  Jennifer Galbraith,



            2     present.



            3                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Grays Harbor Energy



            4     Center.



            5                        MR. PACE:  Eric Pace, present.



            6                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Chehalis Generation



            7     Facility.



            8                        MR. SMITH:  Jeremy Smith, present.



            9                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Columbia Generating



           10     Station.



           11                        MS. HALL:  Katie Hall for Columbia,



           12     present.



           13                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Columbia Solar.



           14          Goose Prairie Solar.



           15                        MR. JIA:  Yeah.  Nelson here.



           16                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And Ostrea Solar.



           17                        MR. VOLTZ:  John Voltz, present.



           18                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And do we have anyone



           19     present for the counsel for the environment?



           20                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Yeah.



           21                        MR. KOROL:  Yuriy Korol.



           22                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Sarah Reyneveld and



           23     Yuriy Korol are present.



           24                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.



           25          Chair, there is a quorum for all councils.
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            1                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very much.



            2          Moving on.  Chair would entertain a motion to



            3     adopt today's meeting agenda.



            4                        MR. RYBARIK:  So moved.



            5                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Is there a second?



            6                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Second.



            7                        CHAIR BECKETT:  The agenda's been



            8     moved and seconded.  Are there any additions or changes



            9     to the agenda?



           10          Hearing none.



           11          All in favor of moving the agenda forward, please



           12     say "aye."



           13                        MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.



           14                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Opposed?  Abstain?



           15          Okay.  Agenda is adopted.



           16          Moving on to the minutes.  We have before us the



           17     minutes from our December 17th meeting.  Chair would



           18     entertain a motion to adopt the minutes.



           19                        MR. RYBARIK:  So moved.



           20                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Second?



           21                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Second.



           22                        CHAIR BECKETT:  The minutes have



           23     been moved and are on the table.  Are there any edits



           24     to the minutes?  I know of none from my review.



           25                        MR. RYBARIK:  I specifically
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            1     reviewed for the spelling of "counsel" this time, but I



            2     did not notice any modifications needed.



            3                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for



            4     bringing that forward, future review.



            5          So all right.  Then, with that, I'll call for the



            6     vote to approve the minutes.



            7          All in favor, say aye.



            8                        MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.



            9                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Opposed?



           10          Okay.  Minutes are adopted.



           11          And a special privilege for all of us today.  We



           12     have before us three resolutions, one each for former



           13     Council members:  Lenny Young from the Department of



           14     Natural Resources, Eli Levitt from the Department of



           15     Ecology, and Stacey Brewster from the Utilities and



           16     Transportation Commission.



           17          And so the chair would entertain a motion to adopt



           18     Resolutions 358, 359, and 361.



           19                        MR. PAMPLIN:  So moved.



           20                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Is there a second?



           21                        MR. RYBARIK:  Second.



           22                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



           23          The resolutions are now on the table.  And the



           24     chair will do his best to try and appropriately



           25     highlight a few specific items for each of our former
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            1     Council members.  For the members of the public, you'll



            2     find a full description for each of their activities



            3     and service here on the EFSEC Council and a general



            4     consensus -- I will not read the full resolution or let



            5     alone all three, but will enable -- will endeavor to



            6     highlight a few special things for each of them and



            7     then would welcome other comments from Council members,



            8     and then ultimately we'll call the question and



            9     certainly would welcome hearing from our special guests



           10     here today.



           11          So starting with Lenny Young.  And we'll go in



           12     numeric order here.  For resolution 358, Lenny was



           13     appointed on March 5th, 2021, served nearly five years,



           14     and certainly brought a tremendous depth of knowledge



           15     and background in many respects but especially given



           16     his natural resources focus at the Department of



           17     Natural Resources.



           18          Each of these former Council members participated



           19     in six reviews -- or excuse me -- in six site



           20     certificate agreements.  Those are Goose Prairie Solar,



           21     High Top Solar, Ostrea Solar, Horse Heaven Wind,



           22     Wautoma Solar, and Carriger Solar.  And certainly



           23     several of those -- in particular, Horse Heaven --



           24     stand out, even more extra work than I think any of us



           25     can fully appreciate.  So I want to thank all of you
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            1     for that.



            2          The other thing that Lenny was certainly known for



            3     was characterized by challenging assumptions and



            4     examining multiple angles of an issue during Council



            5     deliberations.  And let me note that for each of you,



            6     the resolution on this is that the Energy Facility Site



            7     Evaluation Council recognizes your outstanding,



            8     unwavering, and faithful contribution to the Council's



            9     siting and regulatory activities and gratefully



           10     expresses its sincere gratitude for the commitment,



           11     dedication, and effort that each of you have shown



           12     through your service.



           13          Moving on to Eli Levitt, who began his service



           14     with EFSEC on January 10th, 2022.  And each of these



           15     Council members certainly brought, you know, diligence



           16     in their deliberation on how best to balance many of



           17     the different impacts and mitigation measures that



           18     every project deserves.



           19          And I'm sure we'll catch a "mute" there when we



           20     can.



           21          Eli contributed, again, to the same six eventual



           22     site certificate agreements in addition to his



           23     thoughtful focus on the review, his attentiveness to



           24     public comment, thoughtful questions, and continual



           25     advocacy for continuous improvement and expansion of
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            1     public outreach was certainly noted, and solicitation



            2     of public input from across Washington's diverse



            3     communities was an area of focus for Council Member



            4     Levitt.



            5          And, lastly, and saving the distinction of the



            6     longest-serving Council member, at least that I'm aware



            7     of, for nearly seven years, Stacey Brewster on behalf



            8     of the Utilities and Transportation Commission, who



            9     started with the EFSEC Council on January 8th, 2019.



           10     She also gets the high award for 73 regular Council



           11     meetings and 31 special meetings.



           12          And I should have noted that Eli had 58, but Lenny



           13     had a full 80.  So I think you're still on No. 2,



           14     Lenny.  But each of you, you know, deserve praise for



           15     even a handful of those.



           16          So let me also especially say here in the past



           17     year that Stacey, Council Brewster, was ably and with



           18     careful consideration guided Council discussion as



           19     acting chair for Horse Heaven, including on the



           20     Species-5 issue that is also before the Council today,



           21     Wallula Gap, Goldeneye BESS, and Hop Hill.  And she has



           22     participated -- and I had the honor of doing so



           23     alongside her -- in a government-to-government



           24     consultation for the Goldeneye BESS project.



           25          So, in particular, a closing comment was just
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            1     particularly insightful questions in adjudicative



            2     processes and deliberations were noted as an area of



            3     extra expertise that Council Brewster brought to the --



            4     to the effort.



            5          So, with that, certainly a closing just heartfelt



            6     "thank you" to each of you for all your service.  I



            7     learned a lot from you and appreciated just in the time



            8     in the past year that I was able to share with each of



            9     you.  I can't thank you enough, and especially Stacey



           10     for grabbing that gavel on my behalf, which was always



           11     going to be an extra ask of someone, and it came to be



           12     you.  So thank you for that.



           13          And, with that, I would turn this to my fellow



           14     Council members, and I would actually maybe start with



           15     Council and Chair Rybarik, who has a member of the UTC



           16     here being honored, so...



           17                        MR. RYBARIK:  Thank you,



           18     Mr. Chairman.  Do want to just thank everybody for



           19     their -- for their service here.  And I think you've



           20     paraphrased those very well in just the great work



           21     that's gone on here.  I want to additionally appreciate



           22     Stacey's work for the UTC here in the room with us,



           23     with us today.  Want to just give a great shout out to



           24     her.  The resolution outlines some of the projects, as



           25     you mentioned, Mr. Chairman, some of the work very
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            1     specifically in the chair's spot in the last -- last



            2     year or so.



            3          But I think it cannot capture, even though it



            4     attempts to, just the thoughtfulness and the



            5     preparation that Stacey brings to her work and the



            6     perspectives she offers.  We're very thankful that



            7     she'll continue to be here at the UTC, continue to



            8     support the work that we're doing here with EFSEC and



            9     my participation here.  But just wanted to thank her



           10     again, and just grateful for her perspectives and



           11     knowledge.  And thank you, Stacey.



           12                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Very well.



           13          Let me continue, then.  I guess, Council Ryan, did



           14     you want to make a comment on behalf of your agency as



           15     well.



           16                        MR. RYAN:  Yeah.  Thank you, Chair.



           17          Lenny:  Big shoes, huge opportunity to follow in



           18     the footsteps of someone like yourself and appreciate



           19     all the insight leant to the Council over the years.



           20     Everything that's been mentioned, your role in these



           21     deliberations, it's really the model of public service,



           22     both your record of service here as well as at the



           23     agency.  So I appreciate the opportunity to step in



           24     your footsteps and appreciate everything you've done.



           25                        CHAIR BECKETT:  And, Council Nelson,
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            1     did you want to make a comment on behalf of the



            2     Department of Ecology?



            3                        MR. NELSON:  Thank you, Chair



            4     Beckett.  I sure do.



            5          Just want to thank all three Council members



            6     receiving a commendation here:  Young, Brewster, and



            7     Levitt.



            8          Eli's dedication to public comment and open



            9     process and all that, that transcends his entire



           10     career, not just his time on the EFSEC Council.  And



           11     just wanted to publicly thank him for that.



           12          You know, I'd like to think that Eli walks so I



           13     could run, but he's about a foot taller than me, so in



           14     my analogy here, we're going at about the same rate of



           15     speed.  Thank you, Eli.



           16                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



           17          Council Pamplin or other Council members, any



           18     other comments?



           19                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.



           20     Yeah, great appreciation for all three Council members.



           21     And I'd just like to specifically mention Mr. Young.



           22          He's been an executive at DNR for a lot of years,



           23     and our orbits have overlapped and intersected on a



           24     variety of other forums outside of the EFSEC process.



           25     Always found his style of engagement being curious,
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            1     articulating very complex and difficult discussions in



            2     a way that brought further understanding across the



            3     meeting.



            4          And I always thought he was very fair and just an



            5     active listener.  And I've always appreciated just



            6     working with you, Mr. Young.  So thank you for all of



            7     your years of service.  Thanks.



            8                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



            9          And, Director Bumpus, I apologize for not giving



           10     you a heads-up earlier.  I would turn this to you just



           11     to see if there's any comment you want to make on



           12     behalf of yourself and/or the staff and the agency,



           13     so -- and it's okay if not, but...



           14                        MS. BUMPUS:  Thank you.  No.



           15                        CHAIR BECKETT:  I should have added



           16     your name in that list earlier, so...



           17                        MS. BUMPUS:  Thank you, Chair



           18     Beckett.  I appreciate the opportunity.



           19          No, I just wanted to say thank you for all of the



           20     work and the dedicated time and attention to EFSEC over



           21     those years that you served, and also to thank you --



           22     each of you were always very respectful to staff and



           23     worked very well and very collaboratively with the



           24     EFSEC staff, and we really appreciate that.  So thank



           25     you.
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            1                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the



            2     good comments.



            3          All right.  Members of the Council, with that, I



            4     will call the question.  Again, we have



            5     Resolutions 358, 359, and 361 on the table.  All in



            6     favor of passing those resolutions, please say "aye."



            7                        MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.



            8                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Opposed?



            9     Abstentions?



           10          Okay.  Unanimous of course.



           11          I don't know if there's any comments our guests



           12     would like to make from the floor.  I would certainly



           13     welcome that.  No obligation.  Otherwise, we do have



           14     resolutions here that are actually framed, and we would



           15     present those to you and probably grab a quick photo.



           16     So if you wish.



           17                        MR. YOUNG:  Just --



           18                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Former Council



           19     Young, please.



           20                        MR. YOUNG:  -- quick remarks from



           21     me.



           22          I first would like to thank our outstanding



           23     commissioners, Public Lands Commissioner Hilary Franz,



           24     former commissioner, and Commissioner Dave Upthegrove,



           25     our current commissioner, for having the confidence to
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            1     give me the opportunity to represent them and the



            2     department, and thank both the former chair, Kathleen



            3     Drew, and the current chair, Kurt Beckett, Director



            4     Bumpus, and all the EFSEC staff, including our counsel



            5     from the attorney general's office, Jon Thompson, for



            6     the tremendous support that they've provided during the



            7     time that I served.



            8          And not the least the incredible thoughtfulness



            9     and dedication of my fellow Council members when we



           10     were dealing with very complex issues with competing



           11     priorities.  I was always impressed by the dedication



           12     and the thoughtfulness and the seriousness with which



           13     they took these important issues and how they



           14     discharged their duties.  So tremendous experience, and



           15     I'm very thankful for the opportunity to have been on



           16     the Council.



           17                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very much.



           18          Anyone else?  No obligation.



           19                        MS. BREWSTER:  Well --



           20                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Stacey Brewster.



           21                        MS. BREWSTER:  -- Lenny said it very



           22     well.  Thank you to all of you for leadership, to



           23     staff.  You guys -- it wasn't easy, but it wasn't



           24     impossible.  You did -- you prepared us well.  Always



           25     had information for us.  I really appreciate your
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            1     dedication, your integrity, all consummate



            2     professionals, leadership, Chair Beckett, Chair Drew.



            3     Learned so much during this opportunity, and I really



            4     appreciate the honor to serve.



            5                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council Levitt.



            6                        MR. LEVITT:  Yeah, I guess I feel



            7     obligated to also say something.



            8          No, I just thank you very much for the opportunity



            9     to serve.  I believe very much in the mission of the



           10     agency and the Council.  I have a child with asthma and



           11     have friends and family with asthma.  I look forward to



           12     a future where there is more solar, there's more



           13     geothermal, there's more wind, there's more battery



           14     storage, more smart grid, and hopefully our skies will



           15     be clearer, we'll have less smog, and a new future to



           16     look forward to.



           17          I certainly respect that all these decisions are



           18     tough.  I strongly recommend the importance and the



           19     value of doing site visits together, staff and Council



           20     members and the public doing those site visits,



           21     listening to each other, talking to each other.  Those



           22     to me are extremely valuable, and I hope those continue



           23     into the future.



           24          I was mentored briefly by Hedia Adelsman at



           25     Ecology, and she always had so many stories and talked
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            1     so much about the site visits to reinforce their --



            2     their importance.  So, yeah, good luck with the



            3     decisions ahead of you, and thank you to the staff and



            4     the Council members for continuing to work.



            5                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very much,



            6     each of you, for your good and meaningful comments.



            7          With that, I would ask that, Council Rybarik, if



            8     you would grab --



            9                        MR. RYBARIK:  Yeah.



           10                        CHAIR BECKETT:  -- the resolution



           11     for Stacey.  And, Maverick, if you would grab Lenny's.



           12     And I will -- Council Nelson, on your behalf from the



           13     Department of Ecology, I will carry Eli's.  And so



           14     we'll present these to you, and hopefully someone could



           15     help with the photo from out there.  And then we'll



           16     resume the rest of our meeting here in less than five



           17     minutes.  The meeting is still going.  We haven't



           18     adjourned, or recessed, I should say, so...



           19                               (Discussion off the record.)



           20



           21                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



           22                               (Applause.)



           23



           24                        CHAIR BECKETT:  And as we pick back



           25     up here, let me just note for our honored guests that
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            1     you have more than earned the right to leave



            2     immediately.  You are welcome, of course, in this



            3     public meeting at any time.  But you have earned the



            4     right to walk out the door.  So I leave that to your



            5     good judgment.



            6          All right.  With that, we will move to our project



            7     updates at 1:50.  And let me -- on behalf of my fellow



            8     Council members as well as our project participants and



            9     members of the public, I have kind of a broader



           10     announcement to share and certainly welcome comments



           11     from Council in particular as we go through this



           12     portion of the meeting.



           13          I believe Director Bumpus or Ami Hafkemeyer will



           14     add a further word here.  But basically there's a



           15     proposed change that would be being implemented in



           16     February which would evolve these project updates



           17     essentially that, for the normal updates that have



           18     nothing to report other than what's already in our



           19     packet, that that in-meeting verbal, whether virtually



           20     or rarely on occasion here in the meeting, that we



           21     would suspend that in-meeting reporting-out process and



           22     instead have those same written reports in our packet.



           23          And those -- that would be done to maintain our,



           24     you know, continuing our compliance standards that are



           25     associated with each of the site certificate
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            1     agreements, but ultimately I think achieving a more



            2     easier, more efficient way of our work.



            3          And so that's the underlying intent in changing



            4     from having to come down the roll with not always



            5     things to report.  Certainly the ability for any of our



            6     project participants to highlight something that they



            7     choose to highlight or something that we mutually



            8     believe needs more discussion in a meeting, that can



            9     always be done quickly just before the meeting, but



           10     otherwise I think we would try to consistently note



           11     these are the projects that are just going to have



           12     written reports, and then obviously we would focus on



           13     the balance that would receive the normal verbal



           14     update, whether that was by a project participant or



           15     staff.



           16          So, with that, let me turn to Director Bumpus and



           17     Ami Hafkemeyer to see if there was any further



           18     additional kind of context you wanted to provide on how



           19     that new system will work and continue to maintain our



           20     compliance, so...



           21                        MS. BUMPUS:  Thank you, Chair



           22     Beckett.  And good afternoon, Council members.



           23          Yes, so just a couple of things.  In looking at



           24     ways to have the Council meetings run a little bit more



           25     efficiently and spending our time together focused on
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            1     applications that are under review and on facilities



            2     that maybe have compliance issues that we need to



            3     address, we think that this is going to add some



            4     efficiency to the meetings.



            5          We -- we being staff -- looked at the site



            6     certification agreements for our operating facilities



            7     to ensure that if making this change is still compliant



            8     with the terms and conditions of those SCAs -- and it



            9     is -- and so we did double-check that, and we think



           10     that this is -- this is consistent with their



           11     compliance requirements.



           12          As to how it will work, I'll punt over to Ami



           13     Hafkemeyer to see if she wants to add any additional



           14     details about how this would function.



           15                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you.



           16          So in the background, very little will change.



           17     Staff are in regular communication with our operational



           18     facilities.  And so if there are compliance activities



           19     pending or something arises unexpectedly, that will



           20     continue to be communicated with staff and brought



           21     forward to the Council as things arise.



           22          And staff will continue to review these monthly



           23     updates and coordinate with the facilities on these



           24     regular updates.  That will still be provided monthly



           25     as they are now.  And so with that respect, compliance
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            1     oversight is not diminishing in any way.  We are still



            2     verifying compliance with permits, with SCA



            3     requirements, and so on and so forth.



            4          Really the only change will be on the -- in the



            5     meeting where, if there is nothing nonroutine to



            6     report, we will not continue to say that every meeting.



            7     Rather, indicate which facilities have nothing



            8     nonroutine to report, but their update will still be



            9     available in the Council packet for your review.  And



           10     facilities that do have something nonroutine to report



           11     or an upcoming permit renewal or mitigation activity



           12     that they're providing a report on, those will still be



           13     verbally provided at the Council meetings.



           14                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Great.  Thank you



           15     for that.



           16          And I should just also acknowledge a couple of



           17     other folks in this.  One, Director Bumpus had



           18     confirmed with me that the suggestion had certainly



           19     pre-existed my arrival at the agency maybe some years



           20     back certainly.  And a question I had in, you know,



           21     kind of coming to EFSEC.



           22          I do reflect that ultimately these project updates



           23     don't often take a lot of time, because I kind of



           24     annotate, you know, how much time we're spending, but



           25     ultimately I am mindful of, you know, the time it takes
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            1     for the participants to log in and others and call the



            2     roll, and so hopefully we can, you know, again, do good



            3     work and maintain our compliance with high confidence



            4     here but still have that benefit of a little easier



            5     work.



            6          Council Pamplin has certainly asked this question



            7     and suggestion, made a suggestion along these lines, so



            8     I just want to just recognize that shared intent and



            9     good suggestion.



           10          On a closing note -- well, let me say, one, let me



           11     see if there's comments from our Council, and I would



           12     also note for our project report-outs here coming up,



           13     if you -- as you do each of your project up-to-dates,



           14     as I call on you, if you have any question or comment



           15     you want to make while we're all here kind of in this



           16     transition, please do that today as I call through the



           17     projects here momentarily.



           18          But with that heads-up to our project



           19     participants, let me turn this first to the Council for



           20     any quick comments they'd like to share.



           21          Council Pamplin.



           22                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Yeah, thanks,



           23     Mr. Chair.



           24          Just really appreciate you-all taking a look at



           25     this and seeing if this change could be implemented.  I
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            1     appreciate where we're landing and the direction we're



            2     headed.  So thank you.



            3                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council Rybarik.



            4                        MR. RYBARIK:  Appreciate the focus



            5     on efficiency and looking at that efficiency for all



            6     parties involved and appreciate the change.  I support



            7     it.  Thank you.



            8                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Anyone else?



            9          Oh.  Council Pa- -- Nelson.  Excuse me.



           10                        MR. NELSON:  Excellent.  Yeah, thank



           11     you, Chair Beckett.



           12          Yes, I appreciate the efficiency, and, yeah, let's



           13     let her rip.



           14                        CHAIR BECKETT:  On that note.  All



           15     right.



           16          Moving on to project updates.  The Kittitas Valley



           17     wind project.  Mr. Caseday.



           18          We will move on for now and can come back to



           19     Kittitas Valley, if need be.



           20                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Council Beckett.



           21                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Oh.



           22                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  John Barnes is able



           23     to --



           24                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Oh.



           25                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  -- speak to the
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            1     facility updates.



            2                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you,



            3     Mr. Barnes.



            4                        MR. BARNES:  Thank you, Chair



            5     Beckett and Council.  This is staff for the Kittitas



            6     Valley project.  I will be speaking on behalf of Sara



            7     Randolph.



            8          There's no updates to -- or the facility update is



            9     provided in your packet.  There is no nonroutine



           10     updates to report.



           11                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  Thank you.



           12          Moving on to the Wild Horse Wind Power Project.



           13                        MS. GALBRAITH:  Yes.



           14                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Ms. Galbraith.



           15                        MS. GALBRAITH:  Thank you.  Thank



           16     you, Chair Beckett.  Can you hear me all right?



           17                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Yes, we can.



           18                        MS. GALBRAITH:  Excellent.



           19          So thank you, EFSEC Council and staff.  This is



           20     Jennifer Galbraith with Puget Sound Energy representing



           21     the Wild Horse Wind Facility.



           22          For the month of December, we have nothing



           23     nonroutine to report and no new updates regarding the



           24     cleanup of the damaged turbine other than that winter



           25     weather has stalled the removal of the remaining 15
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            1     percent of turbine components.  But we anticipate



            2     cleanup to be completed before the end of this month as



            3     weather and site conditions allow.  Thank you.



            4                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



            5          The Chehalis Generation Facility.  Mr. Smith.



            6                        MR. SMITH:  Good afternoon, Chair



            7     Beckett, EFSEC Council, and staff.  This is Jeremy



            8     Smith, the operations manager for the Chehalis



            9     Generation Facility.



           10          I have no nonroutine items to report.



           11                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



           12          Grays Harbor Energy Center.  Mr. Pace.



           13                        MR. PACE:  Good afternoon, Chair



           14     Beckett, EFSEC Council, and staff.  This is Eric Pace



           15     for Grays Harbor Energy.



           16          And Grays Harbor Energy has nothing nonroutine to



           17     report.



           18                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



           19          The Columbia Solar project.  I don't know if we



           20     have a participant for that today or not.



           21          Nothing from staff on that?



           22                        MR. BARNES:  Yes, I will be



           23     providing the update, I believe.



           24          So this is John Barnes, EFSEC staff for the



           25     Columbia Solar project.
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            1          The facility update is provided in your packet.



            2     There are no nonroutine updates to report.  Thank you.



            3                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



            4          Moving on to the Columbia Generating Station and



            5     WNP 1 and 4.  Kelly Elsethagen.



            6                        MS. HALL:  Good afternoon.  Can you



            7     hear me all right?



            8                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Yes, we can.



            9                        MS. HALL:  Okay.  Good afternoon,



           10     Chair Beckett, Council members, and staff.  This is



           11     Katie Hall for Columbia Generating Station and WNP 1



           12     and 4.



           13          While the agenda shows no updates for these



           14     facilities, previously discussed with EFSEC staff using



           15     this opportunity to notify of our recent submittal to



           16     EFSEC for the Columbia Generating Station.



           17          On January 15th, Energy Northwest submitted a SEPA



           18     checklist to EFSEC for the construction of two



           19     warehouses at the Column Generating Station.  This



           20     submittal follows EFSEC's staff's recent decision on



           21     January 6 to require SEPA review despite earlier



           22     indications to the contrary.  Energy Northwest and



           23     EFSEC have held conversations regarding the scope and



           24     timeline of the project since September of last year.



           25          So Energy Northwest emphasizes this late change
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            1     jeopardizes the compressed schedule for the upcoming



            2     refueling outage, which is critical for operational



            3     readiness and regional energy reliability.  So



            4     therefore Energy Northwest has requested EFSEC's



            5     determination on the SEPA checklist by February 2nd,



            6     and we've urged for expedited review, including waiving



            7     the public comment period if no significant



            8     environmental impacts are identified.  Thank you.



            9                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



           10          It's my understanding from staff that that recent



           11     request came in on Friday, is under review, and we may



           12     hear a little bit more on that in our February meeting.



           13     But appreciate the added context of what's trying to be



           14     accomplished there in the requested timeline.



           15          I don't know if there's any other comment from



           16     staff that you'd like to share.  But it's great if you



           17     do.  And otherwise I know we'll close out on this in



           18     February, so...



           19                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Just a little bit



           20     more context to add.



           21          We have received submissions, a SEPA checklist as



           22     well as some plans that we're reviewing to ensure code



           23     compliance.  And we are working with the facility and



           24     reviewing what process milestones are appropriate for



           25     the environmental review and compliance with their site
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            1     certificate agreement.



            2                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



            3          Any questions of what's been shared from other



            4     Council members?



            5                        MR. RYBARIK:  I just want to make



            6     sure I heard the dates right in the presentation.  I



            7     think it was Katie.  Did you say you've requested



            8     review of that by February 2nd?



            9                        CHAIR BECKETT:  That was the date.



           10                        MS. HALL:  Yes, that is correct.



           11                        MR. RYBARIK:  Okay.  So obviously



           12     that's before the next EFSEC Council meeting.  So I'm



           13     just -- how do we think about lining those -- the



           14     request up in our next regularly scheduled meeting?



           15                        CHAIR BECKETT:  I think staff are



           16     basically, especially on the SEPA review, trying to



           17     make sure what's required there.  Generally all of what



           18     we're talking about is within the director's delegated



           19     authority and would fall more on that side of the -- of



           20     the line.  But I think, you know, in general, of



           21     course, as an abundance of just transparency and doing



           22     work together, surfacing it here is part of that.  And



           23     if there's further consideration from the director on



           24     the EFSEC Council, any action required, then that would



           25     come back --
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            1                        MR. RYBARIK:  Oh.  Back to us.



            2     Okay.  Got it.



            3                        CHAIR BECKETT:  I don't know if



            4     there's anything else on that?



            5                        MS. BUMPUS:  Yes.  Thank you, Chair



            6     Beckett.  And we'll provide an update, a more -- I



            7     would say comprehensive update to the Council as to



            8     what we determine based off this review of the latest



            9     submitted material.  So we'll be providing a more



           10     detailed update to the Council at that time.  So even



           11     though this does fall -- the review is more related to



           12     what's required of EFSEC per SEPA, we're still going to



           13     be providing an update to the Council as to what we're



           14     finding with respect to the SEPA review.



           15                        MR. RYBARIK:  Very good.  Thank you.



           16                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Appreciate that.



           17          And certainly I appreciate the added comment of



           18     where the warehouses fit into the larger refueling



           19     standard event that goes on with the Columbia



           20     Generating Station, all of which is contained within



           21     the current SCA that is on the books that's already



           22     received the Council approval.  So those details are



           23     what they're -- the staff are working through, and, you



           24     know, we'll make sure we're all on the same page as



           25     to --
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            1                        MS. BUMPUS:  Yes.



            2                        CHAIR BECKETT:  -- what the Council,



            3     if anything, needs to be done, so okay.  Very well.



            4          And thank you again, Ms. Elsethagen.  And I will



            5     still get that pronunciation more consistent over time.



            6          So, with that, Goose Prairie Solar.  Nelson Jia.



            7                        MR. JIA:  Hi.  Nelson here from



            8     Brookfield and Goose Prairie.



            9          No nonroutine updates to report.  We did have some



           10     curtailment due to BPA work on the Midway-Moxee line



           11     for two weeks at the beginning of December, but that's



           12     about it.  Thank you.



           13                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



           14          Ostrea Solar.  Mr. Voltz.



           15                        MR. VOLTZ:  Good afternoon, Chair



           16     Beckett, Council members, and staff.  This is John



           17     Voltz with Cypress Creek Renewables representing Ostrea



           18     solar facility.



           19          In the month of December, the O&M facility



           20     continued construction.  We did achieve mechanical



           21     completion of both the PV and HV facilities, made



           22     preparations to receive backfeed energy from the



           23     utility this month.  That did occur.  It will be in our



           24     next report.  But major milestone accomplished there in



           25     the construction of the facility.
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            1          I'd also like to draw attention to the charitable



            2     work.  Some of the site team donated some time to the



            3     Sunrise Outreach Food Bank, helped their storage



            4     cleanup, food organizing, and handing out the donated



            5     food for local area I believe that's in Yakima.  Other



            6     than that, there's nothing nonroutine to report for the



            7     period.



            8                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you very much,



            9     as well as for the additional detail.



           10          All right.  I believe that then brings the



           11     Carriger Solar project update.  And Joanne Snarski is



           12     here to provide that update.



           13                        MS. SNARSKI:  Thank you, Chair



           14     Beckett and Council members.  This is Joanne Snarski,



           15     the siting specialist for Carriger Solar facility in



           16     Klickitat County.



           17          On December 2nd, 2025, the governor's office



           18     notified Chair Beckett that the chair -- excuse me --



           19     that the Carriger Solar site certification agreement



           20     was approved by Governor Ferguson.  The agreement was



           21     executed by both parties and became effective on



           22     December 15th, 2025.



           23          On December 31st, 2025, the Confederated Tribes



           24     and Bands of the Yakama Nation filed a petition for



           25     judicial review of the Council and governor's approval
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            1     for the site certification.



            2          EFSEC staff are working with our assistant



            3     attorneys general to respond to this filing.  In the



            4     meantime, we are continuing to discuss Carriger's



            5     timing for submitting the plans required in the site



            6     certification agreement.



            7          May I answer any questions?



            8                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council members.



            9     Comments or questions.  Straightforward for today.



           10          Oh.  Council Chiles.  I didn't see you join.  Good



           11     to -- good to have you here.  Please proceed.  But



           12     we're not hearing you so far if you are speaking.



           13          Still not getting anything in the room, Council



           14     Chiles.



           15          All right.  Well, I'll tell you what.  If Council



           16     Chiles pops back in, we can hear you, then certainly we



           17     will take those comments.  Otherwise, we'll move on to



           18     the next project for now.



           19          Ms. Grantham, let me know if that technical issue



           20     gets further clarified.



           21                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Yeah, I'm not sure if



           22     there's much we can do on our end.  It's showing that



           23     he's unmuted, but we're just not able to hear him --



           24                        CHAIR BECKETT:  It's probably --



           25                        MS. GRANTHAM:  -- for some reason,
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            1     yeah.



            2                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Probably on his end.



            3     Okay.  So, Council Chiles, since we're going to move



            4     into Horse Heaven, let me see if -- one last chance for



            5     now.  I think he dropped off.  Okay.



            6                        MR. RYBARIK:  And log back in.



            7                        CHAIR BECKETT:  So we'll keep an eye



            8     out for Council Chiles.  But in the meantime, let's



            9     proceed to the Horse Heaven project update.  And we



           10     have the ferruginous hawk nest mitigation plan that Amy



           11     Moon is going to make a presentation on.  I will first



           12     though just note that, given my larger recusal on Horse



           13     Heaven, I have the honor and appreciation of handing



           14     the gavel on this particular item to Council Pamplin.



           15          And I would note just for the benefits of my



           16     Council members and members of the public, even though



           17     I have recused, I'm not participating as a Council



           18     member on this particular action, I have read all the



           19     materials.  I have read all the public comments.



           20     They're important to me, including just these issues



           21     mapped to other projects.  And so I'm certainly trying



           22     to keep running alongside you so that I can be a better



           23     chair when the next issue comes up for me directly.



           24          So, with that, Council Pamplin.  And soon we'll



           25     turn this to Ms. Moon for the update to get started.
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            1                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Great.  Thank you,



            2     Mr. Chair.



            3          Ms. Moon, go ahead and proceed, please.  Thank



            4     you.



            5                        MS. MOON:  All right.  Good



            6     afternoon.  Thank you, Acting Chair Pamplin, and to the



            7     EFSEC Council members.



            8          As required in the Horse Heaven site certification



            9     agreement, or SCA, development and approval of a



           10     mitigation and management plan is required under



           11     Mitigation Measure Species-5, ferruginous hawk, when



           12     project components are proposed for siting within the



           13     two-mile core ferruginous hawk habitat.  The



           14     certificate holder worked with the preoperational



           15     technical advisory group, or PTAG -- P-T-A-G -- to



           16     develop a project-specific ferruginous hawk mitigation



           17     and management plan for approval by EFSEC.  This plan



           18     received PTAG consensus prior to submitting the



           19     mitigation plan to EFSEC.



           20          The ferruginous hawk nests mitigation plan



           21     includes the four fundamental requirements stated in



           22     Spec 5.  No. 1 is a description of efforts to site



           23     project infrastructure to avoid core habitat,



           24     identified as the area within two miles of nests



           25     documented in the priority habitats and species
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            1     database.  That's the PHS database.



            2          No. 2, a description of when construction



            3     activities will be undertaken to avoid sensitive timing



            4     periods for ferruginous hawk.



            5          No. 3, a description of pre- and post-monitoring



            6     programs that will be conducted to establish habitat



            7     use within the lease boundary, mapping of ground



            8     squirrel colonies and other prey, identification of



            9     potential flyways between nest sites and foraging



           10     habitat and monitoring of potential flyways to inform



           11     the final turbine siting and orientation, ongoing



           12     monitoring of nest use, and territory success.



           13          And, No. 4, a description of restoration



           14     activities that will be undertaken during project



           15     decommissioning to enhance ferruginous hawk habitat in



           16     disturbed areas.



           17          Staff reviewed the proposed plan and posted a copy



           18     of the ferruginous hawk nest mitigation plan to the



           19     EFSEC public website for a 14-day public comment period



           20     from December 30th, 2025, through January 12 of 2026.



           21     EFSEC received a total of 32 comments.



           22          EFSEC's State Environmental Policy Act specialist,



           23     Sean Greene, is here to provide a summary of the



           24     Species-5 ferruginous hawk nest mitigation plan and



           25     information on the comments received during the recent
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            1     public comment period on that plan.



            2          Sean.



            3                        MR. GREENE:  Thank you, Amy.  And



            4     thank you, Acting Chair Pamplin and Council members.



            5     This is Sean Greene, SEPA specialist for EFSEC.



            6          I wanted to give you-all a brief or maybe



            7     not-so-brief rundown of what was included the Horse



            8     Heaven ferruginous hawk nest management plan and



            9     discuss some of the substantive comments we received



           10     during the public comment period.



           11          The nest management plan adopts all of the



           12     ferruginous hawk mitigation outlined in the Horse



           13     Heaven wind farm draft habitat mitigation plan from the



           14     application for site certification, including



           15     compensatory habitat mitigation.  It furthermore



           16     includes a commitment to protect an area that supports



           17     sufficient ferruginous hawk habitat that will achieve



           18     mitigation acreage targets defined by the mitigation



           19     ratios set by EFSEC.



           20          It discusses the potential installation of



           21     artificial nesting platforms in areas with specific



           22     site conditions and where WDFW staff believe that there



           23     is a high confidence that those platforms could be used



           24     by ferruginous hawks.



           25          It formalizes the monitoring plan put forth in the
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            1     final EIS to perform nest and mortality surveys for



            2     three of the first five years of project operation.



            3     And, finally, it commits to a curtailment of turbine



            4     operations during daylight hours within two miles of an



            5     active nest unless a qualified biologist with WDFW and



            6     EFSEC approval determines that the turbines are outside



            7     of the foraging areas for those nests or the



            8     certificate holder makes use of an automated



            9     curtailment technology that responds to ferruginous



           10     hawk presence.



           11          As Amy mentioned, this plan was reviewed by the



           12     pre-operational technical advisory group, or PTAG, and



           13     approved by that group prior to being submitted for



           14     public comment.



           15          During that comment period, 32 comments were



           16     received, and substantive comments generally fell



           17     within one of six arguments that I'd like to run you



           18     through.



           19          First, there was an argument presented that EFSEC



           20     should impose financial penalties for each incident of



           21     injury or mortality to a ferruginous hawk.  Staff is



           22     not recommending that this change be incorporated.



           23     Apart from the questionable legality of EFSEC



           24     establishing fines for wildlife take, EFSEC staff is



           25     confident that the exclusion areas imposed around all
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            1     historic nests, the management measures in this plan,



            2     and the mortality adaptive management strategies that



            3     are currently being developed by the certificate holder



            4     for future PTAG and EFSEC review are sufficient to



            5     address direct ferruginous hawk mortality.



            6          The second argument that was -- was that the



            7     artificial nesting platforms discussed as a mitigation



            8     option in this plan should instead be made mandatory.



            9     Staff is not recommending that this change be



           10     incorporated.  In our development of mitigation and



           11     discussions with WDFW staff throughout the



           12     environmental review of this project, artificial



           13     nesting platforms have been seen as having a limited



           14     and situation-specific mitigative effect.  The primary



           15     factors responsible for declining ferruginous hawk



           16     population numbers are habitat conversion and reduction



           17     in prey species availability, neither of which are



           18     necessarily addressed by installing artificial



           19     platforms.



           20          Thirdly, several commenters argued that the annual



           21     operation phase nesting surveys should continue



           22     throughout the life of the project rather than for



           23     the -- rather than for three of the first five years as



           24     currently proposed.  EFSEC staff is not recommending



           25     that this change be incorporated.  The nesting survey
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            1     plan proposed in the EIS and included in this plan is



            2     functionally consistent with WDFW guidelines and was



            3     developed in concert with WDFW staff and technical



            4     experts on the PTAG.  As a result, staff believes that



            5     this plan, in combination with the exclusion areas and



            6     adaptive management strategies, is sufficient to



            7     address ferruginous hawk impacts.



            8          The fourth argument that we received was one that



            9     claim that the habitat mitigation ratios that EFSEC



           10     developed with WDFW for this project should be updated



           11     to reflect the ratios presented in the WDFW wind and



           12     solar guidelines that were published about four months



           13     ago.  Staff is not recommending that this change be



           14     incorporated.  The habitat mitigation ratios applied to



           15     this project exceeded the standard WDFW guidelines at



           16     the time of review and were developed to specifically



           17     address habitat impacts to this project -- or from this



           18     project by EFSEC staff, WDFW staff, and independent



           19     consultants.



           20          Furthermore, the ratios presented in the recent



           21     guidelines are explicitly identified as preliminary



           22     recommendations, with the guidelines assuming some



           23     level of collaboration between developers, permitting



           24     authorities, and WDFW to arrive at project-specific



           25     ratios that are appropriate, which is reflective of the
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            1     process that EFSEC went through to devise the current



            2     ratios.  Changing the ratios at this time would also



            3     require an SCA amendment, which is not something that



            4     EFSEC can unilaterally impose.



            5          No. 5 was an argument that the certificate holder



            6     should be required to use automated detection systems



            7     with turbine curtailment triggered by observations



            8     rather than it being considered an option as in the



            9     proposed plan.  Staff do not recommend incorporating



           10     this change.  As discussed in the plan, these systems



           11     lack the capability for species-specific identification



           12     at this time.  Requiring the certificate holder to



           13     install and use these systems at this time could result



           14     in turbine curtailment at any -- any time any raptor



           15     species of similar size and/or shape to a ferruginous



           16     hawk is observed, which exceeds the intent of this



           17     mitigation plan.  The plan discusses the potential use



           18     of these systems in concert with observed ferruginous



           19     hawk activity when practical and when further



           20     developed, and EFSEC staff believes that the



           21     consideration -- these considerations to be appropriate



           22     in the proposed plan.



           23          The final substantial argument was for EFSEC to



           24     require that one blade of each turbine be painted black



           25     to reduce ferruginous hawk collisions.  Staff is not
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            1     recommending that this change be incorporated.  While



            2     this novel mitigation technique has seen promising,



            3     though varied, results in recent studies, it is still



            4     too experimental at this time to be required as a



            5     mitigation measure.  There are still engineering



            6     questions related to the long-term effects of increased



            7     heat retention that the black-painted blades will



            8     experience and whether painting the blades with



            9     carbon-based paint affects their reaction to lightning



           10     strikes.



           11          Furthermore, wind turbines are painted white, in



           12     part, to make them blend in better with the sky when



           13     viewed from the ground.  There is a risk that the



           14     visual analysis and impact determinations made by EFSEC



           15     for the all-white turbines may not be accurate to the



           16     visual aesthetic impacts the viewers would experience



           17     from turbines that are partially black.



           18          It is unclear whether the positive benefit of



           19     potential reductions in ferruginous hawk collisions



           20     would justify the increased adverse impacts to visual



           21     aesthetics.  Also, as I mentioned before, EFSEC staff



           22     is confident that the suite of mitigation developed for



           23     this project sufficiently addresses the potential for



           24     direct mortality impacts to the ferruginous hawk.



           25          And apart from these substantive comments, there





                                                                       47

�







            1     were several editorial comments that staff will



            2     recommend for incorporation into the final plan.  These



            3     include edits such as adding a citation to WAC



            4     197-11-768, wherein "mitigation" is defined; replacing



            5     the word "flyways" with the phrase "flight pathways";



            6     including more detail on the length of the habitat



            7     monitoring programs; and adding clarification that nest



            8     surveys will be performed by qualified biologists.



            9     These modifications would not affect the substance of



           10     the plan.



           11          Are there any questions from Council members



           12     before I hand things back to Amy?



           13                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Not seeing any.  No.



           14          Go ahead, Mr. Rybarik.



           15                        MR. RYBARIK:  I think I've got a



           16     few, so --



           17                        MR. GREENE:  Sure.



           18                        MR. RYBARIK:  -- thanks, Sean and



           19     Amy, for the -- for the updates there.  Appreciate



           20     the -- one of my questions was on WAC 197-11-768.



           21     Sounds like there will be references to that



           22     specifically in there and the updates to some of the



           23     terminology.  Good to see.



           24          On the artificial nesting platforms, I think



           25     the -- the issue that was raised is should it be
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            1     mandatory or not.  I just -- I wonder -- functionally,



            2     as I was reading through the comments and the



            3     materials, I got to, well, how do we get to a point



            4     where, looking at this in a very specific way, that a



            5     wildlife biologist from W -- from Fish and Wildlife



            6     would be able to say, "Actually it makes sense to do it



            7     in this circumstance.  Developer, please do that"?



            8          How do we get to -- how do we assure that that is



            9     the way this is going to work?  Because that seems to



           10     make logical sense in my mind.



           11                        MR. GREENE:  Sure.  I can look at



           12     the exact language used in the plan.  But in the plan,



           13     they do discuss the potential for use of artificial



           14     nesting platforms in the areas that are meant to



           15     represent compensatory habitat mitigation, the -- the



           16     areas of conservation.



           17          And the criteria that the applicant had -- or I'm



           18     sorry -- the certificate holder had proposed in the



           19     plan included sufficient foraging habitat for the



           20     species, the lack of nesting sites in that area, and



           21     consultation with WDFW staff to ensure that there is a



           22     high likelihood of the use of those platforms by the



           23     ferruginous hawk.



           24          The -- the only concern with implementing, like, a



           25     minimum number of artificial nesting platforms that
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            1     must be put up is it's very much dependent on what is



            2     available in the area and whether there is a pressing



            3     need for those, and the costs associated with



            4     installing those could be better assigned to actually



            5     protecting more habitat.



            6          But it's staff's opinion that the description in



            7     the current -- the proposed plan of those platforms



            8     being as an option for further mitigation is



            9     appropriate.  If -- if there's a Council desire to see



           10     a minimum, though, we can...



           11                        MR. RYBARIK:  Yeah, I guess the only



           12     thought that I had for amendment is if WDFW staff says



           13     here is a situation where that makes sense -- let's say



           14     there's a tree that had a nest in it that is somehow



           15     felled.  Who knows how, whatever.  To say here's a



           16     example where it would make sense to put up an



           17     artificial nest.  It's kind of a thou shall follow



           18     WDFW's -- instead of a consultation with them, it's if



           19     they come and say here is an example where thou shall



           20     do that, that it gets included in this -- in this



           21     mitigation plan, that that is an option that Fish and



           22     Wildlife has.  I don't know if I'm sort of explaining



           23     that circumstance well, but that --



           24                        MR. GREENE:  Yeah.



           25                        MR. RYBARIK:  -- to me is -- there's
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            1     this limited circumstance where I think a biologist



            2     would say, That makes sense.  Go do that.  And if --



            3     the way I read the mitigation plan right now, they



            4     could say, Thanks for the consultation; we don't think



            5     it's necessary.



            6                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  So if I might add



            7     some information here.



            8          So part of the adaptive management is, because



            9     EFSEC is the enforcement agency rather than DFW, we



           10     retain the authority to impose that, again with



           11     consultation with DFW as, you know, having the in-house



           12     species subject matter experts.  But if something is to



           13     arise where DF -- WDFW indicates that it is appropriate



           14     to go ahead and install an artificial nest platform,



           15     that authority to propose that would reside with EFSEC.



           16                        MR. GREENE:  And I think we could



           17     add language to the plan to make that -- that



           18     relationship more clear.



           19                        MS. BUMPUS:  Mm-hmm.



           20                        MR. GREENE:  If that's a change we



           21     wanted to make.



           22                        MS. BUMPUS:  Right.



           23                        MR. RYBARIK:  And so I just want to



           24     make sure I understand.  Ami, what you're saying is, if



           25     that circumstance arise, WDFW would come to EFSEC and
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            1     say, Here's the situation where an artificial nest



            2     makes sense.  EFSEC, please impose that requirement on



            3     the -- on the developer.



            4                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Correct.



            5                        MR. RYBARIK:  This plan allows for



            6     that chain of events to happen and the artificial nest



            7     to get put in place.



            8                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Correct.  Both the



            9     PTAG as the pre-operational as well as the --



           10                        MR. RYBARIK:  TAC.



           11                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  -- the TAC will



           12     continue to be in coordination and monitoring these



           13     activities.  So we anticipate continued communication



           14     on these subjects throughout the life of the facility.



           15                        MR. RYBARIK:  Okay.  I think I have



           16     some comfort there, but just --



           17                        MR. GREENE:  Yeah.



           18                        MR. RYBARIK:  Go ahead, Sean.



           19                        MR. GREENE:  Sorry.  I didn't mean



           20     to interrupt.



           21          One additional point is the final plan for the



           22     compensatory mitigation has yet to be fully developed,



           23     and that will, as Amy mentioned, go through the PTAG or



           24     the -- yeah, it will be the PTAG at that point and come



           25     to EFSEC for approval, and that will include the
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            1     applicant's formal proposal on whether or not they're



            2     going to install artificial nesting platforms and



            3     where.  So that would be a point where EFSEC can use



            4     our regulatory authority to determine whether there



            5     should or should not be some added.



            6                        MR. RYBARIK:  I have a couple other



            7     questions along -- I'm just going to go down the



            8     list in --



            9                        MR. GREENE:  Sure.



           10                        MR. RYBARIK:  -- order that you had



           11     them.



           12          On the annual, I guess it's monitoring --



           13                        MR. GREENE:  Mm-hmm.



           14                        MR. RYBARIK:  -- the way the plan



           15     reads now, it's three of the first five years.



           16     Intuitively, I thought of it seems like the first years



           17     of operation are going to be the most critical.  And so



           18     I just wondered if there's appetite to be a little bit



           19     more, I guess, prescriptive in this one is -- is all of



           20     those five years makes some sense to me that there



           21     would be monitoring in each of the five years rather



           22     than three of the five years.  Certainly the first



           23     three years makes a little bit of intuitive sense to



           24     me.



           25          I just wonder how it gets landed at three of the
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            1     first five with -- I recognize the flexibility there,



            2     but I just wonder from a species mitigation perspective



            3     if we shouldn't think about that a little differently.



            4                        MR. GREENE:  Yeah, so that was a



            5     proposal that we developed in our consultation with



            6     WDFW staff.  Their typical recommendation is for the



            7     first three years of operation.  In our discussions,



            8     we -- we considered whether it might be more helpful to



            9     add that wider range so to capture a larger period of



           10     time but still not exceeding the three years of total



           11     surveys.



           12          In the, I think, six years that the -- the



           13     certificate holder has run nesting surveys in this area



           14     to this point, there's been one active nest observed.



           15     So given the -- the rarity of an active nest, going for



           16     more years was -- was seen as a way to -- to



           17     potentially capture an active nest with, you know, the



           18     higher likelihood of either seeing an active nest or



           19     evidence that the site had been -- that there had been



           20     an active nest in one of the off years, so that was



           21     the -- the justification.



           22                        MR. RYBARIK:  Appreciate that.  And



           23     I guess I just don't know what -- what's the -- is



           24     there -- I don't know what the cost is of running an



           25     annual program for five years versus three of five,
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            1     what the significance of that is.  Maybe that's some



            2     context you could enlighten me with.



            3                        MR. GREENE:  I don't have the cost



            4     numbers available, but we can look into that.



            5                        MS. BUMPUS:  We can certainly follow



            6     up with some ideas for that.  You know, the



            7     applicant -- in this case, certificate holder -- is



            8     responsible for all of the expenses.  So as we're



            9     working with DFW and working with different subject



           10     matter experts there, they're billed for the hours that



           11     those experts are spending in meetings and calls with



           12     EFSEC staff, and so the -- the cost is substantially



           13     higher if you're adding additional years of monitoring.



           14     But we can get you, you know, an estimate if that would



           15     be helpful.



           16                        MR. RYBARIK:  I look to the other



           17     Council members if there's appetite in that, but I



           18     think that is -- that's one area that had some focus



           19     for me.  The other -- and maybe, Council Member



           20     Pamplin, I don't want to put you on the spot, but



           21     the -- the updated ratios or mitigation ratios,



           22     obviously working through the WDFW process now, with



           23     the goal of using the best available science and the



           24     most updated information, I appreciate the explanation,



           25     that it's also going through a process is, may not be
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            1     the most updated.  I also recognize the need for



            2     certainty in these processes of this was the ratios



            3     that were at the time, but I wonder if WDFW has a



            4     position or a thought on -- on the ratios, because



            5     that's the expert agency on these ratios, so...



            6                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Yeah, thanks,



            7     Mr. Rybarik.  Why don't I first just turn to Ms. Moon



            8     and Mr. Greene to talk about WDFW's position within



            9     PTAG.  If that doesn't fully cover it, I can --



           10                        MR. RYBARIK:  All right.



           11                        MR. PAMPLIN:  -- offer some remarks.



           12     Thanks.



           13                        MR. GREENE:  Sure.  So there are --



           14     there's one primary member of WDFW on the PTAG along



           15     with two alternates.  They attend every meeting, and



           16     they are one of the technical experts who are



           17     responsible for reviewing all of the certificate



           18     holder's proposals for pre-operational plans and



           19     surveys.  So their staff did fully review this plan and



           20     approved it as -- as it was drafted and submitted for



           21     public comment.



           22          So their staff approved of the mitigation ratios



           23     that were developed at the time we were doing the EIS



           24     and approved of the ratios incorporated here.



           25                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thanks, Mr. Greene.
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            1          Yeah, I would just add that that's pretty



            2     consistent value as far as when we introduce new



            3     guidelines that projects that were kind of in the queue



            4     or operating under the -- the -- the guidance that was



            5     published at the time.  So appreciate the interest in



            6     moving forward, and if we saw something I thought was



            7     really substantial or the science, it really moved the



            8     needle, I think that was something that our



            9     representative in the PTAG would have advocated for.



           10     But I'm comfortable with the work that the -- the WDFW



           11     staff person did at PTAG to recommend those ratios.



           12     Thanks.



           13                        MR. RYBARIK:  Very good.  Thanks.



           14                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Any other questions?



           15                        MR. RYBARIK:  Just one last one.



           16                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Please.



           17                        MR. RYBARIK:  Sorry to keep



           18     belaboring these points.  But the last one is on the



           19     automated detection.  Having come from the tech sector,



           20     I recognize the technology might not be there today.



           21     But technology moves at the speed of technology.  And I



           22     just wonder what -- what is the process if, a year from



           23     now, it's very clear that that technology exists to be



           24     very species-specific on curtailments?  What -- what



           25     would EFSEC do relative to this mitigation plan at that
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            1     point to say we'd like to see that technology



            2     implemented?



            3                        MR. GREENE:  Yeah, so the way it's



            4     written in the plan currently is it's -- the use of



            5     that technology would be like an exception for the



            6     turbine curtailment in the event that there is



            7     ferruginous hawk activity observed.



            8          As for whether we would want to require the use of



            9     that technology and whether there is ferruginous



           10     activity observed or not, that's not something that I



           11     think we've considered.  That might be something that



           12     comes up in the adaptive management plan that the



           13     certificate holder is currently developing, especially



           14     in relation to one of the primary concerns of that plan



           15     is adaptive management in the event of mortality



           16     incidents.  Turbine strikes on ferruginous hawks are



           17     very rare within the state, but given the limited



           18     population numbers, each instance is -- is potentially



           19     substantially of concern.



           20          So I guess my thought at this time would be to see



           21     how that technology would be incorporated into the



           22     adaptive management plan, especially since it is kind



           23     of still hypothetical for the moment at least.



           24                        MR. RYBARIK:  Sure.  That's helpful.



           25     Thank you very much.
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            1                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thank you,



            2     Mr. Rybarik.  And much appreciation here to Ms. Moon



            3     and Mr. Greene for the overview thus far as well as the



            4     summary of the common themes that we heard and the



            5     proposed responses.



            6          Ms. Moon, is there any anything further on your



            7     presentation?



            8                        MS. MOON:  Yeah.  One final



            9     statement.



           10          The staff are requesting that the Council approve



           11     the Horse Heaven wind farm ferruginous hawk nest



           12     mitigation plan.



           13          But you wanted to follow up on --



           14                        MR. GREENE:  Yeah, I think --



           15                        MS. MOON:  -- a couple things.



           16                        MR. GREENE:  -- maybe since we're --



           17     we're going to follow up on a few things and see



           18     whether there need to be edits there, do we wait for



           19     approval, or approve with the understanding that we'll



           20     get that information?



           21                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  So I think we



           22     identified strengthening the language around



           23     implementation of artificial nest platforms.  And I



           24     think in -- the question, I think, is maybe to the



           25     Council:  Do you want to wait to approve this plan
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            1     until we have follow-up information on those items



            2     identified, or would the Council want to vote to make a



            3     decision on the plan pending the edits discussed?



            4                        MS. BUMPUS:  I think you could



            5     approve it, you know, contingent on the amendments



            6     discussed that Ami just listed being made.  If you're



            7     comfortable with the substance of the plan today.



            8                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thanks, Ms. Bumpus.



            9          I see Mr. Nelson's hand is up.  Go ahead.



           10                        MR. NELSON:  Hello.  Yes, that



           11     sounds like a good approach to me.  I'm not smart



           12     enough to make that motion.  But I did have a question



           13     if you do come back for more information.



           14          So on Section 5, the -- the mortality mitigation



           15     chapter or section, it -- and this might get to the



           16     nesting question as well -- it speaks of a qualified



           17     biologist in coordination with Fish and Wildlife and



           18     EFSEC.  And this could just be for my edification as a



           19     relatively new Council member.  But is that a qualified



           20     biologist employed by the certificate holder, or is it



           21     third party, or is it Fish and Wildlife, or is it



           22     EFSEC?  So I was just wondering what the employment



           23     status of that biologist might be, I guess.



           24                        MR. GREENE:  It's my understanding



           25     that it would be an independent biologist employed by
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            1     the certificate holder with EFSEC's -- EFSEC and WDFW



            2     approval.



            3                        MR. NELSON:  Thank you.



            4                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Okay.  So before we



            5     kind of further discuss whether or not we want to adopt



            6     the plan pending amendments or not, I just want to



            7     check to see if there's any other questions from



            8     Ms. Moon or Mr. Greene from the Council.



            9          Okay.  Council, is there any particular direction



           10     you would like to proceed with in terms of doing an



           11     early approval -- or not an early -- approving this



           12     plan, noting that there's some additional work that's



           13     going to be incorporated relative to the artificial



           14     nest platform, or would folks like to delay and then



           15     wait and see those edits made into the plan as well as



           16     some of the other editorial edits and we'll have a



           17     final plan hopefully brought forward in February?



           18                        MR. RYBARIK:  The only reservation I



           19     have, in general I think there's a lot of good stuff in



           20     here.  I appreciate all the work that the PTAG and



           21     staff have done to -- to get there.  I think the one



           22     outstanding question is, to me, whether that initial --



           23     whether we should do three of the first five years of



           24     reporting back or observations, and just there's a cost



           25     difference in those two, and what's what I don't --
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            1     that's the information we don't have.



            2                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Yeah.



            3                        MR. RYBARIK:  And so in my mind, I



            4     think all of those five years could be one option.  The



            5     first three years, another option.  I guess that



            6     probably doesn't change the cost tremendously.  We're



            7     still doing three years.  But I wouldn't mind knowing



            8     that before making a decision and just seeing what --



            9     what the appetite is to maybe strengthen that a little



           10     bit, just knowing that those are probably the most



           11     important years of the plan.



           12          That said, I am also mindful of the fact that



           13     there's timelines and associated movement for the



           14     developer.  So I guess I'll turn to staff of whether or



           15     not any holding off on this is detrimental to the



           16     overall project.



           17                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thanks, Mr. Rybarik.



           18          Director Bumpus, is there any consequences or



           19     concerns on your end if we were to delay adoption of



           20     this plan?



           21                        MS. BUMPUS:  Well, thank you.  Thank



           22     you for the opportunity.



           23          Yeah, I think I would just -- I'm just thinking



           24     about Executive Order 25-11 where EFSEC along with many



           25     other agencies are looking at how we can expedite and
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            1     accelerate plan approvals for those facilities that are



            2     still in the position to take advantage of the federal



            3     tax incentives.



            4          And so I would say that if there's general comfort



            5     with this plan, that we can -- you know, it would



            6     behoove us to -- to move forward with it if we can, but



            7     I also recognize that there may be some tweaks that we



            8     still want to make.  So that's the...



            9                        MR. RYBARIK:  Well, UTC being also



           10     named in that executive order, I'm familiar with it and



           11     recognize the -- the concern there.



           12          Ultimately -- and I appreciate staff's



           13     recommenda- -- or further thoughts here, although I



           14     think I'm comfortable with the way the mitigation plan



           15     is -- is written, I just point out that these are areas



           16     where I think we can continue to focus and just at



           17     least bring some maybe options to -- to the table when



           18     we get to this point.



           19          But, again, I don't want to belabor this other



           20     what is a relatively minor point or piece of the



           21     overall mitigation plan, but you've heard my thoughts



           22     on this, and I'll leave it there.



           23                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thanks, Mr. Rybarik.



           24          Ms. Hafkemeyer.



           25                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  I wanted to suggest
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            1     that maybe there's an opportunity because the adaptive



            2     management plan is still in development, that if under



            3     the guidance of that plan it seems appropriate to add



            4     additional years of monitoring, that that might be



            5     another place to capture that based on guidance of the



            6     PTAG, DFW, and biologists as appropriate.  So there may



            7     be additional opportunity to increase monitoring



            8     particularly if the first year or first couple years



            9     the data suggests that more monitoring is appropriate.



           10                        MR. RYBARIK:  That sounds like a



           11     good suggestion.  And thank you for reminding me of the



           12     word that I was not able to get out of my brain of



           13     monitoring.  So thank you.



           14                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thanks,



           15     Ms. Hafkemeyer.



           16          Mr. Nelson, I saw your hand come up earlier.  Did



           17     you have a question or remark?



           18                        MR. NELSON:  Yeah.  Just wanted to



           19     state -- you know, I just wanted to, again, yeah, or



           20     thank the PTAG for all the work they put into this.



           21     It's a very comprehensive plan that offers widespread



           22     protection to the species.



           23          Is it -- can we -- I should know this, but can we



           24     make a motion to adopt yet, or do you call for that?



           25                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Yeah, Thanks,





                                                                       64

�







            1     Mr. Nelson.  I've got some language that I will try to



            2     put on the table and ask for someone to move.



            3          But what I'm looking for at this point is if the



            4     Council make a motion to approve the ferruginous hawk



            5     nest mitigation plan submitted by Horse Heaven Wind



            6     Farm, LLC, in compliance with Special Status Species



            7     Mitigation Measure 5, commonly referred to as Spec-5,



            8     of the site certification agreement for the Horse



            9     Heaven Wind Farm.  And in addition, that staff would be



           10     incorporating the editorial comments as well as



           11     strengthening the discussion around the artificial nest



           12     platform and the consultation with WDFW.



           13          So, with that, is that -- if someone would please



           14     signal that they would make that motion.



           15                        MR. RYBARIK:  So moved.



           16                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thank you,



           17     Mr. Rybarik.



           18          Is there a second?



           19                        MR. NELSON:  Second.



           20                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Thank you, Mr. Nelson.



           21          Any further comments or questions before we move



           22     to a vote?



           23          Hearing and seeing no hands.



           24          All those in favor of the motion, please say



           25     "aye."
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            1                        MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.



            2                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Any opposed?



            3          We'll let the record note that Chair Beckett has



            4     recused himself from this -- this vote.  And with --



            5     oh.  Go ahead.  Mr. Ryan.



            6                        MR. RYAN:  Just also recused, to



            7     make note of that.



            8                        MR. RYBARIK:  Oh, that's right.



            9                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Okay.  Just want to



           10     double-check that we have sufficient Council members



           11     for a vote with two recusals.



           12          Okay.  Great.  So that motion passes.  Again,



           13     Ms. Moon, Mr. Greene, thank you for your work, as well



           14     as for PTAG's efforts here on preparing this mitigation



           15     plan.  And I'll pass the gavel back to Chair Beckett.



           16                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you, Council



           17     Pamplin.  And I'll try to do a better job of following



           18     Council Rybarik on putting my camera on some occasion.



           19          So, with that, we will actually go back to -- and



           20     thank you for the extra effort as chair, Council



           21     Pamplin.



           22          So do we have Council Chiles back still?  We would



           23     take his question or comment on the Carriger Solar



           24     project update.



           25                        MS. GRANTHAM:  We see that he's
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            1     online and unmuted again.  I'm not sure if we can hear



            2     him.  If Council Chiles would like to try to speak up.



            3                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council Chiles,



            4     we're ultimately not hearing you in the room.  So,



            5     sorry about the technical challenge today.



            6          No, Council Chiles, we still can't hear you.  I do



            7     see your text in the chat, though.



            8          Okay.  So let's move on, then, for a moment to the



            9     Hop Hill solar update.  John Barnes will provide the



           10     update.



           11                        MR. BARNES:  Thank you, Chair



           12     Beckett and Council members.  This is John Barnes,



           13     EFSEC staff for the Hop Hill application.



           14          Staff are working with the applicant on the



           15     submission of additional application materials for the



           16     Hop Hill project.  EFSEC anticipates receipt of these



           17     materials by spring of 2026.  Staff are also working



           18     with the applicant to submit a comprehensive cultural



           19     resource report for the application.



           20          Following receipt of the report, staff will



           21     distribute to concerned tribes an offer to schedule a



           22     government-to-government consultation to discuss



           23     impacts and potential mitigations.



           24          Are there any questions?



           25                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council, comments or
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            1     questions?  Hearing none.



            2          Moving on to Wallula Gap since you're also



            3     providing that update, Mr. Barnes.  Please proceed.



            4                        MR. BARNES:  Thank you, Chair



            5     Beckett and Council members.  This is John Barnes,



            6     EFSEC staff, for the Wallula Gap application.



            7          Staff are continuing to work with the applicant,



            8     OneEnergy, and the Yakama Nation Cultural Resource



            9     Program staff regarding impacts identified in the



           10     traditional cultural resource property studies and



           11     report conducted by the Yakama Nation for this



           12     application.  Identification of potential project



           13     impacts and mitigations that can be resolved as part of



           14     the SEPA determination process for this project.



           15          Are there any questions?



           16                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Any questions,



           17     Council?



           18                        MR. RYAN:  None here.



           19                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  Then we



           20     will -- it looks like we're probably losing Council



           21     Chiles.



           22          I'll just say, Council Chiles, we can always try



           23     and catch you next month at last in the public forum,



           24     and obviously you know how to reach --



           25                        MR. CHILES:  Can you hear me now?
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            1                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Oh.  There we go.



            2     Yes, we can.  Please -- please proceed.  You're very --



            3     very clear as well.



            4                        MR. CHILES:  Thank you very much,



            5     Chair Beckett.  I apologize for the problems on my end.



            6          Going back to the Carriger issue and the Yakama



            7     tribe filing a petition for judicial review, wanted a



            8     little bit of clarification on that, if we could.



            9          First of all, do we have any estimated timeline



           10     for a decision on that petition for judicial review?



           11     And, second, while we wait for that, what is the status



           12     of the project?  Are they moving forward, or is there



           13     some sort of injunction preventing that at this time?



           14     Thank you.



           15                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Counsel Thompson,



           16     would you like to --



           17                        MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah.



           18                        CHAIR BECKETT:  -- jump in?



           19                        MR. THOMPSON:  So this is Jon



           20     Thompson with the attorney general's office.  There --



           21     there is provision in the -- in EFSLA, RCW 80.50, for



           22     filing a petition for review of a governor's decision



           23     in Thurston County Superior Court, and then the process



           24     is for the -- it's a -- the way judicial review works



           25     under the Administrative Procedure Act, if the court





                                                                       69

�







            1     reviews the agency's record and sitting in an appellate



            2     capacity, and so what we need to do is compile the



            3     agency's decisional record and then provide it to the



            4     court.



            5          Usually there's often a number of months where the



            6     completeness of the record is being determined, and



            7     then -- and then likely a motion to transfer the case



            8     up to the supreme court to be heard.  So it's typically



            9     a multi-month process.  There's nothing that -- that



           10     prevents the certificate holder from proceeding with



           11     implementation of the site certification agreement in



           12     the -- while that's ongoing.



           13          I think that answers your questions, Council



           14     Member Chiles?  Did that -- did I --



           15                        MR. CHILES:  Yes.



           16                        MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah.



           17                        MR. CHILES:  Thank you, Counsel.  I



           18     appreciate that.



           19          So it sounds like things will be moving forward



           20     while the litigation kind of continues in the



           21     background to see if it will go before the state



           22     supreme court.



           23                        MR. THOMPSON:  Correct.



           24                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Director Bumpus, did



           25     you wish to add another word, or...?
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            1                        MS. BUMPUS:  I think -- thank you,



            2     Chair Beckett.  I think Jon Thompson answered it.  It



            3     was just to address that other part of the question



            4     that Carriger is proceeding and that we're going to be



            5     in receipt of plans, we think, fairly soon to begin the



            6     review of those, so the work's continuing along with



            7     the litigation.



            8                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Great.  Thank you



            9     for the added emphasis there.  And I think, to your



           10     earlier point too, that project is also on the



           11     governor's executive order, and hence our focus is only



           12     more so in moving those projects forward.



           13          Okay.  Council Chiles, was there any other



           14     question or comment you wished to make on Carriger?



           15                        MR. CHILES:  No.  Thank you very



           16     much, Chair Beckett.



           17                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  Thank you.



           18          So, with that, we will move to the Goldeneye



           19     battery storage project update.  Ms. Snarski.



           20                        MS. SNARSKI:  Yes.  Thank you, Chair



           21     Beckett.  Again, this is Joanne Snarski, the siting



           22     specialist for the proposed Goldeneye battery energy



           23     storage facility in Skagit County.



           24          Last month, I reported that the applicant had



           25     recently submitted a revised site plan for the
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            1     facility.  However, I misspoke.  What they did submit



            2     was a revised conceptual site restoration plan.



            3     However, we anticipate that Goldeneye representatives



            4     will submit a more formal site plan in the coming



            5     weeks.



            6          Last week, staff sent our fourth data request to



            7     the developers.  We anticipate their response to that



            8     by March 1st.



            9          The need for submittal of information is required



           10     to help us complete our State Environmental Policy Act



           11     determination for the project.



           12          May I answer any questions?



           13                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council members?



           14                        MR. RYBARIK:  No questions.



           15                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Council Eckroth,



           16     just to make sure in case you had any question or



           17     comment.



           18                        MR. ECKROTH:  Council Member Eckroth



           19     here.



           20          No questions.  Thank you very much.



           21                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



           22          All right.  Then we will move on to the Cascade



           23     Renewables Transmission project.  And Maria Belkina



           24     will provide her occupy date.



           25                        MS. BELKINA:  Thank you.
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            1          Good afternoon, Chair Beckett and Council members.



            2     For the record, my name is Maria Belkina, siting



            3     specialist assigned to and reporting on the Cascade



            4     Renewable Transmission Project.



            5          Staff continue to review the application for site



            6     certification for compliance with WAC 463-60 with the



            7     objective of determining of whether the application



            8     contains sufficient information to support the next



            9     step -- next phase of review.  In parallel, staff are



           10     finalizing the first consolidated data request,



           11     informed by application review and agency input.



           12          Staff expect to receive comments from contracted



           13     agencies soon, which will help inform the next request



           14     for additional information from the applicant.



           15          Staff continue to coordinate with key state and



           16     federal agencies.  In January, staff conducted two



           17     interagency coordination discussions with the



           18     Washington Department of Natural Resources and the



           19     Washington Department of Ecology to support alignment



           20     on process, sequencing, and environmental review



           21     considerations.



           22          EFSEC has received a formal invitation from the



           23     U.S. Army Corps of Engineers to participate as



           24     cooperating agency in the preparation of an



           25     environmental impact statement, with the corps serving
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            1     as NEPA lead agency.  Staff have prepared a response



            2     confirming EFSEC's willingness to participate and to



            3     coordinate NEPA and SEPA processes.



            4          In addition, a meeting is being scheduled with the



            5     Columbia River Gorge Commission to initiate early



            6     coordination and communication regarding the project



            7     and applicable Gorge Act considerations.



            8          With respect to water quality permitting, staff



            9     are intentionally sequencing the Section 401 water



           10     quality certification process so that it follows a



           11     sufficiently developed SEPA environmental record.



           12     Importantly, key water quality issues will be addressed



           13     through the SEPA review, which will then support the



           14     Section 401 process.



           15          Staff continue to support tribal engagement



           16     planning and coordination consistent with state



           17     requirement -- state requirements.  Initial



           18     government -- initial government-to-government



           19     consultations are scheduled to begin in early February,



           20     including the first consultation meeting with the



           21     Cowlitz Indian Tribe.



           22          Following input received at the informational



           23     meetings and the land-use hearings, staff reach out to



           24     local jurisdiction along the project route to ensure



           25     that they are aware of the need to appoint a Council
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            1     member where the project falls within their



            2     jurisdiction.



            3          We have since received an appointment of Council



            4     member from the City of Stevenson and have received



            5     indications of pending appointments from the Klickitat



            6     County and the City of Camas.  We expect to receive



            7     additional appointments in the coming weeks.  Our legal



            8     counsel, Jon Thompson, can provide further information



            9     of proceedings while local jurisdiction make decisions



           10     in their appointments.



           11          That concludes my update.  I would be happy to



           12     answer any questions.



           13                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



           14          I'm sorry.  Was there a more proactive comment you



           15     wanted to make first, Counsel Thompson, or...?



           16                        MR. THOMPSON:  Well, I do have



           17     comments.  I wanted to address a few questions about



           18     the question that Ms. Belkina mentioned last about



           19     proceeding, you know, while we're awaiting other --



           20                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Yeah.



           21                        MR. THOMPSON:  -- appointments for



           22     Council members.



           23                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Yeah, let's go ahead



           24     and hear that.



           25                        MR. THOMPSON:  Okay.
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            1          Yeah, so a couple of questions if you recall at



            2     the public informational and land-use consistency



            3     hearings that were held in the three counties that are



            4     involved in this project were raised about whether the



            5     public informational meeting and the land-use



            6     consistency hearings should have been convened prior to



            7     all the, you know, the appointees that are eligible to



            8     be on the Council being seated.



            9          Yeah, so I wanted to speak to that just briefly



           10     and give you my thoughts on that topic and what might



           11     lie ahead on those topics.



           12          So, first, regarding the public informational



           13     meeting.  So RCW 80.50.090(1) is the -- is the law that



           14     requires that to be held.  And it basically says the



           15     Council shall conduct an informational public hearing



           16     in the county of the proposed site as soon as



           17     practicable but not less than 60 days after the receipt



           18     of an application for certification.  So that's the



           19     basic mandate.



           20          There are -- EFSEC has adopted rules about public



           21     informational meetings and the land-use consistency



           22     hearing.  And the only kind of requirement in this



           23     regard is there's -- it states that before conducting



           24     either the informational public hearing or the public



           25     land-use hearing, the Council will notify local
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            1     jurisdictions.



            2          It doesn't -- it doesn't require, you know,



            3     waiting until appointments are made.  So neither the



            4     statute or the rules, you know, require that all



            5     jurisdictions that are eligible to appoint someone have



            6     done so prior to that meeting.  The mandate is really



            7     to hold it, hold the meeting, you know, within 60 days



            8     of receipt of the application.



            9          And I'd also point out that the purpose of the



           10     meeting is also described in the rules, and it's



           11     basically for the applicant to make a presentation



           12     about -- about the project, a general description of



           13     the project, reasons why the site was selected, a



           14     summary of anticipated impacts, and then for the



           15     general public to be afforded an opportunity to present



           16     written or oral comments.



           17          So the reason I mention that is because the



           18     Council's role is -- is pretty passive.  It's -- you



           19     know, at this point, it's just to receive information



           20     from the applicant and the -- and the public.  And it's



           21     a very early opportunity basically to get some -- some



           22     reaction, some understanding and reaction to the



           23     project.  And of course then there's -- over the course



           24     of reviewing an application, there's a lot of other



           25     hearing and public input opportunities on SEPA as well
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            1     as the adjudicative process.



            2          You know, with SEPA there's -- there may be a



            3     scoping hearing.  There may be a hearing for receipt of



            4     comments on a draft environmental impact statement.



            5     And then, as I mention, there's the -- there's the



            6     adjudication.  And then there's also an opportunity for



            7     the Council to provide additional hearings as -- as you



            8     see fit.



            9          So -- so in my opinion, yeah, there's -- and I



           10     would also add that these hearings are recorded on



           11     video and audio and transcribed by a court reporter, so



           12     there's the opportunity for Council members to review



           13     that -- that information when they come on board too.



           14          So -- so in my opinion, there's nothing -- as I



           15     said, the requirement is that this meeting be held



           16     within 60 days.  You complied with that.  I don't think



           17     there's any mandate to go back and redo it.  You can --



           18     you can re-examine once the new Council members are on



           19     board, you know, whether you feel a need for additional



           20     process in that regard, but that's about I think what



           21     we can say at this point.



           22          So regarding the land-use consistency hearing,



           23     there's no requirement that be held within 60 days of



           24     receipt of an application.  It just says that it should



           25     be subsequent to the land-use consistency hearing.  So
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            1     my opinion is that the record for that decision really



            2     hasn't been sufficiently developed.  And because of



            3     that, staff is in the process of developing a set of



            4     questions to -- to send to the applicant to further



            5     develop that information.  And then, I mean, I think I



            6     would recommend affording the parties who spoke to that



            7     issue, you know, any parties who want to speak to that



            8     to be -- to have another opportunity to respond to what



            9     the applicant has to say and really, you know, better



           10     develop the record for that.



           11          And to the extent that you can, I would say that



           12     you should probably wait to deliberate on that until --



           13     until you do have the other Council members empanelled



           14     so that they have an opportunity to speak to that.



           15          I would add that the Council members, by EFSEC



           16     rule, are only to speak to the -- or to deliberate on



           17     and vote on the segments of the project that are within



           18     their appointing jurisdiction.  So that's another kind



           19     of wrinkle for all of us to be aware of.



           20          So, yeah, I just wanted to add that context in



           21     case you had questions about it.  I know there was a



           22     lot of head scratching about that maybe at the initial



           23     meeting.  So I'm just adding that to Ms. Belkina's



           24     report for your -- for your background information.



           25                        CHAIR BECKETT:  No, thank you.  I
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            1     think it's a very important update and certainly helps



            2     to have that clarified, knowing some of it is still in



            3     process of -- of getting further clarified.



            4          And in that regard, I was going to acknowledge up



            5     front and ask if there's a comment from our two local



            6     representatives, Commissioner Leckie, who -- and



            7     Council Leckie, who's joined us previously, and now



            8     Council Jeff Breckel representing the City of



            9     Stevenson.  But let me just turn this open to all



           10     Council members, knowing further Council who are here



           11     with us in the room and Council Nelson.  Certainly



           12     these questions have been, I think, on their mind as



           13     well, Counsel Thompson.  So thanks for clarifying that.



           14          I'll turn it open for comments.



           15          Council Pamplin.



           16                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Great.  Thank you,



           17     Mr. Chair.  Thanks, Mr. Thompson, for the overview.



           18          So, you know, the statutory requirement for the



           19     public information meeting, 60 days within receipt of



           20     the application makes sense.  Have the project



           21     applicant explain the project proposal, an opportunity



           22     for public input, just a very early engagement and



           23     public awareness of here's an extensive process that's



           24     coming.  And so I appreciate that.



           25          I think the part that was -- that's of interest to
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            1     me is the obligations for the land-use consistency



            2     hearings.  So I do think it would be beneficial to make



            3     sure we've got the full roster of Council members, but



            4     I look to you to kind of figure out what can be done,



            5     you know, while -- what work can be done while those



            6     are still being appointed.



            7          But also I'd just like to make sure that, as



            8     EFSEC, we're reaching out not just to the project



            9     applicant but to those local governments and



           10     municipalities for their understanding of how the



           11     project is consistent or not with their own ordinances.



           12     To me, asking the applicant to say, well, you know, you



           13     could imagine the scenario where an applicant would



           14     respond saying, yes, it's consistent and the County



           15     saying, no, it's not.  And I guess I'd like to make



           16     sure that we're hearing directly from the local



           17     governments whether or not it's consistent rather than



           18     an applicant's interpretation of what they've heard



           19     from the local government, if that makes sense.



           20                        MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah, I think that's



           21     an excellent point.  I mean, I think -- and I think it



           22     is staff's practice to, if Ms. Hafkemeyer or Ms. Bumpus



           23     want to speak to this too, to try to solicit that input



           24     from local land-use authorities.



           25                        MS. BUMPUS:  Yes.  So we do have a
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            1     data request that we're preparing to send out.  And



            2     there are questions in that data request that should,



            3     when we receive responses, supplement the application



            4     as to land use.  I think we need to look at that.



            5          We also have discussed sending follow-up letters



            6     to some of the local governments who have indicated



            7     that they're going to appoint someone to the Council.



            8     They just haven't chosen who that person's going to be.



            9     And we've indicated to them that they'll need to get up



           10     to speed, read the record, and be familiar with that.



           11          And as Mr. Thompson noted, you know -- and I agree



           12     with this point -- that once you have the full



           13     composition of the Council, I think that that might be



           14     a time ripe for, okay, what do we have in the



           15     application that helps inform us about land-use



           16     consistency, and if it's still deficient at that point,



           17     do we hold another hearing?  Is there some other



           18     mechanism that we want to implement to gather more



           19     information and supplement the record so that the



           20     Council can make a decision with respect to land-use



           21     consistency?



           22                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Mr. Chair, just



           23     another follow-up.



           24          I also recall looking into this, and there was a



           25     statute indicating that the project applicant may work
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            1     with the local government to get a local -- or a



            2     land-use consistency certificate and that that is



            3     brought forward at the actual hearing, which is also



            4     kind of -- I mean, that seems ideal, but I guess I



            5     would also give a lot of deference -- but tell me if



            6     I'm off base on this -- that if there was a land-use



            7     consistency certificate even after the hearing but



            8     before the Council's making a decision, that we'd



            9     welcome that.



           10          I mean, it's -- anyway, the statutes on this



           11     particular process, I think, you kind of stumble



           12     through it rather than, like, as far as really clear.



           13     So I don't know if that's even something Director



           14     Bumpus, on a future agency, request legislation to kind



           15     of map some of these processes out, because I think



           16     they kind of put you sometimes in a box that's --



           17     that's kind of challenging to operate within.



           18                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Director Bumpus.



           19                        MS. BUMPUS:  I would just -- I don't



           20     know if Mr. Thompson has something to add, but I would



           21     just note that, you know, I think it's a good point.



           22     The Council does have broad discretion in terms of



           23     holding additional hearings and taking other steps to



           24     supplement the record as it's needed.  And every



           25     project's different, as we all know.  And so we may
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            1     find in this case that we want to do something like



            2     that in order to supplement it.



            3          So I think that -- as I said, you know, I think



            4     it's a good point.  I think in the framework that we're



            5     operating in today, I think we've got a lot of options



            6     for the Council available to supplement that record.



            7          And the other thing I was just going to mention



            8     too is that there is no time limit with respect to



            9     this -- this decision, right?  So we're not working as



           10     tightly as we were, like, say in the scheduling of the



           11     public informational hearing.



           12          Sorry.  I saw --



           13                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  It's fine.



           14          I would just like --



           15                        MS. BUMPUS:  -- Ms. Hafkemeyer.



           16                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  -- to add, in those



           17     initial hearings, the applicant did indicate that they



           18     were working with local jurisdictions to obtain



           19     certificates of consistency, which is one of the items



           20     requested in the data requests that we were preparing



           21     to have those submitted to us to become part of the



           22     record.



           23          We are also working, as you indicated, with some



           24     of the local jurisdiction planning departments to get



           25     some of that input that you indicated on their
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            1     interpretation about whether or not this project is



            2     consistent.  So that part of the record is still under



            3     development.  We're still working with those entities



            4     to try and, you know, get all of that information in.



            5     And so once we have all of that, we will make it



            6     available to the Council and the public.



            7                        CHAIR BECKETT:  So we'll take two



            8     comments here in order.  Council Ryan and then Council



            9     Leckie.



           10                        MR. RYAN:  Thank you, chair.



           11          Want to take a moment to echo some of Council



           12     Pamplin's comments and observations about some of those



           13     procedural concerns.  I think I felt similarly and



           14     happy to hear in the staff update about also agency



           15     consultations with DNR and DFW that have been



           16     scheduled.  I think that will be a key part of what I



           17     look for in a future, you know, version of the record,



           18     is especially talking to DNR's aquatic section about



           19     land use in the river.



           20          So definitely woke me up to sort of the complexity



           21     and the scale of the proposed project and looking



           22     forward to hearing more information and continuing to



           23     review the record.  So that's first.



           24          Secondly, I just had a quick question.  Was also



           25     encouraged to hear about some of the updates around
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            1     tribal engagement and would love to know if you could



            2     share a little bit of additional information about who



            3     else might be on the consultation schedule even if they



            4     haven't been officially contacted yet.  Would just love



            5     to know the staff's approach about who to consult with



            6     and gather with given the complexity and scale of the



            7     proposed project.



            8                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Do you have a



            9     moment or --



           10                        MS. McLEAN:  Yeah.



           11                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  -- at your



           12     fingertips maybe some --



           13                        MS. McLEAN:  Yeah.



           14                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  -- additional



           15     information, Ms. McLean?



           16                        MS. McLEAN:  Yeah.  Sure.  Just let



           17     me take one little note to -- okay.  Yeah.



           18          So thank you for that question.  Lisa McLean,



           19     tribal liaison for EFSEC.



           20          We -- obviously we sent out a notification to all



           21     32 tribes.  We've heard back from and been in close



           22     contact with Yakama, CTUIR, Umatilla, Warm Springs,



           23     Grand Ronde, and Cowlitz.  We haven't gotten a --



           24     the -- only Cowlitz has asked for the formal



           25     consultation.  Everybody else is aware they can ask for
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            1     formal consultation, but in the meantime, we have an



            2     active dialogue going with them, and we're trying to --



            3     as I've assured them, it's to try to, you know, get



            4     some meetings together at some key milestones.



            5          So just today this morning, we were talking about



            6     are there any milestones that are coming up.  We should



            7     call people together.  And as part of that also, we're



            8     in close contact with CRITFC, who is -- a lot of the



            9     tribes are -- those tribes that I mentioned are sort of



           10     relying on CRITFC to stay on top of this thing.  So



           11     we've been in touch with them, and we've been briefing



           12     them since -- what was it? -- the summertime, even



           13     before we got this application.  So they also know.



           14          So I guess my outreach has been:  We're here.



           15     Don't go listen to rumors.  If you got a question, call



           16     me, find out, and I'll get the answer.  You know what I



           17     mean?  So if you're feeling like you don't have the



           18     information you need on this, call me, and I will try



           19     to track down the information for you.



           20          Because this is going to be a long process.  And I



           21     think there are going to be periods where tribes are



           22     going to be, like, What are they doing?  You know, so



           23     we do have good contacts, you know, contacts that go



           24     not just with the chair of tribal council but rather at



           25     the staff level, which I feel good about, because then
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            1     we know that they know who to talk to on our side and



            2     we know who to talk to on their side.  And when we need



            3     to -- when they want us to raise it to the tribal



            4     council level, I feel confident that we'll be ready to



            5     do that.



            6                        MR. RYAN:  Very much appreciate that



            7     answer.  And sort of addressed a follow-up that I had



            8     already, which, you know, I was curious about any



            9     interagency coordination we might have with Oregon



           10     EFSEC regarding those tribes that are in Oregon but



           11     have their reserve rights in this state.  But it sounds



           12     like we're in touch, and there's not really a need to



           13     coordinate through the agency if we're just going to be



           14     directly in touch.  So really comprehensive, and



           15     appreciate the answer.



           16                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you for the



           17     instant update.



           18          I'm sorry to our local Council representatives.  I



           19     will turn to you next.  But let me just add one



           20     comment.



           21          I had sent an e-mail earlier on this, but I'll



           22     just out of transparency just go ahead and add it into



           23     the discussion.  And this -- certainly my intent would



           24     be to do any of the following in full coordination with



           25     what Lisa, Ms. McLean, has just laid out.





                                                                       88

�







            1          I'm concerned always about the congestion at



            2     Council doors, tribal especially, but I don't think



            3     that's untrue for local government.  So we need to go



            4     proactively, but we need to go at the most efficient



            5     appropriate time.  And, hence, if we could have one



            6     conversation, not six, that's probably ultimately



            7     better for those -- those other local and tribal



            8     partners.



            9          But in this case, something that I'd like to



           10     explore both a little bit as my onboarding as new chair



           11     but also as I have thought further about the CRT



           12     project is just that we request consultation.  And we



           13     can do that in coordination of which tribes have more



           14     focus on this.  Cowlitz have contacted us.  We



           15     appreciate that.  And am looking forward to that, that



           16     upcoming conversation very soon.



           17          But to the degree that can be more slightly



           18     proactively, you know, done now at the front end, it



           19     would seem something that I'd like to explore further.



           20     So just wanted to go ahead and share that in the moment



           21     here.



           22          Go ahead, Council Ryan.  And then I promise,



           23     Council Leckie, we'll come to you soon.



           24                        MR. RYAN:  Apologies.  Just -- I



           25     appreciate that idea.  I think it's a good idea and is
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            1     definitely in alignment with Executive Order 25-10



            2     about the language about being proactive.  I think



            3     that's a good thing to explore, and that's important.



            4                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Appreciate that.



            5          Great.  Believe it or not, Council Leckie.



            6                        MR. LECKIE:  Yeah, thank you.  I



            7     know that a comment was made about the land-use



            8     certificate, and that's one of the things I was going



            9     to comment on.



           10          You know, the question I would ask is:  Is the



           11     land-use certificate required?  Does the County issue



           12     it?  And should that have been done before the land-use



           13     consistency hearing?



           14          I do know, talking to our planning staff, that



           15     there was a request to meet with our prosecutor,



           16     planning director, and planning staff about a land-use



           17     certificate, but that meeting did not happen before the



           18     hearing.  So those are some questions outstanding to



           19     me.  So does EFSEC take that on for the land-use



           20     certificate, or is it still the County's



           21     responsibility?  Thank you.



           22                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



           23          Counsel.



           24                        MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah, I can speak to



           25     that.  The certificate is not required.  It's -- it's
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            1     basically something that the applicant, at its option,



            2     can try to obtain from the local jurisdiction.  And if



            3     it does, that establishes a presumption that there is



            4     consistency, which can be rebutted by other people, you



            5     know, if they -- they feel that's inaccurate, but -- so



            6     it's just -- it's an optional thing that the applicant



            7     can obtain, not required.



            8                        MR. LECKIE:  So local county



            9     planning does not have to issue anything regarding this



           10     property.  This is all EFSEC, then.



           11                        MR. THOMPSON:  Correct.  There is no



           12     requirement for local planning or the local



           13     jurisdiction to even take a position or, yeah, or to



           14     provide a certificate.  I mean, certainly we welcome



           15     that and, you know, even hope that they do.  But that



           16     there's no requirement, which partly may answer Council



           17     Member Pamplin's question to a degree, because there's



           18     no -- there's no way to compel the local jurisdiction



           19     to do so.



           20                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Can I jump in?



           21                        MR. LECKIE:  Then there's no local



           22     SEPA then either?



           23                        MS. BUMPUS:  No.  EFSEC is the SEPA



           24     lead agency.



           25                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Can I jump in just
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            1     to make sure that I'm interpreting Council Leckie's



            2     question?



            3          The Council will at a future date make a land-use



            4     consistency determination for the project.  And if the



            5     local jurisdiction has issued a certificate of



            6     consistency, that would be part of the record for that



            7     decision.



            8          However, EFSEC would not issue a certificate of



            9     consistency on the local jurisdiction's behalf.  If



           10     that is provided for the project, that would come from



           11     the local jurisdiction, not from EFSEC, but it would be



           12     part of the record for the land-use consistency



           13     determination made by the Council.



           14                        MR. LECKIE:  Then it's irrelevant if



           15     the County issues that or not; is that correct?



           16                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  I wouldn't call it



           17     irrelevant.



           18                        MS. BUMPUS:  No, not irrelevant.  I



           19     think that Mr. Thompson put it as there's -- if there's



           20     a certificate provided, there's a presumption of



           21     consistency.  And so that, I think, aids the Council's



           22     decision-making.  Whereas, in the absence of that, you



           23     don't have that presumption, and so you're looking at



           24     the question, you're looking at the record:  Is this



           25     project allowed here?  Is there anything that prohibits
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            1     this project from being sited here with respect to land



            2     use?



            3          So having that -- that piece of information as



            4     part of your record where the County is saying, "We



            5     think it is consistent," you have that presumption



            6     there.  But without it, you're relying on the other



            7     information that you have to answer the question to



            8     consistency.



            9                        MR. LECKIE:  Okay.  I'm just trying



           10     to understand the process, then.



           11          So if that presumption is made in the county



           12     planning or there's no application or land-use



           13     certificate, then EFSEC just takes on that role?  Is



           14     that how this process works?



           15                        MR. THOMPSON:  Well, yeah, I guess



           16     you can say that.  I mean, I think the Council would



           17     look at -- first at whatever information the applicant



           18     puts forward about what are -- you know, what are the



           19     applicable zoning codes, what are the applicable



           20     land-use plans, and makes whatever argument they want



           21     to make about whether the project is -- would be



           22     prohibited by those.



           23          Other parties can respond.  But it's -- it's --



           24     yeah, it's the Council's -- is required to make a



           25     determination as to whether the project, you know,
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            1     under local permitting processes, say, would be --



            2     would be allowed or prohibited.  And it can do that.



            3     Yeah, it can do that by researching the County's



            4     relevant code provisions, itself, and looking at the



            5     arguments that have been made by the parties before the



            6     Council.



            7          Does that help clarify?



            8                        MR. LECKIE:  Yeah, it does.  So then



            9     there's -- then the County's not involved with the



           10     permitting process, then, for a land-use certificate.



           11                        MR. THOMPSON:  Correct.  The --



           12                        MR. LECKIE:  Yeah.



           13                        MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah.



           14                        MR. LECKIE:  Okay.



           15          Okay.



           16                        CHAIR BECKETT:  But I would just --



           17                        MR. LECKIE:  No, thank you.



           18                        CHAIR BECKETT:  I would just



           19     emphasize -- and, Council Breckel, I will come to you



           20     next -- ultimately, no matter what form the input comes



           21     from the local jurisdiction, it is most important to



           22     EFSEC as an agency to have -- you know, whether it's to



           23     say, yes, this is consistent, or, no, it's not,



           24     ultimately EFSEC -- and it is one of the superpowers



           25     that has its controversies -- that the Council, if it
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            1     chooses, you know, to interpret that it's not



            2     consistent but a project needs to continue to go



            3     forward, that is one of the powers under statute that



            4     EFSEC has.



            5          I don't think any of us -- I'll speak for



            6     myself -- would take lightly overriding a local view,



            7     but that is part of the role and authority of EFSEC.



            8     So the more that that information in whatever form it



            9     comes into EFSEC's record from each local jurisdiction



           10     is of preeminent importance to and I believe to the



           11     agency historically as well as on a more complicated



           12     project like we're experiencing for the first time I



           13     think in the history of the agency as far as a mult-



           14     jurisdiction transmission project.  So that's part of



           15     the dialogue that we're sitting here having today in



           16     public.



           17          So unless I really misstated anything.



           18                        MR. LECKIE:  No.  Thank you.



           19                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.



           20                        MR. LECKIE:  I guess that's where



           21     the confusion was, 'cause it seems like they engage to



           22     get the certificate from the County, then the meetings



           23     did take place, and it stopped.  That's what was kind



           24     of confusing me, was did they have to fulfill and



           25     finish that requirement at the County, or if EFSEC's
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            1     taking it on, then maybe that was just -- you know,



            2     maybe it wasn't needed, so they moved on to EFSEC.



            3          That clarifies that.  Thank you.



            4                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  It's good --



            5     good discussion from my perspective.  And I think as



            6     Council Pamplin noted earlier, there's opportunity to



            7     clarify and make this smoother where that could be done



            8     through a policy or process rather than a statutory



            9     change.  Count me in for the nonstatutory path.  But we



           10     may bump into -- to those limits and need to seek more



           11     authority.



           12          Council Breckel, welcome.  As a new member of the



           13     Council, thank you both for enduring our onboarding



           14     process, which we try to not to make too long.



           15          Council Breckel.



           16                        COUNCIL BRECKEL:  Thank you very



           17     much, Mr. Chair.



           18          Yeah, you know, I -- I go back.  I attended the



           19     initial public information meeting and land-use



           20     consistency hearing here in Skamania County.  And I



           21     think there was a fair amount of, I think, both



           22     confusion and concern over the EFSEC process as it



           23     applies to this project.  That there was a land-use



           24     consistency hearing, and we didn't hear from any of the



           25     local government within Skamania County in terms of
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            1     land use on this particular thing.  And, quite frankly,



            2     that some of the local jurisdictions, certainly the



            3     City of Stevenson, didn't even realize that this



            4     hearing was ongoing at that time.



            5          So I think as we're looking at this, at this



            6     process, I think you'll find, you know, particularly



            7     with some of these smaller jurisdictions, that there's



            8     not any formality, any basis in terms of understanding



            9     the process, the EFSEC process as it looks at these



           10     types of projects or how it works or how they can



           11     engage and participate in that process.



           12          So I would hope that, you know, particularly as



           13     you're looking for representatives from some of the



           14     other local governmental jurisdictions, that somehow



           15     there's that good clarity I think we got on some of the



           16     onboarding discussions at least as a Council member but



           17     also some discussions I think with local governments in



           18     terms of how they can effectively engage in this



           19     process.  Because they are knowledgeable of it.  This



           20     is something new, and it's something complex, and it's



           21     something that affects their local jurisdiction.



           22                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Appreciate that



           23     comment.  And, again, I think there's learning in real



           24     time as well as in earlier months coming out of the



           25     hearings, but no doubt opportunities here to learn and
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            1     grow from, I think.  So appreciate that.



            2          Council Nelson.



            3                        MR. NELSON:  Thank you, Chair



            4     Beckett.



            5          Yeah, I was at the Skamania land-use hearing, and



            6     I made a comment that, in retrospect, was largely



            7     process ignorance.  I think -- and it was about sort



            8     of, like, along the lines of, you know, if this was a



            9     Skamania County shoreline management plan, would it,



           10     you know, pass muster or not.  And it just wasn't a



           11     point of the project yet that that information was



           12     really out there.  I think it will come out in SEPA.



           13          But the point of my ramble, Councilman Leckie and



           14     Councilman Breckel, is that local engagement and if



           15     there is a local certificate of, you know, compliance,



           16     we would -- you know, that's a big part of the -- at



           17     least I'd say it'd definitely be a part of my



           18     deliberation.  And however that looks, I'm still not



           19     edified enough to know, like, when that will come up.



           20          The -- I'm just trying to say that I hope the



           21     public gets a real big bite at that apple, you know,



           22     when that information is submitted and gets out there.



           23     And if it's through a hearing process, if it's like a



           24     comment period, I hope it's a good long one, a couple



           25     weeks as EFSEC has been doing a good job giving.
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            1     And -- or if it's another hearing, great.  You know,



            2     like, it's Skamania County, I think, specifically since



            3     the -- since it's going to run on land, is what I'm



            4     most curious about regarding the land-use consistency.



            5                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Thank you.



            6          Other comments from Council?  Any closing comments



            7     from our good staff team that's been supporting this



            8     discussion?



            9                        MS. BUMPUS:  Thank you, Chair



           10     Beckett.  Just one comment.  It was talked about



           11     earlier in Ms. Belkina's update that we've recently



           12     learned that the corps is going to be doing an



           13     environmental impact statement and that we are



           14     coordinating with them, collaborating with them on



           15     that.



           16          Staff do intend -- I don't know that it will be in



           17     February.  It may be more in March.  We'll see.  But



           18     we're in discussions with the corps and many other



           19     agencies as well as tribes.  And we've discussed



           20     internally doing a presentation for the Council about



           21     how the SEPA process will work and how that



           22     coordination will work.  So I don't know if it will be



           23     in the form of a full-on PowerPoint presentation or



           24     just a hefty verbal update, but we do intend to provide



           25     the Council with information and the public with
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            1     information about how we're going to do that work, the



            2     environmental review, given that there are multiple



            3     agencies involved.



            4          But we're at the point now to be able to share all



            5     the behind-the-scenes details of how that will work.



            6     But it is on the radar, and we intend to update the



            7     Council.  I don't want to commit to February yet.



            8                        CHAIR BECKETT:  I understand that.



            9     But thank you for the added foreshadowing of what's to



           10     come.



           11          Okay.  Other comments?  Hearing none.



           12          We will wrap up our project updates.  And thank



           13     you.  I know this meeting is going on, so we'll try and



           14     move through our final three items quickly.  But I



           15     think that conversation was important.  It's one that



           16     we weren't able to really do in December, just having



           17     gotten out of the hearings as well as our November



           18     meeting in the middle of the hearings.  So appreciate



           19     the extra time that we've ended up spending here today.



           20          With that, I will turn this to Director Bumpus for



           21     both her cost allocation update and any other updates



           22     that she wishes to give before perhaps if you would go



           23     ahead and do me the favor of turning that to Lisa



           24     McLean when you're done, and we'll just --



           25                        MS. BUMPUS:  Yes.
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            1                        CHAIR BECKETT:  -- wrap up that way.



            2                        MS. BUMPUS:  Thank you, Chair



            3     Beckett.  And good afternoon, Council members.



            4          For the cost allocation update, this is for the



            5     non-direct cost allocation for third quarter of Fiscal



            6     Year 2026.  This covers January 1 to March 31, 2026.



            7          I will not read off the percentages.  They have



            8     not been changed since last quarter's update.  They're



            9     in your packet.  So if you have any questions about



           10     those, do follow up with me.  But in the interest of



           11     time, will not read all of those off.



           12          As far as director updates go, I did want to -- I



           13     mentioned earlier Executive Order 25-11, which is the



           14     acceleration in support for clean energy projects,



           15     given the federal lack of energy tax credits.  So EFSEC



           16     is participating in -- on the acceleration team.  We



           17     actually have a number of staff that are involved in



           18     tracking that work.



           19          There is a report that we need to prepare that's



           20     due at the end of the month.  But before the executive



           21     order was issued, we had been in discussions with other



           22     agencies and preparing a list of projects that we



           23     thought might be in a position to take advantage of the



           24     federal tax incentives, and so I think that in some



           25     respects that group is ahead of the work a little bit.
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            1          Do reach out if you have any questions about that



            2     report.  And Ms. McLean is engaged on that effort.  If



            3     you have detailed questions about what we're going to



            4     be putting in that report, please follow up with



            5     Ms. McLean.



            6          As far as other director updates, we do intend to



            7     do an update with the Council on budget and on



            8     legislation.  Right now we're in the throes of



            9     legislation, so not a whole lot to share that has any



           10     concrete, you know, to it, but we'll give you an update



           11     in February on that.



           12          Any questions before I hand this to Ms. McLean?



           13          Thank you.



           14                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Seeing none.



           15                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Sorry, Mr. Chair.



           16     Just to slip one in.  Thanks, Director Bumpus.  Just a



           17     quick question.



           18          How did EFSEC -- how did EFSEC fare within the



           19     governor's 2026 supplemental operating budget proposal?



           20     Thank you.



           21                        MS. BUMPUS:  Ms. Gomes, do you want



           22     to...?



           23                        MS. GOMES:  This is Nabila speaking.



           24                        CHAIR BECKETT:  You might need to



           25     come forward, though.
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            1                        MS. GOMES:  I'll come closer.



            2          Thank you, Lisa.  Excellent question.  This is



            3     Nabila speaking on behalf of EFSEC and EFSEC staff.



            4          The AG -- well, EFSEC received a 15 percent



            5     proposed cut, so compared to other small agencies that



            6     received a 5 percent cut.  So that's a significant cut



            7     compared to other small agencies.



            8          We met with OFM and the governor's staff just to



            9     determine what the impacts would be to the agency



           10     especially on the operating end of things.  And this is



           11     specific to the general fund.  And we anticipate that



           12     we will have an update in February once we know exactly



           13     how it's going to impact operating -- operating costs.



           14     'Cause what essentially is going to have to happen is



           15     we'll have to offset some of our general funds, which



           16     include four staff members and legal fees and other



           17     things like that, onto either overhead or onto project



           18     costs, which is -- we don't know what that looks like,



           19     and so we're just determining.



           20          But essentially it's about a $245,000 cut to our



           21     budget, which we do have strategic actions in plan, and



           22     so now we are pivoting with it.  So we anticipate



           23     having a full-fledged update in February.



           24                        MS. BUMPUS:  Yeah, we will provide



           25     an update.  And, you know, one of the things is that
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            1     we're not surprised, right?  We knew.  So we had



            2     already been talking.  This was definitely on Nabila's



            3     radar, and we had been talking about what is the



            4     strategy.  Not if this happens but when it happens.  We



            5     were surprised about the -- sort of the, I guess --



            6                        MS. GOMES:  How heavy-handed.



            7                        MS. BUMPUS:  -- the heavy-handed --



            8     somewhat heavy-handedness given that we're a small



            9     agency compared to the impact on others.  But -- but I



           10     think that we've got some good strategies for how we



           11     can -- we can offset.



           12                        MR. PAMPLIN:  Yeah, thanks for the



           13     updates.



           14                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Okay.  I think that



           15     takes us to Ms. McLean as you said.



           16                        MS. McLEAN:  Hi.  So now I'm here as



           17     the leg policy manager, Lisa McLean, here to introduce



           18     a new staff member, Noel Sharp, who has joined us as



           19     the rules policy coordinator.  Very happy to welcome



           20     her to the team.  She just started on Friday.  Her job



           21     will be helping us work through these rules, work on



           22     internal policies, and generally helping the policy



           23     team.



           24          Noel comes to us with -- I'm really happy.  I just



           25     said to Director Bumpus today when I was introducing
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            1     Director Bumpus to Noel that she has a great deal of --



            2     I don't know -- checks all kinds of great boxes.



            3     Number one, she comes out of, recently -- most



            4     recently, private environmental consulting firm.



            5     Before that, she spent eight years at DNR.  And while



            6     she was at DNR, I'm not even going to try to remember



            7     to say exactly what rules projects she worked on, but



            8     it was a rules project that brought her in contact with



            9     tribes, heavy involvement with the tribes, and just a



           10     kind of controversial rules project.



           11          So not that I expect any of our rules projects to



           12     be controversial, but in the event that they are, I



           13     know that she's going to be able to handle it.  So I



           14     welcome her, and I think she's going to be a great



           15     addition to the team.



           16                        MS. SHARP:  Thank you.  It's nice to



           17     meet you-all.



           18                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Welcome aboard for



           19     sure.



           20                        MS. SHARP:  Thank you.



           21                        CHAIR BECKETT:  You're welcome to



           22     say anything else you wish at the moment.  And



           23     otherwise I won't put you on the spot further, so...



           24                        MS. SHARP:  I'm just getting



           25     onboarded, so -- but I'm really happy to be here.  I've
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            1     already learned a lot, so I'm excited.  Thank you.



            2                        CHAIR BECKETT:  Excellent.



            3          Well, on that note, I will just also highlight for



            4     the public in general that the update to



            5     preapplication, adjudication, and site restoration



            6     rules are being considered.  That was in a public



            7     meeting on the 7th of January, which some people may



            8     have still been out or things like that.  So more to



            9     come.  And, Noel, knowing you're here to be a part of



           10     all that is most welcome and important.



           11          But from my perspective, all ideas or, you know,



           12     constructive feedback, criticism, whatever folks want



           13     to send in to us, please send it.  And if it doesn't



           14     fit exactly in one of those three buckets, I would



           15     suggest we might still know what to do with it.  That



           16     may not be immediately versus other higher priorities.



           17     But now is the time to please, you know, let's



           18     collectively bring our best ideas forward.



           19          Because as I said in December and I may just keep



           20     saying it, like, especially in these times, we got to



           21     stick together, and we got to work together.  And



           22     that's just to me the bottom line, so -- and the



           23     opportunity.



           24          So, with that, I'll also note a thanks again to



           25     Council Pamplin and the Fish and Wildlife agency that
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            1     provided our wind and solar guideline presentation last



            2     time.  And I meant to mention when we approved the



            3     minutes, having reread them, it was just, I think, a



            4     really good discussion and just helpful and the kind of



            5     work that we should be doing.



            6          We may not always have time, you know, to do that



            7     in every meeting.  But as I reread those minutes, I was



            8     super appreciative of what I read there.  And I would



            9     encourage the public to go read it.  I think it starts



           10     on Page 80.  And, unfortunately, it is in court



           11     reporter speak, which is always especially ugly when



           12     you're reviewing those minutes.



           13          So, with that, are there any other closing



           14     comments?  Or we will wrap this up.



           15          Hearing none.  Then we are adjourned at 3:34.



           16                               (Meeting adjourned at



           17                                3:34 p.m.)
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